
ANDERSON 
COUNTY 
SOUTH CARO LI NA 

To=yDunn 
Chairman 

Counci l District 5 

Brett Sanders 
Vice Chairman 

Council District 4 

Craig Wooten 
Council District 1 

Gracie S. Floyd 
Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Council District 3 

Jimmy Davis 

Council District 6 

M . Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

Lacey A Croegaert 
Clerk to Counci l 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
Tuesday, December 15, 2020 at 12:00pm 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mr. Ray Graham 

November 12, 2020 
Agenda Matters only 

Ms. Gracie S. Floyd (allotted 15 minutes) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
5. DISTRICT 2 DISCUSSION: 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 

a. 2020-023: An ordinance to amend and Agreement for the development of a Joint 
County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties 
as to enlarge the park. (Project Unity Gateway) 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2020-026: An ordinance authorizing (1) the conversion and transfer of property subject 
to an existing Lease Agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina (The 
"County") and Michelin North America, Inc. (FKA Michelin Tire Corporation) (The 
"Company"), to a Fee-in-Lieu of Property Taxes arrangement under Title 12, Chapter 
44 of the South Carolina Code, as amended; (2) the execution and delivery of such 
documents as may be necessary to effect the intent of this ord inance; and (3) other 
matters relating thereto. [1 988 Fee Agreement] 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

c. 2020-027: An ordinance authorizing (I ) the conversion and transfer of the property 
subject to an existing Lease Agreement between Anderson Count, South Carolina (The 
"County") and Michelin North America, Inc. (FKA Michelin Tire Corporation) (The 
"Company"). To a Fee-in-Lieu of Property Taxes arrangement under Title 12, Chapter 
44 of the South Carolina Code, as amended; (2) the execution and delivery of such 
documents as may be necessary to effect the intent of this ordinance; and (3) other 
matters relating thereto. [1 996 Fee Agreement] 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

d. 2020-028: An ordinance authorizing (! ) the execution and delivery of an 
Infrastructure (Special Source Revenue) Credit Agreement by and between Anderson 
County, South Carolina (The "County' ') and Michelin North America, Inc. (FKA 
Michelin Tire Corporation) (The "Company") to provide for Infrastructure Credits 
with respect to certain property located in the County; (2) the benefits of a 
Multi-County Industrial or Business Park designation to be made available to the 
Company and such property; and {3) other matters relating thereto. 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

e. 2020-031 : An ordinance to amend Chapter 70, Article 5 of the Anderson Count Code 
of Ordinance, to include new Zoning District Classifications and also to amend 
Section 5:2 Residential Agricultural District Setback. 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS 

Ms. M. Cindy Wilson (allotted 5 minutes) 

f. 2020-034: An ordinance to Amend Section 38-11 8 (f) of the Anderson County Code 
of Ordinances, so as to clarify Traffic Impact Study Requirements. 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

Post Office Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
www.andersoncountysc.org I (864) 260-4000 



Page Two 
Anderson County Council Agenda for December 15 , 2020 

g. 2020-037: An ordinance to approve a Sublease Agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and 
Lake Hartwell Development Group, LLC for the Asbury Park Site on Lake Hartwell located at the end of 
Asbury Park Road. PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

h. 2020-042: An ordinance to develop a jointly owned and operated IndustriaUBusiness Park in conjunction 
with Greenville County, such IndustriaUBusiness Park to be geographically located in Greenville County 
and estab lished pursuant to Sec. 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; to 
provide for a written Agreement with Greenville County to provide for the expenses of the Park, the 
Percentage of Revenue Application, and the Distribution of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxation. 
(Project Lighthouse) PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING: none 
8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: none 
9. RESOLUTIONS: 

a. 2020-041: A resolution authorizing the execution and delivery by Anderson County, South Carolina of an 
Inducement Agreement with a company known to the County as this time as Project Switch, whereby, under 
certain conditions, Anderson County will execute a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement with Project Switch with 
respect to an Industrial Project in the County whereby the project would be subject to payment of certain 
Fees in Lieu of Taxes, and an Infrastructure Finance Agreement whereby Project Switch will be provided 
certain credits against fee payments in reimbursement of investment in related qualified Infrastructure ; and 
providing for related matters. (Project Switch) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2020-042: A resolution authorizing and ratifying the transfer and assignment of a Fee in Lieu of Tax 
Agreement and rights related thereto by SMF, Inc. to EDECO LLC, D/B/A SMF; the continuation in force of 
such agreement following such transfer; the execution and delivery of agreements requesting and approving 
the transfers by and between the County and the Transferee; and other matters relate4d thereto. 
(Project Etnyre) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes 

10. BID APPROVAL: 
a. #2 1-020 Prestressed Concrete Cored Slab Units 

11. APPOINTMENTS: 

12. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL: 
Wellington Park- District 5 
Hurricane Springs Park- District 6 
Anchored in His Grace Ministry- All Districts 
Tiaras to Crowns-All Districts 

13. ADMINISTRATORS REPORT: 
a. Building and Codes 
b. Special Projects 
c. Paving 
d. Sheriff's Report 

14. CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
15. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL: 
16. ADJOURNMENT: 

(allotted 14 minutes) 

Anyone who requires an auxiliat) aid or service for effective communication. or a modificatiOn of policies 
or procedures in order to participate: in thiS program serv1ce or actl\'lt)' please contact the office of the 
program service or activity as soon a-; possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. 

For ass1stance please contact the Clerk to Council at 864-260-1036. 



State of South Carolina 

County of Anderson 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 

NOVEMBER 12, 2020 

IN ATTENDANCE: 
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN 
GRACIE FLOYD (via Zoom) 
RAY GRAHAM 
CRAIG WOOTEN 
JIMMY DAVIS 
BRETT SANDERS 
M. CINDY WILSON 

ALSO PRESENT: 
RUSTY BURNS 
LEON HARMON 
LACEY CROEGAERT 



2 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting - November 12, 2020 

1 TOMMY DUNN : At this time I'd like to call 
2 the regular Anderson County Council meeting of November 
3 the 12th , 2020 to order . I ' d like to welcome each and 
4 every one of you here today , or this afternoon . Thank 
5 y ' all for corning and participating in your local 
6 government. We ' ll have a few housekeeping 
7 announcements here to make in a few minutes. But to 
8 start, I'd ask us all to please keep your mask on , 
9 observe social distancing the best we can and be 

10 mindful of others and respectful. And at this time 
11 I'll ask Councilman Jimmy Davis if he ' ll lead us in the 
12 invocation and pledge of allegiance . Let ' s all rise , 
13 please. 
14 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS 
15 TOMMY DUNN : First order of business on 
16 the first reading , ordinances 12 (b) , it ' s 2020-033, has 
17 been pulled from the agenda. Also item 12 (e), 2 02 0-
18 036, has been pulled from the agenda . Anyone else? 
19 Anything else from anyone? 
20 Moving on , before we go any further, we ' re going to 
21 --as y ' all see , Ms. Floyd is unable to attend today . 
22 She's doing a Zoom, supposed to be doing a Zoom thing 
23 on the thing, she is . I ' ve talked to the attorney in 
24 length about this . Our ordinance clearly states to be 
25 present to be voting. I didn ' t make the rules . That ' s 
2 6 in our ordinance . Now , our council can make a motion 
2 7 to waive this or change this . That ' s a little iffy in 
28 my opinion because it says to amend the agenda in less 
2 9 than twenty-four hours declares an emergency. So it's 
30 debatable if this is an emergency or not. But I will 
31 at this time ask council if there ' s a motion on the 
32 floor to allow to participate in voting but not being 
33 present or not. I open the floor. 
34 GRACIE FLOYD: Mr . Chairman . 
35 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . 
36 GRACIE FLOYD : This is Gracie Floyd. You 
37 are talking about something which I wasn ' t aware . And 
38 when I talked to the attorney about this , he wasn ' t 
39 aware of it either . And when we talked to the 
40 administrator about this , he wasn ' t aware because this 
41 is the first time I've ever heard this . But, but if 
42 that's going to be a, if that's going to be a problem 
43 with the council , I don ' t see a reason to vote on it . 
44 I will just not , I will just not vote . I will sit here 
45 and I will listen . I will comment . I will say what I 
46 need to say . But I just won ' t vote . And that should 
47 take care of it . 
48 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Ms. Floyd . And 
49 just like I say that ' s in our Code of Ordinances . Been 
50 there since I ' ve been on council . I'm going on 



3 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

thirteen years. 
GRACIE FLOYD : Well , I ' ve been here twenty-

two . 
TOMMY DUNN : Then you should know that . 

Moving on ---
GRACIE FLOYD: No . 
TOMMY DUNN : Moving on - - -
GRACIE FLOYD : Mr . Chairman , if this was 

something that you knew before we started this program , 
then you should have said something because yo u the 
chair. 

TOMMY DUNN: Ma ' am, I didn ' t know none of 
this was going to come up . We ' re not going to start 
this meeting off like this . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Well , don ' t talk about it 
then . 

TOMMY DUNN : It ' s time for citizen 
comments . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Don ' t say 
TOMMY DUNN: At this time it ' ll be 

citizens comments. When the attorney calls your name 
you have three minutes . Please address your name and 
district for the record . And all matters on agenda 
items only on this first go around . Agenda items only . 
Please address the chair. Mr . Harmon. 

got 
LEON HARMON : Mr . Chairman , I think you ' ve 

approval of minutes 
TOMMY DUNN : 
LEON HARMON : 
TOMMY DUNN : 

I ' m sorry. 
before citizens comments . 

changes , corrections to 
2020 council meeting? 

I ' m sorry . Are there any 
be made to the September 15 , 

CINDY WILSON : Mr . Chairman , may I make the 
motion that we accept the minutes as presented for 
September 15th . 

TOMMY DUNN : Ms. Wilson makes the motion 
we accept as presented . Do we have a second? 

BRETT SANDERS : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN: Second by Mr . Sanders . All 

in favor of the motion show of hand . Show the motion 
carries unanimously. 

Be moving on now to the mi nutes of October 6th 
council meeting of 2020. Any corrections to be made to 
those? Do we have a motion? 

CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Ms. Wilson to accept . 
RAY GRAHAM : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN : Second by Mr . Davis . 
JIMMY DAVIS : I think it was Mr . Graham . 
TOMMY DUNN : I ' m sorry. Mr . Graham . All 



4 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 12, 2020 

1 in favor of the motion show of hands. All opposed like 
2 sign. Show the motion carries unanimously. 
3 Now we'll be moving on to citizens comments. 
4 Again, as I say, when Mr. Harmon, the attorney calls 
5 your name, you have three minutes. Please address the 
6 chair. Keep matters on agenda items only. And please 
7 state your name for the record. Mr. Harmon. 
8 LEON HARMON: Mr. Chairman, first 
9 speaker is Clifford Shiflet. 

10 TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Shiflet, if you 
11 would step back on that. We're going to keep that 
12 thing-- that's right. Everybody can hear you from 
13 there. 
14 CLIFFORD SHIFLET: Can they hear me now? 
15 TOMMY DUNN: Yes, sir. 
16 CLIFFORD SHIFLET: My name is Clifford 
17 Shiflet. Mr. Chairman, members of council and fellow 
18 residents, I appreciate the opportunity to speak this 
19 afternoon. I'm speaking about the Confederate 
20 monument. To explain my profile, my name is Clifford 
21 Shiflet, 125 Carlin Drive, Anderson, South Carolina. I 
22 was educated in the public schools here in Anderson. I 
23 went to Anderson College and graduated from Clemson in 
24 1980. I served my country for six years . My family 
25 history came from Virginia to Georgia and then in about 
26 1920 we immigrated across the Savannah River to 
27 Anderson. So we've lived here roughly a hundred years. 
28 I want my history, my heritage, that sits in the 
29 downtown square of this town left alone. The Heritage 
30 Act of South Carolina was put in place to protect 
31 things like that, and I want them left alone. There's 
32 some talk about a petition with thousands of 
33 signatures. And if that's just a bunch of names on a 
34 list, then I want a copy of the list and I want the 
35 name and address, and I want to confirm every name on 
36 there to see if they're an Anderson County resident or 
37 property owner. I think if they want to make that a 
38 public document, that I should get a copy if I want 
39 one. And we shouldn't have nobody voting outside of 
40 Anderson County or signing that petition. It shouldn't 
41 mean anything. I ' ve talked to people in Columbia; they 
42 even signed. 
43 I appreciate the time. There's some talk about a 
44 statue for Mr. Boseman because he was from Anderson and 
45 a famous actor. If they want a statue like that, fine. 
46 Put one somewhere. You can hide it behind the 
47 behavioral science building like you did the monument 
48 for our veterans. Here we are stuck behind a building 
49 over there and people can't even come to town to find 
SO the thing. And so to take that Confederate monument 



5 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

down and put Boseman's name 
wrong. Thank you. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
LEON HARMON: 

Meadows. 

there is wrong. It's 

Thank you. Next. 
Next speaker is Rossi 

ROSSI MEADOWS: Hello. My name is Rossi 
Meadows and I'm from Greenville, but I am a South 
Carolina historian from the Revolution War up to about 
World War II. So hello, my name is Rossi Meadows. I ' m 
a sixth generation South Carolinian and one of the 
seventy million Americans descended from a Confederate 
soldier. I'm a retired public school teacher and 
football coach. 

As a coach we studied film of our opponents to 
figure out their game plan. I would recommend to 
everyone to study Saul Alinsky's book, the Rules for 
Radicals. He was a professor at the University of 
Chicago and a believer in Karl Marx's push for 
socialism. Rule number 13, pick a target , freeze it, 
personalize it, and then polarize it. Karl Marx 
believed that religion has to be destroyed before 
socialism can take hold. Remember when we used to pray 
before high school football games. Karl Marx said you 
have to destroy the culture and the history of the 
people before you can destroy their religion. These 
neo Marxists who are attacking Confederate war 
memorials are also attacking other American monuments 
to destroy our history . These neo Marxists are just 
puppets. Look deeper to see who the real puppet master 
really is. 

Folks, we've got their play book. We know what it 
is. These Confederate war memorials are just the low 
hanging fruit. People, folks, we Christians better get 
ready. It's coming. Thank you for your time. 

TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon . 
LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Ed 

Dutton. 
ED DUTTON: My name is Ed Dutton. I 

live at 129 Sea Palms Drive. 
TOMMY DUNN: Excuse me, Mr. Dutton. 

Can y'all turn his mic up or something? We can ' t hear 
him. Get just a little bit closer, Mr. Dutton , if you 
can. Speak into it and see we can hear you . 

ED DUTTON: I live at 129 Sea Palms 
Drive in Cobbs Glen in Anderson County . And looking 
over your agenda today , I see quite a lot of important 
stuff. There's one item on your list, in my opinion , 
that can save lives. And I'm here to encourage you to 
pass an ordinance for face masks to mitigate the spread 
of this virus. Just as the city has done . Some time 



6 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

ago I talked with each of you about this subject and 
you expressed -- five of you expressed a rejection of 
doing so. 

Now, upon reflection of these rejections, I think 
your reasons fly in the face of one of the most 
important health crises that we have in this country at 
this time. And your position does not seem to support 
your mission statement. Your mission statement states 
that you will provide the highest public service for 
safety of the county. Saving a life would be pretty 
much in line with your mission statement. 

Now, one of the reasons that people reject -- seem 
to reject this is -- or one of the reasons you gave is 
a common sense. Just let common sense prevail. Well, 
common sense doesn't always work. And common sense to 
one person is not common sense to another. Which leads 
us to the need for a mandate for a mask. It is clear 
that people transmit the virus. It is clear that masks 
work to slow the spread. It is clear that we cannot 
rely on everyone to use common sense. It is clear that 
it will be some time before we have a vaccine. And 
just like a seatbelt law, we need to mandate a mask. 
It is past time to make a more aggressive move. 

LEON HARMON : Time, Mr. Chairman. 
ED DUTTON: Sometimes common sense 

needs a little encouragement. In a few moments ---
LEON HARMON : Time, Mr. Chairman. 
ED DUTTON: --- you will have a 

presentation from AnMed 
TOMMY DUNN: That's time. That's 

three minutes. Appreciate it . 
ED DUTTON: --- and they will add to 

what I have said. 
TOMMY DUNN: That's time. Mr. 

Harmon, next. 
APPLAUSE 

LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Michael 
Vandiver. 

MICHAEL VANDIVER : I'm Michael Vandiver . I 
was born and raised here in Anderson, South Carolina. 
I served as a United Methodist minister for my 
professional career and I am now back in Anderson, 
retired and living on Lake Hartwell, 5016 Cross Pointe, 
Anderson, South Carolina. 

I appreciate the opportunity to come and speak to 
the item number 6, presentation of relocation of the 
Confederate monument . During my years of growing up in 
Anderson, I am sorry that I have to admit that I was 
very racially prejudiced. It took quite a bit of 
change in my life for me to come to the point where I 



7 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting - November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

felt that I could no longer keep the vision , attitude 
that I had held for people who had skin color different 
from my own . When that did happen , I was deeply 
grateful . And it moved me to spend the rest of my 
life , I hope many people would say , trying to rectify 
that view and to create a country , a state , a city , 
where the views and beliefs and rights of all people 
would be recognized. 

I have looked at the monument in downtown Anderson 
that we ' re thinking about relocating and I realize , not 
only from my own personal change , but from the 
statements of many of my brothers and sisters of all 
different races and colors , that there ' s a different 
way of looking at that monument than the one I held 
early in my life . 

I think that monument needs to be moved so t hat we 
as Andersonians and those who would join us across the 
state and nation might look forward to the day where we 
could all feel that those things that find physical 
representation in our community are not offensive to 
some who now enjoy far more rights than they did when I 
was growing up here in Anderson , but yet need to know 
that we , in this day and time , want for anything that 
appears as a physical monument in our city to represent 
all of us and all of o u r rights . 

Thank you very much . 
APPLAUSE 

TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Harmon , next , 
please. 

LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Dyke 
Spencer. 

DYKE SPENCER: Thank you for this 
opportunity to talk to the full council. You have 
several items about ordinances change that are , I 
think , pretty much all tied to growth in this county. 
And I'm Executive Director of Powdersville Water , the 
fastest growing area in this county . We know what 
growth looks like up there. And we ' re probably having 
to do some things that the rest of the county is not 
having to do. 

I want to commend the council for your forward 
thinking and looking at the ordinances and looking at 
things that need to change , because they do . And if 
you don ' t believe that , drive to Powdersville and ride 
around . Jimmy will tell you , it ' s on every corner . 

At the same time I commend you , I caution you . 
It ' s an all-inclusive process when you make change s 
like we ' re proposing right now . I ' m all behind what 
you ' re doing ; don ' t get me wrong . But you ' ve got to 
include everyone that ' s impacted by these decisions. 



8 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 And I think that will fare very well for you if you do 
2 that. 
3 One of the requests that I want you to look at, and 
4 I'm being told by the staff of the county that this is 
5 an ordinance change that will require this, but let me 
6 just describe a situation that we're dealing with in 
7 the water system. Any given time we have ten to twelve 
8 subdivisions under construction. They require a water 
9 permit and a wastewater permit for all those houses to 

10 be able to operate. I'm asking the building codes to 
11 not issue building permits for houses so they can start 
12 building before there is a water and wastewater permit 
13 available for that subdivision. And I've got one, if 
14 you want to look one up, Yorkshire is one that's 
15 happening right now, it's got five or six houses going 
16 up. And when this happens you create havoc for the 
17 water systems out there because what's happening is 
18 people are monkeying with the plumbing, they're causing 
19 cross-connections with possibilities for contaminations 
20 in the water system. They're stealing water from the 
21 water utilities. It just creates chaos. 
22 But I just ask that the council look at that. I 
23 really need an answer on that fairly quickly. Because, 
24 again, we have several of these subdivisions that are 
25 underway right now. 
26 But again, I commend you for what you're doing, the 
27 way you're thinking. You've been very proactive about 
28 growth and we need to do that in this county if we want 
29 to preserve what we have here. 
30 Thank y'all. 
31 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you. Mr. Harmon. 
32 LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Dean 
33 Allen. 
34 DEAN ALLEN: Mr. Chairman, Cindy, 
35 gentlemen, thank you for the opportunity to be here and 
36 speak to you. I do appreciate that. I'll start off by 
37 briefly telling you I'm opposed to this face mask 
38 wearing ordinance. I think it's unconstitutional. 
39 But the reason I came down here this afternoon is 
40 item 6 on your agenda. My great great grandpappy 
41 fought for the Confederacy from Manassas to the day we 
42 surrendered Vicksburg and he became a prisoner of war. 
43 When he was paroled, he went back to Arkansas and 
44 raised cotton and ten children, one of whom became my 
45 great grandpappy. And three of his grandsons fought 
46 for the United States of America in World War II, one 
47 of them losing his life in defense of this nation. 
48 That's what the monument in front of the courthouse 
49 means to me. Now, twenty years ago when we took the 
50 Confederate flag off the statehouse and put it at the 



9 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

soldier's monument, they worked out a deal. They said, 
well, we're going t o pass a law and say that we're not 
ever going to take down another flag or monument that 
represents the culture and heritage of the state 
anymore and we'll leave the status quo as it was once 
they moved that flag. It's against the state law, 
gentlemen, for y 'all to move that monument. And I mean 
no disrespect, but if you do, I will sue you, and some 
of you are good friends of mine. 

I thank you for hearing from me, and I'll leave it 
and talk to others. And I hope I get a chance t o talk 
to some of you one on one. Thank you and God bless 
you. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
LEON HARMON: 

Melz. 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Harmon. 
LEON HARMON: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

speak? Move on. 
LEON HARMON: 

Keyfer. 

APPLAUSE 
Mr. Harmon. 
Next speaker is Deborah 

Repeat that name, Mr. 

Deborah Metz or Melz. 
Any Deborah signed up to 

Next speaker is Talin 

TALIN KEYFER: Thank you for letting me 
speak. I'm here on behalf of my daughter who is 
fifteen years old and a sophomore at Hanna High School. 
My name is Talin Keyfer. I'm a resident of the city of 
Anderson. 

After George Floyd's death, we were enjoying our 
downtown like we always do. But this time we went up 
to the Confederate monument and she read the plaque. 
She read it out loud and it was the first time either 
one of us had read it out loud. And the meaning meant 
something deeper than we ever realized after George 
Floyd's death. And I will read it to you now. 

The Confederate monument which stands in the heart 
of downtown Anderson has been-- I'm sorry. Let 's jus t 
read the subscription. 

The world shall yet decide and truth's clear far 
off light, that the soldiers who wore the gray and died 
with Lee were in the right. And when she read it out 
loud, I asked her how she felt about that. And she 
said she felt sad and she felt that our city was living 
in the past and not including all the marvelous 
diversity that we have living here, residents, today. 
And then she said it made her more sad about how it 
would make her black brothers and sisters and students 
at her school. And I 'm coming here today for her. She 
can't be here. And all the kids of the future can't be 



10 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
2 9 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
so 

here because they ' re in school. And we ' re making a 
decision on how we want them to feel when they come 
into our city. Their city . Their downtown . And I 
think it's time to make a change that shows the 
diversity, includes every resident of our great city . 
It's time to move forward. Thank you very much . 

APPLAUSE 
TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon. 
LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Wayne 

Whitfield. 
WAYNE WHITFIELD: Good afternoon , county 

council . Thank you for letting me speak this 
afternoon . Cindy , good to see you today. My name is 
Wayne Whitfield . Again , I'm from Anderson County. 
Lived in Anderson County all my life . I'm a retired 
marine . I spent a year in Vietnam in a rifle company. 
I ' ve got a great great uncle who was captured after the 
Battle of Gettysburg. And he was sent to a Yankee 
prison up on the Jersey Shore . He died there about a 
year later. And he ' s buried with three thousand 
Confederate soldiers in a mass grave . We found out 
this information because my uncle went to the New 
Jersey Shore in an attempt to retrieve his remains. 
And they said , that's impossible ; said we can ' t get his 
remains. He said, he ' s buried with three thousand men . 

My point is this. These monuments were put up all 
around the southeast in these towns for one reason 
primarily , and that was to honor the men , Southern men , 
who never came home. Most of them were buried in mass 
graves on battlefields and never had the privilege of a 
funeral back home. So these monuments represent those 
men who never came home. 

I think that monument is in the right place. I 
hope to God it ' s never moved . Now , this is not a 
perfect world we live in . We know that . And we ' re not 
trying to create a utopia here . We can ' t do that 
either because of our own condition . But I hope and 
pray that that thing remains. If it was wrong to put 
it up a hundred and twenty years ago , it would be wrong 
now. It wasn't wrong to put it up then because they 
put it up to honor those men that gave their lives for 
this state and for the southeast . 

I appreciate you letting me speak . 
APPLAUSE 

TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon . 
LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Nelson 

Waller. 
NELSON WALLER : Good afternoon , ladies 

and gentlemen. You know , I want to thank you for all 
the good things that you do involved in running the 



11 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

county. I know it's a huge job. And I know it's a 
responsibility to become a councilman. However, if it 
becomes a matter of your special agenda or somebody 
else's special values or program that you're serving 
instead of the public, something is radically wrong 
there. And I fear that's what's going on here. 

There is no such thing as a monument or a symbol 
that represents everybody. Let me tell you something. 
If you put up a statue of a TV star, any TV star of any 
race, it is not going to represent me because I despise 
modern TV and what it's doing in terms of public morals 
and values. The content is decadent beyond belief. 
(End of audio) ... to have here the agenda from your 
website, may I ask why this meeting is not on it? It 
says there's another one on the 17th. Is that the 
case? Here we have a map of part of the town 
containing Washington Street and Jefferson Avenue, 
including the Jefferson Avenue Park. Are you prepared 
to change the names of everything that existed before 
the Civil Rights Era? Because that's where this 
political correctness is going. If you change one, you 
take the monument down, well then the rationale becomes 
well, you did this for us, you have to do this to be 
consistent here. Hey, we're offended. We're still 
offended. This thing over here is racist. It's a 
slipper slope. Please do not go anywhere near it. 

Why do they want the monument down? Because they 
call it racist. There is nothing racist about it. As 
I've said before, it stands for Andersonians of every 
color of the period of time who in any way fought 
against the Yankee onslaught , which is comparable to 
the communist invasion of Hungary in 1956. I have a 
petition here for you. It is sealed and symbolically 
representing our desire for you to keep this 
information, be discreet with it. We don't need cancel 
culture going after the signers. There aren't many 
names on it. But it's what we had the resources to 
collect. We passed over a thousand petitions out 
amongst our fellow citizens. I wrote to each one of 
you -- Mr. Graham did not receive his, but I brought it 
today for him and gave it to Lacey -- asking your stand 
on the monument issue. Is there a reason that none of 
you replied? Until I do get a reply, I'm going to 
assume that you, ---

LEON HARMON: 
TOMMY DUNN: 
NELSON WALLER: 

council and the --
TOMMY DUNN: 
NELSON WALLER: 

Time, Mr. Chair. 
That'll be time. 
--- as well as the city 

That's time. 
--- legislators involved 



12 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 are colluding against us. 
2 TOMMY DUNN: Time . 
3 APPLAUSE 
4 TOMMY DUNN: Mr . Harmon . 
5 LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Paul 
6 Harrison . Next speaker is Kristin White . 
7 KRISTIN WHITE : Good afternoon . Thank 
8 you for letting me speak today . I did not prepare for 
9 this because I didn't know there was an opportunity to 

10 speak. 
11 Today I'm not coming to you with scare tactics or 
12 propagating cancel culture . We have canceled much 
13 culture in our history , black culture . I come to you 
14 today because I have brown children . I came to 
15 Anderson because I felt like this was a very 
16 diversified county . I came here to help give my 
17 children a chance to thrive and to grow , and for the 
18 most part they have. They have experienced some things 
19 in this county in the churches in the county and in the 
20 county in general that have been racist. However , 
21 we ' ve not allowed that to dampen our spirits, our hope , 
22 our projections for the future . 
23 I have a job where I go into the courthouse on many 
24 occasions . For about three years I frequented the 
25 courthouse for work. I saw the statue and thought, 
26 okay, interesting statue outside . Never thought much 
27 about it until one day I had some time in between 
28 hearings. And I walked over to that statue and what I 
29 read on that statue broke my heart . Broke my heart for 
30 my children and their children and my black brothers 
31 and sisters that live in this town . There is no way 
32 that anyone can tell me that it's okay to have a statue 
33 in front of the county courthouse that is to stand for 
34 liberty and justice for all of our people that says 
35 that Lee was right and the south should have won. We 
36 need to move. We need to grow. We do not have to 
37 destroy things in order to do that. We have already 
38 destroyed . It ' s time to rebuild. It ' s okay to change . 
39 It ' s time to change . 
40 If anyone wonders what the statue -- we talked 
41 about what it says. Someone read for us what it says. 
42 But I want to just briefly tell you that the likeness 
43 of the image is William Wirk Humphreys . He did not die 
44 in the war. He came back and lived a pretty much 
45 prosperous life . But I want to share with you a quote 
46 from Mr. Humphreys . He was a pastor in this area , I do 
47 believe. For ages to come slavery as it now exists 
48 must be profitable and beneficial in the cotton states . 
49 Yet if not sooner the remaining slave states must unite 
50 with us in a few years . And it is wise and proper to 



13 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

devise means whereby we can make their union perpetual 
and place a check upon the growth of abolition 
sentiment in their borders. That is who we celebrate 
in our town center. Thank you. 

APPLAUSE 
TOMMY DUNN: 
LEON HARMON: 

Jeffcoat. 
TOMMY DUNN: 
ROY JEFFCOAT: 

to speak on a zoning issue. 
this issue. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
agenda? Go ahead. 

ROY JEFFCOAT: 
about a zoning issue? 

Mr. Harmon. 
Next speaker is Roy 

Roy Jeffcoat. 
Mr. Chairman, I wanted 

I'm not here to speak on 

Zoning issue on this 

Are we ready to talk 

TOMMY DUNN: You can. This is a 
public open thing. Anything on the agenda you've got 
three minutes to talk about anything you want to. 

ROY JEFFCOAT: It's on the agenda 
later. May I speak when it's on the agenda? 

TOMMY DUNN: Which item is it, Mr. 
Jeffcoat? 

ROY JEFFCOAT: 12. 
TOMMY DUNN: Is it 12(a)? 
ROY JEFFCOAT: Yes. 
TOMMY DUNN: That's a public hearing. 

You can talk then, yes, 
ROY JEFFCOAT: 

sir. 
Pardon? 

want to. 

White. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
That's a public 

ROY JEFFCOAT: 
TOMMY DUNN: 
LEON HARMON: 

You can talk then if you 
hearing. 

Thank you. 
Yes, sir. 
Next speaker is Wesley 

WESLEY WHITE: Thank you , Chairman, 
council. I've been up here a couple of times the last 
couple of meetings. This is more of the same reason. 
Going through the agenda and noticed there's at least 
seven; two of them have been pulled, thankfully. One 
second reading, the rest are first readings of 
ordinance changes. And this goes back to the concern 
that I've had when we brought up changing the square 
footage from eight thousand to fifteen thousand square 
feet. Again, it's just a piecemeal way of going at 
fixing issues that we do have in the county. The 
biggest concern being that it doesn't address all the 
issues. Now, I know we have an ad hoc committee 
meeting tomorrow that my hope was that that committee 
was going to kind of pull back and address all the 



14 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 issues the Planning Department is having with 
2 development in the county as a whole. I ' ve already 
3 mentioned in previous meetings some of those iss ues in 
4 ways that can be addressed. I ' ve yet to be, you know , 
5 asked how to do that. Hopefully we ' ll have some 
6 opportunity at the ad hoc committee meeting tomorrow . 
7 But with the agenda items today , there ' s some 
8 serious concerns with the preliminary plat process. 
9 I ' ve actually sat in on some of the meetings where 

10 we've had to now have a meeting ahead of t ime with the 
11 council member and the district representative for the 
12 Planning Commission, then that ' s got to go to a 
13 community meeting . The meetings have not been 
14 extremely helpful , simply because there ' s no guidance 
15 as to what the ultimate goal of those meetings is 
16 supposed to be . 
17 So before we go adding to requirements on 
18 developers and making it more difficult for them to get 
19 approval for people to develop their land , we need to 
20 sit down and think through what that process is 
21 actually supposed to accomplish. 
22 Additionally, the requirement now to try to switch 
23 summary plats from seven to four lots and in five 
24 years, it's just another attack on the individual 
25 property owner and what they can and can't do with 
26 their property. 
27 So that ' s just a couple of them. There ' s more in 
28 here. Hopefully at some point we ' ll be able to have a 
29 sit-down and address the entire development ordinance, 
30 chapter 38 and 70 , as opposed to this piecemeal 
31 approach . Thank you . 
32 TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon. 
33 LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Luciana 
34 Strathem. 
35 LUCIANA STRATHEM: Thank you , Mr. Dunn and 
36 council, for allowing me speak today. I am Luciana 
37 Strathem and I live at 2208 East North Avenue . And I ' d 
38 like to speak on item 6 . 
39 My fellow Andersonians , I have lived in Anderson 
40 for most of my life and the Confederate monument 
41 downtown has always embarrassed me . Most obviously 
42 t his monument is un-American . The Confederacy was a 
43 legally separate nation from the United States and was 
44 defeated in the American Civil War. The Confederate 
45 dead memorialized in this monument are the defeated 
46 enemies of the United States and to not be glorified as 
47 heroes. For those who say that their heritage lies 
48 with these men , I argue that this is a shameful 
49 heritage . These men fought to keep the institution of 
50 slavery , which is the deepest and most shameful aspect 



15 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

of American history, an example of the worst inhumanity 
in the history of the world. Slavery violates the God
given dignity of every human person and has been a 
source of intergenerational oppression and trauma in 
our country for over four hundred years. The 
preservation of this unchristian system is not 
something that anyone should be proud to claim as their 
heritage. And this monument to slavery defenders and 
the enemies of our great nation is an embarrassment to 
our country. 

Among other economic issues the Confederacy fought 
primarily to keep the institution of slavery in the 
United States. The descendants of the people owned by 
these Confederate dead continue to live in our country 
today. The black population of Anderson should not be 
further tormented with a monument glorifying the 
oppressive masters of their ancestors. Additionally, 
this monument was not erected until 1901, over thirty 
years after the defeat of the Confederacy. Statues 
like this one were often used to proclaim public 
opposition to the Civil Rights Movement, which sought 
equal opportunity and an interracist treatment for 
African Americans. 

Therefore, this monument was likely not erected as 
a memorial to the family members of the Andersonians 
who died fighting against the United States, but as a 
symbol of white supremacy and opposition to equality 
for black Americans in this town. For those who claim 
this monument is a piece of history and should not be 
removed, I argue that monuments themselves are symbols 
of community values rather than sources of history. 
Sources of history include community institutions such 
as the Anderson County Library or the Anderson County 
Museum, which themselves are both wonderful places to 
which we can relocate this monument. Monuments and 
statues are a symbol of what a community upholds as 
most important to its citizens. In its place I 
recommend erecting a statue to the many brave men and 
women of Anderson who have fought to defend our 
freedoms as Americans. 

The veterans of Anderson County, including metal of 
honor and purple heart recipient Freddie Stowers best 
exemplify the ideals of patriotism and bravery that we 
should all honor as Americans. 

LEON HARMON: Time, Mr. Chairman. 
APPLAUSE 

TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon? 
LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Matthew 

Cogswell. 
TOMMY DUNN: Repeat it one more time, 



16 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

Mr . Harmon . 
LEON HARMON : 
MATTHEW COGSWELL : 

agenda for item 6 . 
TOMMY DUNN: 
MATTHEW COGSWELL : 

or continue? 
TOMMY DUNN : 

You ' ve got three minutes . 

Matthew Cogswell. 
I'm speaking on t he 

Item 6? 
Yeah. So should I wait 

You can speak now . 

MATTHEW COGSWELL : Okay . Well , thank you 
guys so much for your time and consideration . My name 
is Matthews Cogswell and my wife Sarah and I have been 
residents of Anderson for about five years after I 
accepted the position of Next Generation Pastor at Hope 
Fellowship Church . And since moving here we have been 
proud to call Anderson home. We have met some 
incredible people we call family and love this small 
town atmosphere filled with decent , hardworking people . 

Sadly, when I walk downtown , I don ' t see that 
reflected by the Confederate monument located in front 
of the courthouse in the heart of this city. Instead 
what's communicated to me and my family is that I am 
less than because of the color of my skin . You might 
ask how did I reach this conclusion? It ' s after 
reading the inscription on the side of the statue that 
says , the world shall yet decide in truth ' s far off 
light that the soldiers who wore the gray and died with 
Lee were in the right . Now, what right is that? 
What's the main issue? We ' re talking about what 
they ' re talking here . I look no further than Alexander 
Stephens, the V . P . of the Confederacy , who wrote in 
1861 , after discussing why the old union would split 
and why they would indeed fight , he said , quote, our 
foundations are laid , its cornerstone rests upon the 
great truth that the Negro is not equal to the white 
man. That slavery subordination to the superior race 
is his natural and normal condition. That ' s why I'm 
proposing the relocation of this monument. I have no 
political slant . I have no ax to grind against the men 
who have fought and died, the sons , the fathers of the 
gentlemen that were speaking earlier. I think they 
should be remembered . I just don't believe that this 
monument should be glorified in the center of my city . 

I believe that there simply should be more to be - 
reflect the beautiful , hardworking people of Anderson 
that includes thirty-one percent of African - Americans 
t hat also live here . With that I will pass it on to 
Sam and Daniel Wagner , individuals I ' ve been working 
with as we've been championing this cause as he speaks 
about this agenda. Thank you so much. 



17 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

APPLAUSE 
TOMMY DUNN : 
LEON HARMON: 

else is signed up at this 
TOMMY DUNN : 

on then to item number 
CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN : 
CINDY WILSON : 

privilege , please? 

Mr. Harmon. 
Mr . Chairman , no one 

point . 
Okay . We ' ll be moving 

Mr . Chairman. 
Yes , ma ' am . 
May I have a point of 

TOMMY DUNN: Yes , ma ' am . 
CINDY WILSON : We ' ve been hearing very 

emotional pleas on a ma t ter of a historical monument. 
And as Mr . Wooten so articula t ely pointed out, you ' re 
speaking to the wrong venue , t he wrong level of 
government. We have a State Heritage Act. If you wan t 
to work together and come to a harmonious conclusion , 
why don ' t we add some monuments downtown and maybe fill 
out the history here . But taking a monument out is not 
our choice . That ' s the s t ate government and the state 
law. And I ' m just very concerned that we ' re spinning 
our wheels and not accomplishing anything . I ' ve 
already offered to put up a little money if we want to 
maybe do a monument to Dr . Beatrice Thompson who has 
done more for human relations in this county and a lot 
of other historical people living in the past. Why 
don ' t we do that? You have very few obstacles to 
putting more monuments downtown , but you have a massive 
one to remove one. And I hope we can go forward and 
work in that spirit and in that direction . Thank you . 

APPLAUSE 
TOMMY DUNN: Moving on to 

resolutions, 5 (a ), R2020-026 , Mr. Graham . Mr . Graham . 
RAY GRAHAM: Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 

I bring this in forth of a motion , Resolution R2020-
026. This is a resolution to honor and recognize Kathy 
Burgess for her dedication , professionalism and 
contributions to Anderson County upon the occasion of 
her retirement ; and other matters related thereto. 

WHEREAS , Kathy Burgess was born on October 7, 1955. 
Kathy graduated from Belton-Honea Path High School in 
1974 ; and , 

WHEREAS , in 1984 , Kathy began working as a 
receptionist at the Chapman , King & Byrholdt Law Finn 
until 1989 ; and , 

WHEREAS , in 1992 , Kathy attended Anderson College 
a nd began working as a legal assistant for the Watkins , 
Vandiver , Kirven , Gable and Gray Law Firm until 1998 ; 
and , 

WHEREAS , on July 16 , 2000 , Kathy began working at 



18 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting - November 12, 2020 

1 the Anderson County Sheriffs Department_ In 2003 , 
2 Kathy became the administrative assistant for the 
3 Coroner's Office; and , 
4 WHEREAS , after eighteen years of dedicated service 
5 at the Anderson County Coroner's Office , Kathy Burgess 
6 is retiring on October 31 , 2 020 , to spend more time 
7 with her family ; and, 
8 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council, on behalf of 
9 the employees and citizens of Anderson Count y , 

10 expresses its sincerest gratitude to Ms . Kathy Burgess 
11 for her many years of dedicated service to Anderson 
12 County. 
13 LET THIS BE RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled 
14 this 12th day of November , 20 2 0 . 
15 TOMMY DUNN: Have a motion by Mr . 
16 Graham. Have a second? 
17 CINDY WILSON : Second. 
18 TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson . Any 
19 discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
2 0 All opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
21 unanimously . Mr. Graham , is she here? 
22 RAY GRAHAM : She is not . I ' m going 
2 3 to be presenting this at a luncheon the coroner's 
2 4 office is having for her later on this month. 
25 Thank you, Mr. Chairman . 
26 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you. 
27 Moving on to item number S (b) , R20 2 0- 027 , Mr. 
28 Graham . 
2 9 RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
30 This here is indeed an honor to recognize this 
31 gentleman here. His staff has truly stepped up to the 
32 plate during this pandemic here in Anderson County. 
33 But even way before that . I mean , j ust has done an 
34 exceptional job in leading that division. But I bring 
35 this in the form of a motion , as well. 
36 This is resolution R20 20-027 . This is a resolution 
37 to honor Anderson County Emergency Services Director, 
38 David Baker, upon his selection as Anderson County 
39 Officer of the Year; and other matters related thereto . 
40 Whereas , David Baker serves as Director of the 
41 Emergency Management Division of the Anderson County 
42 Sheriff ' s Office where he is in his fourth year of 
43 service; and, 
44 Whereas , Director Baker has more than twenty years 
45 of law enforcement and incident command experience , 
46 having previously served as Commander of t he Sheriff ' s 
47 Office ' s Narcotics Investigations Unit and Gang Task 
48 Force as well as serving as Chief of Police for 
49 the Town of Williamston ; and , 
50 Whereas , in his role as Director , Baker leads the 



19 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 County's emergency readiness, response and recovery 
2 efforts, working to ensure that all emergency 
3 operations plans are up-to-date along with mutual aid 
4 agreements with municipalities and neighboring 
5 counties; and, 
6 Whereas, Director Baker's relationships with 
7 community, municipal, county, regional, and 
8 state leaders allow our jurisdiction to achieve the 
9 highest quality levels of coordinated emergency 

10 response; and, 
11 Whereas, in recent months Director Baker's 
12 organizational talents and leadership skills have been 
13 on full display as he has spearheaded our community's 
14 response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and, 
15 Whereas, in appreciation for his service above and 
16 beyond the call of duty during the pandemic, Anderson 
17 University's Command College of South Carolina recently 
18 recognized Director David Baker as the Officer of the 
19 Year for Anderson County as part of its 15th Annual 
20 Anderson-Oconee-Pickens Law Enforcement Appreciation 
21 Ceremony. 
22 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Anderson 
23 County Council hereby recognizes and honors Emergency 
24 Management Director David Baker for all he has done and 
25 all he continues to do to make our community safe and 
26 prosperous. The residents of Anderson County sincerely 
27 appreciate your commitment and are grateful that you 
28 have chosen to serve in this community. We salute your 
29 recent recognition and distinction as the Anderson 
30 University Command College of South Carolina Officer of 
31 the Year for Anderson County . 
32 Mr. Chairman, I ask that this be resolved in 
33 meeting duly assembled this 12th day of November, 2020 . 
34 CINDY WILSON: Second. 
35 TOMMY DUNN: Motion by Mr. Graham; 
36 second Ms. Wilson. Any discussion? 
37 RAY GRAHAM: Mr. Chairman? 
38 TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Graham. 
39 RAY GRAHAM: After we vote, I would 
40 like for the sheriff, and I see that some of the other 
41 members of the agency is here, to come up and allow us 
42 to present this to Director Baker. 
43 TOMMY DUNN: Any one else? I'd j ust 
44 like to say ---
45 GRACIE FLOYD: Yes. Yes. 
46 TOMMY DUNN: Ms. Floyd. 
47 GRACIE FLOYD: Thank you. I would also 
48 like to commend Mr. Baker. I know him as a 
49 hardworking, I will help you out, kind of man. I want 
50 to publicly thank him for the help he has given me in 



20 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12. 2020 

1 all of my endeavors . I want to thank him for being a 
2 person who greets me and treats me as someone of --
3 someone that ' s working hard trying to do what ' s be s t 
4 and trying to do what ' s right for Anderson County . 
5 Mr . Director , I salute you. I ' m very proud of you . 
6 Thank you . 
7 TOMMY DUNN: Anyone else? 
8 Lieutenant Baker , I just want to say we appreciate 
9 the job you've done for Anderson County since you took 

10 over as Emergency Preparedness Director . Never had a 
11 doubt and you ' ve never let us down . Done an 
12 outstanding job . We appreciate you continuing to serve 
13 Anderson County , and the citizens of Anderson County 
14 and are very fortunate to have you as our director . 
15 Thank you very much. 
16 All in favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed 
17 like sign. Show the motion carries unanimously. 
18 Mr . Graham . 
19 RAY GRAHAM: Mr. Chairman , can we ask 
20 Director Baker and the sheriff and your other 
21 colleagues if y ' all could come up and assist us in 
22 presenting this? 
23 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION 
24 APPLAUSE 
25 RAY GRAHAM: Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
26 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you , Mr. Graham . 
27 Moving on to item number 6 , presentation on 
28 relocation of the Confederate monument . Mr . Brooks . 
29 SAMUEL BROOKS : Thank you so much , 
30 county council, for allowing me ---
31 TOMMY DUNN: Hold on a minute . Turn it up 
32 a little bit . Try it now. 
33 SAMUEL BROOKS : Test. Thank you, guys . 
34 Thank you so much , County Council , for allowing me to 
35 come and talk to you today. I really do appreciate it . 
36 My name is Sam Brooks . I am a lifelong Andersonian. 
37 Born here . Concord, McCants , T . L . Hanna. And I ' ve 
38 grown up loving Anderson County. And I've been working 
39 over the past few months with the conversation around 
40 the Confederate monument in downtown Anderson . 
41 The monument itself is made in the likeness of 
42 William Wirk Humphreys, which you guys have heard 
43 everyone come up here and talk. But the original 
44 destination for this monument was not in front of the 
45 courthouse in downtown Anderson. This can be found on 
46 the Anderson Observer. This monument was made for Old 
47 Silverbrook Cemetery and then after the money was 
48 raised and everything for it , it was changed to the 
49 heart of downtown Anderson . And on that monument it 
50 says the world shall yet decide in truth ' s clear far 



21 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 off light, that the soldiers who wore the gray and died 
2 with Lee were in the right. 
3 What I would like to say today is that monument, 
4 that quote itself, does not -- is not history. That is 
5 opinion. That is an opinion of what the Confederacy 
6 stood for and whether they were right or wrong. And 
7 that opinion that is located on that monument actively 
8 oppresses African-Americans in our community. You've 
9 heard stories from Matthew. You've heard stories from 

10 other people here. But that monument and what says is 
11 telling them that they are less than. 
12 GRACIE FLOYD: Uh-huh (aff irmative) . 
13 Uh-huh (affirmative). 
14 SAM BROOKS: And with that monument 
15 there in the heart of our city, I want us to also 
16 consider the future economic impacts that could have 
17 for our community. Right now we haven't had a business 
18 say, hey, I'm not going to come here because you guys 
19 are supporting this idea and this ideology in front of 
20 your courthouse in the heart of downtown. But I 
21 believe that day is coming. We have seen that before 
22 where businesses have chose not to come to places 
23 because of views like that. So I would like us to 
24 consider that. 
25 And then also I have two petitions that I have 
26 available to you guys. I did not print them out. 
27 Didn't want to waste the paper. It's a lot of paper. 
28 But I can make that available. And on those petitions 
29 you can see area codes for all the people from where 
30 they signed it. Our first petition had over thirty-
31 three thousand signatures. And I can verify five 
32 thousand being directly in Anderson, along with a lot 
33 that aren't from and then people who didn't put their 
34 area code. And then I have one of three hundred and 
35 thirty thousand signatures, again, asking for the 
36 relocation of the monument. That one I don't have an 
37 exact number just because it's so big the file wasn't 
38 able to sort that for me. But with time I can be able 
39 to do that. 
40 And so today I would like to say that as a white 
41 man in South Carolina who has grown up in this 
42 wonderful city, there's been a lot of times in my life 
43 where I can look back and know that there were things 
44 that I did not speak up about when it comes to racial 
45 injustices in my own town. And the time of that when 
46 we can turn a blind eye is gone. It is time for us to 
47 step forward and take these issues on head on. 
48 And I know the councilwoman mentioned the Heritage 
49 Act earlier, that -- and you say that you don't have 
50 any power. And I understand what you're saying. But 



22 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2 1 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
4 7 
48 
49 
50 

this committee , this council , does have the 
submit to the S.C . Legislature to have that 
relocated . 

power to 
monument 

GRACIE FLOYD : 
SAM BROOKS : 

Uh-huh (a ffirmative ) . 
And so what I would a sk 

is that you wo u ld submit that monument for relocation . 
I ' m asking you to make a decision for the unity of 
Anderson. I ' m asking you to make a decision to fight 
oppression of African-Americans in our own hometown. 
And I ' m asking you to decide if those that fought for 
Robert E. Lee , those who fought for slavery , were in 
the right . Because if they ' re right , Ms . Gracie should 
not be on y ' all ' s council . If that ' s true , if that ' s 
wha t we believe , then Mayor Roberts should not be our 
mayor . If that ' s true , then Ma t thew shouldn ' t be able 
to be a pastor in our community . 

And so as the town of Anderson , is that the ideals 
that we want to lift up and say we believe in? That we 
want to say we ' ll stand behind this ; we don ' t want it 
going anywhere . If it ' s a financial issue-- I know 
that relocation is not a cheap thing , I would ask that 
you allow me to get the funds necessary to do that . 
Allow me to work with my committee t o do that . And as 
far as a place for relocation , tha t part , the old 
Silverbrook Cemetery , as much as it was destined for 
that place , I don ' t necessarily believe it ' s the best 
place for it . I would love to put it in the old 
Confederate Battlegrounds in Anderson ; a place where it 
can be properly contexturalized and put in the right 
place . Because right now it ' s sitting in front of a 
courthouse that ' s supposed to stand for freedom and 
liberty for all . And that does not stand for freedom 
and liberty for all. 

So as I conclude , I want to thank you guys so much 
for allowing me to speak . I 'm asking yo u to be bold 
and I ' m asking you to do what ' s right . But I ' m asking 
you to be accountable for your decision . If it ' s going 
to be a no , then we deserve to know why and why that ' s 
what we want to hold up . And if anyone here -- I know 
there's a lot of people talking back and forth . If you 
have an issue with anything like this , please come talk 
to me. Don ' t bother anyone else here that came up a nd 
spoke . We can have a peaceful conversation about it . 
I would love to talk to you. And thank you so much for 
your time , again, today . Thank y ' all. 

APPLAUSE 
TOMMY DUNN : Moving on to 

presentation on issues of George Brock Road . Ms . 
Murdock . 

JUDY MURDOCK : I 'm sorry . I had made a 



23 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 -- I put these on screen because I know it's hard to 
2 look at print. I gave y'all an orange folder. I'm 
3 presenting a couple of documents, so I want you to be 
4 able to see them with your eyes, but I have them there 
5 if that's helpful. Are we good? 
6 TOMMY DUNN: I'm good. 
7 JUDY MURDOCK: All right. Thank you. 
8 I'm Judy Murdock, and my husband Brett and I run the 
9 U.S. Seedless Plant Breeding and Research Station at 

10 the corner of Trail Road and George Brock Road. I 
11 wanted to present a few points that the council maybe 
12 needed to have considered before they voted to keep 
13 George Brock Road under county maintenance. 
14 Closer? Can y'all hear? Is that better? 
15 TOMMY DUNN: That's better. 
16 JUDY MURDOCK: Good. If you refer in 
17 your packet to -- I've not labeled the things --
18 there's number 1, some letters, the Anderson County 
19 Fire Chief had asserted that George Brock Road is a 
20 shortcut needed for emergency response. The fact is, 
21 George Brock Road is one of three roads that are 
22 available for emergency response to those points. The 
23 fire department, however, has not given any numerical 
24 or statistical data t o substantiate that claim. 
25 If you look at handout number one, it's a letter to 
26 the Anderson County Fire Chief from the county 
27 delegation which states, and I'll quote it, and it's up 
28 there, we the delegation are asking if you could please 
29 provide us with data as far as times and route 
30 distances and the number of calls in that area for the 
31 need of using the George Brock Road shortcut. Also, if 
32 you would provide data showing time added or saved by 
33 closing George Brock Road, plus the number of times you 
34 have used George Brock Road shortcut to answer fire 
35 calls on the other side, unquote. 
36 So the fire chief never responded with any actual 
37 data whatsoever t o the county delegation on that point. 
38 Why can't the fire department provide real data to 
39 prove that George Brock Road is necessary or that it 
40 increases response time if it's a shortcut? I think 
41 it's because there isn't data to support that. 
42 If you 'll look at handout number two, it 's the 
43 colorful one . I like pictures. I want to introduce 
44 you to a company called Enza Zaden. Enza Zaden is a 
45 Fortune 500 vegetable breeding company that develops 
46 and sells new vegetable varieties around the world. 
47 Their breeding activities are non-GeoMode. They are 
48 environmentally responsible. 
49 They have -- if you would move on to the third 
50 slide. They have over two thousand employees in 



24 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 twenty-five countries and they represent forty 
2 nationalities. Now, two years ago, Enza Zaden began a 
3 scientific collaboration with our research station, 
4 which is called U.S. Seedless, like I said, and we're 
5 located right around George Brock Road and near Trail 
6 Road. Nine representatives from Enza Zaden have 
7 visited our research station in the last two years. 
8 So if you'll look at slide four. I'm sorry. We're 
9 a little bit behind there. And maybe even move on to 

10 the next one. You can see, Enza Zaden is not Monsanto. 
11 They're an independent family-owned company, but they 
12 are pouring seventy-five million euros into research 
13 annually. That's eighty-eight million dollars. 
14 If you'll point to the next letter, the next--
15 thank you. If you'll look at your handout number 
16 three, it's a letter from one of Enza Zaden's breeding 
17 research managers, and he says --his name is Robert 
18 Barham. And I'll quote something he wrote in the 
19 letter. He says at this time we are negotiating to 
20 extend the Enza U.S. Seedless collaboration for at 
21 least three more years. Hopefully more. We're 
22 impressed with the dedication and output of the U.S. 
23 Seedless professional and support staff. It's pleasing 
24 to see U.S. Seedless be a force of good for the local 
25 youth in providing summer and extended jobs and 
26 training in horticulture and agriculture, unquote. So 
27 over the next three years Enza Zaden is looking to pour 
28 maybe a million dollar investment into the research 
2 9 activities in the community right down where our 
30 research station is at. 
31 Now, if you'll still refer can you flip to the 
32 next one. The next portion of his letter I highlighted 
33 in green on your sheets there. And I quote Mr. Barham 
34 again. At Enza Zaden we always take stringent 
35 measures, and this is the point I want to get to, to 
36 protect our proprietary resources. I cannot overstate 
37 the importance of security for a plant breeding 
38 research station. I urge the governing bodies of South 
39 Carolina to consider the unique security requirements 
40 of agricultural genetic research and lend their aid and 
41 protection to the U.S. Seedless in their efforts to 
42 secure safe fields for their research and for Enza 
43 Zaden's consideration of the potential to establish a 
44 presence in South Carolina, unquote. Which is being 
45 done as we speak. 
46 If you'll refer now to item number four in your 
47 little packet. It's a letter from Dr. Gilbert Miller 
48 from Clemson University, and that's slide seven there. 
49 Thank you. And I'll quote him, as a vegetable 
50 researcher at Clemson's Edisto Research and Education 



25 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 Center in Blackville , South Carolina , I understand how 
2 detrimental the consequence of theft , invasion and 
3 vandalism of my research fields could be . EREC 
4 comprises over two thousand five hundred acres of 
5 fields where research is conducted on a wide assortment 
6 of vegetable , cotton , corn , soybean , peanut and other 
7 crops . There are several county roads which cross the 
8 research station. Fortunately , we have been allowed t o 
9 gate these roads and access is limited to EREC 

10 personnel. The entire parameter of the station is 
11 fenced and gated , unquote . Okay. Well , U. S . Seedless 
12 owns a one hundred fifty acre research field that is 
13 completely bisected by George Brock Road . It cuts it 
14 right in half and runs local traffic right through the 
15 middle of some of our most valuable and sensitive 
16 research material . 
17 Now , we experience repeated vandalism and 
18 destruction of our breeding material because the 
19 isolation of George Brock Road and the easy access 
20 provides, you know , just an easy in and out for 
21 intruders. Nobody sees them because nobody lives down 
22 there . Vandals profit from the isolation of the road 
23 to break through our security barriers. Unlike 
24 soybeans or grain crops , watermelon makes an especially 
25 vulnerable target . The road also increases the hazard 
26 to the young people who work for us . Over twenty-five 
27 years, we ' ve employed and mentored more than two 
28 hundred young people from all over South Carolina. 
29 These young people get to work in plant breeding , 
30 horticulture , crop production , green management --
31 greenhouse management and life experience . And we ' ve 
32 got crews of five to twenty-five kids working most days 
33 in the summertime. 
34 If you ' ll go to the next . That ' s it . Thank you . 
35 If you ' ll look at your handou t number five , it's a 
36 letter from Dr . Timothy Cowan . He ' s the President of 
37 the South Carolina Governor ' s School for Agriculture at 
38 John de la Howe. I ' ll just make a note of some things 
39 that he wrote in the letter . Says over my lifetime 
40 there have been several people that had a huge impact 
41 on my love and passion for agriculture. My dad , my 
42 high school ag teachers , my Clemson agriculture 
43 profession and Dr . Murdock , which is my husband. I can 
44 still recall when I first met him as a twelve year old 
45 child and listened intently about his plant breeding 
46 research . Now , as an adult , I realize the impact he 
47 unknowingly had on my career path . Whether privately 
48 and publicly funded , the research conducted at farms 
49 like Dr. Murdock ' s ensures that mankind has a viable 
50 plan to feed and clothe our rapidly growing world 



26 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 population . A dollar amount cannot be placed upon the 
2 value of their developmen t s and for engaging and 
3 exposing our youth to the science of agriculture , end 
4 of quote there . 
5 Jus t let me restate what he said . A dollar amount 
6 can ' t be placed on the value of their developments in 
7 engaging youth to the science of agriculture . This is 
8 important , what we ' re trying to do. I submit George 
9 Brock Road cutting right through the hear t of our 

10 research field creates a real and present danger to 
11 both or highly valued scientific research and to the 
12 safety of our student workers , of which there are many . 
13 This is a serious consideration and should not be 
14 disregarded without supporting data. 
15 The council should reconsider these concerns and 
16 demand that the fire department allies which are 
17 informing the council , rightly so , should j ustify wi t h 
18 hard data , the veracity of any opinions or assertions 
19 they may have made about the necessity of George Brock 
2 0 Road. There should be data for this . 
21 If you ' ll go to the l a st one here . This statement 
22 came to me yesterday in an email from our 
2 3 representative at Duke Energy that ' s wanting to put a 
2 4 battery collection site out in our area . And he says , 
2 5 quote , Duke is in favor of the road closure and lends 
2 6 our support . We have plans for the battery site and 
27 closing the road would help us keep the site more 
2 8 secure , unquote . 
2 9 Well , I just ask you , why would the county not have 
30 wanted to help a science station protect their research 
31 from vandalism? Why would the county not have wanted 
32 to support a science research station that ' s educating 
33 youth and doesn ' t cost the taxpayers anything? Why 
34 would the county have ignored the professional 
35 recommenda tions of Clemson University and other 
36 research professionals to secure scientific research 
37 that has a global impact? Why wou l d the county have 
38 ignored the state ' s precedent of c l osing ro a ds in other 
39 areas to protect scientific research . Why was the 
40 county eager to maintain a road that is one of three 
41 three - - emergency respon s e routes available to tha t 
42 area? Why , with so man y county roads demanding 
43 taxpayer upkeep , would the county want to ma intain a 
44 redundant road with so many other reasons why closure 
45 would be beneficial? And finally , why would the county 
46 not want to support the security needs of Du ke Energy 's 
47 battery site? Unlike the one that ' s out he r e near the 
48 Civic Center , it ' s not sitting very close to the 
49 watchful eye of the sheriff ' s department. The same 
50 security problems that plague our business on George 



27 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 Brock Road will be an ongoing plague to Duke Energy ' s 
2 battery site , as well. 
3 I just wanted to bring that out . Thank you very 
4 much . I appreciate it . 
5 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . 
6 Moving on to item number 8 , presentation on face 
7 masks and the coronavirus , Ms . Floyd . Ms . Floyd. 
8 GRACIE FLOYD: Thank you . Mr. 
9 Chairperson , before I start , may I have a point of 

10 privilege, please? 
11 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . 
12 GRACIE FLOYD : Thank you . You did say 
13 yes ; right? 
14 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . Yes , ma ' am . 
15 GRACIE FLOYD : Thank you . First , 
16 before I get started on my time , I cannot do this and I 
17 can ' t go any further in this process until I have 
18 thanked the people that were responsible . This is the 
19 first time I have ever done anything like this in my 
20 whole lifetime . I'm excited to learn this , but I ' m 
21 doing it . But it came about because of people that we 
22 have on our county staff that we couldn ' t do without . 
23 I want to say thank you to Graham. I don ' t know 
24 Graham ' s name , but I call him our I . T. guru . I thank 
25 him for his help that he has given me to make this --
26 to make this happen. I also thank the staff at the 
27 Civic Center , Clarence and Chris and Jamie . I heard 
28 you guys talking as you were putting things together , 
29 and I was sitting there saying a special prayer for you 
30 and I thank you . To our administrator and Teresa 
31 Bannister , Teresa is a person that will do anything for 
32 anybody . She was my go - between between the 
33 administrator and me trying to get this to happen . 
34 Thank you , Teresa. She ' s been there for everything I 
35 have ever asked her to do for me in the past twenty-two 
36 years. Okay . And also I want to say that I know , I 
37 know that it took work to get this done . And I am not 
38 taking it for granted . I think this is something good . 
39 It can be done . I think that we need to incorporate 
40 this type technology in our work every day because what 
41 we ' re going through today is just almost impossible . 
42 But I thank you. And I thank you , Mr . Chair . 
43 Okay . Now it ' s time for me to speak on the 
44 presentation of a face mask . All right. This morning , 
45 first of all , I'm a news freak because I don ' t want to 
46 miss any t hing . And I watched the news , all of it , from 
47 six thirty until twelve thirty . At twelve o ' clock I 
48 turned to channel -- another channel so I c a n get my 
49 local news . And then I ' m finished with it , I ' m done 
50 for the rest of the day . But this morning they told me 



28 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 that there were a hundred and forty-eight thousand new 
2 cases . One hundred and forty-eight (verbatim) new 
3 cases of the coronavirus . And there were two hundred 
4 and forty-two thousand deaths because of it . What 's 
5 going on? Okay. And yesterday , sixteen thousand four 
6 hundred and seventy-six people died . 
7 We need to do something . We need to do something . 
8 I listened to the man who said that he would sue if we 
9 did this because it's unconstitutional. Well, so are 

10 seatbelts , but you wear one . So are seatbelts for 
11 babies, but you put him in one. You have to pay your 
12 taxes . Now if you're going to go down and say that 
13 paying taxes is unconstitutional , I ' ll go with you 
14 because I pay more than seven hundred dollars. Driving 
15 on the street, it tells me that there ' s a light there 
16 that says if it ' s red I have to stop. I am not going 
17 to leave this to my understanding. I'm going to ask 
18 some people in the audience , the Anderson Hospital 
19 staff, headed by Michael Cunningham . Are you there? 
20 Are they there? 
21 MICHAEL CUNNINGHAM: Yes . 
22 GRACIE FLOYD: Thank you . I ' m going to 
23 ask these people to come up, and I want them to tell 
24 you what they have told me about this pandemic . Let me 
25 tell you this . I am home today . I do not have the 
26 virus. God, please . I do not have the virus . But I 
27 have been exposed to someone with it who called me and 
28 told me the problem . So I am home. I will not come 
29 out there among you because I don't want to be the one 
30 to make you sick , to make your family sick , or to make 
31 your seat at the dinner table empty . So I chose to 
32 stay home and get this done with Graham and the other 
33 help that I received to get it done that way. But I 
34 wanted to be here. 
35 Mr . Cunningham , would you please introduce your 
36 guests and tell us what they ' re going to-- and let 
37 them say what needs to be said , but help me -- Lord 
38 Jesus , help me to tell me these people what danger we 
39 are in . Thank you . 
40 MICHAEL CUNNINGHAM : Good afternoon , Mr . 
41 Chairman , and ladies and gentlemen of county council. 
42 I am Michael Cunningham with AnMed Health. 
43 First of all, I ' d like to introduce my two 
44 colleagues. Well, not really colleagues , but certainly 
45 two health professionals . The first is Dr . Brad Mock 
46 who serves as the Chief Medical Officer here at AnMed 
47 Health. And the second is Jean Tillotson , who among 
48 her many duties , also helps head up our infection 
49 prevention area for AnMed Health . I will tell you that 
50 these two are rookies to county council meetings , so 



29 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 this is their first county council meeting . I am no t a 
2 rookie. But you ' ve done a good job of informing them 
3 about how our county government works . 
4 So with that I ' m going to step out of t he way . I 
5 do have handouts that will cover the information tha t 
6 Dr . Mock will be sharing with you . So to respect the 
7 barriers , I ' m sure there's someone I could hand that 
8 over to that will-- and if you ' ll just reference these 
9 as Dr . Mock is speaking . And I think I made enough f or 

10 everybody there , along with the county attorney and 
11 county administrator. 
12 So , again, thank you for this opportunity to share 
13 with you kind of an overview of wha t we ' re seeing 
14 worldwide , nationally , and then in the state of Sou th 
15 Carolina and then in Anderson and then also with our 
16 hosp i tal system to give you an idea of what we ' re 
17 seeing as relates to COVID-19 ; its spread and its 
18 impact on our commun i t y . So thank you for the 
19 opportunity. 
2 0 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . 
21 BRAD MOCK : Thank you , council 
22 members , fo r the opportunity to come speak to you. As 
2 3 Michael said , my name is Brad Mock . I ' m the Chief 
2 4 Medical Officer at AnMed Health . And thank you , Ms . 
2 5 Floyd , for the invitation . 
2 6 JIMMY DAVIS: Sir , I can ' t hear you . 
2 7 You ' re going to have to speak up . 
2 8 BRAD MOCK : Sorry . Thank you , 
2 9 again , for the invitation . We were asked by Ms . Floyd 
30 to give some information on how the coronavirus is --
31 what we've seen at AnMed Health and what ou r numbers 
32 have been l i ke . When we first started preparing for 
33 this , we looked at what was happening in Europe as we 
34 were preparing for the coronavirus because we figured 
35 that would -- the data coming out of there was 
36 reliable . And we saw significant surges there and then 
37 we saw a retrenchment of the cases there as they 
38 started t o escalate in the United States . Europe is 
39 experiencing another surge today . They ' re having 
40 significantly more cases , actually , than they had in 
41 the surge one . They are seeing fewer deaths associa t ed 
42 with that , but significant numbers of hospitalizations. 
43 If you ' ll look at major cities in the U. S ., they ' re 
44 experiencing something very similar now. And if you ' ll 
45 look at-- as far as AnMed itself , if you ' ll look at 
46 that first graph -- and I ' m sorry , Ms . Floyd , that you 
47 don ' t h a ve this-- you ' ll see where we peaked in late 
48 July , early August , and saw a significant drop in the 
49 number of cases , with the nadir being about t he last 
50 week in October . And we have since started seeing our 



30 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 cases go back up. We reached a low of about twenty-
2 five inpatients at AnMed Health who were COVID position 
3 and we a re in the mid-forties toda y. And t hat trend 
4 has been continuing. 
5 The next couple of pages of what you have just talk 
6 about s ome of the things that have impacted our 
7 numbers . We believe at AnMed Health after the city 
8 council mask ordinance , we did see a decrease in the 
9 number of cases . There's always a lag between any 

10 intervention that people take and the results that 
11 follow that. We have seen an increase in cases after 
12 most of the holidays when people spend more time 
13 together , frequently in larger crowds . We ' ve also seen 
14 a significant increase in the number of positive case s 
15 in our testing over the last three to four weeks. So 
16 where we were running ten percent six weeks ago, we ' re 
17 now running better than fifteen percent . And what ' s 
18 generally considered to be under control is less than 
19 five percent by the epidemiologists . We have had 
20 significant numbers of staff out of work . Most of 
21 those , as many other employers in the county are 
22 seeing , are community exposures rather than work 
23 related exposures . 
24 And if you ' ll turn to the next page , one of the 
25 things that challenges us as a healthcare facility is 
2 6 that many of these patients are there for quite a bit 
2 7 longer than our typical patient . The typical length of 
28 stay for a COVID positive patient is almost twice what 
29 it is for a regular patient . So as a result , when 
30 t hose numbers go up , those patients stay in the 
31 hospital longer and it creates a census problem for us 
32 in terms of trying to care for all the patients . We 
33 have created additional ICUs . When we had our first 
34 s urge , we added twenty-one additional ICU beds in 
35 multiple locations to be able to a ccommodat e the sick 
36 patients that were both COVID and non-COVID. So we ' ve 
37 had to do substantial work as a result of t hat . 
38 And if you ' ll turn to the next page , you ' ll sort of 
39 see some of our average numbers in terms of census of 
40 COVID . We hit a peak in late J u ly or early August of 
41 about e ighty-five patients who were COVID positive . 
42 And again, we got as low as twenty- five patients in the 
43 last few weeks before we started back up . 
44 If you ' ll go to the next page , there ' s some great 
45 informa tion , of course , from the DHEC website . I ' m 
46 sure y ' all are u sed to looking a t that . The graph that 
47 has the mountainous green line there is the percen t - -
48 it ' s the seven-day moving avera ge of a percent posi t ive 
49 for COVID-19 tests in South Carolina. And again , you 
50 can see where we peaked around July 14th and a slow 



31 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

trend down , but that trend has reversed and started 
back up . And again , I think yesterday ' s number was 
sixteen percent positive of all the tests that were 
done in the state of South Carolina . 

On the next page you ' ll see , again , the peak that 
we experienced in mid-summer . And again , if you look 
at those two lines, the red and the blue that are 
trending back up are the upstate and midlands. The low 
country , which actually had one of the highest peaks in 
the mid-summer is trailing behind there . But we see 
significant trend in the wrong direction in terms of 
number of positive cases in this area. 

And the last page is Anderson County . So on that 
DHEC website, you can select county-specific data . And 
this is Anderson County up through November 1st . And 
again , you can see a significant jump in the number of 
cases over the last few weeks. 

Typically , as far as the hospital is concerned , the 
positive cases don ' t necessarily result directly in 
hospitalization. But two to four weeks later we will 
see our numbers go up significantly , as well . And I 
think that ' s what we ' re starting to experience from 
late October to early November . Our numbers are going 
up now. 

We do support a mask ordinance for the county. We 
believe it helps in terms of reducing the spread of 
coronavirus . We believe in social distancing, masking , 
and we would absolutely support the council to pass 
that measure . 

I'll be happy to take any questions if you have 
them. 

TOMMY DUNN : Anyone have any 
questions? 

GRACIE FLOYD: Yes . But Mr. Chairman , 
I will wait to the end and ask my questions then . And 
I would like for them to stay near the mic when they 
finish their presentation . Thank you . 

TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Wooten . 
CRAIG WOOTEN: Do you have any 

experience or-- you brought us data saying there ' s a 
problem . I think everybody in the room knows there's a 
problem . So then the question becomes the solution . 
And for us, you ' re wanting us to take data and create 
public policy. The problem with that is how do you 
create public policy that achieves the desired result? 
It ' s easy to say mask ordinance . What ' s hard is 
enforcing it. What's hard is communicating it to 
people . What ' s hard is making people social distance . 
And so that ' s the realities we have to operate in . As 
we ' ve seen other topics here, people are passionate 



32 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 about a whole host of things. We have to take that 
2 passion and then put it into something that can 
3 actually be implemented and executed. 
4 So outside of just, hey, we want a mask ordinance; 
5 hey, we want social distancing, can you point to things 
6 that we can critically do, because I do believe there's 
7 a problem. I voted for the mask ordinance. I took 
8 flack for the next two weeks on Facebook, personal text 
9 messages, phone calls. People confronted me in public 

10 about it. So I get that there's a problem. But I 
11 think what's getting lost on us is actually finding a 
12 solution. And so I put that back on you as a medical 
13 professional, tell us things that are working in other 
14 places, because right now the amendment I see, or the 
15 ordinance I see is title only. So that means there's 
16 no meat to it . It's just pass it and we'll figure it 
17 out later. That 's troublesome because I'm going to 
18 have to go explain to the public what it's all about. 
19 So do you have examples of fundamentally how we can 
20 implement things so that if it is considered -- and 
21 right now my fellow supporter is, by ordinance, not 
22 going to be able to vote toda y . So just sheer numbers, 
23 you know, show us a path forward. 
2 4 BRAD MOCK: I wish I had more 
25 information for you on how to carry that out in a way 
26 that would be more effective . Public policy is not my 
27 forte. But I do see the challenge that you're 
28 referring to. But unfortunately there's not a lot of 
29 other activities that any community has found other 
30 than the lockdowns, which again, that's-- my vote for 
31 the mask ordinance and social distancing is to avoid 
32 creating lockdowns because it's very damaging to the--
33 we've had patients who did not come seek care that they 
34 needed because they were scared to come out and come to 
35 the hospital. So we support people trying to function 
36 in society as best we can by trying to follow those 
37 rules. To my knowledge there are no other significant 
38 advances beyond a vaccine . And while there is some 
39 promise it was released in the last day or two with 
40 that, it still would be months before we would see the 
41 effect of that. 
42 CRAIG WOOTEN: And that's a key 
43 differentiation I want the public to hear is the county 
44 is different than the city. The city actually issues 
45 business licenses. The city actually does things that 
46 connect it to the businesses that allow enforcement. 
47 This is a two hundred thousand person county, which is 
48 one of the largest counties in the state. It's a 
49 mixture of rural areas, population areas, too. I guess 
50 what I'm pointing out is I agree with you that I 



33 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 believe masks work or at least everything I ' ve heard . 
2 I don ' t have the credentials you have. But 
3 fundamentally putting it into place is easier said than 
4 done . And well after everybody leaves here , we ' ll be 
5 the ones at the public safety meeting at eight in the 
6 morning . We ' ll be the ones on the phone at night 
7 having to figure out a true solution . 
8 JEAN TILLOTSON : You referenced , you 
9 know , t he fact that we are not used to this format . 

10 But what we are used to is creating policies and 
11 procedures within healthcare organizations . The reason 
12 that we do that is to protect our employees . And as 
13 Dr. Mock referenced , the greater number of exposures 
14 that we have had from COVID-19 ha s been from community 
15 exposure. So while we can ' t speak to how to create a 
16 county-level policy , our plan has been to protect every 
17 staff membe r when they are within six feet of another 
18 human being , whether it be a patient or a fellow 
19 employee. And we have more stringent guidelines that 
2 0 we put in place when they do come in contact with 
21 patients. And it is on that basic principal of we are 
22 protecting each other . 
2 3 I know that does not speak to how to create your 
2 4 policy , but that is what our policy states . And all we 
25 can do is encourage people to do that. Because we are 
2 6 a community, and that is what we want , is for us to 
27 protect each other . 
28 TOMMY DUNN: Thank y'all. Any more 
29 questions? 
30 BRETT SANDERS : Yes , sir , Mr. Chairman . 
31 TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Sanders . 
32 BRETT SANDERS : I was looking at - - on 
33 your handout, and you stated in here that following the 
34 city council's mask ordinance there was a decline by 
35 thirty percent. And then you look at the data that you 
36 provided me, there really wasn ' t a decline . I mean 
37 we're following a trend with PeeDee , the midlands , the 
38 upstate , the low country . I know the population in the 
39 low country may be less or more , but I understand we ' re 
40 here to promote a mask ordinance - - or you ' re here to 
41 promote it - - but the data you showed me doesn ' t show 
42 anything of how it helped to do anything . You just 
43 stated that there was a decrease by thirty percent in 
44 the city. And then you go back and look , well, in the 
45 last eight weeks -- the last three weeks , we ' re fifteen 
46 percent positive . And I ' m not -- my question , I guess 
47 is , how did you come up with the thirty percent? 
48 Because the city had a mask ordinance , did they check 
49 everyone in the city and say , well , they ' re thirty 
50 percent less? I mean , I like the presenta tion. I 



34 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 appreciate what you've put together . But the first 
2 line that you put in there doesn ' t even flow with what 
3 you presented to me. 
4 BRAD MOCK: So that representation 
5 was for the whole county, the thirty percent , in terms 
6 of the number of cases that showed up in the next sixty 
7 days . 
8 BRETT SANDERS : So we don ' t know if the 
9 mask that the city done had any effect on this ; is that 

10 correct? 
11 BRAD MOCK: Yes. Most of those 
12 relationships to those time periods on there were put 
13 on there for the benefit of -- to se~ what impact, if 
14 any . 
15 BRETT SANDERS : Okay. Thank you. 
16 TOMMY DUNN: Ms. Floyd. 
17 GRACIE FLOYD : Mr . Chair. 
18 TOMMY DUNN: Ms . Floyd. 
19 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . Doctor, are you 
2 0 through with your presentation? 
21 BRAD MOCK: Yes. 
22 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay. First of all, you 
23 may be seated right where you are because I might be 
24 calling you back. Okay? So please have a seat where 
25 you are , if you're through. Okay . Thank you . 
2 6 All right. Council members, I have a lot to tell 
27 you and a lot to try to explain to you . First of all , 
28 I don't know how much time I have left , but I'm sure 
2 9 that Mr . Leon will tell me. And thank you for your 
30 help . Our house attorney . 
31 First of all, I want to turn your attention to our 
32 Mission Statement for Anderson County . Let ' s start 
33 there. The Mission Statement says Anderson County is 
34 honored and privileged to serve its res i dents , workers 
35 and visitors with the highest quality public safety , 
36 with the highest quality public safety . It didn ' t say 
37 what most of the people want or it didn't say what the 
38 least of the people want . It said that we were going 
39 to serve our people with the highest quality . Right 
40 now our highest quality of public safety have been told 
41 to us by people in this profession and they said , wash 
42 your hands , practice social distancing and wear a mask. 
43 Wear a mask. 
44 Now , in the past recently we have two ideas here . 
45 We have one idea with people that said to wear it and 
46 the other one says to don ' t wear it . We have that 
47 because in our nation no one stood up and said it was 
48 bad . Maybe I didn ' t say that right. No one stood up 
49 and said it was a good thing to do it . We had one side 
50 doing it, but we had the leader of our nation telling 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 
35 

1 us that you didn't have to do it; it didn't work; and 
2 this and that. And you have half the people following 
3 that and other half doing that. You have said things 
4 like, well, you can't tell people what to do. Now, you 
5 know better than that because we do it twice a month. 
6 We tell people what to do. We tell people to wear 
7 seatbelts. And not only them, your kids got to wear 
8 seatbelts, too. And they did it. They do it 
9 nationally. They do it. Nobody stood up and said, 

10 well, you're a sissy. You're not a man if you have to 
11 wear a seatbelt. Nobody can tell -- I'm going to sue 
12 you if I have to wear my seatbelt. We were told to do 
13 it. We were told that it was going to be a law of the 
14 land and we did it. 
15 During that time two hundred and forty-two thousand 
16 nine hundred and fifty-four did not die because they 
17 didn't wear their seatbelt. So don't tell me that you 
18 can't, you can't make people do things. You can't tell 
19 people what to do. I don't want to hear that. And 
20 whoever else said that I just don't like to tell people 
21 what to do. I mean that's ludicrous. That ludicrous. 
22 Okay. Somebody mentioned that we have two hundred 
23 thousand people in the county. 
24 TOMMY DUNN: Ms. Floyd, ---
25 GRACIE FLOYD: I'm not through. 
26 TOMMY DUNN: that'll be time. 
27 Your time is out. That's twenty minutes. Over twenty. 
28 GRACIE FLOYD: Okay. But I've got 
29 another twenty minutes coming, so let's do it. 
30 TOMMY DUNN: Moving on to item number 
31 9, report from the Finance Committee meeting held on 
32 November 5th. Chairman Sanders. 
33 BRETT SANDERS: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
34 On November the 5th we had a Finance Committee meeting. 
35 Number 4 on 9 ---
36 GRACIE FLOYD: Mr. Chairman, Mr. 
37 Chairman, point of order. 
38 TOMMY DUNN: Yes, ma'am. 
39 GRACIE FLOYD: I was told this morning 
40 or yesterday that both my items would be together on 
41 the agenda. So that's 11 on ordinance-- let's see, 
42 that was the second reading or was it the first reading 
43 of my next ordinance, which was the -- I don't know --
44 Mr. Leon, I need your help. I have two things on the 
45 agenda. I didn't know it was going to be presented 
46 that way until today or yesterday when I talked with 
47 Teresa Bannister and she said she talked with Mr. Burns 
48 and Mr. Burns said both my items would be put together. 
49 8 was presentation of face masks and the other one was 
50 -- I can't seem to find it real quick because we've got 



36 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

so much ---
TOMMY DUNN: First readings are at 

the end. 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

talking about. 
Somebody knows what I'm 

TOMMY DUNN: Ma'am, if you'll give me 
just a second here I'll explain it. Okay? That'll be 
first reading, ordinance's first reading under (n), and 
Mr. Burns did call me yesterday and said you'd like to 
get this done where you could leave. So you not being 
here, not having to leave , I didn't look at the thing. 
But I'll ask the council to give-- if we can dispose 
of this item. If there's no objection, we'll move the 
item first reading (n). Is there any objection to 
that, to go ahead and dispose of this? No objection? 
No objection? 

Now, my question is this, Mr. Harmon, this is a 
Robert's Rules question and an ordinance question. 
a council member can't vote can they introduce an 
ordinance? 

LEON HARMON: If it's a 
brought back up. 

If 

reconsideration, it has to be 
TOMMY DUNN: 

member is not here to be able 
up an ordinance? 

I know. If a council 
to vote, can they bring 

LEON HARMON: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

No. I do not 
Mr. Chairman , I'm not 

going to bring up an ordinance. 
LEON HARMON: I do not think they 

would be able to. 
TOMMY DUNN: Okay. 
GRACIE FLOYD: Okay . But I'm not 

bringing up an ordinance. 
TOMMY DUNN: You're not? I'm sorry. 

Where are you at? I was going under first reading of 
(n), which is an ordinance. So where are you at? 

GRACIE FLOYD: I'm on -- I want to move 
to (n) now. I want to present the ordinance, but I 
don't want to vote on it . I don't want it voted on. 

BRETT SANDERS: Well, why would we 
present? 

TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

you'll listen I'll tell you. 
question I will tell you. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
Harmon. 

Go ahead. 
Whoever asked that, if 

Whoever asked that 

Start the clock, Mr. 

GRACIE FLOYD: I will tell you now, I'm 
going to finish my statement. I'm going to finish my 
statement. I don't know what you guys or lady have 



37 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 against a face mask ordinance. I do not understand. 
2 And other people can't understand it either. And it's 
3 this thing about common sense. You let people use 
4 their common sense. To me it's common sense to have a 
5 mask face ordinance. 
6 The ordinance that I wanted to present today would 
7 not be presented today because of something that went 
8 wrong with it not being prepared. Mr. Attorney Leon 
9 got up today and worked on it so that we could have it. 

10 But it's not in the form. What I want you to do with 
11 the one that you have is to take it horne, read it, 
12 study it, talk to your people whoever you're talking 
13 to, talk to your people and see what they say. Talk to 
14 people whose grandrnarna and granddaddy have died or 
15 their marna or sister or cousin has died because of this 
16 virus. Talk to people who have no way to control it 
17 themselves. We can control it and we can control it 
18 with wearing the mask, washing your hands and social 
19 distancing. People aren't doing that any more and it 
20 is growing. It is growing. You talk about two hundred 
21 thousand people in Anderson County. We've got two 
22 hundred and forty-two people nine hundred and fifty-
23 four dead. Some of them in Anderson County. 
24 People, don't play with this. Let's do what our 
25 mission says. The highest quality of public safety. 
26 What is the highest now? The mask. And we promised 
27 these people that we are going to serve them, our 
28 workers and our visitors, with the highest quality of 
29 public safety. Public safety already told you what to 
30 do. Now let's just do it. Thank you. 
31 TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Cunningham, I want 
32 to appreciate you and your team for corning here and 
33 taking time out of y'all's busy schedule, all that 
34 going on, corning here today. Appreciate it very much. 
35 Y'all got anything else y'all would like to say? 
36 MICHAEL CUNNINGHAM: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I 
37 just wanted to say thank you for the opportunity to be 
38 here and share information. This is a difficult 
3 9 subject. 
40 GRACIE FLOYD: Can't hear. Can't hear. 
41 MICHAEL CUNNINGHAM: And as you are 
42 discussing it, we'll be happy to share with you the 
43 data that we look at every single day. And we do 
44 understand the challenges of implementing policies. 
45 And we've had to do it internally as an organization 
46 and we stand ready to share with you information, 
47 hopefully, that will allow you to reach a good 
48 conclusion about how you can continue to serve the 
49 people of this county. And we want to be a part of 
50 that. 



38 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
2 7 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN: We thank y'all very much 
and may God keep y'all safe. Thank y'all. 

MICHAEL CUNNINGHAM: We appreciate it. 
GRACIE FLOYD: Mr. Chairman, I'm asking 

that the completed new ordinance concerning face masks 
be placed on the next -- at the next county council 
meeting for consideration. 

TOMMY DUNN: Moving on to item number 
9 ---

CRAIG WOOTEN: I'm sorry. We're at the 
two-hour mark. Could we take a five-minute break? 

TOMMY DUNN: I'm sorry? 
CRAIG WOOTEN: We're at the two-hour 

mark. Can we take a five-minute break to go to the 
restroom? 

TOMMY DUNN: 
on nothing in two hours. 
take a five-minute break. 

Yeah. We've got to vote 
Thank y'all. We're going to 

BREAK 
TOMMY DUNN: ... council meeting back 

in session. 
We're going to move on to item number 9, report 

from the Finance Committee meeting held on November 
5th. Chairman Sanders. Chairman Sanders. 

BRETT SANDERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman . 
Number 4 under 9 is bid number 21-012 , was a bid to 
reroof the Clyde Stone building. There were three bids 
turned in. The Finance Committee recommends J.M. Cope 
for the amount of two hundred forty-five thousand nine 
hundred. I did talk to Mr. Richardson last night and 
went over some things. It's not just a shingle job. I 
mean it's very detailed, basically rebuilding the whole 
roof. So that come as a unanimous approval from the 
Finance Committee. Put that in the form of a motion. 

TOMMY DUNN: Coming from the Finance 
Committee, doesn't need a second. Are there any 
discussion? Hearing and seeing none, all in favor of 
the motion show of hands. Opposed like sign . Show the 
motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on, Mr. Chairman. 
BRETT SANDERS: Yes, sir. Also we went 

through the ATAX recommendations. We had one we pulled 
out for the equine for Ms. Wilson, she has an interest 
there. All the ones that we had submitted to us, 
pulling that one out , was unanimous from the Finance 
Committee. 

TOMMY DUNN: Coming from the Finance 
Committee, it doesn't need a second. Any discussion? 
All in favor of the motion show of hands. 

CINDY WILSON: Show I'm recusing 



39 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November I 2, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

myself . I ' m a volunteer contributor and board member 
of that organization , so I ' ll step aside . 

TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Chairman , if you 
would , now we ' ll do the e qu ine . 

BRETT SANDERS : All right . Ms. Wilson 
has recused . The other was an ATAX recommenda t ion for 
equine , came to two to zero vote . Mr . Graham and I 
vo t ed on it . Ms . Wilson abstained . So bring before 
council . 

TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion . 
Again , coming from the Finance Committee doe s n ' t need a 
second. Any discussion? All in favor of the motion 
s how of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the motion 
carries unanimou sly with Ms . Wil s on a bstaining -- or 
leaving . Ms . Wilson , you c an come back in the building 
now . 

Moving on , Mr . Chairman . 
BRETT SANDERS : Yes , sir . And if I 

could , these gra nts --
TOMMY DUNN : Next will be number 6 , I 

believe . 
BRETT SANDERS : Number 6 . Oh , yes . I ' m 

sorry . I had moved one ahead . There was a request to 
dona t e a vehicle to t he Honea Path Fire Depar tment . I t 
was a two hundred and fifty thousand mile '0 6 F150 with 
a value of four grand. The Finance Committee voted 
unanimously to donate the vehicle . 

TOMMY DUNN : Coming from t he Finance 
Committee , again , doesn 't need a second . An y 
discu ssion? All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
Opposed like sign. Show t he motion carries 
unanimously . And I ' m sure , if y ' all can , Mr . Burns , 
make sure y ' all fill it up with gas for Doc Smith . I 
don ' t want them t o be broke . 

Moving on , Mr . Chairman. 
BRETT SANDERS : Yes , sir . Oka y . Item 

If number 7 , (a ) through ( i) , I ' d like to combine . 
there ' s any individual questions I ' ll be gl a d to go 
over them . 

TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Chairman , you ' re 
asking to combine (a ) through what? 

BRETT SANDERS : (a ) through (l ) . 
TOMMY DUNN : (a ) through (l ) . Is 

there any objection to combining (a ) through (l ) ? Go 
ahead , Mr. Chairman . 

BRETT SANDERS : Yes , sir . F i rst and 
foremost , I ' d like to thank our grant writ e rs with t he 
different departments . There ' s over one million 
dollars worth of grants for differe nt depar t ments . 
ones tha t had a match were only two . One was t wen t y 

The 



40 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 percent and one was -- or fifty percent and one was 
2 t en . The monies come from their department ' s emergency 
3 management salaries. Goes from everything from 
4 computers to laptops , vests , SWAT team materials , as 
5 well. It came unanimously -- or voted on unanimously 
6 through the Finance Committee. 
7 TOMMY DUNN: Coming from Finance 
8 don ' t need a second . Any discussion? All in favor of 
9 the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the 

10 motion carries unanimously . Mr . Chairman. 
11 BRETT SANDERS: Yes , sir . We continued 
12 discussion on the budget , which if I could , we ' ll take 
13 that up in number 10 . 
14 I ' m moving now to transfers . There were a list of 
15 transfers that came before us. The majority of it was 
16 insurance . 
17 TOMMY DUNN : Hang on , Mr . Chairman . 
18 Did I miss something? Have we done (g), (h), (i) , (j) , 
19 (k), (l)? 
20 BRETT SANDERS: I can ' t hear you , sir. 
21 TOMMY DUNN: We've done them? I'm 
22 sorry. I thought we were doing (a) through (f) 
23 BRETT SANDERS : (a ) through (l) ; I'm 
24 sorry . 
25 TOMMY DUNN : (a) through (l) . 
26 BRETT SANDERS: Yes , sir. 
27 TOMMY DUNN : Let the record show that 
28 was (a) through (l). Okay. Just for clarification , 
29 let ' s make sure the motion was to vote-- the vote on 
30 (a) through (l) with no objections . Take them all at 
31 one time. Let ' s do that vote again . Coming from the 
32 Finance Committee , it doesn ' t need a second . All in 
33 favor of the motion to take (a ) through (l ) show of 
34 hands . Show the motion carries unanimously. 
35 Now , Mr . Chairman . I apologize for that . 
36 BRETT SANDERS : That ' s all right , sir. 
37 The next one is 9(8) and that actually we'll cover 
38 under 10(a) under ordinance third reading. 9 (9) was a 
39 list of transfers . The majority of the transfers was 
40 insurance. Higher than expected RX fees . But we went 
41 through each one individually . There's a list of them . 
42 If anyone has any questions on them feel free to speak 
43 up . And it came unanimously from the Finance 
44 Committee . 
45 TOMMY DUNN : Coming from Finance , 
46 these transfers doesn ' t need a second . Any discussion? 
47 All in favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like 
48 sign. Show the motion carries unanimously . 
49 Anything else , Mr. Chairman? 
50 BRETT SANDERS: No , sir , not at this 



41 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

time. Thank you. 
TOMMY DUNN: Moving on to item number 

10(a), be ordinance third reading to adopt our budget 
for this year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending in June 
30, 2021. This will be a public hearing. Anyone 
wishing to speak to this matter please step forward and 
state your name and district and address the chair, 
please. We're in a public hearing. Anyone at all? 
Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be 
closed. Do we have a motion to put this on the floor? 

BRETT SANDERS: So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion from the Finance 

Committee Chairman to put it on the floor for a motion. 
Ms. Wilson seconds it. Now discussion. Hearing and 
seeing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
Opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
unanimously. 

I want to take a quick second to take this time to 
appreciate the hard work the Finance Committee and 
staff done on this trying year and times to get this 
done. 

We're moving on now to ordinance 10(b), 2020-021, 
an ordinance to approve a template Lease Agreement for 
Incubator/Soft Landing Economic Development Projects at 
Anderson County's Facility at 1428 Pearman Dairy Road. 
Before we -- this is a public hearing. Before we go 
into that, Mr. Nelson, would you like to say a few 
words before we go into a public hearing? 

BURRISS NELSON: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
I certainly appreciate the opportunity of you and 
members of council. This has worked out to be a really 
great opportunity for us for incubator and for soft 
landing. We have all one hundred and thirty thousand 
square feet right now taken by several projects; a 
couple of incubator projects. We should have 
announcements on those shortly. And we have committed 
the other space to several other projects that we'll 
have on council floor shortly. So right now we have 
great utilization of the property. And certainly 
appreciate council's efforts in helping us make all 
that happen. 

TOMMY DUNN: Now we'll be going into 
a public hearing. Anyone wishing to speak to this 
matter, please step forward and state your name and 
district and address the chair, please. Anyone at all? 
Anyone? Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing 
will be closed. Do we have a motion to move this 
forward? 

CINDY WILSON: So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Ms. Wilson. Do 



42 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
2 7 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

we have a second? 
JIMMY DAVIS: Second. 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Davis. Now 

any discussion? 
CINDY WILSON: Just a quick point to 

uphold Mr. Nelson. This does make it possible for more 
business proposals to have an opportunity to see if 
they can make it work. So that's a wonderful addition 
to our county. 

TOMMY DUNN: Thank you. Anyone else? 
All in favor of the motion show of hands. Opposed like 
sign. Show the motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on to item number 10(c), 2020-022 , an 
ordinance to amend section 2-38-(c) (4) of the Code of 
Ordinances of Anderson, South Carolina so as to 
establish that each speaker will be allowed no more 
than three minutes to address the matter for which a 
public hearing has been scheduled. This will be a 
public hearing. 

And again, this is not changing really nothing in 
the concepts of what we've done in the past. The 
exception is to not have a time limit. All of our 
agenda items, you'll see a time limit by them. On 
public hearings there's no time limit. The gist of 
this was, no time limit means you can't -- if there's a 
hundred people here, a hundred people should be able to 
speak, and they should. It's just making that point 
blank a little bit more clear. So at this time 
we'll go into a public hearing. Anyone wishing to 
speak to this matter please step forward, state your 
name and district and address the chair, please. 
Seeing and hearing none, I put that in the form of a 
motion. Do I have a second? 

JIMMY DAVIS: So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Davis. Now 

any discussion? 
GRACIE FLOYD: Yes. 
TOMMY DUNN: Yes, ma'am, Ms. Floyd. 
GRACIE FLOYD: Okay. I heard you 

explain the thing just now, but -- I heard you, but I 
didn't understand you . Now, our public hearings now 
allows each person to stand up and say what the y want 
to say with no time limit. That's a fact. Now. But 
what you're saying is that three minutes will be 
attached to every speech or everything that is said 
when a person come up to the mic? Is that what you 're 
saying? 

TOMMY DUNN: Ma'am, what I'm saying 
is any time we have something now before the meeting 
and after the meeting, you have three minutes to talk. 



43 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
2 7 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

That's the rule now. Always been that way since I've 
been on council. What I'm proposing is on public 
hearings you only have three minutes to spell it out. 
That's really what it is. The thing, there's no time 
limit on a public hearing. Say if there's a hundred 
people here, all hundred people gets to talk. You've 
got to use a little common sense. If there's a hundred 
people here wanting to talk and there's no time on it, 
somebody could take two hours and take all the time or 
something another. 

GRACIE FLOYD: They've done that. But 
what are you saying now? You're going to put three 
minutes on everybody; yes or no? 

TOMMY DUNN: Public hearings, ma'am. 
Public hearings. 

GRACIE FLOYD: 
will have three minutes on 
speak? Is that the skinny 

TOMMY DUNN: 
ma'am. 

JIMMY DAVIS: 
person; right? 

TOMMY DUNN: 
right. 

BRETT SANDERS: 
extend it if we vote . 

Okay. Public hearings 
everybody who gets up to 
of it? 

That's right. Yes , 

It's three minutes per 

Per person; that's 

And we have the right to 

TOMMY DUNN: And they've got the 
right -- council has the right to extend it. 

BRETT SANDERS: Right. 
GRACIE FLOYD: But the person, if 

they're not finished, just like you just cut everybody 
off, slap down, shut up, sit down, that would be the 
same thing; right? 

TOMMY DUNN: Just like it is now on 
other issues; yes , ma'am. 

GRACIE FLOYD: I don't agree with that. 
We are the only place that a person can come to to say 
what they think. We are the only place. If something 
goes wrong in the county that they don't agree with, 
we're the only place that they can come. Now, if you 
wanted to shorten it because of time, I could see maybe 
a five minutes. Because I have sat through a public 
hearing when the lady spoke for one solid hour. So I 
have been there. But if we're going to shorten it, 
let 's not take awa y the people's time to speak, to 
vent, to say what they have to say. Let's not do that 
to the people. Where else can they go to talk about 
the things that are bothering them? Where else can 
they go? Your office? Your telephone? 

TOMMY DUNN: Yes, ma'am. I take 



44 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 telephone calls. Yes, ma'am. They sure can call me 
2 any time. 
3 GRACIE FLOYD: But how do they call all 
4 of us at one time so that we can all hear everything? 
5 TOMMY DUNN: Anyone have anything 
6 else? 
7 CINDY WILSON: May I, Mr. Chairman? 
8 JIMMY DAVIS: Mr. Chair? 
9 GRACIE FLOYD: Excuse me. I didn't get 

10 an answer, and I wasn't finished. You cut me off, sir. 
11 I wasn't finished. My question was, how can they call 
12 all of us at one time so they can all hear the same 
13 thing as they do in a public hearing? 
14 TOMMY DUNN: I heard you. 
15 GRACIE FLOYD: Okay. 
16 TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Davis. 
17 JIMMY DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I 
18 think that what we're trying to do here is making it 
19 consistent across the board. And what we have to 
20 remember is if somebody is up there and their time 
21 expires, it's up to council and the respective council 
22 person can request more time. And I doubt any of us up 
23 here would deny that request. But I think we need to 
24 have some consistency across the board, because we have 
25 it limited to three minutes on agenda items only. And 
26 at the end of each council agenda we have that, as 
27 well. So I think it's good to have it consistent 
28 across the board. We have a motion on the floor. 
29 Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
30 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you. Ms. Wilson. 
31 GRACIE FLOYD: Excuse me. I'm still 
32 not through. Now I have the floor. I'm still not 
33 through because we can't just-- we're talking about 
34 the people here. We're talking about their rights. 
35 TOMMY DUNN: One second, Ms. Floyd. 
36 I'm going to check to see how much time we've got. How 
37 much time is left on this, Mr. Harmon? 
38 LEON HARMON: Twenty seconds. 
39 TOMMY DUNN: Go ahead, Ms. Floyd. 
40 GRACIE FLOYD: Okay. I've got twenty 
41 seconds. I do think that we need to give them more 
42 time, because if it's a public hearing then they have a 
43 concern. They have a concern that they need more time 
44 to express. So I just think that we need more time. 
45 Three minutes is not enough. 
46 TOMMY DUNN: That'll be time. Call 
47 for the question. All in favor of the motion show of 
48 hands. All opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
49 unanimously. 
50 Moving on to ordinance number ll(a), second 



45 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

reading, 2020-023, an ordinance to amend an Agreement 
for the development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville 
Counties as to enlarge the park. Project Unity 
Gateway. Do we have a motion to move this forward? 

CINDY WILSON: So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Ms. Wilson. Do 

we have a second? 
RAY GRAHAM: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Discussion? Mr. Burriss, 
add? 

Second. 
Second Mr. Graham. 

you got anything you want to 

BURRISS NELSON: Nothing other than this 
is Greenville County wanting to add a project to this. 
This is actually the city of Greenville and Greenville 
County moving forward with the redevelopment of their 
county offices and that whole complex after they sold 
county offices at old Bell Tower. 

TOMMY DUNN: All in favor of the 
motion show of hands. Opposed like sign. Show the 
motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on to item number 11(b), 2020-024, an 
ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 10.01 
acres from C- 2 (Highway Commercial) to R-M1 (mixed 
Residential) on Highway 81 North and 235 Scenic Road, 
Anderson. This will be District 4. Do we have-- Ms. 
Hunter, do you have anything you want to say? 

ALISIA HUNTER: No, sir, Mr. Chairman, I 
don't have anything further to add. If you have any 
questions. 

TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Sanders. 
BRETT SANDERS: Yes, sir. I looked 

through what we got sent to us. The property around it 
is basically mixed residential, as well. I have not 
had a single call about this, either for it nor against 
it, so I'm going to support it today. 

TOMMY DUNN: You make the motion to 
move this forward? 

BRETT SANDERS: I make a motion to move 
it forward, sir. 

CINDY WILSON: Second. 
TOMMY DUNN: We have a motion from 

Mr. Sanders to move forward and second by -- who 
seconded that? 

CINDY WILSON: I did. 
TOMMY DUNN: Ms. Wilson. Any 

discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
All opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
unanimously. 

Moving on to item number 11(c), 2020-025, an 



46 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
2 6 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

ordinance authorizing (1) pursuant to Chapter 44 of 
Title 12 , South Carolina Code of Laws , 1976 , as amended 
the execution and delivery of a fee agreement by and 
between Anderson County , South Carolina and BMW 
Manufacturing Co. , LLC ; and (2) other matters related 
thereto . Do we have a motion to put this on the floor? 

CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Ms. Wilson . Do 

we have a second? 
JIMMY DAVIS : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Davis . Now 

discussion. Mr . Nelson , do you have anything you want 
to add to this? 

BURRISS NELSON : Just that it is a 
support of our existing industries that supply -- or 
that area tier 1 and tier 2 suppliers for BMW . It is a 
good opportunity for us to be able to keep people 
employed . 

TOMMY DUNN: Anyone else? All in 
favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign. 
Show the motion carries unanimously . 

Moving on to item number 11(e) , 2020-027 , an 
ordinance authorizing (1) the conversion and transfer 
of the property subject to an existing lease agreement 
between Anderson County , South Carolina (the county) 
and Michelin North America , Inc. , f/k / a Michelin Tire 
Corporation (the company) to a fee-in - lieu of property 
taxes arrangement under Title 12 , Chapter 44 of the 
South Carolina Code , as amended ; (2) the execution and 
delivery of such documents as may be necessary to 
effect the intent of the ordinance ; and (3) other 
matters related thereto. The 1996 fee agreement. Do 
we have a motion to move this forward? 

CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Ms. Wilson . Do 

we have a second? 
BRETT SANDERS : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Sanders . Any 

discussion? 
BURRISS NELSON : Mr. Chairman , this is 

just a clean-up of the Sandy Springs fee-in-lieu of 
taxes agreement and takes twenty-nine documents and 
turns them into about -- about twenty documents and 
turns it into one . But the big thing is it takes the 
county out of the chain of the title on the old lease 
type fee agreement. 

TOMMY DUNN: The next one is about 
the same thing . Right , Mr . Nelson? 

BURRISS NELSON : Yes, sir . 
TOMMY DUNN: All in favor of the 



47 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
2 2 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

motion show of hands. Opposed like sign . Show the 
motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on to (f) , 2020-028 , an ordinance 
authorizing (1) the execution and delivery of an 
Infrastructure Special Source Revenue) Credit Agreement 
by and between Anderson County , South Carolina (The 
" County " ) and Michelin North America, Inc . (FKA 
Michelin Tire Corporation ) (The " Company " ) to provide 
for Infrastructure Credits with respect to cert ain 
property located in the County ; ( 2) the benefi t s of a 
Multi-County Industrial or Business Park designation to 
be made available to the Company and such property ; and 
(3) other matters related thereto . Do we have a motion 
to move this forward? 

CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN: 

we have a second? 
RAY GRAHAM: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

seconded that? 
RAY GRAHAM : 

So moved. 
Motion Ms. Wilson . Do 

Second . 
Second by - - who 

Me . Mr . Graham. 
TOMMY DUNN : Mr. Graham seconded it . 

Any discussion? 
BURRISS NELSON : Mr . Chairman , could I 

ask a question, just a point of order . 
TOMMY DUNN : Yeah . 
BURRISS NELSON : You combined (d) and (e ) 

in that previous vote; is that right? 
TOMMY DUNN: No, we didn't. We ' re 

voting on (e) right now. We voted on (d) and we voted 
on (e). Now we're on (f) 

BURRISS NELSON: Okay . I just wanted to 
be sure we got (e) captured in the vote. That ' s all I 
was asking . 

Yes , sir . In this one, (f) , is the multi -county 
park agreement that captures t he properties that 
Michelin has that were not able to be able to be 
captured in the previous two ordinances . 

TOMMY DUNN : Okay. Any more 
discussion? All in favor of (f) show of hands. 
Opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
unanimously. 

Mr . Harmon . 
LEON HARMON : Yes , sir. 
TOMMY DUNN: Did I miss (d)? 
LEON HARMON : I think you missed (e) 
TOMMY DUNN: I ' m sorry . We ' ll go 

back and make that right , then . I ' ll make sure we 
didn ' t miss one . I thought I got it. 

We ' ll go back , excuse me, council members , we ' ll go 



48 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

back to 11 (e) , 2020-027 , an ordinance authorizing (1) 
the conversion and transfer of the property subject to 
an existing lease agreement between Anderson County, 
South Carolina (the county) and Michelin North America , 
Inc . (FKA Michelin Tire Corporation) (the company) to a 
fee-in-lieu of property tax arrangement under Title 12 , 
Chapter 4 4 of the South Carolina Code , as amended ; ( 2) 
the execution and delivery of such documen t s . . . I 
done this because I remember saying 1996 . But we ' ll go 
ahead and make it-- but y ' all try to keep up over 
there. Take your coat off a minute and you ' ll want to 
keep up . You ' ll get a little chill . So this will be 
(e) , we ' re going to vote on (e ). I think we ' re going 
two out of three . Do we have a motion to put (e ) back 
on? 

RAY GRAHAM: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Second? 
CINDY WILSON : 
JIMMY DAVIS : 
TOMMY DUNN: 

discussion? All in favor of 
All opposed like sign . Show 
unanimously. 

Motion. 
Motion Mr . Graham . 

Second . 
Second. 
Second Mr . Davis. Any 

the motion show of hands . 
the motion carries 

Moving on to i tern (g) . (g) , (g) , (g) for y ' all 
folks over there. 2020-029 , an ordinance authorizing 
the execution and delivery of an amended and reinstated 
Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreements by and between Anderson 
County , South Carolina and COI Anderson Industrial , LLC 
with respect to certain economic development property 
in the County , whereby such property will be subject to 
certain payments in Lieu of Taxes , including the 
provision of certain Special Revenue Credits; and other 
matters related thereto. Mr . Nelson . 

BURRISS NELSON : Yes , sir , Mr . Chairman . 
This is the Van Trust property that is known as the 
Exchange Logistic Park . It ' s at Exit 35. And it ' s one 
of those where they ' re investing their own money , 
providing a two hundred and thirty thousand square foot 
manufacturing or industrial building, spec , and they 
had a shortfall on their understanding about what their 
total infrastructure need would be . And so this just 
extends that initial incentive a year . 

TOMMY DUNN : Do we have a motion to 
put thi s on the floor? 

JIMMY DAVIS : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr. Davis. Have 

a second? 
CINDY WILSON : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson . Any 



49 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - November I 2, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

discussion? Hearing none , all in favor of the motion 
show of hands. Opposed like sign . 

Moving on to (h), 11 (h ), 2020-030 , an ordinance 
authorizing the execution and delivery of an amendment 
to a Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement between 
Anderson County , South Carolina and a Company known to 
the County as Project Ammo to provide for an extension 
of the investment period therein and grant of 
additional Special Source Revenue Credits ; authorizing 
the execution and delivery of a purchase and sale 
agreement to provide for the transfer of certain real 
property located in the Alliance Industrial Park from 
the County to Project Ammo ; approving the inclusion of 
the project in a Multi-County Business and Industrial 
Park ; and other matters related thereto. Do we have a 
motion to put this on the floor? 

BRETT SANDERS: So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Mr. Sanders . Do 

we have a second? 
JIMMY DAVIS : Second. 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr . Davis . Now 

Mr . Burriss Nelson. 
BURRISS NELSON : Thank you , Mr . Chairman , 

and members of council . This is one of o u r existing 
industries . They ' re investing 8 . 6 million dollars , 
creating an additional sixteen jobs . They need some 
additional room to expand and make that project work . 
This will be a multi-county park agreement identical to 
what they had from the past . And they had a thirty 
percent SSRC for ten years . Twenty year community 
impact , forty-eight million dollars . I ' ve got a list 
of the tax income for your pleasure on that document 
that I left at your desk . This is an expansion of our 
existing . We should have an announcement for that 
pro ject before our next meeting. 

TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . All in favor 
of the motion show of hands. Opposed like sign . Show 
the motion carries unanimously . 

Moving on to item number 11(i) , 2020-031 , an 
ordinance to amend Chapter 70 , Article 5 of the 
Anderson County Code of Ordinances , to include new 
zoning district classifications and also to amend 
Section 5 : 2 residential agriculture district setback . 
Ms . Wilson . 

CINDY WI LSON : Than k you , Mr. Chairman . 
Let me manage to look over we ' ve been flipping so 
fast . This basically -- this amendment adds zoning 
classifications to our ordinance . If landowners choose 
to rezone , they have the opportunity to use one of 
these classifications . If landowners in an unzoned 



50 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
1 2 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
2 0 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
2 7 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

precinct choose to zone , then they have these zoning 
classifications to choose from in that foundation . 
Otherwise , it ' s just in our ordinance and should have 
been there from the start. But it gives more 
opportunities for landowners to choose the zoning that 
more accurately reflects their property . 

TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion by Ms. 
Wilson . Do we have a second? 

JIMMY DAVIS : Second. 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr . Davis . Any 

discussion? 
CRAIG WOOTEN : I have a quick question . 

Is this coming as a recommendation from the Planning 
and Public Works Committee, or is this just coming 
straight to council? 

TOMMY DUNN : I think it ' s coming 
straight to council. But I hope to take this up in an 
ad hoc committee when we put this -- all this needs to 
be worked together. So I hope before we have third 
reading , we can get some clarification on a few things . 

CINDY WILSON: We have had it as an 
item of discussion for months . And I ' ve made this 
request for the last nineteen years that we have these 
zoning classifications available to be used if they 
were appropriate by the owners of the property and 
we ' re just now putting them into place so that if 
someone chooses they can. For example, in Mr. Sanders ' 
district , there are some of the landowners who really 
choose to be more of an agricultural zoning 
classification . And they can -- once this is passed , 
they can make application to our Planning Department to 
re z one their specific property to one of these 
measures. By contrast the same or similar situation , 
too, in Mr . Davis ' district and some of the precincts 
in my district are unzoned , but we ' ll be going forward 
with the County Comprehensive Land Use Mapping and 
Planning efforts , the five year cycle , starting in two 
months . And if one of those precincts chooses to use 
one of these classifications when they go through the 
zoning process , if they go that route , then they have 
this available . It does not change anything in place 
now. 

(i)? 

TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 
TOMMY DUNN : 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

Anyone else? 
Mr . Chairman . 
Yes , ma ' am. 
Are we talking about 

TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD: Okay . What the lady 

from District 7 was saying about those people up there 



51 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

in Mr. Sanders' district, something about that, but 
aren't those people already classified in the 
classification that they wanted? 

CINDY WILSON: No. 
TOMMY DUNN: Some are; some ain't. 
GRACIE FLOYD: That's what I thought. 

That's what I thought. But if we give them another 
chance to come up with why are we giving them 
another chance to come up with a classification if 
they're already under the one that they want? 

TOMMY DUNN: Not necessarily, Ms. 
Floyd. This is -- she just used that for an example. 
This is county-wide and this would be giving somebody 
another option, more or less another tool in the 
toolbox. 

GRACIE FLOYD: Oh, I understand that. 
But see, she didn't say that. She used that -- she 
didn't say it was an example. But anyway, you've 
answered my question, and I thank you. 

TOMMY DUNN: Anyone else? All in 
favor of the motion show of hands. Opposed like sign. 
Show the motion carries unanimously. 

Now we're going to be moving on to item (j), 2020-
032, an ordinance to amend the ordinance number 2018-
011 related to the addition of Division 3 Titled 
Standards and Procedures for Franchising of Private 
Ambulance Services so as to add a new Section 30-87 
titled Operation within the County without obtaining a 
Franchise and to appropriately renumber succeeding 
sections; and other matters related thereto. Do we 
have a motion ---

GRACIE FLOYD: Would you please 
explain? 

RAY GRAHAM: Motion. 
TOMMY DUNN: We will. Do we have a 

motion to put this on 
RAY GRAHAM: 

the floor? 

CINDY WILSON: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

second Ms. Wilson. 
Now, Mr. Harmon, do you 

Burns or Mr. Graham? Let's 
RAY GRAHAM: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

Mr. Burns or Leon. 

Motion. 
Second. 
Motion Mr. Graham; 

want to explain this or Mr. 
all don't speak at once. 

Mr. Burns. 
I would rather hear from 

TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon. 
LEON HARMON: Mr. Chairman, what this 

motion does is add penalty provisions to the Franchise 
Agreement Ordinance. That's essentially all it does. 
And then by putting those in, we've renumbered some 



52 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2 1 
22 
23 
24 
25 
2 6 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

other sections in the ordinance. 
TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Harmon, I'm asking 

you, we've got this ordinance now, Franchise Ordinance. 
LEON HARMON: Correct. 
TOMMY DUNN: We've had it now for a 

while. This is just putting some teeth into it. When 
they don't abide by it, we can do something about it, 
where we don't have any effect right now. In short, 
isn't that it? 

LEON HARMON: That's the short answer 
to it; yes, sir. 

TOMMY DUNN: Ms. Floyd. 
GRACIE FLOYD: But Mr. Leon, the thing 

is that we have -- how many franchise private ambulance 
services do we have in Anderson now? 

LEON HARMON: We don't have any 
franchise services that have come under this particular 
ordinance. We have agreements ---

GRACIE FLOYD: No. My question is, how 
many do we have under any ordinance? 

LEON HARMON: I don't think we have 
any under any ordinance. We have agreements with 
certain rescue squads and 

TOMMY DUNN: 
LEON HARMON: 

But we don't have any under 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

going back. Isn't -- what 
they under a franchise for 

TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 
LEON HARMON: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

no, ma'am. 

EMS providers. 
--- and EMS providers. 

this particular ordinance . 
Okay. All right. We're 

about Greg Shore? Aren't 
private ambulance services? 

No, ma'am. 
Mr. Leon? 
Yes, ma'am. 
Was that you that said 

TOMMY DUNN: Her question was, is 
MedShore under a franchise agreement? 

LEON HARMON: No. MedShore is not. 
They have a contract with the county to provide EMS 
services within Zone 9 and some other areas of the 
county, as well. 

GRACIE FLOYD: 
under any kind of franchise 
services? So the answer is 

LEON HARMON: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

subjected to this right now? 
LEON HARMON: 

not. 
GRACIE FLOYD: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Okay. But they are not 
or private ambulance 
still no; right? 

That's correct. 
So they would not be 

No, ma'am, they would 

Okay. Thank you. 
Anyone else? All in 



53 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

favor of the motion show of hands. All opposed like 
sign. Show the motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on to item number 12 (a ), first reading , an 
ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 141 . 81 
acres from I-2 (Industrial Park District) to R-8 
(Single family residential) at Liberty Highway , 
Anderson. Tax map number 119-00-17-026 . This will be 
-- before we go into a public hearing , Ms . Hunter , do 
you have anything you would like to add to this? 

ALISIA HUNTER : Mr . Chairman , I don ' t have 
anything further to add other than that the Planning 
Commission did look -- went back and looked at this 
proposal and there were some environmental constraints 
to this property. The future land use map did call for 
this to be commercial and industrial , but they didn ' t 
take into consideration that some properties do have 
constraints on them . So therefore this would not be a 
suitable piece of property for an industrial site. 

TOMMY DUNN : We ' re going to have a 
public hearing on this . Anyone wishing to speak to 
this matter , please step forward , state your name and 
district and address the chair , please. Public 
hearing ; anyone at all? 

PAUL HARRISON : Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
My name is Paul Harrison . My address is 718 Lowndes 
Hill Road , Greenville 29609. 

CINDY WILSON : Sorry . We can ' t 
understand you . 

TOMMY DUNN: Pull that down . We 
can ' t hear you. 

PAUL HARRISON : Paul Harrison with Blue 
Water Civil Design. I ' m here tonight to speak on 
behalf of this application . And I would -- I don ' t 
really want to add anything other than I ' d be glad to 
a nswer any kind of questions or concerns that council 
may have about this application and about this 
rezoning. 

Hunter , 

TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

Okay . 
Yes. 

Anyone else? 
Yes . Alesia, Ms . 

TOMMY DUNN: One second , Ms. Floyd , 
if you would , please . One second. Do we have a motion 
to put this on the floor? 

CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Sa nders ; 

second Ms. Wilson. Now discussion . Ms. Floyd . 
GRACIE FLOYD : Ms . Hunter? 
ALISIA HUNTER : Yes , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD : It was said in one of 

the meetings that the council -- that these people 



54 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

coming in to do things to the county will first talk 
with the county council member of that particular area 
or district. Was this done according to what was said 
at that meeting? 

BRETT SANDERS: Yes, ma'am. 
ALISIA HUNTER: Mr. Sanders has had 

meetings with the developer. Yes, ma'am. 
BRETT SANDERS: With the developer and 

GRACIE FLOYD: Excuse me. I have the 
floor. What about the people, Ms. Hunter, have they 
been made aware of what's happening in the area? 

ALISIA HUNTER: Yes, ma'am. We have sent 
out notices to property owners. We did have a public 
hearing, as well, Ms. Gracie. We notified -- the 
property was posted, as well. We notified property 
owners within two thousand feet of this affected 
property. Yes, ma'am. 

GRACIE FLOYD: Okay. Good. Thank you . 
TOMMY DUNN: Anyone else? Anyone 

have any questions for this gentleman here? 
BRETT SANDERS: Mr. Chairman. 
TOMMY DUNN: Yes, sir. 
BRETT SANDERS: This property, I got an 

email with the actual plan layout to where it was 
moving towards like the conservative subdivision that 
Ms. Wilson has been pushing. Could we make sure that 
everyone on council gets a copy of that email? I think 
they may have sent it to Mr. Burns, but ... 

RUSTY BURNS: All council have 
received it. 

TOMMY DUNN: All council has received 
it, he said. 

CINDY WILSON: Unless it's in the 
packet that we -- we just got up here. We don't have 
it yet. 

BRETT SANDERS: Okay. Good. 
TOMMY DUNN: We're good. We 

appreciate you. 
BRETT SANDERS: Thank you, sir. 
TOMMY DUNN: Any more discussion? 
CINDY WILSON: Mr. Chairman, may I? 
TOMMY DUNN: Yes, ma'am. 
CINDY WILSON: This piece of property 

has the opportunity to really be a shining example of 
good stewardship, respecting the waterways and other 
characteristics of the property and do more of a 
cluster type development. And this is only the first 
reading. I'm in support of it and I'm looking forward 
to learning more and working as we can. Thank you. 



55 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . All in favor 
of the motion show of hands . Oppo s ed like sign. Show 
the motion carries unanimously . 

Moving on to item number (b) , 12 (b ), 2020 - 033 , an 
ordinance to amend section 38-312 (preliminary plat) 
I ' m sorry , that ' s been took off . We took that off. 

GRACIE FLOYD : What? 
TOMMY DUNN: Wasn ' t that took off? 
LEON HARMON : Yes . You pulled that at 

the beginning of the meeting . 
TOMMY DUNN : We pulled that at the 

beginning of t he meeting . I ' m sorry . 
Moving on to item number (c ), 12 (c ), 2020-034 , an 

ordinance to amend section 38 - 118(f) of the Anderson 
County Code of Ordinances so as to clarify traffic 
impact study requirements. I put that in the form of a 
motion. Have a second? 

JIMMY DAVIS : 
CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN: 
CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Davis seconds the motion . 
CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN : 

discussion? 

Second . 
Which one are we one? 
(c) ; 12(c) . 
Okay . I'm sorry . 
I make the motion; Mr . 

Okay . Gotcha. 
Do we have any 

CINDY WILSON : One question on this, if 
we're in discussion. This came up in a development 
meeting in my district this past week . Do we have a 
way to address the potential of a development starting 
with one phase that might have twenty-five dwellings 
and maybe less than a hundred trips per day coming out 
onto a state or a county road , but it adjoins another 
parcel that they're planning to come through that 
property and then they would eclipse the hundred trips 
at peak hour? Is there any way we can address that 
going into the traffic impact study so that that would 
be a consideration? In other words , what ' s there is 
there and we can deal with that. But we also 
understand that there's another development going 
through that property that will have many more 
dwellings and more road trips . Can we address that in 
the traffic impact study? 

Like 
will 

TOMMY DUNN: 
I said, we ' re going to 
be one subject we talk 

CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

about-- excuse me-- you ' re 

It ' s a working thing . 
talk about this -- this 
about tomorrow . 

Okay . Thank you . 
Any more discussion? 
You ' re going to talk 

going to talk about what 



56 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November I 2, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

tomorrow in now? And has this been put on the floor 
yet? 

TOMMY DUNN: More in depth on the 
traffic study. There's an ad hoc committee meeting 
tomorrow and PPW meeting tomorrow. This is just first 
reading on the traffic ordinance. Any more discussion? 
All in favor of the motion show of hands. All opposed? 
Show the motion carries. 

Moving on to item number 12(d), 20 2 0-035, an 
ordinance to amend Article III, Division 5 of Chapter 
38 of Anderson County, South Carolina Code of 
Ordinances so as to add a new section 38-360 regarding 
conservation development standards. Ms. Wilson. 

CINDY WILSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
This basically gives developers in the unzoned area the 
choice of fifteen thousand square foot lots on sewer or 
the conservation development standards where they could 
cluster dwellings on six thousand square feet, but 
retain the difference between six thousand and fifteen 
thousand. There are a number of parts of this that are 
very positive for developers, as well as those who live 
around such a development. One is that the developer 
cuts down on site prep, the cost of running 
infrastructure to the property, there's more latitude 
given in the form of stormwater runoff measures that 
might be more appropriate than just simply going and 
digging a hole and letting it run in there, which can 
be very expensive for a developer. It'll be a choice 
in the unzoned areas. And we're also looking at 
providing it as a choice in zoned areas so that we have 
greater capability of developing nicer. And that's 
what we've been working on for, gosh, quite a while 
now. Thank you. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 
TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 
TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

Thank you. 
Mr. Chair? 

Anyone else? 

I'm sorry? 
Mr. Chair? 
Yeah, Ms. Floyd. 
Yes. If we do that to 

the South Carolina Code of Ordinance, add that section, 
who will be paying for the acceleration and 
deceleration there? I remember we had some discussion 
about this a long time ago. Ms. Wilson brought it up 
then. But who will be paying for this? 

CINDY WILSON: I thought we were on the 
conservation development standards. 

GRACIE FLOYD: Mr. Chair? 
TOMMY DUNN: 
CINDY WILSON: 

that I just voted on ---

Yes, ma'am. 
The traffic impact study 



57 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN: 
We've done moved on. We've 

GRACIE FLOYD: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Ms. Floyd, we're on (d). 
done (c) . 

I'm not on (c). 
Okay. What are you 

asking? What's your question? 
CINDY WILSON: In the 
GRACIE FLOYD: Wait a minute, Ms. 

Wilson. I might be ahead of myself. Because the one 
I'm referring to is on (e). It's on (e). I thought 
you were saying (c), but you were saying (e); okay. 
No, I thought you were saying (e) but you were saying 
(c). The mistake is mine. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
CINDY WILSON: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

understand that now, Mr. 
mistake was mine. 

TOMMY DUNN: 
(d)? 

JIMMY DAVIS: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

have a second? 
CINDY WILSON: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

discussion. 

We're on (d) right now. 
(e) has been removed. 

Ms. Wilson, please. I 
Chair. Please go on. The 

Do we have a motion for 

So moved. 
Motion Mr. Davis. Do we 

Second. 
Second Ms. Wilson. Now 

CRAIG WOOTEN: I have a quick question. 
I'm assuming if we pass this at first reading that 
it'll be going to the Planning and Public Works 
Committee meeting tomorrow. Will it come back for a 
second reading with a recommendation from the committee 
or ... 

TOMMY DUNN: What I envision, Mr . 
Wooten, I was fixing to speak on this. I intend on 
voting on this on first reading, but this has got a lot 
-- some work to be done to it. One thing is like who 
is going to take care of all this stuff? Tighten it 
up? I don't want to -- myself calling the county and 
saying a tree fell over here. So this stuff has got to 
have (end of audio) some tightening up to it. And we 
don't need to be piecemealing this stuff. It all needs 
to work and flow together to work on this stuff. We've 
got a lot going on and that's what we're got to try to 
do. And this is going to be talked about tomorrow in 
the ad hoc committee. She's got a presentation on that 
right there. Any more discussion? All in favor of the 
motion show of hands. Opposed like sign. Show the 
motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on now to item (f). (e) has been pulled. 
Going to item (f), 2020-027 , an ordinance to approve a 
sublease agreement between Anderson County, South 



58 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
3 2 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

Carolina and Lake Hartwell Development Group, LLC for 
the Asbury Park site on Lake Hartwell located at the 
end of Asbury Park Road. Do we have a motion to move 
this forward? 

GRACIE FLOYD: So we went from (d) to 
(f)? 

TOMMY DUNN: Yes, ma'am. As I said 
earlier, at the start of the meeting (e) has been 
pulled. 

you. 

GRACIE FLOYD: 
TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

Oh, excuse me. Got it. 
Thank you. 
I'm with you now. Thank 

TOMMY DUNN: Moving on now to item 
number (f) again. Do we have a motion to put this on 
the floor? 

CINDY WILSON: So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Ms. Wilson. Do 

we have a second? 
BRETT SANDERS: Second. 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Davis. 
BRETT SANDERS: Sanders. 
TOMMY DUNN: Mr. Sanders seconded? 
BRETT SANDERS: Yes, sir. 
TOMMY DUNN: Okay. Can't tell y'all 

two apart sometimes. There's a second. Mr. Nelson. 
BURRISS NELSON: Thank you , Mr. Chairman, 

members of council. This is a project that we've been 
working on for almost three years. And really years 
and years longer than that. Because when I carne to 
work for Anderson County thirty something years ago, we 
were talking about development and redevelopment of 
projects for commercial and entertain and recreation 
opportunities on Lake Hartwell, and developing things 
that would utilize the best things there are about Lake 
Hartwell. And this is just the beginning to that. We 
had a groundbreaking ceremony Tuesday morning out at 
Asbury Park to kick this project off . This is just the 
beginning of a long process of work that's going to be 
even longer. But great things. 

There's actually a map right behind the document I 
put at your table that gives you an outline of what the 
format of the park will look like. But it will include 
such things as tree house camping, yurts to camp in, 
small cabins. And of course, there will be places for 
camper/motor homes and tent camping, as well. And then 
the other thing that Mr. Burns and Ms. Davis are 
looking forward to is the gigantic water slide, water 
park, to be able to play when they get that up in April 
or May of next year. But this is a long process. We 



59 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 went out to an RFQ following all the county ' s 
2 procurement regulations . We went out to bid. We 
3 selected a qualified candidate . We submitted a lease 
4 request to the Corp of Engineers . We submitted the 
5 candidate to the Corp of Engineers . They were 
6 approved . We secured approval through several layers 
7 of the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers Oversight Control . 
8 And the award and lease -- the award of the lease to 
9 Anderson County, we received that . And we ' re preparing 

10 to award the lease to Lake Hartwell Development Group 
11 from Anderson County. And park development should 
12 begin- - it ' s actually already begun . They ' re out 
13 there clearing all the underbrush and all the 
14 undergrowth that ' s out there . 
15 But this certainly comes to council as a 
16 recommendation from staff and from the Economic 
17 Development Advisory Board . 
18 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone have any other 
19 discussion? 
20 GRACIE FLOYD : Yes . 
21 TOMMY DUNN: Ms . Floyd . 
22 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay. Mr . Burriss? 
23 BURRISS NELSON : Yes, ma ' am. 
24 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay , yeah. As we 
25 discussed last night , this requires no funds from 
26 Anderson County. Am I correct? 
2 7 BURRISS NELSON : That ' s correct . This is 
2 8 
29 GRACIE FLOYD : Would you please say 
30 that so it can be put on record? 
31 BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma ' am . I ' m happy 
32 to do that. The only thing that we ' ve invested in has 
33 been the time from staff and some preparation of 
34 documents that we ' ve had . But this is all developer 
35 money that ' s going to that project and they ' re bringing 
36 their own funds, their own operations. We ' ve had to go 
37 through a long vetting process of the management 
38 program , as well as the development program and get 
39 them approved by the Corp of Engineers , as well as 
40 approved by us. 
41 GRACIE FLOYD: Thank you. 
42 TOMMY DUNN: Anyone else? I just 
43 want to say quickly this is going to make Anderson 
44 County money . Not a whole lot , but we ' ll get ticket 
45 revenue off of this. But the big thing is , it ' ll be 
46 good for the community out there. Glad to see a 
47 private partnership. And it ' s excellent to see the 
48 community turnout . All my years I ' ve been on council , 
49 besides the big Arthrex and maybe First Quality or one 
50 or two more , I ' ve never seen a turnout for ground 



60 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 breaking like I did that . And mos t impres s ive was most 
2 of the people were from out there in that community , 
3 impressed and excited about this . All in f avor of the 
4 motion s how of hands . Go a head . I ' m sorry . 
5 CRAIG WOOTEN : I just want to commend 
6 your efforts , too . One thing that I don ' t want to ge t 
7 lost in this effort is it ' s wonderful for economic 
8 development , it ' s wonderful for our economy . But as 
9 we ' ve seen the Corp of Engineers close down parks on 

10 the lake , we ' ve s een , because of b udget restraints that 
11 happen , to close down boat launches . The lake is for 
12 everybody . That belongs to the federal government and 
13 the water I guess maybe belongs to the state , but i t' s 
14 for everybody . And I thin k the most encouraging thing 
15 about this project , it ' s going to be an affordable 
16 outlet for everybody , whether or not they live on the 
17 lake or not , to participate . So even beyond economic 
18 development, it ' s a cultural win for Anderson . 
19 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . 
20 GRACIE FLOYD : Mr. Chair , a few minutes 
21 ago you said that this would bring in some money to 
22 Anderson County , which is good. I ' m really excited 
2 3 about that. But this time the money will be going 
2 4 where? Now the big ole pond that we have , that money 
25 goes to the hospitality industry . It doesn ' t help 
26 Anderson County at all . Because if it did we would 
27 have roads and stuff we need . But on that particular 
28 pro j ect you said that it would bring in some money to 
2 9 the county. But my question to you is , who will be the 
30 recipient of the money this time? 
31 TOMMY DUNN : Money goes into genera l 
32 fund and county council will decide where that money 
33 goes. And that ' s an opinion about the golden pond , 
34 opinion about what that money has made out there and 
35 what it does with economic development . 
36 GRACIE FLOYD : Well , I was trying to 
37 get an answer on who will be getting the money this 
38 time from this new thing coming into Anderson? That ' s 
39 important. That ' s important to the people of Anderson 
40 and I ' d like to know the answer , please . 
41 TOMMY DUNN : I told you Anderson 
42 County Council is going to decide . It goes back to the 
43 general fund and we ' ll have to budget that money . We 
44 don ' t want to spend it before we ain ' t took it in yet . 
45 GRACIE FLOYD : Well , I wouldn ' t has 
46 asked if you hadn ' t said that it ' s going to bring a 
47 whole lot of money into it because we should all be 
48 interes ted in the money , how we ' re going to get it and 
49 where it ' s going . But I ' ll just have to wait and see 
50 what Anderson County does , I guess. 



61 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN: All in favor of the 
motion show of hands. All opposed like sign. Show the 
motion carries unanimously. 

We'll be moving on now to item number (g), 
2020-038 , an ordinance (1) authorizing pursuant to 
Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery 
of a Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement, by and 
between Anderson County, South Carolina and a Company 
identified by the County as Project Underwood. Mr. 
Nelson. 

BURRISS NELSON: Mr. Chairman, thank you, 
members of council. We were approached by the city of 
Honea Path to partner with them in an incentive package 
with a developer who is willing to spend four million 
dollars -- three to four million dollars on the 
renovation of the old shirt plant down there in Honea 
Path and create an opportunity for expansion and 
growth. They're also going to repave the parking area, 
include security lighting and allow that to be public 
parking for the town of Honea Path. These folks are 
corning to us with their own investment dollars. All 
we'll be involved in is the incentive process. 

TOMMY DUNN: Do we have a motion to 
put this on the floor? 

CINDY WILSON: 
RAY GRAHAM: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

So moved. 
Second. 
Motion Ms. Wilson; 

second Mr. Graham. Any discussion? 
CINDY WILSON: This will be very, very 

helpful for a very blighted area in Honea Path. They 
were having a meeting Monday night and it's so exciting 
the progress that's taking place in Honea Path. So I 
wanted to be sure to enlist your support. 

TOMMY DUNN: All in favor of the 
motion show of hands. All opposed like sign. Show the 
motion carries unanimously. 

Moving on item number (h), 2020-039 , an ordinance 
to amend section 38-359 (flag lots) of Anderson County 
Code to further define and clarify the circumstances 
for the use of the flag lots within Anderson County. 
Mr. Davis. 

JIMMY DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
This ordinance -- this is just first reading. We've 
still got a few things to go on it. But the thing we 
wanted to do is to clarify and simplify what our code 
says and regulates in respect to flag lots. And we 
thought that the code that we had was kind of ambiguous 
and left room for interpretation. So we've made good 
headway of clarifying that. And also at the end of 



62 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 this we ' ll have - - you know , for the citizens of 
2 Anderson County , we ' ll have a defined use of when 
3 people can use flag lots and when they can ' t . So I 
4 look forward to finalizing that . Again , this is fir st 
5 reading . But I make a motion that we approve the 
6 ordinance 2020-039 . 
7 TOMMY DUNN : Have a motion . 
8 CINDY WILSON : Second . 
9 TOMMY DUNN : Second by Ms . Wilson . 

10 Any discussion? Hearing none , all in favor of the 
11 motion show of hands . Opposed like sign. Show the 
12 motion carries unanimously . 
13 Moving on to item number (i ), 2020 - 040 , ordinance 
14 to amend section 38-314 (summary plats) so as to reduce 
15 the number of lots that can be approved on a summary 
16 plat and to clarify the requirements for compliance 
17 with stormwater regulation . This , I believe-- correct 
18 me if I ' m wrong , Mr . Davis , you asked for this to be 
19 pulled , too ; is that correct? 
20 JIMMY DAVIS : Yeah , we need further 
21 discussion. 
22 TOMMY DUNN : I thought -- Mr . Davis 
23 is the one that asked this to be put on , and he ' s asked 
24 for this t o be pulled to get some more work to be done 
25 with this and some clarification . 
26 CINDY WILSON : Mr . Chairman , may I ---
27 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . 
28 CINDY WILSON : --- make a comment on 
29 that? 
30 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am. 
31 CINDY WILSON : I think the main issue 
32 on summary plats has been the stormwater and drainage 
33 requirements . And perhaps we just need to make it 
34 mandatory that all lots have to meet those standards 
35 because we ' re running int o massive flooding across the 
36 county . It ' s just very difficult when we have this 
37 level of rainfall that we ' re dealing with now that 
38 we ' ve not dealt with for thirty years prior . But if we 
39 can keep the main runoff onsite or at least slow it 
40 down so it ' s not silting into adjoining landowners or 
41 onto (static in audio). 
42 TOMMY DUNN : Moving on to item number 
43 (j) (static in audio) . Mr. Harmon . 
44 RUSTY BURNS : (Static in audio) would 
45 like to swap (static) public service condition 
46 requesting that this is happening and they approved 
47 that . Mr . Davis has been integrally involved in these 
48 discussions . If you have any other questions , I ' ll be 
4 9 happy to ask . 
50 TOMMY DUNN : Do we have a motion to 



63 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- No vember 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
2 0 
2 1 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
2 9 
30 
31 
3 2 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
4 7 
48 
49 
50 

put this on the floor? 
JIMMY DAVIS : 
CINDY WILSON : 
TOMMY DUNN : 

Ms. Wilson . Any discussion? 

So moved . 
Second . 
Motion Mr . Davis ; second 

CINDY WILSON : Just one point that was 
clarified for me coming into the meeting , which is a 
question in a lot of these type situations . (Static) 

TOMMY DUNN : (Static) (this is being 
typed from agenda) 20 2 0-04 2 , an ordinance to develop a 
jointly owned and operated Industrial/Business Park in 
conjunction with Greenville County , such 
Industrial/Business Park to be geographically located 
in Greenville County and established pursuant to Sec . 
4 - 1 - 170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina , 1976 , as 
amended ; to provide for a written Agreement with 
Greenville County to provide for the expenses of the 
Park, the Percentage of Revenue Application, and the 
distribution of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxation. 
Do we have a motion to put this on the floor? 
(Static is really bad- unable to transcribe.) 

TOMMY DUNN : (Static - this is being 
typed from agenda) 20 2 0-043 , an ordinance authorizing 
the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax 
agreement by and between Anderson County, South 
Carolina and a company or companies known to the coun t y 
at this time as Project Malibu with respect to certain 
economic development property in the county , whereby 
such property will be subject to certain payments in 
lieu fo taxes , including the provision of certain 
special source credits. Do we have a motion to put 
this on the floor? 

CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN: Motion Ms. Wilson . Do 

we have a second? 
BRETT SANDERS : Second. 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr. Sanders . Now 

discussion . Mr . Nelson . 
BURRISS NELSON: Mr. Chairman , thank you . 

This is a great project opportunity for us . Eighty 
million dollar capital investment ; a hundred and 
thirty-one jobs , with an average pay of twenty-seven 
dollars and seventy-one cents an hour ; annual payroll 
of 7. 2 6 million dollars. The first year community 
impact , 2 . 1 million. And a twenty year community 
impact of two hundred eighty-five million . And I 
supplied a tax run or illustration for council members 
in the document. 

But this comes to council as a recommendation from 
staff, as well as the advisory board . 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 
64 

1 TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion . Any 
2 more discussion? Hearing and seeing none , all in favor 
3 of the motion show of hands. Opposed like sign. Show 
4 the motion carries unanimously . 
5 Moving on to (rn) , 2020-044 , an ordinance 
6 authorizing (1) the execution of an Infrastructure 
7 Credit Agreement by and between Anderson County , South 
8 Carolina and Friendship SC Preservation , L . P. to 
9 provide for Infrastructure Credits with respect to a 

10 Rehabilitation Project located at 719 Mauldin Street , 
11 Anderson , SC , (static - being typed from agenda) ( 2) 
12 authorizing the execution of a Multi-County Park 
13 Agreement with Greenville County to include such 
14 property , (3) authorizing the execution of an 
15 Intergovernmental agreement with the city of Anderson , 
16 and (4) other matters related thereto. 
17 (Static -unable to transcribe) 
18 GRACIE FLOYD: Well , I have known about 
19 that for a while . Can you hear me , Mr . Chair? 
20 TOMMY DUNN: Yes , ma ' am. 
21 GRACIE FLOYD: I have known about that 
22 for a while . In fact , they had some plans a couple of 
23 years ago where we knew that all of this was going to 
24 happen. I think it carne along with the East-West 
25 Connector. And I didn ' t think that one would pass. 
26 But when it did nobody said nothing. When they carne up 
27 with the other things that they were going to do , no 
28 one said nothing. When they built that big hotel 
29 downtown that shouldn't be there that's going to impede 
30 traffic and a lot of other things, no one but -- I was 
31 the only one that said anything about that. Council 
32 didn ' t say a word. So this is just par for the course. 
33 We knew it was corning . You knew it was corning . 
34 TOMMY DUNN: Mr . Nelson . 
35 BURRISS NELSON : Mr . Chairman , I ' d like 
36 to first a point of order. (Static - unable to 
37 transcribe). We've been approached by the city of 
38 Anderson to cooperate with them in a multi-county park 
39 agreement and to renovate Friendship Court Apartments . 
40 You may know where that is over off of Bleckley Street 
41 (static - unable to transcribe) But the apartments over 
42 there for over fifty years. It ' s in disrepair. It ' s 
43 heavily blighted with crime issues . And this 
44 investment company is willing to come in and renovate 
45 every apartment . It's all section 8 housing . No one 
46 is going to lose their apartment . No one is going to 
47 be moved out. There won ' t be a change in their rent . 
48 They'll come along and add fencing which will stop 
49 crosswalk traffic that ' s created a problem in the past . 
50 There are multiple (inaudible ) caused by the police for 



65 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November I 2, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
2 6 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
3 2 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

security issues , burglaries , armed robberies , drug 
issues . The company is going to put in additional 
lighting , security cameras , fencing and renovate the 
entire apartmen t complex . 5 . 5 million dollars is the 
investment . And the city has asked us to participate 
in the multi-county park agreement to help them or 
assist them in incentivizing this project and 
development . 

This comes to council as a recommendation from 
staff as well as from the Economic Development Advisory 
Board. 

TOMMY DUNN : Any more discussions? 
CINDY WILSON: I will support this on 

the first reading , but I want it made very clear that 
we work really hard for the entire county and our 
municipalities also . But when you have a municipality 
acting like this big elephant just rolling right into 
our county, that ' s not a good thing . And I will do 
anything I can to help o u r municipalities. But I think 
it should be met with similar ( inaudible) charitable 
(inaudible) in regards to annexation . Because pretty 
soon and (inaudible) any certainty in that meeting 
they ' re planning to annex out . 

I ' ll support this first reading , title only , but 
I'm expecting a little movement on the other side if 
it ' s supposed to be considered a partnership in our 
county. Thank you. 

GRACIE FLOYD : 
TOMMY DUNN: 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

Friendship Court now? 

Mr . Chairman . 
Ms. Floyd . 
Are we talking about 

TOMMY DUNN: Yes , ma'am . 
GRACIE FLOYD : I thought we were. I 

thought we were talking about Friendship Court . 
Because I wanted to ask Mr . Burriss . Mr. Burriss , when 
we talked about this , I asked you , and I ' ll ask you 
again for the record , how much are they expecting the 
county to put into this overhaul? 

BURRISS NELSON : We ' ve not been requested 
to put any money at all in the project. There ' s no 
cash up front from the county requested at all . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Any fees in lieu of? 
BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma ' am . This would 

be a fee in lieu of tax agreement to give a tax 
incentive to the project t o incentivize them to bring 
the project . 

CINDY WILSON: Which the city can't do 
on their own -- 

GRACIE FLOYD: 
Excuse me , Ms. Wilson. 

Excuse me , Ms . Wilson . 
Thank you. Mr . Burriss , when 



66 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

do they plan to begin working on t his project? 
BURRISS NELSON : Sometime in the next 

three months . 
GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . Do we have to do 

a fee in lieu of? 
BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma ' am . That would 

be -- the request is from the city for us to 
participate and the city would have to have us to be a 
player in the fee in lieu agreement for us to be able 
to make that work . (Static - unable to transcribe ) 

bill? 
GRACIE FLOYD: Are you saying they beta 

BURRISS NELSON : 
GRACIE FLOYD : 
BURRISS NELSON : 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

Baliey . 
B- A- L- I - E-Y? 
Yes, ma'am . 
Okay . Excuse me . 

Baliey bill . Okay . Go ahead . 
BURRISS NELSON : And we would much prefer 

to use multi-county park agreement to be able to mimic 
what the (static - unable to transcribe). 

GRACIE FLOYD : Well , I sure would like 
to have some information on the Baliey Bill because 
I ' ve never heard of that before . And something el s e , 
too , Mr . Burriss. I ' ll call your attention to the fact 
that there is a lawsuit against the -- is it the state 
of South Carolina concerning fee in lieu of? Mr . 
Burriss? 

BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma'am . There ' s 
(static - unable to transcribe) . 

GRACIE FLOYD : I can ' t hear you . 
Somebody else is talking and I ' m picking it up. What 
did you say now? 

BURRISS NELSON : I don ' t know about a 
lawsuit . I know there ' s been a lot in the paper about 
the transactions mostly from the state of South 
Carolina and grants that have been awarded to 
manufacturing projects , is what my understanding was . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Uh-huh (affirmative) . 
Well , I would appreciate it, Mr. Burriss , as the per s on 
for this if you would check this t hing out because what 
I have read , the lawsuit-- there ' s one lawsuit and now 
it ' s got to be contested. But I ' d like to know more 
for us. Because if there is a lawsuit on what I think 
is fee in lieu of , we need to be awa re of it before we 
run out there and start continuing doing these things . 

TOMMY DUNN : Time is up on this 
matter . I ' ll call for the vote . All in favor of the 
motion show of hands . 

GRACIE FLOYD : What? 
TOMMY DUNN : All in favor of the 



67 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the 
2 motion carries unanimously. 
3 (Static - unable to transcribe) 
4 TOMMY DUNN: (Static - typing from 
5 agenda) 2020-046 , an ordinance to amend an agreement 
6 for the development of a joint county industrial and 
7 business park (2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville 
8 Counties so as to enlarge the park. Do we have a 
9 motion to move this forward? 

10 CINDY WILSON: So moved. 
11 BRETT SANDERS : Second. 
12 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Ms . Wilson; 
13 second Mr . Sanders . Any discussion? Hearing none , all 
14 in favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like 
15 sign . Show the motion carries unanimously . 
16 Moving on to item number (p ), 2020-047 , an 
17 ordinance authorizing and approving (1) the development 
18 of a new Joint County Industrial and Business Park 
19 (Friends hip Court Property ) pursuant to Sect ion 4-1-170 
20 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina , 1976 . This is 
21 the one that we just talked about in (m) up there . Do 
22 we have a motion to put this on the floor? Do we have 
23 a motion to move this forward? 
24 JIMMY DAVIS : We ' re on (p ) as in Paul? 
25 RAY GRAHAM : I make a motion . 
26 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Graham . Do 
27 we have a second? 
28 CRAIG WOOTEN : Second . 
29 TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr. Wooten . Now 
30 discussion . All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
31 All opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
32 unanimously . 
33 Moving on to item number 13 (a) , resolution R2020 -
34 029 , an inducement resolution identifying a project t o 
35 satisfy the requirements of Title 12 , Chapter 44 of the 
36 South Carolina Code , so as to allow investment 
37 expenditures incurred by a company known to the county 
38 as Project Underwood , its affiliates and related 
39 entities , to qualify as expenditures eligible for a fee 
40 in lieu of taxes arrangement with Anderson County , 
41 South Carolina. Do we have a motion to put this on the 
42 floor? Motion Ms . Wilson . Do we have a second? 
43 JIMMY DAVIS : Second. 
44 TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr . Davis . Now 
45 discussion . Mr. Nelson. 
46 BURRISS NELSON : Yes , sir , Mr . Chairman . 
47 This is the same project we discus s ed earlier in Honea 
48 Path . This is the resolution to capt ure all the 
49 document ation in the agreement . 
50 TOMMY DUNN : Any more di s c ussion ? 



68 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 All in favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like 
2 sign . Show the motion carries unanimously . 
3 Moving on t o item number (b ), R2020-030 , (s t atic -
4 typing from agend a ) a resolution ordering a public 
5 hearing on the question of the diminution of the 
6 t erritory of the Metropolitan Sewer Subdistrict . 
7 (Static - unable to transcribe) 
8 All in favor of motion show of hands. Opposed like 
9 sign . Show the motion carries una nimously. 

10 Moving on to R2020-031 , (static - typed from 
11 agenda) a resolution authorizing the amendment of an 
12 existing fee in lieu of tax agreement dated as of 
13 October 1 , 2013 , by and between Anderson County , South 
14 Carolina and Fra enkische USA , LP , e xtending the 
15 investment period by five years . Do we have a motion 
16 to put this on the floor? 
17 CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
18 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Ms . Wilson ; 
19 second Mr . Graham . Any discussion? All in favor of 
20 the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the 
21 motion carries unanimously . 
22 Moving on to item number (d ), R2020-032 , (static -
23 typed from agenda ) a resolution a uthorizing the 
24 amendment of an existing infra structure finance 
25 agreement dated as of December 6 , 2016 , by and among 
26 Anderson County , South Carolina , Ortec , Inc . and 
27 Pendleton Land Holdings , LLC . Do I have a motion to 
28 move this forward? 
29 RAY GRAHAM : Second . 
30 TOMMY DUNN: Motion Mr. Sanders ; 
31 second Mr . Graham . Any discussion? All in favor of 
32 the motion show of hands. All opposed like sign . Show 
33 the motion carries unanimously . 
34 TOMMY DUNN: Now I make a motion t o 
35 go into executive session to discus s ion legal advice 
36 regarding petition to close George Brock Road and legal 
37 a dvice regarding drainage issues near East-West 
38 Parkway. 
39 JIMMY DAVIS : I ' ll second that . 
40 TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr . Davis . All 
41 in favor of motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . 
42 Show the motion carries unanimously . 
43 BURRISS NELSON : Mr . Chairman , members of 
44 council , thank you for your support . 
4 5 (End of audio) 
46 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
47 TOMMY DUNN : . .. come out of executive 
48 session , taking no action . (Sta tic - unable to 
49 transcribe) . 
50 RAY GRAHAM : Mr . Chairman . 



69 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN : Mr. Graham . 
RAY GRAHAM : At the request of District 3 

citizens , I make a motion that we oppose the closure of 
George Brock Road . 

TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion by Mr. 
Graham. This road is in his district . Do we have a 
second? 

CINDY WILSON : Second . 
BRETT SANDERS : Second. 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson. Any 

discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
All opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
unanimously . 

At this time we ' ll go to road acceptance . If 
there ' s no objections can we take all of these at one 
time? Road acceptance into the county inventory. The 
Avendell Subdivision , District 6 , Coopermine Drive ; 
Shackleburg Farms Subdivision Phase I , District 4 . I ' m 
assuming , Mr. Burns , they all meet our criteria ---

RUSTY BURNS : Yes , sir , they do. Correct . 
TOMMY DUNN : Do I have a motion to accept 

these into the system? 
JIMMY DAVIS : So moved. 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Davis . Have a 

second? 
BRETT SANDERS : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr . Sanders . That ' s 

(a) and (b) of 15 . Any discussion? All in favor of 
the motion show of hands . All opposed like sign. Show 
the motion carries unanimously . 

At this time we ' re going to be going to item number 
16 . This is will Chairman Graham , report from the 
Public Safety Committee on meeting on October 23rd . 

RAY GRAHAM : Mr . Chairman , the Public 
Safety Committee did meet on October 23rd. At the 
request of the Public Safety Committee , we bring forth 
with a recommendation of basically the committee 
recommends that we return the money to the two 
franchise requesters at this time . And they also bring 
forth in the form of a motion that we remove accepting 
any franchise requests for a period of six months 
unless deemed necessary to accept them earlier than 
that . The committee ' s intention is basically to look 
over the franchise agreement and possibly make some 
changes and bring forth another recommendation in the 
near future . There is some situations where there 's 
possibly going to be a need to serve our citizens here 
in Anderson County. And right now we ' re just trying to 
get the franchise agreement suitable to ensure the 
coverage of that , as well as taking care of the current 



70 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 providers . I bring this in the form of a motion that 
2 we remove franchise requests for six months. 
3 TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion . Coming 
4 from Public Safety Committee , it doesn ' t need a second . 
5 Any discussion? All in favor of the motion show of 
6 hands. All opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
7 unanimously . 
8 Next , Mr. Chairman . 
9 RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 

10 Just a quick update on the EMS system and QRV . I know 
11 everyone is ready to go home . First of all , I'd like 
12 to publicly thank Joe Stone and his staff with Fleet 
13 Services . They were -- truly knocked it out of the 
14 park by getting these vehicles together for the QRVs in 
15 a quick manner . Also , I got a report this morning as 
16 far as on the QRVs . They ' re all up and running . We ' re 
17 actually below budget what we had originally thought i t 
18 was going to cost. Again , the cost of these vehicles 
19 and these fleet - - excuse me - - QRVs are being covered 
2 0 through EMS funding that we were already -- had 
21 basically budgeted to go to the providers . Currently 
22 our priority is basically relinquishing some of their 
2 3 money for us to cover their district with QRVs . 
24 This QRV system is working great. We seem to be 
25 getting some good response times . Everything I looked 
2 6 at through Steve Kelly ' s report earlier , the response 
2 7 times are actually down as far as getting a paramedic 
28 on the scene . It ' s j ust -- seems to be working out to 
2 9 be a great program. And please , by all means , if you 
30 guys hear concerns in your district , please bring them 
31 to our attention . We ' re definitely trying to correct 
32 any issues ahead of the game , but currently it seems to 
33 be a good program . And I honestly think it ' s going to 
34 provide better EMS care, not only to our citizens , but 
35 also it ' s going to be more feasible for Anderson County 
36 as far as getting a handle on the cost and expense of 
37 the EMS program . 
38 Mr . Chairman, that ' s all I ' ve got at this time. 
39 Thank you . 
40 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Mr. Chairman . 
41 Appreciate the work your committee has done . Think 
42 we ' ve got things headed in the right direction. Really 
43 appreciate that . 
44 Item number 17 , appointments . Ms . Floyd. 
45 GRACIE FLOYD : Yes. Can you hear me? 
46 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . 
47 GRACIE FLOYD : My first appointment is to 
48 the Planning Commission for District 2 . District 2 
49 appoints Donna Matthews to the Planning Commission for 
50 District 2 starting at the very next meeting . (Static ) 



71 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 Lonnie Murray has resigned from the board and asked --
2 he has resigned from that board. So Ms . Matthews will 
3 take tha t position . 
4 I have another one for the Airport Commission . Mr . 
5 --District 2 ' s representative to the board , Mr . Day , 
6 has resigned his position so that he could work with 
7 the school board . He won that election at the school 
8 board . So he wants to ge t off of the Airpor t 
9 Commission , whatever you call it . And so I am moving 

10 Lonnie Murray to that position . Mr . Murray has agree d 
11 to accept - - in fact he has some expertise in that 
12 area . So he should serve us very well . So that ' s two 
13 new replacements , Donna Matthews to the Planning 
14 Commission and Lonnie Mu rray to the Airport Commission . 
15 TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Floyd has submitted those 
16 names for recommendations for appointments to those 
17 boards. I make t he motion we move forward on this . Do 
18 we have a second . 
19 CINDY WILSON : Second . 
20 TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson . Any 
21 discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
22 All opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
23 unanimously . Are there any other appointmen t s? 
24 CRAIG WOOTEN : Chairman Dunn? 
25 TOMMY DUNN: Mr . Wooten . 
26 CRAIG WOOTEN : Yes . I believe it was at the 
27 last meeting , at my request , you all had approved Mr . 
28 Eddie Kinsey to be on the Planning Commission for 
29 District 1. 
30 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , sir . 
31 CRAIG WOOTEN : I spoke with Mr . Kinsey this 
32 past week , and due to some family constraints and 
33 business constraints , he did not feel like he could 
34 allocate the time to it in the way that he wanted to . 
35 And I respect that from him. And so he wanted to 
36 rescind his position at the Planning Commission . And 
37 so I ' ll just be leaving that position open until Mr . 
38 Wright fills the seat in January . 
39 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you for that update , 
40 Mr . Wooten. 
41 Now moving on to requests by council members . Mr . 
42 Davis? 
43 JIMMY DAVIS : None , sir . 
44 TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Sanders? 
45 BRETT SANDERS : Yes , sir . I would like to 
46 request fifteen hundred for Goats 4 Goodness in 
47 District 4 . Put that in t he form of a motion . 
48 TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion . Anything 
49 else , Mr . Sanders , at this time? 
50 BRETT SANDERS : That ' s it , sir. 



72 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2 1 
22 
2 3 
2 4 
25 
26 
27 
2 8 
2 9 
30 
31 
3 2 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion by Mr. 
Sanders. Do we have a second? 

CINDY WI LSON : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms. Wilson. Any 

discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
All opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
unanimously. 

Mr . Graham? 
RAY GRAHAM : 

like to make a 
Crescent Elite 
District 3 . I 

TOMMY 
Have a second? 

motion to 
Shooters . 
bring this 
DUNN : 

Thank you , Mr . Chairman . I ' d 
give one thousand dollars to 
It ' s a shooting club down in 
in the form of a motion. 

Have a motion by Mr . Graham. 

JIMMY DAVIS : Second . 
CINDY WILSON : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN : We have a second Ms . Wilson . 

Any discussion? All in favor of the motion show of 
hands. All opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
unanimously. Anything else , Mr. Graham? 

RAY GRAHAM : No . 
TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Wooten? 
CRAIG WOOTEN : Yes , sir . I ' d like to put a 

few together. Anderson District 5 Education 
Foundation , I ' d like to allocate four thou s a nd dollars 
to the ROTC programs of Westside and T . L . Hanna who 
will be putting flags on the Silverbrook and new 
Silverbrook cemetery for Memorial Day to be used each 
year from here on out . For the Anderson Cou n t y 
Library , I ' d like to allocate ten thousand dollars to 
rehab and renovate the children ' s area out s ide for 
reading for local children . Also , for the YMCA , 
District 1 , I ' d like to allocate three thou sand to the 
Reindeer Run , which they will be able to have in 
December , which is the largest running event that 
brings in people to the county . And lastly , well , 
second to lastly , I ' d like to do five hundre d to the 
Anderson Cavaliers and five hundred to the Widows 
Watchman Ministries . I put that in the form of a 
motion . 

TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion by Mr . 
Wooten . We have a second by Ms. Wilson . Any 
discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
Opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
unanimously. Anything else , Mr . Wooten? 

CRAIG WOOTEN : No , sir . 
TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Wilson? 
CINDY WILSON : Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 

Cheddar Youth Center has requested some funds for the ir 
programs and may I appropriate thirty- five h undred 



73 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 dollars from District 7 to go to their program needs. 
2 And that ' s all I have for right now . 
3 TOMMY DUNN : Do we have a second? 
4 BRETT SANDERS : Second . 
5 TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Sanders. Any 
6 further discussion? 
7 GRACIE FLOYD: Yes . Oh , excuse me . Are you 
8 talking -- excuse me . Did I interrupt again? 
9 TOMMY DUNN: What are you asking? 

10 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . I have two 
11 appropriations to make . Is it my time now? 
12 TOMMY DUNN: No , ma ' am . We ' ve got to vote 
13 on Ms. Wilson ' s . She ' s got a motion on the floor . 
14 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . Thank you . 
15 TOMMY DUNN : All in favor of Ms. Wilson ' s 
16 motion show of hands . All opposed like sign. Show the 
17 motion carries unanimously. 
18 Now, Ms. Floyd . 
19 GRACIE FLOYD: Thank you . My name was not 
20 on the requests by council , so I waited until you were 
21 through with everybody else . Haven of Rest , I would 
22 like to allocate a thousand dollars to the Haven of 
23 Rest for their Christmas thing that they put on every 
24 year. That ' s in the form of a motion. Also the 
25 Anderson County City Recreation , each year I give an 
26 allocation to them for District 2 for the people of 
27 District 2 to the thing you can go for walking and the 
28 children can go play basketball and get on teams , the 
29 boys and the girls . I ' m allocating fifteen hundred . 
30 But it might be more based on the fact that the 
31 children need to get out more. And I put that in the 
32 form of a motion. 
33 BRETT SANDERS : Second . 
34 TOMMY DUNN: Ms . Floyd has made those 
35 recommendations . I make a motion for her. We have a 
36 second by Mr . Sanders. Any further discussion? All in 
37 favor of the motion show of hands . All opposed like 
38 sign . Show the motion carries unanimously . 
39 We ' ll be moving on now, DistrictS 's special 
40 appropriations account , I ' d like to appropriate five 
41 hundred dollars at this time for the Anderson 
42 Cavaliers . Put that in the form of a motion. 
43 JIMMY DAVIS : Second . 
44 TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr. Davis. Any 
45 discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
46 All opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
47 unanimously . 
48 At this time the administrator's report. 
49 RUSTY BURNS : Nothing at this time . 
50 TOMMY DUNN: Okay . Citizens comments . 



74 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- November 12, 2020 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 

Mr. Harmon , if you'd call the citizen's name, get them 
to state their district , give them three minutes, and 
please address the chair. 

LEON HARMON: We have one speaker signed 
up , Scott Finley . 

TOMMY DUNN: 
LEON HARMON: 
TOMMY DUNN: 

signed up? Hearing no 
JIMMY DAVIS: 
TOMMY DUNN: 
JIMMY DAVIS: 

motion that we adjourn. 
TOMMY DUNN: 

Do we have a second? 

Scott Kinsey? 
Finley, it looks like. 
Is there a Scott here that 

citizens comments 
Mr. Chair. 
Mr. Davis . 
Mr. Chair, I'd like to make a 

Got a motion that we adjourn. 

GRACIE FLOYD: Wait a minute. 
RAY GRAHAM: Second. 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Mr. Graham. 
GRACIE FLOYD : No. Mr. ---
TOMMY DUNN: Ma'am, it ' s time to vote. 

Non-debatable. All in favor of the motion show of 
hands. All opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
unanimously. 

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 3:28 P.M . ) 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-023 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
"Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the "Park") may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Greenville County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so 
include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this 15th day of December, 2020. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVE AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
December 15, 2020 
December 15, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

Project Unity Gateway Property 

Those certain pieces, parcels, or tracts of land situate, lying or being in the County of Greenville, State of South 
Carolina, bearing Tax Map Numbers 0050.00-02-001.00, 0050.00-02-001.04, 00050.00-02-001.05 and 0050.00-02-
001.06 as of January 2, 2020 more particularly described in the legal description set forth on the next page. 

A-I Ordinance 2020-023 



EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 

TRACT A 

ALL THAT CERTAIN PIECE, PARCEL, OR LOT OF LAND, LYING AND BEING IN THE 
CITY OF GREENVILLE, GREENVILLE COUNTY, STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, BEING 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF W. WASHINGTON STREET Al\TD S. 
ACADEMY STREET, AND HAVING THE FOLLOWING METES AND BOUNDS, TO WIT: 
BEGINNING AT A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (P.O.B.), SAID 
POINT BEING LOCATED ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF WEST 
WASHINGTON STREET (S-1 077) AND ON THE WESTERN RIGHT -OF-WAY OF SOUTH 
ACADEMY STREET (U.S. HIGHWAY 123), THENCE WITH THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF
WAY OF SOUTH ACADEMY STREETS 23-58-39 W, 191.22 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL 
SET, THENCE LEAVING THE WESTER.t'\1 RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SOUTH ACADEMY 
STREET AND WITH TRACT B, N 68-07-17 W, 183.33 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, 
THENCE LEAVING TRACT B AND WITT-I TRACT C THE FOLLOWING FIVE COURSES 
AND DISTANCES: N 23-32-13 E, 19.87 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THENCE ON A 
CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF N 0-36-26 E, A CHORD LENGTH 
OF 17.83 FEET, AND A RADIUS OF 19.31 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THENCE N 
24-28-15 W, 9.45 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THENCE ON A CURVE TO THE 
RIGHT HA V lNG A CHORD BEARING OF N 5-36-19 E, A CHORD LENGTH OF 22.67 FEET, 
AND A RADIUS OF 33.29 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THENCE ON A CURVE TO 
THE LEFT, HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF N 3-26-15 E, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 15.34 
FEET, AND A RAD IUS OF 24.88 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THENCE LEAVING 
TRACT C AND WITH TRACT D, N 25-21-59 E, 124.67 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL SET, 
THENCE LEAVING TRACT D AND WITH THE SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF WEST 
WASHINGTON STREET, S 64-36-55 E, 207.o7 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 
CONTAINING 40,058 SQUARE FEET OR 0.92 ACRES. 

TRACTS 

ALL THAT CERTAIN PIECE, PARCEL, OR LOT OF LAND, LYING AND BEING IN THE 
CITY OF GREENVILLE, GREENVILLE COUNTY, STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, BEING 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF W. WASHINGTON STREET AND S. 
ACADEMY STREET, AND HAVING THE FOLLOWING METES AND BOUNDS, TO WIT: 

BEGINNING AT A CONCRETE NAIL SET, THE POINT OF COMMENCEMENT, (P.O.C.), 
SAID POINT BEING LOCATED ON 11-IE SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF WEST 
WASHINGTON STREET (S-1 077) AND ON THE WESTERN RIGHT -OF-WAY OF SOUTH 
ACADEMY STREET (U.S. HIGHWAY 123), THENCE WITH THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF
WAY OF SOUTH ACADEMY STREETS 23-58-39 W, 191.22 FEET TO A CONCRETE NAIL 
SET, THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.), THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE 
WESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SOUTH ACADEMY STREET (U.S . HIGHWAY 123) THE 

A-2 Ordinance 2020-023 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
(i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of October 6, 2020, November 12, 2020 and 
December 15, 2020, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, 
and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the 
public hearing for the attached ordinance was conducted by County Council at the County Council meeting 
ofDecember 15, 2020. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: _______ , 20 __ 

NPGVLI: 1932330.1 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-026 

AN ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE CONVERSION AND TRANSFER OF 
PROPERTY SUBJECT TO AN EXISTING LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE "COUNTY") AND MICHELIN 
NORTH AMERICA, INC. (FKA MICHELIN TIRE CORPORATION) (THE 
"COMPANY"), TO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES ARRANGEMENT UNDER 
TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CODE, AS AMENDED; (2) THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO 
EFFECT THE INTENT OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND (3) OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING THERETO. 

Section 1. Findings. 

The Anderson County council fmds that: 

(a) Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County Council (the 
"County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws 
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), particularly Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code (the "Original 
FILOT Act"), Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the "Simplified FILOT Act"); and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the 
Code (the "Multi-County Park Act") (collectively, the "Act") and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South 
Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, 
and improve industrial and commercial facilities through which the economic development of the State of 
South Carolina (the "State") will be promoted by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to 
locate, remain, and expand in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products 
and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad 
valorem tax ("FILOT") payments, including, without limitation, negotiated FILOT payments, with respect 
to such properties; and (iii) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county 
industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; 

(b) Michelin North America, Inc. , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
New York and qualified to do business in South Carolina ("Michelin"), previously established certain 
facilities in the County for the production and sale of tires and other legal activities of the Company and its 
affiliates (the "Project"); 

(c) pursuant to the Original FILOT Act, the County entered into that certain Lease Agreement between 
the County, as lessor, and Michelin North America, Inc., as lessee, dated as of December 1, 1988 (the 
"Lease") to lease Michelin that portion of the Project consisting of equipment, improvements, and real 
property for the purpose of providing Michelin with FILOT incentives under the Original FILOT Act; 

(d) under the Simplified Act, the County may provide FILOT incentives with respect to the Project 
without the need for the County to hold title to the Project assets subject to the FILOT incentives; 



(e) because Michelin (the "Company") has an existing FILOT arrangement with the County, Section 
12-44-170 of the Simplified PILOT Act permits the Company to "convert" from a title transfer FILOT 
arrangement under the Original FILOT Act to a non-title transfer FILOT arrangement under the Simplified 
FILOT Act; 

(f) pursuant to Section 12-44-170(B) ofthe Simplified FILOT Act, the County and the Company have 
determined to convert and re-document the FILOT and other incentive arrangements specified in the Lease 
(the "Conversion") and, in connection therewith, the County will convey to the Company its right, title and 
interest in and to the Project and the parties will replace the Lease and related documents in their entirety 
with a Conversion and Fee in Lieu ofTax Agreement (the "Fee Agreement"); 

(g) simultaneously with the replacement of the Lease and related documents by the Conversion, the 
County shall convey and/or re-convey, as the case may be, to the Company all assets comprising the Project 
currently titled in the County in accordance with the terms of the Lease; 

(h) all such matters are to be undertaken in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Fee 
Agreement now before this meeting and such Fee Agreement is in appropriate form and is an appropriate 
instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes intended. 

Section 2. Approval and Execution of Fee Agreement. 

(a) The County agrees to convert and re-document the FILOT and other incentives set forth in the 
Lease and related documents in their entirety with the Fee Agreement and the Simplified Fee Act shall 
govern the FILOT arrangements pertaining thereto . In furtherance of such replacement, the parties agree 
that the Lease will be terminated and the County will convey to the Company its right, title and interest in 
and to any assets comprising the Project. 

(b) The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the 
Clerk of the County Council be and hereby are approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions 
thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if such Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance 
in its entirety. The Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement in the 
name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company. 

(c) The Fee Agreement, attached hereto as EXHIBIT A is to be in substantially the form now before 
this meeting and hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the 
rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the 
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of 
all changes therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

(d) The County shall, simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement, convey 
to the Company title to the Project, and execute any and all instruments and take such other actions as are 
necessary to carry out the purposes intended by this Ordinance. 

Section 3. Authority to Act. 

The Chairman of the Council and the Clerk to Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each 
authorized, empowered, and directed to do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the performance 
of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to the Fee Agreement and to carry out the transactions 
contemplated thereby and by this Ordinance. 

2 Ordinance 2020-026 



Section 4. Controlling Provisions. 

This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South 
Carolina. To the extent this ordinance contains provisions that conflict with provisions contained elsewhere 
in the Anderson County Code or other County ordinances, resolutions or orders, the provisions contained 
in this ordinance supersede all other provisions and this ordinance is controlling. 

Section 5. Severability. 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any section, phrase, or provision 
shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such 
declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. Effective Date. 

All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of such conflict hereby 
repealed. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon adoption by the Council. 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

3 Ordinance 2020-026 



AND IT IS SO ORDAINED 

Dated this 15th day of December, 2020. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
December 15, 2020 
December 15, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

4 Ordinance 2020-026 



CONVERSION AND FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 

CONVERTING AND TRANSFERRING THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO EXISTING FEE-IN-LIEU OF PROPERTY 

TAXES ARRANGEMENT UNDER TITLE 4, CHAPTER 12 OF THE SOUTH CA ROLINA CODE 1976, AS 

AMENDED, TO A FEE IN-IN-LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES ARRA NGEMENT UNDER TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF 

THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CA ROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED 

Between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

Dated as of December 15, 2020 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS ................................ ..... ..... .... .... .................................. ..... ... .... 3 

Section 1.01. 
Section 1.02 . 

Definitions ... .... ........... .. .... ... ............... ... .... ...... ....... ............................. 3 
References to Agreement ... ... .. ........................ ... .............. ...... .............. 6 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ............... .. ..... ...... ............. ...... 6 

Section 2.01. 
Section 2.02. 

Representations and Warranties by County ....... .. .... ..... ..... ......... ... .... .. 6 
Representations and Warranties by Company ........ ... ........ .................. 7 

ARTICLE III RE-DOCUMENTATION OF INCENTIVES PERTAINING TO 
PROJECT ......... .... ......... .................. ....... ............ .......... ....... ...... ... .. .............. ... 8 

Section 3.01. 
Section 3.02. 

Section 3.03. 

Replacement of Lease and Related Documents ......... ............ ........ ..... . 8 
Conveyance by the County to the Company of Project and 
Other Leased Property ...... ...... .. .... ... .... ..... .... .. ...... ... .. ..... .. .. ... ...... ........ 8 

Cancellation of Bonds Issued by the County .................... . ......... 8 

ARTICLE IV COVENANTS OF COUNTY .............. .... .... ................................... ............ ... . 9 

Section 4.01. 
Section 4.02. 
Section 4.03. 

Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments .......... ...... ... ...... ... .. ........ ........ 9 
Multi-County Park Designation ... .. .. ....... ...... ... ............... ... .. .... ..... ...... . 9 
Commensurate Benefits ...... ...... ......... .............. ..... .... .... ...... .... ... .. ... ..... 9 

ARTICLE V COVENANTS OF COMPANY ......................... ..... ..................... ....... ........ .. 10 

Section 5.01. 
Section 5.02. 
Section 5.03 . 
Section 5.04. 
Section 5.05. 
Section 5.06. 

Investment in Project. ...................... ........ ........ ......... ...... ... ............... . 10 
Title to Project ....................................................................... ........... . 10 
Modification of Project ................. ....... ........ .... ..... ......... ..... .......... ..... 10 
Payment of Administration Expenses .. ...... ........ .. .................. ............ 11 
Use of Project for Lawful Activities ................................ .................. 11 
Records and Reports .......................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE VI FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES ................ .............. ........................ ..................... 12 

Section 6.01 . 
Section 6.02. 

Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes ............ .. ............... ... . 12 
Statutory Lien ....... .. .... ....... ...... ........ ........ ........ ...... ....... .... .... ........ .... . 16 

ARTICLE VII THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS ......... ................ .......... ..... ....... .... ..... ... 16 

Section 7.01. 
Section 7.02 . 

Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment.. ............... .... ......... . 16 
Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates ...... ........ ............................. ......... .... 17 

ARTICLE VIII TERM; TERMINATION ......................................................... ........ ..... .... .... 17 

Section 8.01. Term ........................................ ....................................... .................... 17 

Ordinance 2020-026 



Section 8.02. Termination .. .... ........ ... ..... ................ .... ..... ..... ... ...... .. ...... .... ..... ......... . 18 

ARTICLE IX EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ....... ............................... .... .... .. 18 

Section 9.01 . 
Section 9.02. 
Section 9.03. 
Section 9.04. 

Section 9.05. 

Events of Default by Company ........ .. .... ...... .. .. ....................... ........... 18 
Remedies on Event of Default by Company ..................................... 18 
Defaulted Payments .. ......... ......... ........ ... ............... ... ..... ... ...... ............ 19 
Application of Monies upon Enforcement of Remedies against 
Company ........ .... .... .... .......... .. ...... .... ...... ..... ......... ... ........................... 19 
Default by County ..... .................... ...... ........... ... ... .... ...... ......... .... ..... .. 19 

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS ....... .. ... ................. .... ....... ........ ......... ... .. ........................ 20 

Section 10.01. 
Section 1 0.02. 
Section 10.03. 
Section 1 0.04. 
Section 1 0.05 . 
Section 1 0.06. 
Section 10.07. 
Section 10.08 . 
Section 10.09. 
Section 10.1 0. 
Section 1 0.11 . 
Section 1 0.12. 

EXHIBIT A 

EXBHITI B 

Rights and Remedies Cumulative; Third Party Beneficiary .. ..... ...... . 20 
Successors and Assigns ...................... ......... .... ........ ...... ..... ..... .... ...... 20 
Notices; Demands; Requests ... .............. ...... .......... ..................... .. ..... 20 
Applicable Law ..... ......... .............. ............. ... ............ ....... ......... ......... . 21 
Substantive Terms ....................... .... .................. .................. ....... ....... 21 
Entire Understanding .................................. ..... ...... .... .. ... ... ................ 21 
Severability ...... .... ........ ............................................ .... ...... ............... . 21 
Headings and Table of Contents; References .................................... 21 
Multiple Counterparts .. ... ... ... ...................... ... .................... .......... ...... 21 
Amendments ......... .......... ...... ........ .... .... ......... .. ... ......... ...... .... ..... ....... 21 
Waiver. .............. .. ............. ..... ........ .... ...... .... ... ............ ...... .................. 21 
Further Proceedings ...... ....... ....................... ... ........ ........ .. .......... .... .... 22 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

11 Ordinance 2020-026 



CONVERSION AND FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 

This CONVERSION AND FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") 
dated as of September_, 2020 between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the 
"County"), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, 
and MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC., a New York Corporation authorized to do business 
in South Carolina acting for itself and any affiliates or other project sponsors (the "Company" and 
referred to collectively as the "Parties"). 

W IT N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its 
County Council (the "County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), particularly 
Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code (the "Original FILOT Act"), Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 
"Simplified FILOT Act") ; and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the "Multi-County Park Act") 
(collectively, the "Act") and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to 
enter into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve industrial 
and commercial facilities through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina 
(the "State") will be promoted by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate, 
remain, and expand in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products 
and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu 
of ad valorem tax ("FILOT") payments, including, without limitation, negotiated FILOT 
payments, with respect to such properties; and (iii) to create, in conjunction with one or more other 
counties, a multi-county industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax 
credits to such investors; and 

WHEREAS, Michelin North America, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of New York and authorized to do business in South Carolina ("Michelin"), 
previously established certain facilities in the County for the production and sale of tires and other 
legal activities ofthe Company and its affiliates (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original FILOT Act, the County entered into that certain 
Lease Agreement between the County, as lessor, and Michelin Tire Corporation, as lessee, dated 
as of December 1, 1988 (the " 1988 Lease") to lease that portion of the Project consisting of 
equipment, improvements, and real property for the purpose of providing the Company with 
FILOT incentives under the Original FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1988 Lease, each portion of the Project is eligible for FILOT 
incentives for a period of twenty (20) years; and 

Ordinance 2020-026 



Whereas, the parties amended the 1988 Lease on December 28, 2007 to provide that the 
original twenty-year FILOT period shall be extended for ten (10) years so that each portion of the 
Project is eligible for a Fee in Lieu of Taxes for thirty (30) years; and 

WHEREAS , Michelin Tire Corporation changed its name to Michelin North America, Inc. on 
February 3, 1995; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1988 Anderson County Ordinance #270 and that certain Trust 
Indenture dated as of December 1, 1988, among the County, Citizens and Southern Trust Company 
(South Carolina), National Association, and the Company, as purchaser of the Bonds (the 
"Indenture"), the County issued $200,000,000 aggregate principal amount Anderson County, 
South Carolina Industrial Revenue Bonds (Michelin Tire Corporation Series 1988A and Series 
1988B) (the "Bonds") in order to finance the costs of the acquisition, construction, installation, 
expansion, improvement, design and engineering of certain real properties and improvements 
thereto and the machinery, equipment, fixtures , office production, distribution, research 
development facilities and furnishings to be installed in the Project; and 

WHEREAS, under the Simplified Act, the County may provide FILOT incentives with 
respect to the Project without the need for the County to hold title to the Project assets subject to 
the FILOT incentives; and 

WHEREAS, because Michelin (the "Company") has an existing FILOT arrangement with 
the County, Section 12-44-170 of the Simplified FILOT Act permits the Company to "convert" 
from a title transfer FILOT arrangement under the Original FILOT Act to a non-title transfer 
FILOT arrangement under the Simplified FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-44-170(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act, the County 
and the Company have determined to convert and re-document the FILOT and other incentive 
arrangements specified in the Lease (the "Conversion") and, in connection therewith, the County 
will convey to the Company its right, title and interest in and to the Project and the parties will 
replace the Lease and related documents in their entirety with the terms of this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained; and other value, the County and the Company agree as follows : 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in 
this Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall 
have the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or 
intent. 

"Act" shall mean, collectively, the Simplified FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act. 

2 Ordinance 2020-026 



"Administration Expenses" shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by 
the County in the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and in the implementation of 
its terms and provisions, including attorneys' fees at the hourly rates which are standard for the 
applicable legal services to the County, but excluding expenses incurred by the County in 
defending either challenges to the incentives provided herein by third parties or suits brought by 
the Company under Section 9.05 hereof; provided, however, that no such expense shall be 
considered an Administration Expense unless the County and the Company shall have first agreed, 
prior to the County incurring such expense, as to the maximum amount thereof or as to the basis 
for which such expenses will be incurred, and that the County shall have furnished to the Company 
an itemized statement of all expenses incurred and provided, further, that nothing herein shall be 
construed as prohibiting the County from engaging the counsel of its choice for matters deemed 
necessary and prudent by the County. 

"Affiliate" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other 
Person or entity which owns all or part of the Company or which is owned in whole or in part by 
the Company or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company. 

"Agreement" shall mean this Conversion and Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement as originally 
executed and from time to time supplemented or amended and as a replacement of the Lease. 

"Code" shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date 
hereof unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

"Co-Investor" shall mean any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within the meaning of Sections 
12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Act, any Affiliate of the Company or of any such Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate, any developer or financial institution in a build-to-suit arrangement with 
respect to the Project, any lessor of equipment or other property comprising a part of the Project, 
any financing entity or other third party investing in or providing funds for the Project. The 
Company shall notify the County in writing of the identity of any other Co-Investor and shall, to 
the extent the Company and any such Co-Investor intend to extend the benefits of the Negotiated 
FILOT to property owned by or leased to such Co-Investor pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof, 
qualify such Co-Investor as a Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to the Simplified FILOT Act. 
As of the date of original execution and delivery of this Agreement, the only Co-Investor with 
respect to the Project is the Company. As of the date of this Agreement, the Company holds title 
to all assets comprising the Project. 

"Company" shall mean Michelin North America, Inc., a New York Corporation authorized 
to do business in South Carolina, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, 
consolidation or transfer of assets permitted under Section 7.01 hereof or any other assignee 
hereunder which is designated by the Company and approved by the County. 

"Council" shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors. 

3 Ordinance 2020-026 



"County" shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and 
a political subdivision of the State, and its successors and assigns. 

"Deficiency Payment" shall have the meaning specified in Section 6.01(e) hereof. 

"Department of Revenue" shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Economic Development Property" shall mean, with respect to the Project, each item of 
real and tangible personal property comprising the Project which was placed in service during the 
Investment Period; provided, however, such property must meet the requirements of Sections 12-
44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Code, and in each case Non-Qualifying Property is specifically 
excluded. 

"Event of Default" shall mean an Event of Default, as set forth in Section 9.01 hereof. 

"Existing Property" shall mean property previously subject to property taxes under this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Simplified FILOT Act, including without 
limitation property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to commencement 
of the Investment Period or after the Investment Period, and property included in the Project as 
part of the repair, alteration, or modification of such previously taxed property. 

"FILOT" shall mean fee in lieu of ad valorem property taxes. 

"FILOT Payments" or "FILOT Revenues " shall mean the payments to be made with respect 
to the Project pursuant to Section 6.01 hereof, including the Negotiated FILOT paid pursuant to 
Section 6.01(b) hereof, and any fee in lieu of tax payments made pursuant to the Multi-County 
Park Act. 

"Investment Period" shall mean the period for completion of the Project, which shall mean 
the period commencing on January 1, 1989 and ending on December 31, 1995, as specified 
pursuant to Section 4-12-30(C)(3) and (D)(1)(b) ofthe Original FILOT Act. 

"Land" shall mean the land upon which the Project has been or will be constructed, as 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in 
accordance with the provisions hereof. 

"Lease" shall mean that certain 1988 Lease Agreement between the County, as lessor, and 
the Company, as lessee, dated as of December 1, 1988. 

"Leased Property" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Lease. 

"Multi-County Park" shall mean the multi-county industrial or business park established 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Agreement, and any multi-county industrial or business park 
which includes the Project and which is designated by the County as such pursuant to any 

4 Ordinance 2020-026 



agreement, which supersedes or replaces the initial Multi-County Park Agreement. 

"Multi-County Park Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code, as amended through 
the date hereof. 

"Multi-County Park Agreement" shall mean that certain Multi-County Park Agreement 
between the County, and Greenville County, South Carolina pertaining to the Project, dated as of 
October 6, 1998, as amended, supplemented, or replaced from time to time to include all or any 
portion of the Project. 

"Negotiated FILOT" or "Negotiated FILOT Payments" shall mean the FILOT payments 
due pursuant to Section 6.01 hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of 
Economic Development Property which qualifies pursuant to the Simplified FILOT Act for the 
negotiated assessment ratios and millage rates described in Section 6.01(b)(ii) hereof. 

"Non-Qualifying Property " shall mean that portion of the facilities located on the Land and 
consisting of: (i) Existing Property; (ii) except as to Replacement Property, property which the 
Company places in service after the end of the Investment Period; and (iii) any other property 
which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated FILOT Payments under the Simplified FILOT Act, 
including without limitation property as to which the Company has terminated the Negotiated 
FILOT pursuant to Section 5.03(c) hereof. 

"Original FILOT Act " shall mean Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code. 

"Person" shall mean and include any individual , association, unincorporated organization, 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or agency or 
political subdivision thereof. 

"Project" shall mean the Land described on Exhibit A hereto and, to extent placed in 
service by the Company or any Co-Investor during the Investment Period; (i) all buildings, 
structures, fixtures and other real property improvements constructed on the Land; (ii) all 
machinery, equipment, furnishings and other personal property acquired by or on behalf of the 
Company for use on or about the Land; and (iii) any Replacement Property replacing portions of 
the Project. 

"Property Tax Year" shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the 
Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, i. e., with respect to the Company, the period 
ending on December 31 of each year. 

"Released Property" shall include Economic Development Property which is scrapped, 
sold, disposed of, or released from this Agreement by the Company pursuant to Section 5.03(c) 
hereof and Section 12-44-SO(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act; any portion of the Economic 
Development Property constituting infrastructure which the Company dedicates to the public use 
within the meaning of Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code; and any Economic Development 

5 Ordinance 2020-026 



Property damaged, destroyed, or taken by process of eminent domain and not restored or replaced. 

"Replacement Property" shall mean all property installed in or at the Project in substitution 
of, or as replacement for, any Released Property, regardless of whether such property serves the 
same function as the property it replaces and regardless of whether more than one piece replaces 
a single piece of the Project, but only to the extent that such property may be included in the 
calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pertaining to the Project, pursuant to Section 6.01(d) hereof 
and Section 12-44-60 of the Code. 

"Simplified FILOT Act" shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as amended through 
the date hereof. 

"Sponsor" and "Sponsor Affiliate" shall mean an entity whose investment with respect to 
the Project will qualify for the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof and Sections 
12-44-30(19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 ofthe Code. As of the date of original execution and 
delivery of this Agreement, the only Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project is the 
Company. 

"State" shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

"Statutory Investment Requirement" shall mean investment with respect to the Project by 
any one of the Company, any other Sponsor or any Sponsor Affiliate of not less than $2,500,000. 

"Streamlined FILOT Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code, as amended through 
the date of execution and delivery of the Lease. 

"Term" shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 8.01 hereof. 

"Transfer Provisions" shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Simplified 
FILOT Act, as amended through the date hereof. 

Section 1.02. References to Agreement. The words "hereof'' , "herein", "hereunder", 
and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole. 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained: 

6 Ordinance 2020-026 



(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of 
the State and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. 
By proper action by the Council, the County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement and the Negotiated FILOT Payments as set forth herein, the 
inclusion and maintenance of the Project in the Multi-County Park, and any and all actions 
reasonably necessary and appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated 
hereby and has obtained all consents and approvals required under the Act to carry out its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) The County has determined the Project will serve the purposes of the Act 
and has made all other findings of fact required by the Act in connection with the 
undertaking of the arrangements set forth herein. 

(c) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on 
behalf of the County. The authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement and 
the performance by the County of its obligations hereunder will not, to the best knowledge 
of the undersigned representatives of the County, conflict with or constitute a breach of, 
or a default under, any South Carolina law, court or administrative regulation, decree, 
order, provision of the Constitution or laws of the State relating to the establishment of 
the County or its affairs, or any material agreement, mortgage, lease, or other instrument 
to which the County is subject or by which it is bound, nor, to the best knowledge of the 
undersigned representatives of the County, any existing law or the provisions of the 
Constitution of the State. 

(d) To the best knowledge of the undersigned representatives of the County, 
no actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened 
against or affecting the County in any court or before any governmental authority or 
arbitration board or tribunal, any of which to the best knowledge of the undersigned 
representatives of the County could materially adversely affect this Agreement or which 
could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

(e) The County has not sold, assigned, leased, mortgaged, granted easements 
or rights of way, encumbered, or otherwise conveyed or transferred any of its right, title 
or interest in the Lease, the Project or other Leased Property except as contemplated by 
the Lease. 

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by Company. The Company makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained: 

(a) The Company is a corporation validly existing and in good standing under 
the laws of the State of New York and authorized to do business in the State; has all 
requisite power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder; 

7 Ordinance 2020-026 



and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement. The 
Company's fiscal year end is December 31 , and the Company will notify the County of 
any changes in the fiscal year of the Company. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project primarily for manufacturing 
and related activities. 

(c) The agreements with the County with respect to the FILOT, and the Multi-
County Park were factors in inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County 
and the State. 

(d) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the 
undersigned representatives of the Company are pending or threatened against or affecting 
the Company in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or 
tribunal, which could materially adversely affect this Agreement or which could, in any 
way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, or the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 

ARTICLE III 

RE-DOCUMENT ATION OF INCENTIVES AND CANCELLATION OF BONDS 
PERTAINING TO PROJECT 

Section 3.01. Replacement of Lease and Related Documents. Each party hereby 
acknowledges that the other is currently in compliance with its obligations under the Lease. The 
Company and the County also hereby acknowledge and agree that, from and after the execution 
and delivery of this Agreement: (i) this Agreement shall replace the Lease and any related 
document in their entirety and as to all matters pertaining to the incentives applicable to the Project 
and (ii) the Simplified FILOT Act shall govern the Negotiated FILOT arrangements pertaining to 
the Project. In furtherance of such replacement, the parties agree that the Lease is hereby 
terminated. 

Section 3.02. Conveyance by the County to the Company of Project and Other Leased 
Property. Simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the County has by 
delivery of a Quitclaim Deed and Bill of Sale, conveyed or re-conveyed to the Company all assets 
comprising the Project and other Leased Property which were heretofore titled in the County 
pursuant to the terms of the Lease. The County covenants and agrees to take such further steps 
and to execute and deliver such further instruments, agreements or other documents as shall be 
reasonably required by the Company to evidence or confirm such conveyance. 

Section 3.03 . Cancellation of Bonds Issued by the County. Each party hereby 
acknowledges that the other is currently in compliance with its obligations under the Indenture. 
The Company and the County also hereby acknowledge and agree that, from and after the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the County shall be authorized to do all things necessary 
to cancel the Bonds (the "Cancellation"). The parties intend that the Cancellation may be 

8 Ordinance 2020-026 



undertaken by the Chairman of the Council without necessity of further proceedings. To the extent 
additional proceeds are required by law, however, the County agrees to undertake all such steps as 
may be reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the Cancellation. In anticipation of 
execution of the Cancellation, the parties agree that the Bonds are hereby cancelled. 

ARTICLE IV 

COVENANTS OF COUNTY 

Section 4.01 . Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments. The County hereby agrees to 
accept Negotiated FILOT Payments in accordance with Section 6.01 hereof in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of Economic Development Property 
until this Agreement expires or is sooner tenninated. 

Section 4.02. Multi-County Park Designation. The County has designated the Project 
as part of the Multi-County Park pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and will, to the extent 
permitted by law, use its best, reasonable efforts to maintain such designation on terms which 
provide any additional job tax credits afforded by the laws of the State for projects located within 
multi-county industrial or business parks for all jobs created by the Company during the 
Investment Period. To the extent that any portion of the Project is located within the jurisdictional 
limits of a municipality, the County's designation of such portion of the Project as part of the 
Multi-County Park is subject to approval by such municipality under the Multi-County Park Act. 

Section 4.03. Commensurate Benefits. The parties acknowledge the intent of this 
Agreement, in part, is to afford the Company the benefits specified in this Article IV in 
consideration of the Company' s decision to locate and continue operating the Project within the 
County, and this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Act and 
the County's compliance with the requirements thereof. In the event that a court of competent 
jurisdiction holds that the Act is unconstitutional or this Agreement or agreements similar in nature 
to this Agreement are invalid or unenforceable in any material respect, or should the Company 
detennine there is a reasonable doubt as to the validity or enforceability of this Agreement in any 
material respect, then at the request of the Company, the County agrees to use its best, reasonable 
efforts to extend to the Company the intended benefits of this Agreement and agrees, if requested, 
to enter into a lease purchase agreement with the Company pursuant to Section 12-44-160; Title 
4, Chapter 29 or Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code, as applicable, or to take such other steps as may 
be appropriate to extend to the Company the intended benefits of this Agreement. The Company 
acknowledges, if a court of competent jurisdiction holds all or part of the Simplified FILOT Act 
is unconstitutional or otherwise illegal, the Simplified FILOT Act provides the Company must 
transfer the Economic Development Property to the County within 180 days following such 
determination in order for the Negotiated FILOT benefits to continue to apply. In such lease 
purchase agreement, the County, upon the conveyance of title to the Project to the County at the 
expense of the Company, agrees to lease the Project to the Company. 

9 Ordinance 2020-026 



ARTICLE V 

COVENANTS OF COMPANY 

Section 5.01 . Investment in Project. 

(a) The County hereby agrees and acknowledges that the Company has met 
all investment and job creation requirements with respect to the Project heretofore 
required by the Lease and/or the Streamlined FILOT Act and that the Company is 
currently in compliance with all requirements set forth in Lease and all related documents. 

(b) Expenditures by Co-Investors shall, together with expenditures by the 
Company, count toward all investment requirements set forth in this Agreement; 
including, to the full extent permitted by the Simplified FILOT Act, the Statutory 
Investment Requirement. Aggregate investment shall generally be determined without 
regard to depreciation or diminution in value following placement in service at the Project 
by reference to the property tax returns of the Company and any Co-Investors filed with 
respect to the Project, including, without limitation, each such entity' s SCDOR PT-300 or 
such comparable forms as to the Department of Revenue may provide in connection with 
project under the Simplified FILOT Act. 

Section 5.02. Title to Project. The Company and/or its designated Co-Investors shall 
retain title, or other property rights, to its respective portion of the Project throughout the Term of 
this Agreement, and the Company and any Co-Investor shall have full right to mortgage or 
encumber the Project in connection with any financing transactions. 

Section 5.03 . Modification of Project. The Company shall have the right at any time 
and from time to time during the Term hereof to undertake, or permit a Co-Investor to undertake, 
any of the following: 

(a) The Company or a Co-Investor may, at its own expense, add to the Project 
all such real and personal property as the Company in its discretion deems useful or 
desirable, including Economic Development Property qualifying for the Negotiated 
FILOT under Section 6.01 hereof without any limit as to the amount thereof. 

(b) Subject to the provisions of Sections 5.04, 6.01(f)(ii) and 9.01 hereof, in 
any instance when the Company or a Co-Investor in its discretion determines any items 
included in the Project, including any portion of the Land and any other Economic 
Development Property, have become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, 
undesirable, or unnecessary for operations at the Project, the Company or such Co
Investor may remove such items or portions of the Project from the Project and sell, trade 
in, exchange, or otherwise dispose of them as a whole or in part without the consent of the 
County. 

10 Ordinance 2020-026 



(c) Subject to Section 6.01(t)(ii) hereof, the Company or a Co-Investor may, 
at any time and in its discretion by written notice to the County, remove any Economic 
Development Property, real or personal , from the Negotiated FILOT set forth in this 
Agreement and retain such property for use as part of its operations in the County, and 
thereafter such property will be subject to a FILOT under the Multi-County Park 
Agreement which is equivalent to ad valorem taxes. 

(d) If the Company or a Co-Investor sells, leases, or otherwise disposes of any 
portion of, or adds any real property to, the Land, the Company or such Co-Investor shall 
deliver to the County, within 30 days thereafter, a new Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

(e) All Economic Development Property sold, leased or otherwise disposed of 
under this Section shall be deemed Released Property for purposes of this Agreement. 

Section 5.04. Payment of Administration Expenses. The Company will reimburse the 
County from time to time for its Administration Expenses promptly upon written request therefor, 
but in no event later than sixty (60) days after receiving written notice from the County specifying 
the nature of such expense and requesting the payment of the same. The County acknowledges it 
imposes no charges in the nature of impact fees or recurring fees in connection with the incentives 
authorized by this Agreement, and, aside from the attorneys' fees , the County anticipates no out 
of pocket expenses in connection with this Agreement and the transactions authorized hereby. The 
parties understand that counsel to the County has estimated its fees and other expenses for review 
of this Agreement and all resolutions, ordinances and other documentation related thereto at 
$5 ,000. 

Section 5.05. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. During the Term of this 
Agreement, the Company shall use the Project as it deems fit for any lawful purpose. 

Section 5.06. Records and Reports. The Company agrees to maintain such books and 
records with respect to the Project as will pennit the identification of those portions of the Project 
it has placed in service in each Property Tax Year during the Investment Period, the amount of 
investment with respect thereto and computations of all Negotiated FILOT Payments made 
hereunder and will comply with all reporting requirements of the State and the County applicable 
to Economic Development Property under the Act, including without limitation the reports 
required by 12-44-90 of the Code (collectively, "Filings"); provided, however, that the parties 
hereby waive in its entirety the requirement under Section 12-44-55 of the Simplified FILOT Act 
for a recapitulation of the terms of this Agreement. Specifically, the Company shall provide the 
following: 

(a) Each year during the Tenn hereof, the Company shall deliver to the County 
Auditor and the County Assessor a copy of its most recent annual filings made with the 
Department of Revenue with respect to the Project at the same time as delivery thereof to 
the Department of Revenue. 

11 Ordinance 2020-026 



(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Agreement, as well as a copy of 
the completed Fonn PT-443 required by the Department of Revenue, to be filed within 
thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery hereof with the County Auditor 
and the County Assessor of the County and of each county which is a party to the Multi
County Park Agreement, and with the Department ofRevenue and shall update such Form 
PT-443 from time to time to the extent that the information therein is no longer accurate. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, the Company may, by clear, written 
designation, conspicuously marked, designate with respect to any Filings delivered to the County 
segments thereof that the Company believes contain proprietary, confidential, or trade secret 
matters. The County shall comply with all reasonable, written requests made by the Company 
with respect to maintaining the confidentiality of such designated segments. Except to the extent 
required by law, the County shall not knowingly and voluntarily release information, which has 
been designated as confidential or proprietary by the Company. 

ARTICLE VI 

FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES 

Section 6.01. Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes 

(a) In accordance with the Simplified FILOT Act, the parties hereby agree that 
there shall be due annually with respect to that portion of the Project constituting 
Economic Development Property, whether owned by the Company or by a Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate, a Negotiated FILOT calculated as set forth in this Section, at the places, 
in the manner and subject to the penalty assessments prescribed by the County or the 
Department of Revenue for ad valorem taxes. The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall 
initially be due under current Code requirements on the January 15 following the year in 
which the County adds the Economic Development Property to its tax rolls, and each 
January 15 thereafter as set forth in this Agreement. If the Company designates any 
additional Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates, as the same shall have been consented to by the 
County pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof, the Company must notify the County in writing 
at the time of such designation as to whether such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall be 
primarily liable for all or any portion of the FILOT Payments hereunder. Unless and until 
such notification is received, and the County consents in writing, the Company shall be 
primarily liable for all FILOT Payments with respect to the Project. 

(b) Subject to adjustment pursuant to the provisions of this Section 6.01, the 
Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated each year in accordance with the following 
prOVISIOns: 

(i) For each annual increment of investment in Economic Development 
Property during the Investment Period, the annual Negotiated FILOT Payment with 
respect to the Project shall be payable for a period of thirty (30) years, all in 
accordance with Section 12-44-30(21) ofthe Simplified FILOT Act. Accordingly, 

12 Ordinance 2020-026 



if such Economic Development Property is placed in service during more than one 
year, each year' s investment during the Investment Period shall be subject to the 
Negotiated FILOT for a payment period of thirty (30) years up to an aggregate of 
thirty-seven (3 7) years. 

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT applicable to the Project shall be calculated 
using (1) an assessment ratio of 6%; (2) a millage rate of 187.5 mills for the Project, 
which was the millage rate applicable under the Lease and which rate shall be fixed 
in accordance with Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(b)(i) of the Code for the entire 30 years 
specified in clause (i) above for the Project; and (3) the fair market value of such 
Economic Development Property determined as provided hereinbelow. Such 
Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated in accordance with the standard fee 
calculation method specified in accordance with clauses ( 1) and (2) of Section 12-
44-SO(A) of the Code. 

(iii) For purposes of calculating the Negotiated FILOT provided herein, 
fair market value shall be determined in accordance with Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) 
of the Code, which, for typical arm's length construction or acquisition, uses the 
original income tax basis for any real property without regard to depreciation or 
reassessment and the original income tax basis for any personal property less 
allowable depreciation (except depreciation due to extraordinary obsolescence). 

(iv) All such calculations shall take into account all deductions for 
depreciation or diminution in value allowed by the Code or by the tax laws 
generally, as well as tax exemptions which would have been applicable if such 
property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the five-year exemption from 
County taxes allowed for certain manufacturing, distribution, corporate 
headquarters and research and development facilities pursuant to Section 3(g) of 
Article X of the Constitution ofthe State and Sections 12-37-220(8)(32) and (34) 
ofthe Code. 

(v) For purposes of calculating the Negotiated FILOT, Economic 
Development Property shall not include any Released Property or Non-Qualifying 
Property. 

(c) The Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to the Project are to be 
recalculated: 

(i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate disposes of any part of the Economic Development Property 
within the meaning of Section 12-44-SO(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act and as 
provided in Section 5.03(b) hereof, by the amount applicable to the Released 
Property; 

13 Ordinance 2020-026 



(ii) to reduce such payments in the event that the Economic 
Development Property or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost or 
stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, or otherwise removed from the 
Project as a result of reasons beyond the control of the Company or any Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate; 

(iii) to increase such payments in the event the Company or any Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate adds any Economic Development Property (other than 
Replacement Property) to the Project; or 

(iv) to adjust such payments if the Company or any Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate elects to convert any portion of the Economic Development Property to 
ad valorem taxes or a FILOT equivalent to such ad valorem taxes, as permitted by 
Section 5.03( c); 

(d) Upon installation or placing in service of any Replacement Property for 
any Released Property, such Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated 
FILOT Payments to the fullest extent allowed by law, subject to the following rules: 

(i) Such Replacement Property does not have to serve the same 
function as the Released Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is deemed 
to replace the oldest property subject to the Negotiated FILOT, whether real or 
personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year as the Replacement 
Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies for Negotiated FILOT 
Payments up to the original income tax basis of the Released Property which it is 
replacing in the same Property Tax Year. More than one piece of property can 
replace a single piece of property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the 
Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Released 
Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to payments equal to 
the ad valorem taxes or FILOT equivalent which would have been paid on such 
property but for this Agreement. Replacement Property is entitled to the Negotiated 
FILOT Payments for the remaining portion of the thirty-year payment period 
applicable to the Released Property. 

(ii) The Company shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, records 
sufficient to identify all Replacement Property, and the Negotiated FILOT 
Payments with respect thereto shall be calculated using the millage rate, assessment 
ratio and calculation method applicable to the Released Property it is replacing. 

(e) In the event that, for any reason, the Simplified FILOT Act and/or the 
Negotiated FILOT or any portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following 
allowable appeals, declared invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of 
the Project consisting of Economic Development Property is deemed not to be eligible for 
a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County 
express their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company 

14 Ordinance 2020-026 



benefits commensurate with those intended under this Agreement as permitted by law, 
including without limitation any benefits afforded under Title 4, Chapter 12 and Title 4, 
Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent allowed by law. Absent the legal 
authorization to effect such refonnation, the Company and the County agree that there 
shall be due hereunder with respect to the portion of the Economic Development Property 
affected by such circumstances ad valorem taxes or the FILOT equivalent and that, to the 
extent permitted by law, the Company and any affected Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates 
shall be entitled: (1) to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or fees in 
lieu of taxes) provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any 
other exemption allowed by law; (2) to enjoy all allowable depreciation or other 
diminution in value; and (3) to receive all other tax credits which would be due if they 
were obligated to pay ad valorem taxes hereunder. To the extent that under such 
circumstances the Negotiated FILOT Payments hereunder are subject to retroactive 
adjustment, then there shall be due and payable with respect to the portion of the Economic 
Development Property in question an amount equal to the difference between the 
Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the amount which would have 
been paid as ad valorem taxes, together with interest on such deficiency as provided in 
Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code (a "Deficiency Payment"). 

(f) 

(i) As provided in Section S.Ol(a) hereof, the County acknowledges 
that the Company has met all statutory requirements regarding investment in the 
Project. 

(ii) In the event that the Company's investment in the Project based on 
an income tax basis without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value falls 
below the Statutory Investment Requirement, the Project shall thereafter be subject 
to ad valorem taxes or the FILOT equivalent, calculated as set forth in paragraph 
(e) above. 

(iii) As noted in Section S.Ol(a) above, the County acknowledges that 
the Company has met all contractual requirements under the Lease regarding 
investment and job creation at the Project. 

(iv) In accordance with the provisions of Sections S.Ol(c) and 7.02 
hereof, except for Existing Property, all property utilized by the Company within 
the County, whether owned by the Company outright or utilized by the Company 
pursuant to any financing agreement or any lease or other arrangement with any 
Co-Investor and whether or not subject to this Agreement, shall be counted toward 
all investment obligations under this Agreement, including, to the extent pennitted 
by law, investment obligations under the Act. 

(g) Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement or as otherwise required 
by the Act, any amounts due to the County under this Section 6.01 as a Deficiency 

15 Ordinance 2020-026 



Payment or other retroactive payment shall, at the option of the Company, be paid either 
as a lump sum within one year of receipt by the Company from the County of a written 
notice requesting the payment thereof, or in five equal annual installments (which shall 
include interest at the rates required for past due payments of ad valorem taxes) beginning 
on the date which is one year after receipt of such notice. If the Company elects to pay 
any such amount over such five-year period, the Company shall furnish to the County 
such security or other assurances as the County may reasonably request in order to secure 
the payment of such Deficiency Payments. 

Section 6.02. Statutory Lien. The parties acknowledge the County's right to receive 
FILOT Revenues hereunder shall have a statutory lien with respect to the Economic Development 
Property pursuant to Section 12-44-90(E) of the Simplified FILOT Act and Title 12, Chapter 54 
of the Code relating to the collection and enforcement of ad valorem property taxes . 

ARTICLE VII 

THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS 

Section 7.01. Conveyance ofLiens and Interests; Assignment. The Company and any 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may at any time (a) transfer all or any of its rights and interests 
hereunder or with respect to all or any part of the Economic Development Property to any Person; 
or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing entity or other Person with respect to this Agreement or all 
or any part of the Economic Development Property, including without limitation any sale
leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit 
or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements, 
regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of such Economic Development Property, as 
long as the transferee in any such arrangement leases the Economic Development Property in 
question to the Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates or any Affiliates thereof or 
operates such assets for the Company or other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or any Affiliates 
thereof or is leasing such the Economic Development Property in question from the Company or 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or any Affiliates thereof. In order to preserve the benefits of 
the Negotiated FILOT hereunder with respect to property so transferred: (i) except in connection 
with any transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or another Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or 
transfers pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall first obtain the written consent of the 
County which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld and shall be furnished within 30 days 
of request; and (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of 
the Economic Development Property is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such 
financing entity assumes in writing the obligations of the Company hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing or when the transfer relates to Released Property pursuant to Sections 5.03 
hereof, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company or such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate hereunder. The Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, 
transferee or financing entity shall , within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished 

16 Ordinance 2020-026 



to the County and the Department of Revenue a true and complete copy of any such transfer 
agreement, and the Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required herein, and at the expense of the Company or 
such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, the County agrees to execute such further agreements, 
documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the assumption by any 
such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate under this Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section 7.01. 

Section 7.02. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates. The Company may designate from 
time to time additional Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-
44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, which 
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Company and make investments 
with respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of such investments, who agree to 
be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who shall be Affiliates of the 
Company or other Persons described in Section 7.01(b) hereof. All other Sponsors or Sponsor 
Affiliates who otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-
44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act must be approved by Resolution of the County Council. To 
the extent that a Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate invests an amount equal to the Statutory Investment 
Requirement at the Project prior to the end of the Investment Period, the investment by such 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall qualify for the Negotiated FILOT payable under Section 6.01 
hereof (subject to the other conditions set forth herein) in accordance with Section 12-44-30(19) 
of the Simplified FILOT Act. Because the aggregate investment in the Project prior to the end of 
the Investment Period by the Company, all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeded $5,000,000 
as provided in Section 12-44-30(19) ofthe Simplified FILOT Act, all investment by such Sponsors 
and Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the Negotiated FILOT 
pursuant to Section 6.01 of this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth herein) 
regardless of whether each such entity invested amounts equal to the Statutory Investment 
Requirement. The Company shall provide the County and the Department ofRevenue with written 
notice of any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section 7.02 within ninety 
(90) days after the end of the calendar year during which any such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
has placed in service Economic Development Property to be used in connection with the Project, 
all in accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act. 

ARTICLE VIII 

TERM; TERMINATION 

Section 8.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and provisions 
herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a term 
commencing on the date on which the Company executed the Lease, and ending at midnight on 

17 Ordinance 2020-026 



the day the last Negotiated FILOT Payment is made hereunder. In no event shall this Agreement 
extend beyond January 15, 2026 

Section 8.02. Termination. In addition to the rights of the County under Sections 
6.0l(g) and 9.02, the County and the Company may jointly agree to terminate this Agreement at 
any time, or the Company, may, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time, with respect 
to all or a portion of the Project in which event the Project, or such portion of the Project, shall be 
subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of termination. Notwithstanding termination of this 
Agreement, the County shall have the same rights to receive payment for any retroactive ad 
valorem taxes, Deficiency Payments, interest or penalties, and the same enforcement rights with 
respect to such obligations as it would have with respect to ad valorem taxes, and the County's 
rights arising under Section 6.01 prior to the time of such termination shall survive any such 
termination. 

ARTICLE IX 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 9.01. Events of Default by Company. Any one or more of the following 
events (herein called an "Event of Default", or collectively "Events of Default") shall constitute 
an Event of Default by the Company: 

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any Negotiated 
FILOT Payments, which default shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of written notice of such default from the County; or 

(b) if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or 
compliance with any of the tenns hereof, other than those referred to in the foregoing 
paragraph (a), and such default shall continue for ninety (90) days after the County shall 
have given the Company written notice of such default; provided, the County may, in its 
discretion, grant the Company a longer period of time as necessary to cure such default if 
the Company proceeds with due diligence to cure such default; provided however, that no 
Event of Default shall exist under this agreement during any period when there is pending, 
before any judicial or administrative tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which 
the Company has contested the occurrence of such default. 

Failure to meet any investment requirements set forth herein shall not be deemed to be an Event 
of Default under this Agreement, but may allow the County to terminate or adjust certain benefits 
hereunder or obligate the Company to make certain additional payments to the County, all as set 
forth in Sections 5.04, 8.02 and 6.01(f) hereof. 

Section 9.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence of 
any Event of Default, the County may exercise any of the following remedies: 

18 Ordinance 2020-026 



(a) tenninate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the Company not 
less than sixty (60) days prior to the termination date specified therein; 

(b) have access to and inspect, examine, and make copies of the books, 
records, and accounts of the Company pertaining to the construction, acquisition, or 
maintenance of the Project or calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant hereto as 
provided in Section 5.06 hereof; or 

(c) take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or 
desirable to collect the amount then due or enforce the County's rights hereunder, it being 
the express intent of the parties that the County, without limitation, shall have the same 
remedies available by law to collect FILOT Payments as if they were delinquent ad 
valorem tax payments, including execution upon the lien referred to in Section 6.02 
hereof. 

Notwithstanding termination of this Agreement, the County shall have the same rights to 
receive payment for any ad valorem taxes, including any retroactive ad valorem taxes, Deficiency 
Payments, interest or penalties, and the same enforcement rights, as it would have with respect to 
ad valorem taxes, and the County's rights under Section 6.01(f) and this Section 9.02 with respect 
to any such payments then due and owing shall survive any such termination. 

Section 9.03. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make any 
of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall continue 
as an obligation of the Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid. If any such 
default relates to its obligations to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the Company agrees to pay 
the same with interest thereon at the rate per annum provided by the Code for late payment of ad 
valorem taxes together with any penalties provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem 
taxes, all as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the Code. 

Section 9.04. Application of Monies upon Enforcement of Remedies against 
Company. Any monies received by the County upon enforcement of its rights hereunder shall be 
applied as follows: first , to the reasonable costs associated with such enforcement proceedings; 
second, to pay Administration Expenses; third , to pay the Negotiated FILOT in accordance with 
Section 6.01 hereof, and, fourth , to other amounts due and payable hereunder. 

Section 9.05. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the performance 
of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law or in equity as 
may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement, including without 
limitation a suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

19 Ordinance 2020-026 



ARTICLE X 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1 0.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative; Third Party Beneficiary. Each right, 
power, and remedy of the County or of the Company provided for in this Agreement shall be 
cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power, or remedy provided 
for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any jurisdiction where 
such rights, powers, and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise by the County or by 
the Company of any one or more of the rights, powers, or remedies provided for in this Agreement 
or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the 
simultaneous or later exercise by the County or by the Company of any or all such other rights, 
powers, or remedies . 

Section 1 0.02. Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, any Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliates designated pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof and their respective successors and assigns 
as penni tted hereunder. 

Section 1 0.03 . Notices; Demands; Requests. All notices, demands, and requests to be 
given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, or 
reputable courier service, to the following persons and addresses or to such other persons and 
places as may be designated in writing by such party. 

(a) As to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn.: County Administrator 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

(b) with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 

Leon Harmon, Esq. 
Anderson County Attorney 
Post Office Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

(c) As to the Company: 

Michelin North America, Inc. 
Attn: Brock Christ 
1 ParkwayS. 
Greenville, South Carolina 29615 

20 Ordinance 2020-026 



(d) with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 

Burnet R. Maybank III, Esq. 
Andrew W. Saleeby, Esq. 
N exsen Pruet, LLC 
1230 Main Street, Suite 700 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

Section 1 0.04. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina. To the extent of any conflict between 
the provisions of this Agreement and the Act, the Act controls. 

Section 1 0.05 . Substantive Terms. It is the intent of the parties hereto that the 
substantive terms of this Agreement set forth herein to be identical to the terms of the Lease as 
attached hereto by reference as Exhibit B. If there are any inconsistencies set forth herein (except 
for the statutory different authorities of the Original FILOT Act and the Simplified FILOT Act), 
the substantive tenns of the Lease shall prevail. 

Section 1 0.06. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire 
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto 
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is not 
expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the execution 
and delivery hereof. 

Section 10.07. Severability. In the event that any clause or prov1s1ons of this 
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such 
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

Section 1 0.08. Headings and Table of Contents; References. The headings of the 
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof. All 
references in this Agreement to particular articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement are 
references to the designated articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement. 

Section 10.09. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Section 10.1 0. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 12-44-
40(K)(2) of the Simplified FILOT Act, this Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest 
of the parties hereunder surrendered, only by a writing signed by both parties. 

Section 1 0.11 . Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any 
term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

21 Ordinance 2020-026 



Section 1 0.12. Further Proceedings. This Agreement in final form shall be approved 
by ordinance of the County Council. The parties intend that any action to be taken hereinafter by 
the County pursuant to the express provisions of the final fonn of this Agreement may be 
undertaken by the Chairman of the Council without necessity of further proceedings. To the extent 
additional proceedings are required by law, however, the County agrees to undertake all such steps 
as may be reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the intent of this Agreement. 

[Execution Pages to Follow] 

22 Ordinance 2020-026 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed 
this Conversion and Fee in Lieu ofTax Agreement to be effective as of the date first written above. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

By: ------------------------------------
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

By: ---------------------------------------
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

By: ---------------------------------
Name: -------------------------------
Title: -------------------------------

23 Ordinance 2020-026 



EXHffiiTA 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

A-1 



EXHffiiTB 

LEASE AGREEMENTS 

B-2 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
(OF ALL RIGHT, TITLE, 

AND INTEREST) 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED (OF ALL RIGHT, TITLE, AND INTEREST) is given by 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (hereinafter referred to as "Grantor"), to MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, 
INC. (fka Michelin Tire Corporation), a Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
New York, and qualified to do business in South Carolina, with a mailing address of One Parkway South, 
Post Office Box 19001 , Greenville, South Carolina 29602-9001 (hereinafter referred to as "Grantee"). 

RECITALS : 

WHEREAS, Grantor, as lessor, and Grantee, as lessee, are parties to that certain Lease 
Agreement dated as of December 1, 1988 (the "Lease") and recorded in the office of the Anderson 
County Register of Deeds (the "Recording Office") at Book 777, Page 001 pertaining to certain property 
owned by Grantor (as hereinafter described in more detail, the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, Grantee has determined to exercise its option to purchase the Property pursuant to 
Section 5.2 of the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, Grantee has satisfied all of the requirements set forth in the Lease for the purchase 
of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Grantor desires and intends hereby to release, renuse, and forever quitclaim to 
Grantee any and all interest in the Property heretofore titled in Grantor. 

GRANT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Grantor, for and in 
consideration of the sum of One and No/1 00 Dollar ($1.00), lawful money of the United States, and no 
other valuable consideration, to it well and truly paid by Grantee, at and before the sealing and delivery 
hereof, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, has hereby released, remised, and 
quitclaimed, and by these presents does hereby release, remise, and forever quitclaim unto the said 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever, all of Grantor's right, title, and interest in and to the 
following described property, including any and all fixtures and improvements thereon (the "Property"): 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

GRANTEE' S MAILING ADDRESS: One Parkway South, Post Office Box 19001 , Greenville, 
South Carolina 29602-9001 

TOGETHER with all and singular, the rights , members, buildings, improvements, and fixtures 
situated on the Property and all hereditaments and appurtenances to the Property belonging or in anywise 
incident or appertaining and all of the estate and rights of the Grantor in and to the Property. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the said premises and interest quitclaimed above 
unto Grantee and the successors and assigns of Grantee, forever, so that neither Grantor, nor the 
successors or assigns of Grantor nor any other person or persons claiming under Grantor, or any of them, 



shall at any time hereafter, by any way or means, have, claim or demand any right or title to the Property 
or appurtenances or any part or parcel thereof, forever. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED] 

- 2 -
Ordinance 2020-026 



WITNESS Grantor 's hand and seal effective as of the __ day of _____ ___ , 2020. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED 

IN THE PRESENCE OF: 

Witness Number 1 

Witness Number 2 

- 3 -

GRANTOR: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

By: ____________ (SEAL) 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

ATTEST: 

By: (SEAL) 
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Ordinance 2020-026 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I, a notary public for the State of South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, by Tommy Dunn, its Chairman of County Council, 
and attested to by Lacey Croegaert, its Clerk to County Council, personally appeared before me this day 
and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and seal (where an official seal is required by law) official seal, this __ day 
of , 2020. 

____________ (SEAL) 
Signature of Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: _______ _ 

- 4-
Ordinance 2020-026 



EXHIDIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY CONVEYED: 

Ordinance 2020-026 



THIS INSTRUMENT WAS PREPARED BY AND UPON COMPLETION OF 
RECORDATION PROCESS, PLEASE RETURN TO: 

BURNET R. MAYBANK III, ESQUIRE 
ANDREW W. SALEEBY, ESQUIRE 
NEXSEN PRUET, LLC 
POST OFFICE BOX 2426 
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29202 

Ordinance 2020-026 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) AFFIDAVIT 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned, who being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I have read the information on this affidavit and I understand such information. 

2. The property being transferred is located in the County of Anderson, bearing Anderson County 
Tax Map Number and was transferred by 
Anderson County, South Carolina to Michelin North America, Inc. on the date shown on the 
foregoing deed. 

3. Check one of the following: The deed is 

(a) _ _ _ 

(b) __ 

(c) -"'X::...___ 

subject to the deed recording fee as a transfer for consideration paid or to be paid 
in money or money 's worth. 

subject to the deed recording fee as a transfer between a corporation, a 
partnership, or other entity and a stockholder, partner, or owner of the entity, or is 
a transfer to a trust or as a distribution to a trust beneficiary. 

exempt from the deed recording fee because (See Information Section of 
Affidavit): #1 (If exempt, please skip items 4 - 7, and go to item 8 of this 
affidavit.) . Exemption (1) ($1.00). 

4. Check one of the following if either item 3(a) or item 3(b) above has been checked (See 
Information section of this affidavit): 

(a) _ _ _ 

(b) __ 

(c) _ _ 

The fee is computed on the consideration paid or to be paid in money or money's 
worth in the amount of$ - - -----

The fee is computed on the fair market value of the realty which is __ 

The fee is computed on the fair market value of the realty as established for 
property tax purposes which is_. 

5. Check Yes _ _ or No __ to the following: A lien or encumbrance on the land, tenement, or 
realty before the transfer and remained on the land, tenement, or realty after the transfer. If 
"Yes," the amount of the outstanding balance of this lien or encumbrance is ____ _ 

6. The deed recording fee is computed as follows : 

(a) __ 

(b)-

(c) -

Place the amount listed in item 4 above here: 

Place the amount listed in item 5 above here: 

(If no amount is listed, place zero here.) 

Subtract Line 6(b) from Line 6(a) and place result here: 

$ __ _ 

$ __ _ 

$ __ _ 

7. The deed recording fee due is based on the amount listed on Line 6(c) above and the deed 
recording fee due is $ _______ _ 

8. As required by Code Section 12-24-70, I state that I am a responsible person who was connected 
with the transaction as: Grantor 

-=====~--------

9. I understand that a person required to furnish this affidavit who willfully furnishes a false or 
fraudulent affidavit is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, must be fined not more than 
one thousand dollars or imprisoned not more than one year, or both. 

Ordinance 2020-026 



Sworn to before me this 
________ (SEAL) 
day of , 2020 
Notary Public for ________ _ 
My Commission Expires : _____ _ 

INFORMATION 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman, County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

Except as provided in this paragraph, the term "value" means "the consideration paid or to be paid in money or 
money 's worth for the realty. " Consideration paid or to be paid in money's worth includes, but is not limited to, 
other realty, personal property, stocks, bonds, partnership 

interest and other intangible property, the forgiveness or cancellation of a debt, the assumption of a debt, and the 
surrendering of any right. The fair market value of the consideration must be used in calculating the consideration 
paid in money's worth. Taxpayers may elect to use the fair market value of the realty being transferred in 
determining fair market value of the consideration. In the case of realty transferred between a corporation, a 
partnership, or other entity and a stockholder, partner, or owner of the entity, and in the case of realty transferred to a 
trust or as a distribution to a trust beneficiary, "value" means the realty's fair market value. A deduction from value 
is allowed for the amount of any lien or encumbrance existing on the land, tenement, or realty before the transfer 
and remaining on the land, tenement, or realty after the transfer. Taxpayers may elect to use the fair market value 
for property tax purposes in determining fair market value under the provisions of the law. 

Exempted from the fee are deeds: 

(1) transferring realty in which the value of the realty, as defined in Code Section 12-24-30, is equal to or less 
than one hundred dollars; 

(2) transferring realty to the federal government or to a state, its agencies and departments, and its political 
subdivisions, including school districts; 

(3) that are otherwise exempted under the laws and Constitution of this State or of the United States; 

( 4) transferring realty in which no gain or loss is recognized by reason of Section 1041 of the Internal Revenue 
Code as defmed in Section 12-6-40(A); 

(5) transferring realty in order to partition realty as long as no consideration is paid for the transfer other than 
the interests in the realty that are being exchanged in order to partition the realty; 

(6) transferring an individual grave space at a cemetery owned by a cemetery company licensed under Chapter 
55 of Title 39; 

(7) that constitute a contract for the sale of timber to be cut; 

(8) transferring realty to a corporation, a partnership, or a trust in order to become, or as, a stockholder, partner, 
or trust beneficiary of the entity provided no consideration is paid for the transfer other than stock in the corporation, 
interest in the partnership, beneficiary interest in the trust, or the increase in value in such stock or interest held by 

2 Ordinance 2020-026 



the grantor. However, the transfer of realty from a corporation, a partnership, or a trust to a stockholder, partner, or 
trust beneficiary of the entity is subject to the fee even if the realty is transferred to another corporation, a 
partnership, or trust; 

(9) transferring realty from a family partnership to a partner or from a family trust to a beneficiary, provided no 
consideration is paid for the transfer other than a reduction in the grantee's interest in the partnership or trust. A 
"family partnership" is a partnership whose partners are all members of the same family. A "family trust" is a trust, 
in which the beneficiaries are all members of the same family. The beneficiaries of a family trust may also include 
charitable entities. "Family" means the grantor and the grantor's spouse, parents, grandparents, sisters, brothers, 
children, stepchildren, grandchildren, and the spouses and lineal descendants of any of the above. A "charitable 
entity" means an entity which may receive deductible contributions under Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code 
as defined in Section l2-6-40(A); 

(10) transferring realty in a statutory merger or consolidation from a constituent corporation to the continuing or 
new corporation; 

( 11) transferring realty in a merger or consolidation from a constituent partnership to the continuing or new 
partnership; and, 

(12) that constitute a corrective deed or a quitclaim used to confmn title vested in the grantee, provided that no 
consideration of any kind is paid or is to be paid under the corrective or quitclaim deed. 

3 Ordinance 2020-026 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) CANCELLATION OF BONDS 
) 

Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County'~, acting by and through its County 
Council (the "County Council'~ , is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code'~, and particularly 
Title 4, Chapter 29 (the "Original PILOT Act'~ , Title 4, Chapter 12 (the "Streamlined PILOT 
Act'~, and Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "Simplified PILOT Act'~ of the Code (i) to enter into 
agreements whereby business enterprises will construct, operate, maintain, and improve industrial 
and commercial facilities through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina 
(the "State") will be promoted; and (ii) to covenant with such business enterprises to accept certain 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax ("PILOT") payments, including, but not limited to, negotiated FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Original FILOT Act, the Streamlined FILOT Act, or the Simplified 
FILOT Act, as the case may be, with respect to such facilities . 

Pursuant to the Original FILOT Act and the 1988 Anderson County Ordinance #270, which 
was duly enacted by the County Council on December 20, 1988, respectively, Michelin North 
America, Inc. (fka Michelin Tire Corporation), a corporation organized and existing under the laws 
of the State of New York (the "Company") and the County previously entered into that certain 
Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 1988 (as amended and restated by those certain 
Amendments to Lease Agreement by and between the County and the Company dated as of 
September 18, 1990, April17, 1991 , and December 28, 2007, the "Lease") , whereby the Company 
established certain facilities located in the County which facilities have been used by the Company 
primarily to manufacture tires and related products and to conduct research, development, distribution, 
office and other legal activities and function with respect thereto (the "Project") and pursuant to which 
the Company previously made certain negotiated FILOT payments to the County with respect to 
the Project, all in accordance with the Original FILOT Act. 

In order to finance the costs of the acquisition, construction, installation, expansion, 
improvement, design and engineering of certain real properties and improvements thereto and the 
machinery, equipment, fixtures, office production, distribution, research development facilities 
and furnishings to be installed in the Project, the County issued its $200,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount Anderson County, South Carolina Industrial Revenue Bonds (Michelin Tire 
Corporation Series 1988A and Series 1988B) (the "Bonds'~ pursuant to 1988 Anderson County 
Ordinance #270 and that certain Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 1988, among the County, 
Citizens and Southern Trust Company (South Carolina), National Association, and the Company, 
as purchaser of the Bonds (the "Indenture'~ and the Original FILOT Act. 

Pursuant to Section 12-44-170 of the Simplified FILOT Act, the County and the Company 
have converted and re-documented the negotiated FILOT and other incentive arrangements 
specified in the Lease pursuant to that certain Conversion and Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement dated 
as of _, 2020 (the "Fee Agreement") between the County and the Company and 
further agreed in the Fee Agreement that the Bonds were thereby cancelled and the Lease was 
thereby terminated. In conjunction with such conversion andre-documentation, and in accordance 
with Section 12-44-170(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act and with the provisions of the Lease, the 

NPCOLI :61 23 177. 1-DOC-(TVC) 029827-00008 
Ordinance 2020-026 



County further agreed in the Fee Agreement to convey, and has conveyed, to the Company its 
right, title and interest in and to the Project. 

In order to effect cancellation of the Bonds, the Company agrees to simultaneously 
herewith pay to the order of Citizens and Southern Trust Company (South Carolina), National 
Association, or its successor or successors in interest with regard to the Indenture (the "Trustee"), 
the principal of the Bonds issued and secured thereunder, the interest due or to become due thereon, 
and all sums of money due or to become due to the Trustee in accordance with the terms and 
provisions of the Indenture. 

In consideration of the County' s conveyance of the Project to the Company, the Company 
and the County hereby agree, affinn, and ratify that the Bonds have been cancelled and agree that 
the County shall have no further obligation to the Company thereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand effective as of the_ day of 
____ ,2020. 

Attest: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

By: ______________ _ 
Name: -------------------------------
Title: ______________________________ _ 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: ________________________________ _ 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-026 



• I .. . • . 
' \ : 

19&72 

. . ... ,l 
. . ; ~~· . ' -:· 

... 

1tiiB leal Property 
('l'ranafer) 

... 
' .. • • • ~. •• J • .t .. ... . 

• : ,, :~!,/J$, • ., ;., ... .. 
,., i ; .. '!,.. • .;. 

ITATI or IOU'l'll CAJIOLIM ) J., '' .• 

COUNTY or AIIDPBO• 

. . 
. ., 

••• . .. 

~CIN1ty. 

SOUth Carolina " · 
Ml.ln Ser-t ' 
M5erecn, SOI!th euollna 29621 

TlTLB '1'0 REAL ISTATI 

... 

:- ~<I 

Rigftala, ... 

Purauant to a aon4 Ordinance dated Decellber 20, 1tll (tile 
•aond Ordinance•) , the Anderaon County Council authorbad the 
iaauance of Anderaon County, South Carolina Induetrial Revenue 
Bonde in an aggregate principal aaount not axceedinq $40D,ooo,ooo 
in one or aore aeriaa through Dac.mber 31, 1993 (the •Bonda•) tor 
the purpoae of financing the coata ot the ecquiaition, oonatruo
tion and inatallation of additional or i11proved aachinary and 
aquip~ant, buildinga, improveaanta, or fixture• conet1tutinq an 
expaneion or iaproveaant ot the Michelin Tire Corporation'• 
axioting manufacturing facility in Anderaon county, south 
Carolina. The Project in Anderaon County ia an integral part of 
a project involving an expansion ot the Michelin Tire Corpora
tion'• ~anutacturing tacilitiea in Anderoon, Lexington and 
Spartanburg countiea, South carolina and ia1 (i) part of a 
•project• within the aeaning of Section 4-29-10 of the Bond Act 
which ie located in •one or more counties•, ( ii) a project which 
involvea an initial inveatment ot at leaat $85,000,000 within the 
11eaning of Section 4-29-67 of the Bond Act.J (iii) a project 
which, at the time of the iasuanca of the bonde which a r e a part 
of the project, ehall have involved expenditure• of at leaet \.. 
$85,000,000/ and/or (iv) a project which ahall involve an initial ) 
investment of at laaat $85,000,000 in Anderson county. 

Aa contemplated by the Bond ordinance, th .. Michelin Tire 
Corporation (the •company•) ia to convey title to the Project to 
the County in Phaaes on or before the data of iaauance of each 
eerie• ot Bonde by Billa of Sale and, if any ·real property i• 
included in the phaae, by Titles to Real Estate. Pursuant to a 
Laaae Agree ant be twa an the County and the Company, the County ' 
has agreed to laaaa the Project (and each Phaae thereof) b'ck ' to 
the Company in return tor rental payments that are exactly equal 
and tully auttioient to 11ake the payment• due und•r the Bonde by 
the County. 

,.., , ..... , ..... . ..... . .; •• htllla . ........ 

.. ,,_...,. U, ltM 
BOOK 1 0'71i~AG~ 2 0: 

... .. - ... ~":' t"'"·""·""'""'.',.1''"""'f,""; T$ ',"',.""?"'' "''· """'4 '"'' .,.,..,.,..,yr,_,..,,-~.,,,.!i§l'tl"'r. -·~,.....- --r · ·~ · , . .,.., -~--------

,; .. ; .. .. ... , . 



~· .. :· .. ~ ..... : «t-.:"" "r, . "~ ..... ,."'' < 

.. · ·· ~ ·.,., , --..... w.-111'!" ... ~. . ------ - __,...,.... . ~ -
, to> ~\w•: '-;.. __ .J..! 

-- ---o.~ •• .! -· ... &.... 

. · 

'~, • I ., 
r • 

~..---~ ..... 

BOOK 1 0 7 6 PAGE 2 0 ~ -----
NOW, THEREFORE, XNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that 

MICHELIN TIRE CORPORATION, a corporation 4uly qualifie4 to 
tranaact buaineaa in the State of South Carolina (•Grantor•), for 
and in conaideration of the sum of Eight Hundre~ Thirty-Four 
Thouaan4 Two Hundred' Eighty-Six ($934,286.00) Do1lan, the 
receipt and autriciency of which are hereby acltnowladgadl• haa 
granted, bargained, sold and released, and by theae presents doaa 
9rant, bargain, &ell and releaae unto ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and political aubdiviaion 
of the State of South Carolina (•Grantee•), ita auccessora and 
asalgns, the real property deacribad' in the attached Exhibit A. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and aingular the above-deacribed 
_;arcela of land and premiaea, together with all and aingular the 

righta, members, hereditament•, iaprovamanta, · eaaamenta and 
appurtenances thereunto belonCJin<J or in any viae appertaining 
(collectively the •Pramiaea•) unto the Grantee, and the Grantee'• 
auccaaaora and aaaigna, forever. 

AND LASTLY, the Grantor do•• hereby bind itaelt and it. 
aucceaaora to warrant and forever defend all anci aingUlar aaicl 
pre~i••• unto the Grantee and the Grantee'• aucceaaora and 
aaaigna againat the Grantor and ita aucceaaora and againat every 
p_eraon vhomaoavar lawfully claiaing or to claia the aalla or any 
p·art than9f. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor haa cauaed ita corporate 
•••1 to be affixed hereto and theae preaanta to be aUbacribed by 
ita duly authorized officer, •• of the 2lat day of Decellber, 
1919. 

SIGNED, aealed and delivered (SUL) 

~ -

·····-·--'"" .... ..,._ u. .... 
2 BOOK1076PAGE • 20:: 

. ' 
' .~ ·· 

·.r 
.t 

' ·' 



-· o'\ ... . . . . ... 

ITA'rl OP JOUTK CUOLIIfA 

COWTY OP OJtiiHVtLLI 

. . 

'I 

BOOK1076PAGE 20 ·~ 

. , 
PIUOMALLV app .. nd the undardfJIH vitn••• and Nda oath 

that (a)ha ••w the within naa.d Michelin ~ire. Corporation, by ita 
clulr authoriud otticar, •i9n, .. u anct •• it• -.ct ancl claacl, 
clal var tha ~ithin writtan Title to Real !atate ancl that (•)ha, 
with tha othar wltne•a •ubacribacl abcva, wltn•••ed the execution 
tharaot. n ":) 0 

.......... -..... ~~ ..... 
..,._, u , , .. 

~ . c ~ 

1990. 

na 

I 

· : 

BOOK1076PAGE 20·: 

' ·'. ,.. I·! 

_, ·"··· 



I 

.... ~?-.:.;. t• 
--~ · , , · ~t • 

•, ~ ., 
;i : !!' f 

,-

' . . 

~ ·- ~ - .. --- _ ... .. 

.. 

... 
'I 

•'--t-

.. , 

··--·-------'---

BOOK 1 0 7 6 PAGE 2 0 ~ 
-- ___.--- ' o lf 

IIX%11~ A ~ 

" 

. ' 

Anderton County, S9uth Carolina 

1288D Real Property and 1288D Improyemontl 

All ,that certain piece, parcel or lot oi l~tnd aituatt, lying !lnd 
bei ng on the northern aide of S.c. Road 8.4~62 in the County of 
Anderton, State ot south carolina, contai~inq 3\,876 tqua~e feet 
and deaiqnated aa a •Parkinq Area• •• ahown on plat of aurvey of 
property of Michelin Tire Corporation dated Dacamber 29 ~ 1989, by 
John A. Siaaona , R. L.&. and havinq, accor ding to aaid plat, t he 
following aataa and bounda, t o-witt 

.,;...,.. , •. ~ 31. IU Sguarw fgot Parking Artt 
• ~..::r ":"\'-1, ;;;r _ ., . · ·: -. . ' .... -; 

Coaaenoing at a apika eat in the r i ght or vay of a . c . Road 1.4-62 
a.t a joint' oor nar of propatty of Michelin Tir• Corporation and 
property now or foraerly of Kount lion Church and proceeding 
N.4t•atw. a diatanoe of 11t6.6t feat to a point .. rkinq the POINT 
01 B!OIHNlNOI thence 11.49-2911 • . \92.00 feet to e point1 thence 
11.40~)11. 61 . 00 feet to • poin~l thence ll.eo-111 • 209.21 feet to 
a pointt thenoe l •4t•2tl. 51.44 teat to a pointr thence •·•o~llW, 
au.o3 fttt to tJae point aar-Jtinc, the POIII'Z' or IJ!oiNIIIIIO. 

. .. 
· . 

• f ~, . \. J-.• 

t,. J I l f ~, i... .,• : 'h 

· ':-: .. ~ ... c:~ '('f· .. ·.;./ ~ ,..·· ·~· ! · ~i. H · ··'t». 

.. ~·., .· ,. • t i =t .; "' c. ... 

......... 4oM.- . .w.&aa. ..... 

....... ~· '"'l. ;. . - • 
BOOK1 076PAGE 2Gti 

I 

1 
I I 



•. 

' . 
~ •11 

•. 

., 
\ 1' , •• 

l '. 
-: 

t :. ~t" :--' 

' ,. . 
# ~. • ... ... ~hr~ /:·:-. ~- ~~·. 

., • ·.. -~ V:J.tr>f'-
'.., ~ " t>' 

UJJU%'1' A (qont~au~~{ ; . ..; · · . ,,,._ , .l' 
' ,. , . • .t, •• · ·{..· 'J. 

Anlfer aon cou~ty, south "<:aX:~.~ .I:.~~ : • , _ <. •• . -;·." 
. • .. • ,, •. ,1 .. • • , • ~ 

19888 R~Al Prpperj~ and 19888 rmproyement• 
· Por December l990 Do1_ivirv · .• 

AJ.l tl1o•e C:'ertain piece•, parcell 'Or. lote of land a.itJJ~t~, . lylnq 
and being on tfte northern aide of s.c. Road S.4-62 '1n the county 
of Ander•on, State of South Carolina as shown on plat of survey 
of property of Michelin Tire ~orpo~ation dated December 29, 1989 
and revised December 13, 1990 by John A. simmons, R.~. s 4 and _ , 
having, according to add plat, -the , tollowing aetea and bound•, 
to-wit : :! ,. -: , , '• ., · 

Building 2-439 · 
....... . t,.-. !:II 

' . ' 
Co=enoJ:ng at a spike &et in tha right ot .; a·[ ot' ~.c /u:R"oad s ,:'4-
62 at a joint corn~r of property of Michelin Tire' Corporation· and 
property now or to~erly of Mount Zio~ ChurcH· and proceeding N. 
49-29 W. a distance of 717.94 feet to a point and N. 40-31 E. a 
distance of 1370,36 teet to a. poi~t Jna.rking the POIN'l' OF 
BEGINNING/ thence N. 49•29 w. 11~.75 to a point1 thence H, , 40•31 
E. 41.92 feet to a point1 tl)ence ·S. 49-29 E', 112'.7!) •,-.faet ' to A• , 

·~ point; thence s. 40- 31 w. 41.93 feet to a point, tb:~ "Pi>:un- OJ' 
' BEGI NNI NG , . , ,, · · . ' ' ' ' .. ~ , ~ 

·. ,t, --'~ · .. ·" ).. .(~ ' . 
Building 2 • 435' j·,·) 

Commencing at a sp~ke aet in. the right oe way of' S.C. Road S.4-
62 at a joint corner of property or Michelin Tire corporation and 
proper ty now or formerly of ~ount Zion Church and proceeding N. 
49-29 w. a distance ot 868.44 feat and N. 40-ll E. B3S.l6 f eet to 
a point mar king the POINT OP BEGINNING; thence K. 49-29 W. 94 . 25 
teet to a pointt thence H. 40-3~ E. 107 feet to a point : thenc' 

· ·s . 49•29 E. 94.2.5 teet to a point ~ thence s. 49-j1 w-. 102· teet to 
a point ; the POIN'l' OF BEGINNING. 

0 :to ', .. 0 ... ~ , ' 1 

... ,. ' j ~. ~ ~"' ;J 17 "!'1 t. 

Byildin<i 2 ._43~ ' , ~ ~-~: ~ • . ,l., ·( J' ; 
~ " ~, . .... ..,. , .... .,:. ... •, 

.. ~ , . ~ . , 
6 '> ' • "l t • r "'f 1.~ 

- Co!llllleno inCf at.,. a ·spike set in tha riqht otway ot s·. c~ Road-$.4 
62 at & ,o~nt corner ot prope~y · oCMicbelin Tire· corporatlon and 
property nov or to~erly ~ Mount Zion Church and pro~~edinq K. 
49-~9 w. a dietance ot 929.69 teet. and N. 40-31 r:. 70~/36 taet to ·.,,.\, 
a point and H. 49-29 W. 228 teet to a point and.,N. 40-3'1 , E. 136') . ·"
feet to a po~nt -.arltihg• the P.OINT ' OFr BEGINNING I thene• If,•, 40-.Jl -" 
B. -102· teet· to • pointt - thenc• 8. 49-29 B. 195' feet to~ poin~~ 

. thence. s. · 40-?1 w; 102 feet to a pointt thence M • • ~9j.2~ w-..- ].95 ~ 
teet: to a ~f-nt, the· PO:IN'r OF BEGINNING• . , 

1 
•• ~ " " ~ •: -; • ~: 

-, • ... \ • • .,, ...,. L U - ' ,. "" ~ ;:z.;, ... ~ ..,.;..}\ .. .,;?: 
.1:. ,r '~ .. · ':!.l-f ... ~ ~~. . .. ..t .. ~ . ...... .~ . -· ("- -', • ... .,}· · -:·s)........f·~ '.J 

0 
'•'' 1 ~ .,ot- ~ • } -' 1....,.... • ·~ • ,. " ... ..1 . • ··"J ~. \ • • • i 

f ... ';)I •.,. , ,. \ ... ~fi ~.;..: .,._ '" fl, •,. f"r1-ill o f. ')(:.~(~~ •,~ 

•. 
, .. BOOK 1111 PAGf 2 61 

.. 



.. ,.. ..•.. • ~ . .,; 
, .. 1'~' ' .. :' : •.. 

.. ' .. 
r:~ . ~ .. . 
~:~~ .. . . .... -= . ":',.~ . . ~ .... · ... 
- ~· 

1" · ·"· .. ·' ~ .i •. '! 

'. . ~ -!.l.c·~---'-"'"u....-----'·c::"·:__;_'~~. LL:.:,..,. ···--

Buildlnq 2-431 
BOOK1111P~GE 262 •. ' j ~ I, .: 

~. ~~~ l<t'!4 l . 
,. J .. t .. • ,• I ' 

· • · ~ihiJ at a •pika aet in the riqht of way of s.c. Road s.4-
'. . ~a· at a joint corner o~ property o~Micbelin ~ire corporation and 

' ' .. ·.· property nov or to~erly of KOW\t zion Chw:cll and procee.dinq M. 
49•29 w. a diatan~~of .929.6~ feet to' a point and N. 40-31 z. 

t . 

1, • . , 
70~,36 teet tq a point .. rkinq the POX~ OF B~QINNINGI thence N. 
49-29 W. 413 feet to a pointr thence x. 40-30 B. 136 feet to a 
point~ . ~enca 8 • . 49-29 ~. 413 feet to a - pointJ thence s. 40-31 w, 
99 ta8t to a pointJ thence s. 49-29 E. 308 feet to a point1 
thence s. 40-31 w. 17 teet to a pointr thence N • . 49-29 w. 308 
teet ~o a pointr thence s. 40~3t w. 20 feet to a p9int, the POINT 

"' ' .. OP BEGINNING. . 

.·. 

, .. 

•.. 
. ~ .. • 

BuilcUng 125 

co-ef\Cinq at a epilce aet in. the right of way of s.c. Road 8.4-
62 at a joint corner of property of Michelin ~ire Corporation and 
property now or formerly of Mount Zion Church and proceeding N. 
49-29 W, a diatance of 1447.03 feet and N. 40-31 B. 796.82 feet 
to a point aarking the POINT OF BEGINNINGI thence N. 49-29 W • 

. 94.16 feet to a pointr thence N.· 40-31 E. 41.!)4 feot to a point1 
· thence s. 49-29 B. 94.16. teot to a poi-ntr thence s. 40-31 w. 

4} .54 feet to a point , the POINT OF BEGINNING, 

. BUILDING 2-124 

• Com.encing at • apike aet in the right of way of s.c. Road 8,4-
62 at a joint corner of property of' Michelin ~ire corporation and 
property now or formerly of Mount Zion Church and proceeding N. 
49-~9 w. a distance ot 1466.7~ feat and N. 40-31 E. 862.01 feet 
to a point aarking the POINT OP BEGINNING: thenee N. 49-29 W. 138 
feet to a pointJ thence N. 40-31 B. 51 teet to a point; thence 
S. 49-29 E. 138 toet to a point; thence s. 40-31 w. 51 toet to a 
point, the POINT Ot BEGINNING. 

BUILQING 470 

Coamencing at a apike eat in the right of way of S.c. Road 8.4-
62 at a joint corner of property ot Michelin 'l'ire corporat-ion and 
property now or formerly of Mount zion Church and proceeding N. 
49-29 w. a distance of 1556.39 feet and ,M. 40-31 E. 1171.36 teet 
to a point markinq the POINT ,OT BEGINNINGI thence N. 49-29 W, 
31.25 feet to a point1 thence N. 40-31 E. 67 teet to a- pointr " · 
thence s. 49-29 B· 31.25 feet to a point: thence s. 40-31 w. 67 
teet to a point, the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

BUILQING RBE 

coaaenelng at a spike aet ih the right of way of S.C. Road 8.4-
62 at a joint corner of property of Michelin Tire Corporation and 
property now or formerly of Mount zion Church and p~oceeding N. 
49•29 w. a distance ~f 1612.99 feet and N, ~0-31 E. 29&.6~feet 
to a point marking the POINT OP BEGINNING: th~~e N. 49-29 ~. 26 
feet to a point1 thence N. 40-31 E. 60,66 feet to a point1 thence 
s. 49-29 E. 26 feet to a point1 thence s. 40-31 w. 60.66 teet to 
a point, the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

BOOK1 111PAGE 262 
.. ~ .. ____ ........,_. 

'1-

. 

' .. ·. ~ .. .. 
{ . 

! 

~ 

. ( 
J 

~ 

'I! 

~ 

' 

' 
' 
\· 

. 
~ 

I 

Jr' 

., 

.. 
·'t 
~ 

~ . 
'{ 

·' 

. ~ 
·' 



_,. . 
~!II"'''J-afttlb'""":-J~~~~· . ........ _.y~· • .. : ... . . 

. - . . . • "" .. 

... 1,. "-J 

. . .. ~ 

·- · . _ .. _ 

BUXLQING 1-331 , 
BOOK1111PAGf 263 

' 
Co~encin~ at a apika aet ih the riqht of way of s.c. Road 8.4-
62 at a j~corner of property of Michelin Tire corporation and 
PJ:DPartYnOW or fonerly ot Mount Zi on Church anc! proceedinq N. ,_ • 
49-29 w. a diatenca of 1621,24 !eat and N. 40-ll £ , 374.02 feat 
to a point aarltlnq the POINT OP B:&GIImiNGr thane:• H. 49-29 w~ 

11 1097 . 75 feet to a pointr thence N. 40•31 E. -, a- t .. f' to a J)oi'nt: t 
thence s . 49-29 B. 515 feet to a pointr thence N. 40~31 B. 40.50 
teet to a pointr thence s. 49-29 E. 85 !eat to a pointr thence s. , 
40-31 W. 40.50 f-t to a. polntr. thane. 8.~ 49-29 B • . 497, 7~ feet- . to '"'- • ' 
• pointr thane. s. 40-31 w. 60 !eat to a point, the POIM'l' OJ' . ·. 

, BBGINlnNC • 

.. . ' . ,. )' .... 
vil""'~te totU! .-n . ·1''""'' 

Y, I • ': ~ ~ • 

~- "t-.,.·: ,.r:' ~·-~ \~ ~ ,; t 
' • • r ' • • . ' 

.., ~eft' t 'f/!t;· : 1 "~~ r<.. ~ .: ; fPi 

~ ~,.:..=•VI- ··u·"' ~t -~·; ! 
"f:' •vdJ• ··1'-:-r f • ., 

r I* •' I ~ .. tl. t r .,/: ~~~ -,~~ :_. i''• 'J(~ 

' ,,, ............. ... . . ~ 

~~"'h-_.L 

# • • .. , . 
· , ~ ·-! .. 1 • .. · ~ 

... 
~ 

, ~, 

• )'~1.'\';tic- ::. _- • -~ -: . 
. " .. ,. ..... .. i" . 

' -··~~·· ,...l:tV - ·i'1 ' ·:.·c. 'tt') . ..,!J<~·~···t-v;~~~ ··\Vi, i'<l~~ -. ~- :n~r~ •• , . . l • - ·~ :· 
"' . 

'• .. ~ .. fl.'· .. .. ,.. • , ·'· " . ,~ ..:...c.. .... n. ~ :l£~~~ • ··;:: ·~ .• : 
• • 1 .~ -·. ~~.'l,:-; 1/'sc.:r-bc: • ·~>•'~'!}) ·H 'Jilr:: • "~:<·~~~· ,~ tt<~\.~,._,.. • ... , .... ,. """"""~" ~ "!;~ ,. .. 

! ' \" .... ". ' . . , t _ .. , • • ~-· ~< ___ _, ... , . .. ;< - . - -:.., . • 
4 ::1•L\o '··''' • "}. !' Jl) f~ ~:~~~~,.It:.~ ',• .. t . ~f'l..-lf r~h • , '~ \l~· ~"'"' ~7·~-x,~ ~"~ ,.. • r .,.. • 

'·--! ': ::l' 'll···!MJ;~ ~~.,.~~'!l·t. • .-r -~.f"~·v~'" , r. . ~ q ;_.,..~ .. '\ ;A':Q..V- .,-.~,~ ~~~~·rr'?-, 
. ' . . ! ·~ ""~~~:;,- ~ .. ~~~· ; .... Y~ .... -,.,."\:o!t~~"' 1~.~ ... , ., ... ·~':-"" .. ~ .... ~il ,. ~., ... '· · ~ .v; • , ·t.(. .. • .rr-·~ ~~ .... ., 
.:.-.: "'>[ '1:·7~>~.{ ,fo.-. !.••11!~/Hb!ii ~'i :. ..;.~f;<:o''•=: "-~' Y '1<'4• j ~l:lcr•.)>~.~ il' ·r1 W • 

BOOK1111PA6E · 26J . 

-~ -

. . 

. ' '*' ...... ; 

. 
•"' ... ~ 

...:~.;: 

• j 
•• :l 

i 

t ·I 



BILL OF SALE 

THIS BILL OF SALE (this "Bill of Sale") is given by ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the 
"County"), to Michelin North America, Inc. , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of New York and qualified to do business in South Carolina (the "Company"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the County, as lessor, and the Company, as lessee, are parties to that certain Lease 
Agreement dated as of December 1, 1988 (the "Lease") pertaining to certain personal property owned by 
the County described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has determined to exercise its option to purchase the Property pursuant 
to Section 5.2 of the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has satisfied all of the requirements set forth in the Lease for the 
purchase of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires and intends hereby to convey to the Company any and all interest 
in the Property heretofore titled in the County pursuant to the terms of the Lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the County, for and in 
consideration of the sum of One and No/1 00 Dollar ($1 .00), lawful money of the United States, and no 
other valuable consideration, to it well and truly paid by the Company, at or before the ensealing and 
delivery hereof, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, 
sell , assign, transfer and convey to the Company all of the County's right, title and interest, if any, in and 
to all of the Property, including, without limitation, all machinery, equipment, fixtures and other personal 
property located on or about the real property more particularly described on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the Company, its successors and assigns, absolutely. 

This Bill of Sale is made, executed, and delivered pursuant to the Lease. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED] 

Ordinance 2020-026 



WITNESS the County' s hand and seal effective as of the _ __ day of _ _____ , 2020. 

Attest: 

By: (SEAL) 
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

2 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: _ _ _ ____ _______ (SEAL) 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-026 



EXHIDIT A 

All machinery, equipment, fixtures and personal property of every kind and only to the extent 
Anderson County holds title thereto, located at and installed upon or used on or about those certain 
manufacturing and distribution facilities constructed on the property more particularly described on 
Exhibit A-1 attached to this Bill of Sale. 

Exhibit A 



EXHIBIT A-1 

Exhibit A-1 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-027 

AN ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE CONVERSION AND TRANSFER OF 
PROPERTY SUBJECT TO AN EXISTING LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE "COUNTY") AND MICHELIN 
NORTH AMERICA, INC. (FKA MICHELIN TIRE CORPORATION) (THE 
"COMPANY"), TO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES ARRANGEMENT UNDER 
TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CODE, AS AMENDED; (2) THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO 
EFFECT THE INTENT OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND (3) OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING THERETO. 

Section 1. Findings. 

The Anderson County council fmds that: 

(a) Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County Council (the 
"County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws 
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), particularly Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code (the "Original 
PILOT Act"), Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the "Simplified PILOT Act"); and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the 
Code (the "Multi-County Park Act") (collectively, the "Act") and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South 
Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, 
and improve industrial and commercial facilities through which the economic development of the State of 
South Carolina (the "State") will be promoted by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to 
locate, remain, and expand in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products 
and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad 
valorem tax ("PILOT") payments, including, without limitation, negotiated PILOT payments, with respect 
to such properties; and (iii) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county 
industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; 

(b) Michelin North America, Inc. a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
New York and qualified to do business in South Carolina ("Michelin"), previously established certain 
facilities in the County for the production and sale of tires and other legal activities of the Company and its 
affiliates (the "Project"); 

(c) pursuant to the Original PILOT Act, the County entered into that certain Lease Agreement between 
the County, as lessor, and Michelin North America, Inc. , as lessee, dated as of December 1, 1996 (the 
"Lease") to lease Michelin that portion of the Project consisting of equipment, improvements, and real 
property for the purpose of providing Michelin with PILOT incentives under the Original PILOT Act; 

(d) under the Simplified Act, the County may provide PILOT incentives with respect to the Project 
without the need for the County to hold title to the Project assets subject to the PILOT incentives; 



(e) because Michelin (the "Company") has an existing PILOT arrangement with the County, Section 
12-44-1 70 of the Simplified PILOT Act permits the Company to "convert" from a title transfer PILOT 
arrangement under the Original PILOT Act to a non-title transfer PILOT arrangement under the Simplified 
PILOT Act; 

(f) pursuant to Section 12-44-170(B) ofthe Simplified PILOT Act, the County and the Company have 
determined to convert and re-document the PILOT and other incentive arrangements specified in the Lease 
(the "Conversion") and, in connection therewith, the County will convey to the Company its right, title and 
interest in and to the Project and the parties will replace the Lease and related documents in their entirety 
with a Conversion and Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the "Fee Agreement"); 

(g) simultaneously with the replacement of the Lease and related documents by the Conversion, the 
County shall convey and/or re-convey, as the case may be, to the Company all assets comprising the Project 
currently titled in the County in accordance with the terms of the Lease; 

(h) all such matters are to be undertaken in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Fee 
Agreement now before this meeting and such Fee Agreement is in appropriate form and is an appropriate 
instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes intended. 

Section 2. Approval and Execution of Fee Agreement. 

(a) The County agrees to convert and re-document the PILOT and other incentives set forth in the 
Lease and related documents in their entirety with the Fee Agreement and the Simplified Fee Act shall 
govern the PILOT arrangements pertaining thereto. In furtherance of such replacement, the parties agree 
that the Lease will be terminated and the County will convey to the Company its right, title and interest in 
and to any assets comprising the Project. 

(b) The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the 
Clerk of the County Council be and hereby are approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions 
thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if such Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance 
in its entirety. The Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement in the 
name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company. 

(c) The Fee Agreement, attached hereto as EXHIBIT A is to be in substantially the form now before 
this meeting and hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the 
rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the 
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of 
all changes therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

(d) The County shall , simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement, convey 
to the Company title to the Project. 

Section 3. Authority to Act. 

The Chairman of the Council and the Clerk to Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each 
authorized, empowered, and directed to do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the performance 
of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to the Fee Agreement and to carry out the transactions 
contemplated thereby and by this Ordinance. 

2 Ordinance 2020-027 



Section 4. Controlling Provisions. 

This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South 
Carolina. To the extent this ordinance contains provisions that conflict with provisions contained elsewhere 
in the Anderson County Code or other County ordinances, resolutions or orders, the provisions contained 
in this ordinance supersede all other provisions and this ordinance is controlling. 

Section 5. Severability. 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any section, phrase, or provision 
shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such 
declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. Effective Date. 

All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of such conflict hereby 
repealed. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon adoption by the Council. 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

3 Ordinance 2020-027 



[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 

AND IT IS SO ORDAINED 

Dated this 15th day of December, 2020. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Public Hearing: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
December 15, 2020 
December 15, 2020 

4 Ordinance 2020-027 



CONVERSION AND FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 

CONVERTING AND TRANSFERRiNG THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO EXISTING FEE-IN-LIEU OF PROPERTY 

TAXES ARRANGEMENT UNDER TITLE 4, CHAPTER 12 OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CODE 1976, AS 

AMENDED, TO A FEE IN-IN-LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES ARRANGEMENT UNDER TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF 

THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED 

Between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

Dated as of December 15, 2020 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS ... ................ ............................................................................. 3 

Section 1.01. 
Section 1.02. 

Definitions . ..................... ......... ........... ............ .... .... ...................... ...... . 3 
References to Agreement ..... ... ... .... ......... ............... ... ..... .. ..... ............... 7 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ............................................... 7 

Section 2.01. 
Section 2.02. 

Representations and Warranties by County .......... .... ......... .......... ........ 7 
Representations and Warranties by Company ................... .................. 8 

ARTICLE III RE-DOCUMENTATION OF INCENTIVES PERTAINING TO 
PROJECT ... ....... ... ... ..... ... ..... ............. ....... ...... ....... .. .... ........ .... .... .... ..... .... ...... . 8 

Section 3.01. 
Section 3.02 . 

Section 3.03 

Replacement of Lease and Related Documents .. ........ ........... .... .. ....... . 8 
Conveyance by the County to the Company of Project and 
Other Leased Property .............................. .......... ............... .. ................ 9 
Cancellation of Bonds Issued by the County .... ......... ... ..... .......... 9 

ARTICLE IV COVENANTS OF COUNTY ......................................................................... 9 

Section 4.01 . 
Section 4.02. 
Section 4.03. 

Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments ........................... ...... ... ........ .. 9 
Multi-County Park Designation ........................................................... 9 
Commensurate Benefits .............. .... ... ...... .... ...... ....... .... ....... ........... ..... 9 

ARTICLE V COVENANTS OF COMPANY ........................................................ .......... .. 10 

Section 5.01. 
Section 5.02. 
Section 5.03 . 
Section 5.04. 
Section 5.05. 
Section 5.06. 

Investment in Project. .............. ..................................................... ..... 10 
Title to Project ..... .. ............... ................ .... .... .......... ... ... .... ........ ......... 10 
Modification of Project ...................................................... ................ 10 
Payment of Administration Expenses ................................................ 11 
Use of Project for Lawful Activities ... .... ........... ..... ... .... ....... .. .. ..... ... . 11 
Records and Reports ................. ....... .... ....... ... .. .... ..... .... .... .. ....... ........ 11 

ARTICLE VI FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES ... ........... ... ....... .... .................................. ............. 12 

Section 6.01. 
Section 6.02. 

Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes ............ .... ..... .......... .. 12 
Statutory Lien ................................ ............................. ......... ........ ...... 16 

ARTICLE VII THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS .................. ............... ..... .......... .... ... .... 16 

Section 7.01. 
Section 7.02. 

Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment.. ..... .... ....... ......... .... 16 
Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates .......... ......... ... .. ....... ... ......... ....... ...... 17 

ARTICLE VIII TERM; TERMINATION ..... ..... ... .......... ............... ............... ......... ..... ........... 18 

Section 8.01. 
Section 8.02. 

Term ... ... .... ...... ........ ............... ....... .. .... ....... .. .... ........ ....... ................ ... 18 
Termination .. .... .. .. .... ..... .... ..... ......... ..... ....... ........ ......... ....... .... ..... .. .... 18 

Ordinance 2020-027 



ARTICLE IX EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ..... ........... .... .... .. .. .. .. ................ 18 

Section 9.01. 
Section 9.02. 
Section 9.03 . 
Section 9.04. 

Section 9.05 . 

Events of Default by Company ..... ..... ...... .... .. .... ...... .... .. ........ .... ..... ... 18 
Remedies on Event of Default by Company ... .... ............. ................. 18 
Defaulted Payments ..... ..... ......... ...... .... .... .... ................ .... .. ... .... ..... ... . 18 
Application ofMonies upon Enforcement of Remedies against 
Company .............. .. ....... ... .............................................. ... ...... ........... 19 
Default by County ...... ...... ....... ..... .... .................. ...... ..... ...... ........... .... 20 

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS .... .... .. .... ... .......... .................................................... ....... 20 

Section 10.01. 
Section 10.02. 
Section 10.03. 
Section 10.04. 
Section 1 0.05. 
Section 1 0.06. 
Section 10.07. 
Section 10.08. 
Section 10.09. 
Section 10.1 0. 
Section 1 0.11 . 
Section 1 0.12. 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT B 

Rights and Remedies Cumulative; Third Party Beneficiary ......... ..... 20 
Successors and Assigns .. ...... .................. ...... ..... ...... .. ........ ........ ........ 20 
Notices; Demands; Requests .... ............ ... ...... .. ....... .... ...... .. ....... .... .... 20 
Applicable Law .... .. .......... ......... ...... .... ...... .... ... ..... ... .... ..................... . 21 
Substantive Terms ................ .. .......... .......... ..... ...................... ............ 21 
Entire Understanding .... ... ............... ......................... ............ .... ....... ... 21 
Severability ... ....... ............... .................. .................... ............. ......... ... 21 
Headings and Table of Contents; References .... ................. ..... ..... ..... 21 
Multiple Counterparts ... .......... ......... ............................. ............. ....... . 22 
Amendments ................................... ... ............................................. ... 22 
Waiver ........... ........... ..... ..... .... .... ....... .... .... ....... ........ ........... ....... ..... .. . 22 
Further Proceedings ... ........ ......... ............. .... .... ........ ........... ...... .. ... .... 22 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

11 Ordinance 2020-027 



CONVERSION AND FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 

This CONVERSION AND FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") 
dated as of September_, 2020 between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the 
"County"), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, 
and MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC., a New York Corporation authorized to do business 
in South Carolina acting for itself and any affiliates or other project sponsors (the "Company" and 
referred to collectively as the "Parties"). 

WIT N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its 
County Council (the "County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), particularly 
Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code (the "Original FILOT Act"), Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 
"Simplified FILOT Act"); and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the "Multi-County Park Act") 
(collectively, the "Act") and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to 
enter into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve industrial 
and commercial facilities through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina 
(the "State") will be promoted by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate, 
remain, and expand in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products 
and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu 
of ad valorem tax ("FILOT") payments, including, without limitation, negotiated FILOT 
payments, with respect to such properties; and (iii) to create, in conjunction with one or more other 
counties, a multi-county industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax 
credits to such investors; and 

WHEREAS, Michelin North America, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of New York and authorized to do business in South Carolina ("Michelin"), 
previously established certain facilities in the County for the production and sale of tires and other 
legal activities ofthe Company and its affiliates (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original FILOT Act, the County entered into that certain 
Lease Agreement between the County, as lessor, and Michelin North America, Inc., as lessee, 
dated as of December 1, 1996 (the "1996 Lease") to lease to Michelin that portion of the Project 
consisting of equipment, improvements, and real property for the purpose of providing Michelin 
with FILOT incentives under the Original FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Anderson County Ordinance 96-024 and that certain Trust 
Indenture dated as of December 1, 1996, among the County, First Union National Bank of South 
Carolina, National Association, and the Company (the "Indenture"), the County issued 
$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount Anderson County, South Carolina Industrial Revenue 
Bonds (Michelin North America, Inc. Project) (the "Bonds") in order to finance the costs of the 

Ordinance 2020-027 



acquisition, construction, installation, expansion, improvement, design and engineering of certain 
real properties and improvements thereto and the machinery, equipment, fixtures, office 
production, distribution, research development facilities and furnishings to be installed in the 
Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1996 Lease, the Company was eligible for FILOT incentives 
on property placed in service at the Project on or prior to December 31, 2004, or on or prior to 
December 31 , 2006 in the event of an extension (the "Original Investment Period"), for a period 
of thirty (30) years from the date such property was placed in service; and 

WHERAS, the Parties modified the 1996 Lease by executing an Addendum to Lease 
Agreement on December 1, 1999 (the "Addendum") to provide for varying millage rates with 
regard to a New Facility developed by the Company, with such New Facility defined as "a new 
facility located in the County at the intersection of Hillhouse Drive and Cleveland Road;" and 

WHEREAS, the parties amended the 1996 Lease on December 31 , 2003 to extend the 
Original Investment Period to make eligible for FILOT incentives property placed in service at the 
Project through December 31 , 2011 ; and 

WHEREAS, the parties amended the 1996 Lease on February 21,2012 to amend the period 
for which property placed in service during the Investment Period is eligible for FILOT incentives 
from thirty (30) years to forty ( 40) years; and 

WHEREAS, under the Simplified Act, the County may provide FILOT incentives with 
respect to the Project without the need for the County to hold title to the Project assets subject to 
the FILOT incentives; and 

WHEREAS, because Michelin (the "Company") has an existing FILOT arrangement with 
the County, Section 12-44-170 of the Simplified FILOT Act permits the Company to "convert" 
from a title transfer FILOT arrangement under the Original FILOT Act to a non-title transfer 
FILOT arrangement under the Simplified FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-44-170(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act, the County 
and the Company have determined to convert and re-document the FILOT and other incentive 
arrangements specified in the Lease (the "Conversion") and, in connection therewith, the County 
will convey to the Company its right, title and interest in and to the Project and the parties will 
replace the Lease and related documents in their entirety with the terms of this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained; and other value, the County and the Company agree as follows: 

2 Ordinance 2020-027 



ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in 
this Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall 
have the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or 
intent. 

"Act" shall mean, collectively, the Simplified FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act. 

"Administration Expenses" shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by 
the County in the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and in the implementation of 
its terms and provisions, including attorneys' fees at the hourly rates which are standard for the 
applicable legal services to the County, but excluding expenses incurred by the County in 
defending either challenges to the incentives provided herein by third parties or suits brought by 
the Company under Section 9.05 hereof; provided, however, that no such expense shall be 
considered an Administration Expense unless the County and the Company shall have first agreed, 
prior to the County incurring such expense, as to the maximum amount thereof or as to the basis 
for which such expenses will be incurred, and that the County shall have furnished to the Company 
an itemized statement of all expenses incurred and provided, further, that nothing herein shall be 
construed as prohibiting the County from engaging the counsel of its choice for matters deemed 
necessary and prudent by the County. 

"Affiliate" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other 
Person or entity which owns all or part of the Company or which is owned in whole or in part by 
the Company or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company. 

"Agreement" shall mean this Conversion and Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement as originally 
executed and from time to time supplemented or amended and as a replacement of the Lease. 

"Code" shall mean the Code of Laws ofSouth Carolina 1976, as amended through the date 
hereof unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

"Co-Investor" shall mean any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within the meaning of Sections 
12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Act, any Affiliate of the Company or of any such Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate, any developer or financial institution in a build-to-suit arrangement with 
respect to the Project, any lessor of equipment or other property comprising a part of the Project, 
any financing entity or other third party investing in or providing funds for the Project. The 
Company shall notify the County in writing of the identity of any other Co-Investor and shall, to 
the extent the Company and any such Co-Investor intend to extend the benefits of the Negotiated 
FILOT to property owned by or leased to such Co-Investor pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof, 
qualify such Co-Investor as a Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to the Simplified FILOT Act. 
As of the date of original execution and delivery of this Agreement, the only Co-Investor with 

3 Ordinance 2020-027 



respect to the Project is the Company. As of the date of this Agreement, the Company holds title 
to all assets comprising the Project. 

"Company " shall mean Michelin North America, Inc. , a New York Corporation authorized 
to do business in South Carolina, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, 
consolidation or transfer of assets permitted under Section 7.01 hereof or any other assignee 
hereunder which is designated by the Company and approved by the County. 

"Council" shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors. 

"County " shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and 
a political subdivision of the State, and its successors and assigns. 

"Deficiency Payment" shall have the meaning specified in Section 6.01(e) hereof. 

"Department of Revenue" shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Economic Development Property" shall mean, with respect to the Project, each item of 
real and tangible personal property comprising the Project which was placed in service during the 
Investment Period; provided, however, such property must meet the requirements of Sections 12-
44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Code, and in each case Non-Qualifying Property is specifically 
excluded. 

"Event of Default" shall mean an Event of Default, as set forth in Section 9.01 hereof. 

"Existing Property" shall mean property previously subject to property taxes under this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Simplified FILOT Act, including without 
limitation property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to commencement 
of the Investment Period or after the Investment Period, and property included in the Project as 
part of the repair, alteration, or modification of such previously taxed property. 

"FILOT" shall mean fee in lieu of ad valorem property taxes. 

"FILOT Payments" or "FILOT Revenues" shall mean the payments to be made with respect 
to the Project pursuant to Section 6.01 hereof, including the Negotiated FILOT paid pursuant to 
Section 6.01(b) hereof, and any fee in lieu of tax payments made pursuant to the Multi-County 
Park Act. 

"Investment Period" shall mean the period for completion of the Project, which shall mean 
the period commencing on January 1, 1996 and ending on December 31, 2011 , as specified 
pursuant to Section 4-12-30(C)(3) and (D)(1)(b) of the Original FILOT Act. 

"Land" shall mean the land upon which the Project has been or will be constructed, as 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in 

4 Ordinance 2020-027 



accordance with the provisions hereof. 

"Lease" shall mean that certain 1996 Lease Agreement between the County, as lessor, and 
the Company, as lessee, dated as of December 1, 1996. 

"Leased Property" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Lease. 

"Multi-County Park" shall mean the multi-county industrial or business park established 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Agreement, and any multi-county industrial or business park 
which includes the Project and which is designated by the County as such pursuant to any 
agreement, which supersedes or replaces the initial Multi-County Park Agreement. 

"Multi-County Park Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code, as amended through 
the date hereof. 

"Multi-County Park Agreement" shall mean that certain Multi-County Park Agreement 
between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina pertaining to the Project, dated as of 
October 6, 1998, as amended, supplemented, or replaced from time to time to include all or any 
portion of the Project. 

"Negotiated FILOT" or "Negotiated FILOT Payments" shall mean the PILOT payments 
due pursuant to Section 6.01 hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of 
Economic Development Property which qualifies pursuant to the Simplified PILOT Act for the 
negotiated assessment ratios and millage rates described in Section 6.01(b)(ii) hereof. 

"New Facility" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the recitals above. 

"Non-Qualifying Property" shall mean that portion of the facilities located on the Land and 
consisting of: (i) Existing Property; (ii) except as to Replacement Property, property which the 
Company places in service after the end of the Investment Period; and (iii) any other property 
which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated PILOT Payments under the Simplified PILOT Act, 
including without limitation property as to which the Company has terminated the Negotiated 
PILOT pursuant to Section 5.03(c) hereof. 

"Original FILOT Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code. 

"Person" shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated organization, 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or agency or 
political subdivision thereof. 

"Project" shall mean the Land described on Exhibit A hereto and, to extent placed in 
service by the Company or any Co-Investor during the Investment Period; (i) all buildings, 
structures, fixtures and other real property improvements constructed on the Land; (ii) all 
machinery, equipment, furnishings and other personal property acquired by or on behalf of the 

5 Ordinance 2020-027 



Company for use on or about the Land; and (iii) any Replacement Property replacing portions of 
the Project. 

"Property Tax Year" shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the 
Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, i. e., with respect to the Company, the period 
ending on December 31 of each year. 

"Released Property" shall include Economic Development Property which is scrapped, 
sold, disposed of, or released from this Agreement by the Company pursuant to Section 5.03(c) 
hereof and Section 12-44-SO(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act; any portion of the Economic 
Development Property constituting infrastructure which the Company dedicates to the public use 
within the meaning of Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code; and any Economic Development 
Property damaged, destroyed, or taken by process of eminent domain and not restored or replaced. 

"Replacement Property" shall mean all property installed in or at the Project in substitution 
of, or as replacement for, any Released Property, regardless of whether such property serves the 
same function as the property it replaces and regardless of whether more than one piece replaces 
a single piece of the Project, but only to the extent that such property may be included in the 
calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pertaining to the Project, pursuant to Section 6.0l(d) hereof 
and Section 12-44-60 of the Code. 

"Simplified FILOT Act" shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as amended through 
the date hereof. 

"Sponsor" and "Sponsor Affiliate" shall mean an entity whose investment with respect to 
the Project will qualify for the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof and Sections 
12-44-3 0( 19) or (20) and Section 12-44-13 0 of the Code. As of the date of original execution and 
delivery of this Agreement, the only Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project is the 
Company. 

"State" shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

"Statutory Investment Requirement" shall mean investment with respect to the Project by 
any one of the Company, any other Sponsor or any Sponsor Affiliate of not less than $2,500,000. 

"Streamlined FILOT Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code, as amended through 
the date of execution and delivery of the Lease. 

"Term" shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 8.01 hereof. 

"Transfer Provisions" shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Simplified 
FILOT Act, as amended through the date hereof. 

6 Ordinance 2020-027 



Section 1.02. References to Agreement. The words "hereof' , "herein", "hereunder", 
and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole. 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.01 . Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of 
the State and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. 
By proper action by the Council, the County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement and the Negotiated FILOT Payments as set forth herein, the 
inclusion and maintenance of the Project in the Multi-County Park, and any and all actions 
reasonably necessary and appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated 
hereby and has obtained all consents and approvals required under the Act to carry out its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) The County has determined the Project will serve the purposes of the Act 
and has made all other findings of fact required by the Act in connection with the 
undertaking of the arrangements set forth herein. 

(c) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on 
behalf of the County. The authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement and 
the performance by the County of its obligations hereunder will not, to the best knowledge 
of the undersigned representatives of the County, conflict with or constitute a breach of, 
or a default under, any South Carolina law, court or administrative regulation, decree, 
order, provision of the Constitution or laws of the State relating to the establishment of 
the County or its affairs, or any material agreement, mortgage, lease, or other instrument 
to which the County is subject or by which it is bound, nor, to the best knowledge of the 
undersigned representatives of the County, any existing law or the provisions of the 
Constitution of the State. 

(d) To the best knowledge of the undersigned representatives of the County, 
no actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened 
against or affecting the County in any court or before any governmental authority or 
arbitration board or tribunal, any of which to the best knowledge of the undersigned 
representatives of the County could materially adversely affect this Agreement or which 
could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

7 Ordinance 2020-027 



(e) The County has not sold, assigned, leased, mortgaged, granted easements 
or rights of way, encumbered, or otherwise conveyed or transferred any of its right, title 
or interest in the Lease, the Project or other Leased Property except as contemplated by 
the Lease. 

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by Company. The Company makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained: 

(a) The Company is a corporation validly existing and in good standing under 
the laws of the State of New York and authorized to do business in the State; has all 
requisite power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder; 
and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement. The 
Company's fiscal year end is December 31, and the Company will notify the County of 
any changes in the fiscal year of the Company. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project primarily for manufacturing 
and related activities . 

(c) The agreements with the County with respect to the FILOT, and the Multi-
County Park were factors in inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County 
and the State. 

(d) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the 
undersigned representatives ofthe Company are pending or threatened against or affecting 
the Company in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or 
tribunal, which could materially adversely affect this Agreement or which could, in any 
way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, or the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 

ARTICLE III 

RE-DOCUMENTA TION OF INCENTIVES AND CANCELLATION OF BONDS 
PERTAINING TO PROJECT 

Section 3.01. Replacement of Lease and Related Documents. Each party hereby 
acknowledges that the other is currently in compliance with its obligations under the Lease. The 
Company and the County also hereby acknowledge and agree that, from and after the execution 
and delivery of this Agreement: (i) this Agreement shall replace the Lease and any related 
document in their entirety and as to all matters pertaining to the incentives applicable to the Project 
and (ii) the Simplified FILOT Act shall govern the Negotiated FILOT arrangements pertaining to 
the Project. In furtherance of such replacement, the parties agree that the Lease is hereby 
terminated. 

8 Ordinance 2020-027 



Section 3.02. Conveyance by the County to the Company of Project and Other Leased 
Property. Simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the County has by 
delivery of a Quitclaim Deed and Bill of Sale, conveyed or re-conveyed to the Company all assets 
comprising the Project and other Leased Property which were heretofore titled in the County 
pursuant to the terms of the Lease. The County covenants and agrees to take such further steps 
and to execute and deliver such further instruments, agreements or other documents as shall be 
reasonably required by the Company to evidence or confirm such conveyance. 

Section 3.03 . Cancellation of Bonds Issued by the County. Each party hereby 
acknowledges that the other is currently in compliance with its obligations under the Indenture. 
The Company and the County also hereby acknowledge and agree that, from and after the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the County shall be authorized to do all things necessary 
to cancel the Bonds (the "Cancellation"). The parties intend that the Cancellation may be 
undertaken by the Chairman of the Council without necessity of further proceedings. To the extent 
additional proceeds are required by law, however, the County agrees to undertake all such steps as 
may be reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the Cancellation. In anticipation of 
execution of the Cancellation, the parties agree that the Bonds are hereby cancelled. 

ARTICLE IV 

COVENANTS OF COUNTY 

Section 4.01. Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments. The County hereby agrees to 
accept Negotiated FILOT Payments in accordance with Section 6.01 hereof in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of Economic Development Property 
until this Agreement expires or is sooner terminated. 

Section 4.02. Multi-County Park Designation. The County has designated the Project 
as part of the Multi-County Park pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and will, to the extent 
permitted by law, use its best, reasonable efforts to maintain such designation on terms which 
provide any additional job tax credits afforded by the laws of the State for projects located within 
multi-county industrial or business parks for all jobs created by the Company during the 
Investment Period. To the extent that any portion of the Project is located within the jurisdictional 
limits of a municipality, the County' s designation of such portion of the Project as part of the 
Multi-County Park is subject to approval by such municipality under the Multi-County Park Act. 

Section 4.03. Commensurate Benefits. The parties acknowledge the intent of this 
Agreement, in part, is to afford the Company the benefits specified in this Article IV in 
consideration of the Company' s decision to locate and continue operating the Project within the 
County, and this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Act and 
the County's compliance with the requirements thereof. In the event that a court of competent 
jurisdiction holds that the Act is unconstitutional or this Agreement or agreements similar in nature 
to this Agreement are invalid or unenforceable in any material respect, or should the Company 
determine there is a reasonable doubt as to the validity or enforceability of this Agreement in any 

9 Ordinance 2020-027 



material respect, then at the request of the Company, the County agrees to use its best, reasonable 
efforts to extend to the Company the intended benefits ofthis Agreement and agrees, if requested, 
to enter into a lease purchase agreement with the Company pursuant to Section 12-44-160; Title 
4, Chapter 29 or Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code, as applicable, or to take such other steps as may 
be appropriate to extend to the Company the intended benefits of this Agreement. The Company 
acknowledges, if a court of competent jurisdiction holds all or part of the Simplified FILOT Act 
is unconstitutional or otherwise illegal, the Simplified FILOT Act provides the Company must 
transfer the Economic Development Property to the County within 180 days following such 
determination in order for the Negotiated FILOT benefits to continue to apply. In such lease 
purchase agreement, the County, upon the conveyance of title to the Project to the County at the 
expense of the Company, agrees to lease the Project to the Company. 

ARTICLE V 

COVENANTS OF COMPANY 

Section 5.01 . Investment in Project. 

(a) The County hereby agrees and acknowledges that the Company has met 
all investment and job creation requirements with respect to the Project heretofore 
required by the Lease and/or the Streamlined FILOT Act and that the Company is 
currently in compliance with all requirements set forth in Lease and all related documents. 

(b) Expenditures by Co-Investors shall, together with expenditures by the 
Company, count toward all investment requirements set forth in this Agreement; 
including, to the full extent permitted by the Simplified FILOT Act, the Statutory 
Investment Requirement. Aggregate investment shall generally be determined without 
regard to depreciation or diminution in value following placement in service at the Project 
by reference to the property tax returns of the Company and any Co-Investors filed with 
respect to the Project, including, without limitation, each such entity' s SCDOR PT-300 or 
such comparable forms as to the Department of Revenue may provide in connection with 
project under the Simplified FILOT Act. 

Section 5.02. Title to Project. The Company and/or its designated Co-Investors shall 
retain title, or other property rights, to its respective portion of the Project throughout the Term of 
this Agreement, and the Company and any Co-Investor shall have full right to mortgage or 
encumber the Project in connection with any financing transactions. 

Section 5.03 . Modification of Project. The Company shall have the right at any time 
and from time to time during the Term hereof to undertake, or permit a Co-Investor to undertake, 
any of the following: 

(a) The Company or a Co-Investor may, at its own expense, add to the Project 
all such real and personal property as the Company in its discretion deems useful or 

10 Ordinance 2020-027 



desirable, including Economic Development Property qualifying for the Negotiated 
FILOT under Section 6.01 hereof without any limit as to the amount thereof. 

(b) Subject to the provisions of Sections 5.04, 6.01(f)(ii) and 9.01 hereof, in 
any instance when the Company or a Co-Investor in its discretion determines any items 
included in the Project, including any portion of the Land and any other Economic 
Development Property, have become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, 
undesirable, or unnecessary for operations at the Project, the Company or such Co
Investor may remove such items or portions of the Project from the Project and sell, trade 
in, exchange, or otherwise dispose of them as a whole or in part without the consent of the 
County. 

(c) Subject to Section 6.01(f)(ii) hereof, the Company or a Co-Investor may, 
at any time and in its discretion by written notice to the County, remove any Economic 
Development Property, real or personal, from the Negotiated FILOT set forth in this 
Agreement and retain such property for use as part of its operations in the County, and 
thereafter such property will be subject to a FILOT under the Multi-County Park 
Agreement which is equivalent to ad valorem taxes. 

(d) Ifthe Company or a Co-Investor sells, leases, or otherwise disposes of any 
portion of, or adds any real property to, the Land, the Company or such Co-Investor shall 
deliver to the County, within 30 days thereafter, a new Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

(e) All Economic Development Property sold, leased or otherwise disposed of 
under this Section shall be deemed Released Property for purposes of this Agreement. 

Section 5.04. Payment of Administration Expenses. The Company will reimburse the 
County from time to time for its Administration Expenses promptly upon written request therefor, 
but in no event later than sixty (60) days after receiving written notice from the County specifying 
the nature of such expense and requesting the payment of the same. The County acknowledges it 
imposes no charges in the nature of impact fees or recurring fees in connection with the incentives 
authorized by this Agreement, and, aside from the attorneys' fees, the County anticipates no out 
of pocket expenses in connection with this Agreement and the transactions authorized hereby. The 
parties understand that counsel to the County has estimated its fees and other expenses for review 
of this Agreement and all resolutions, ordinances and other documentation related thereto at 
$5,000. 

Section 5.05. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. During the Term of this 
Agreement, the Company shall use the Project as it deems fit for any lawful purpose. 

Section 5.06. Records and Reports. The Company agrees to maintain such books and 
records with respect to the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project 
it has placed in service in each Property Tax Year during the Investment Period, the amount of 
investment with respect thereto and computations of all Negotiated FILOT Payments made 
hereunder and will comply with all reporting requirements of the State and the County applicable 

11 Ordinance 2020-027 



to Economic Development Property under the Act, including without limitation the reports 
required by 12-44-90 of the Code (collectively, "Filings"); provided, however, that the parties 
hereby waive in its entirety the requirement under Section 12-44-55 of the Simplified FILOT Act 
for a recapitulation of the terms of this Agreement. Specifically, the Company shall provide the 
following: 

(a) Each year during the Term hereof, the Company shall deliver to the County 
Auditor and the County Assessor a copy of its most recent annual filings made with the 
Department of Revenue with respect to the Project at the same time as delivery thereof to 
the Department ofRevenue. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Agreement, as well as a copy of 
the completed Form PT-443 required by the Department of Revenue, to be filed within 
thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery hereof with the County Auditor 
and the County Assessor of the County and of each county which is a party to the Multi
County Park Agreement, and with the Department of Revenue and shall update such Form 
PT -443 from time to time to the extent that the information therein is no longer accurate. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, the Company may, by clear, written 
designation, conspicuously marked, designate with respect to any Filings delivered to the County 
segments thereof that the Company believes contain proprietary, confidential, or trade secret 
matters. The County shall comply with all reasonable, written requests made by the Company 
with respect to maintaining the confidentiality of such designated segments. Except to the extent 
required by law, the County shall not knowingly and voluntarily release information, which has 
been designated as confidential or proprietary by the Company. 

ARTICLE VI 

FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES 

Section 6.01. Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes 

(a) In accordance with the Simplified FILOT Act, the parties hereby agree that 
there shall be due annually with respect to that portion of the Project constituting 
Economic Development Property, whether owned by the Company or by a Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate, a Negotiated FILOT calculated as set forth in this Section, at the places, 
in the manner and subject to the penalty assessments prescribed by the County or the 
Department of Revenue for ad valorem taxes. The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall 
initially be due under current Code requirements on the January 15 following the year in 
which the County adds the Economic Development Property to its tax rolls, and each 
January 15 thereafter as set forth in this Agreement. If the Company designates any 
additional Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates, as the same shall have been consented to by the 
County pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof, the Company must notify the County in writing 
at the time of such designation as to whether such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall be 
primarily liable for all or any portion of the FILOT Payments hereunder. Unless and until 

12 Ordinance 2020-027 



such notification is received, and the County consents in writing, the Company shall be 
primarily liable for all FILOT Payments with respect to the Project. 

(b) Subject to adjustment pursuant to the provisions of this Section 6.01, the 
Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated each year in accordance with the following 
prOVISIOns: 

(i) For each annual increment of investment in Economic Development 
Property during the Investment Period, the annual Negotiated FILOT Payment with 
respect to the Project shall be payable for a period of forty (40) years, all in 
accordance with Section 12-44-30(21) ofthe Simplified FILOT Act. Accordingly, 
if such Economic Development Property is placed in service during more than one 
year, each year's investment during the Investment Period shall be subject to the 
Negotiated FILOT for a payment period of forty ( 40) years, and may result in an 
aggregate fee period of up to fifty-five (55) years as provided in Section 4-12-
30(C)(4) ofthe Original FILOT Act. 

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT applicable to the Project shall be calculated 
using (1) an assessment ratio of 4%; (2) a millage rate of222.3 mills for the Project 
and Expanded Project (except that a millage rate of 241.8 mills shall be used for 
the portion of the Expanded Project relating to the New Facility), which was the 
millage rate applicable under the Lease and which rate shall be fixed in accordance 
with Section 12-44-50(A)(l )(b )(i) of the Code for the entire 40 years specified in 
clause (i) above for the Project and Expanded Project; and (3) the fair market value 
of such Economic Development Property determined as provided hereinbelow. 
Such Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated in accordance with the standard fee 
calculation method specified in accordance with clauses (1) and (2) of Section 12-
44-50(A) of the Code. 

(iii) For purposes of calculating the Negotiated FILOT provided herein, 
fair market value shall be determined in accordance with Section 12-44-50(A)( 1 )(c) 
of the Code, which, for typical arm ' s length construction or acquisition, uses the 
original income tax basis for any real property without regard to depreciation or 
reassessment and the original income tax basis for any personal property less 
allowable depreciation (except depreciation due to extraordinary obsolescence). 

(iv) All such calculations shall take into account all deductions for 
depreciation or diminution in value allowed by the Code or by the tax laws 
generally, as well as tax exemptions which would have been applicable if such 
property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the five-year exemption from 
County taxes allowed for certain manufacturing, distribution, corporate 
headquarters and research and development facilities pursuant to Section 3(g) of 
Article X of the Constitution of the State and Sections 12-37-220(B)(32) and (34) 
of the Code. 

13 Ordinance 2020-027 



(v) For purposes of calculating the Negotiated FILOT, Economic 
Development Property shall not include any Released Property or Non-Qualifying 
Property. 

(c) The Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to the Project are to be 
recalculated : 

(i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate disposes of any part of the Economic Development Property 
within the meaning of Section 12-44-50(8) of the Simplified FILOT Act and as 
provided in Section 5.03(b) hereof, by the amount applicable to the Released 
Property; 

(ii) to reduce such payments in the event that the Economic 
Development Property or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost or 
stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, or otherwise removed from the 
Project as a result of reasons beyond the control of the Company or any Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate; 

(iii) to increase such payments in the event the Company or any Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate adds any Economic Development Property (other than 
Replacement Property) to the Project; or 

(iv) to adjust such payments if the Company or any Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate elects to convert any portion of the Economic Development Property to 
ad valorem taxes or a FILOT equivalent to such ad valorem taxes, as permitted by 
Section 5.03(c); 

(d) Upon installation or placing in service of any Replacement Property for 
any Released Property, such Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated 
FILOT Payments to the fullest extent allowed by law, subject to the following rules: 

(i) Such Replacement Property does not have to serve the same 
function as the Released Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is deemed 
to replace the oldest property subject to the Negotiated FILOT, whether real or 
personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year as the Replacement 
Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies for Negotiated FILOT 
Payments up to the original income tax basis of the Released Property which it is 
replacing in the same Property Tax Year. More than one piece of property can 
replace a single piece of property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the 
Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Released 
Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to payments equal to 
the ad valorem taxes or FILOT equivalent which would have been paid on such 
property but for this Agreement. Replacement Property is entitled to the Negotiated 

14 Ordinance 2020-027 



FILOT Payments for the remaining portion of the forty-year payment period 
applicable to the Released Property. 

(ii) The Company shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, records 
sufficient to identify all Replacement Property, and the Negotiated FILOT 
Payments with respect thereto shall be calculated using the millage rate, assessment 
ratio and calculation method applicable to the Released Property it is replacing. 

(e) In the event that, for any reason, the Simplified FILOT Act and/or the 
Negotiated FILOT or any portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following 
allowable appeals, declared invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of 
the Project consisting of Economic Development Property is deemed not to be eligible for 
a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County 
express their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company 
benefits commensurate with those intended under this Agreement as permitted by law, 
including without limitation any benefits afforded under Title 4, Chapter 12 and Title 4, 
Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent allowed by law. Absent the legal 
authorization to effect such reformation, the Company and the County agree that there 
shall be due hereunder with respect to the portion of the Economic Development Property 
affected by such circumstances ad valorem taxes or the FILOT equivalent and that, to the 
extent permitted by law, the Company and any affected Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates 
shall be entitled: (1) to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or fees in 
lieu of taxes) provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any 
other exemption allowed by law; (2) to enjoy all allowable depreciation or other 
diminution in value; and (3) to receive all other tax credits which would be due if they 
were obligated to pay ad valorem taxes hereunder. To the extent that under such 
circumstances the Negotiated FILOT Payments hereunder are subject to retroactive 
adjustment, then there shall be due and payable with respect to the portion of the Economic 
Development Property in question an amount equal to the difference between the 
Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the amount which would have 
been paid as ad valorem taxes, together with interest on such deficiency as provided in 
Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code (a "Deficiency Payment"). 

(f) 

(i) As provided in Section S.Ol(a) hereof, the County acknowledges 
that the Company has met all statutory requirements regarding investment in the 
Project. 

(ii) In the event that the Company's investment in the Project based on 
an income tax basis without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value falls 
below the Statutory Investment Requirement, the Project shall thereafter be subject 
to ad valorem taxes or the FILOT equivalent, calculated as set forth in paragraph 
(e) above. 

15 Ordinance 2020-027 



(iii) As noted in Section S.Ol(a) above, the County acknowledges that 
the Company has met all contractual requirements under the Lease regarding 
investment and job creation at the Project. 

(iv) In accordance with the provisions of Sections S.Ol(c) and 7.02 
hereof, except for Existing Property, all property utilized by the Company within 
the County, whether owned by the Company outright or utilized by the Company 
pursuant to any financing agreement or any lease or other arrangement with any 
Co-Investor and whether or not subject to this Agreement, shall be counted toward 
all investment obligations under this Agreement, including, to the extent permitted 
by law, investment obligations under the Act. 

(g) Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement or as otherwise required 
by the Act, any amounts due to the County under this Section 6.01 as a Deficiency 
Payment or other retroactive payment shall, at the option of the Company, be paid either 
as a lump sum within one year of receipt by the Company from the County of a written 
notice requesting the payment thereof, or in five equal annual installments (which shall 
include interest at the rates required for past due payments of ad valorem taxes) beginning 
on the date which is one year after receipt of such notice. If the Company elects to pay 
any such amount over such five-year period, the Company shall furnish to the County 
such security or other assurances as the County may reasonably request in order to secure 
the payment of such Deficiency Payments. 

Section 6.02. Statutory Lien. The parties acknowledge the County's right to receive 
FILOT Revenues hereunder shall have a statutory lien with respect to the Economic Development 
Property pursuant to Section 12-44-90(E) of the Simplified FILOT Act and Title 12, Chapter 54 
of the Code relating to the collection and enforcement of ad valorem property taxes. 

ARTICLE VII 

THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS 

Section 7.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment. The Company and any 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may at any time (a) transfer all or any of its rights and interests 
hereunder or with respect to all or any part of the Economic Development Property to any Person; 
or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing entity or other Person with respect to this Agreement or all 
or any part of the Economic Development Property, including without limitation any sale
leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit 
or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements, 
regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of such Economic Development Property, as 
long as the transferee in any such arrangement leases the Economic Development Property in 
question to the Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates or any Affiliates thereof or 
operates such assets for the Company or other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or any Affiliates 

16 Ordinance 2020-027 



thereof or is leasing such the Economic Development Property in question from the Company or 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or any Affiliates thereof. In order to preserve the benefits of 
the Negotiated FILOT hereunder with respect to property so transferred: (i) except in connection 
with any transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or another Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or 
transfers pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall first obtain the written consent of the 
County which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld and shall be furnished within 30 days 
of request; and (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of 
the Economic Development Property is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such 
financing entity assumes in writing the obligations of the Company hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing or when the transfer relates to Released Property pursuant to Sections 5.03 
hereof, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company or such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate hereunder. The Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, 
transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished 
to the County and the Department of Revenue a true and complete copy of any such transfer 
agreement, and the Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required herein, and at the expense of the Company or 
such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, the County agrees to execute such further agreements, 
documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the assumption by any 
such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate under this Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section 7.01. 

Section 7.02. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates. The Company may designate from 
time to time additional Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-
44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, which 
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Company and make investments 
with respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of such investments, who agree to 
be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who shall be Affiliates of the 
Company or other Persons described in Section 7.01(b) hereof. All other Sponsors or Sponsor 
Affiliates who otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-
44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act must be approved by Resolution of the County Council. To 
the extent that a Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate invests an amount equal to the Statutory Investment 
Requirement at the Project prior to the end of the Investment Period, the investment by such 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall qualify for the Negotiated FILOT payable under Section 6.01 
hereof (subject to the other conditions set forth herein) in accordance with Section 12-44-30(19) 
of the Simplified FILOT Act. Because the aggregate investment in the Project prior to the end of 
the Investment Period by the Company, all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeded $5,000,000 
as provided in Section 12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Act, all investment by such Sponsors 
and Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the Negotiated FILOT 
pursuant to Section 6.01 of this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth herein) 
regardless of whether each such entity invested amounts equal to the Statutory Investment 

17 Ordinance 2020-027 



Requirement. The Company shall provide the County and the Department of Revenue with written 
notice of any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section 7.02 within ninety 
(90) days after the end of the calendar year during which any such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
has placed in service Economic Development Property to be used in connection with the Project, 
all in accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act. 

ARTICLE VIII 

TERM; TERMINATION 

Section 8.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and provisions 
herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a term 
commencing on the date on which the Company executed the Lease, and ending at midnight on 
the day the last Negotiated FILOT Payment is made hereunder. In no case shall this Agreement 
extend beyond January 15, 2052. 

Section 8.02. Termination. In addition to the rights of the County under Sections 
6.0l(g) and 9.02, the County and the Company may jointly agree to terminate this Agreement at 
any time, or the Company, may, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time, with respect 
to all or a portion of the Project in which event the Project, or such portion of the Project, shall be 
subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of termination. Notwithstanding termination of this 
Agreement, the County shall have the same rights to receive payment for any retroactive ad 
valorem taxes, Deficiency Payments, interest or penalties, and the same enforcement rights with 
respect to such obligations as it would have with respect to ad valorem taxes, and the County's 
rights arising under Section 6.01 prior to the time of such termination shall survive any such 
termination. 

ARTICLE IX 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 9.01. Events of Default by Company. Any one or more of the following 
events (herein called an "Event of Default", or collectively "Events of Default") shall constitute 
an Event of Default by the Company: 

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any Negotiated 
FILOT Payments, which default shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of written notice of such default from the County; or 

(b) if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or 
compliance with any of the terms hereof, other than those referred to in the foregoing 
paragraph (a), and such default shall continue for ninety (90) days after the County shall 
have given the Company written notice of such default; provided, the County may, in its 
discretion, grant the Company a longer period oftime as necessary to cure such default if 
the Company proceeds with due diligence to cure such default; provided however, that no 

18 Ordinance 2020-027 



Event of Default shall exist under this agreement during any period when there is pending, 
before any judicial or administrative tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which 
the Company has contested the occurrence of such default. 

Failure to meet any investment requirements set forth herein shall not be deemed to be an Event 
of Default under this Agreement, but may allow the County to tenninate or adjust certain benefits 
hereunder or obligate the Company to make certain additional payments to the County, all as set 
forth in Sections 5.04, 8.02 and 6.01(t) hereof. 

Section 9.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence of 
any Event of Default, the County may exercise any of the following remedies: 

(a) tenninate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the Company not 
less than sixty (60) days prior to the termination date specified therein; 

(b) have access to and inspect, examine, and make copies of the books, 
records, and accounts of the Company pertaining to the construction, acquisition, or 
maintenance of the Project or calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant hereto as 
provided in Section 5.06 hereof; or 

(c) take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or 
desirable to collect the amount then due or enforce the County's rights hereunder, it being 
the express intent of the parties that the County, without limitation, shall have the same 
remedies available by law to collect FILOT Payments as if they were delinquent ad 
valorem tax payments, including execution upon the lien referred to in Section 6.02 
hereof. 

Notwithstanding termination of this Agreement, the County shall have the same rights to 
receive payment for any ad valorem taxes, including any retroactive ad valorem taxes, Deficiency 
Payments, interest or penalties, and the same enforcement rights, as it would have with respect to 
ad valorem taxes, and the County's rights under Section 6.01(t) and this Section 9.02 with respect 
to any such payments then due and owing shall survive any such termination. 

Section 9.03. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make any 
of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall continue 
as an obligation ofthe Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid. If any such 
default relates to its obligations to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the Company agrees to pay 
the same with interest thereon at the rate per annum provided by the Code for late payment of ad 
valorem taxes together with any penalties provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem 
taxes, all as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the Code. 

Section 9.04. Application of Monies upon Enforcement of Remedies against 
Company. Any monies received by the County upon enforcement of its rights hereunder shall be 
applied as follows : first , to the reasonable costs associated with such enforcement proceedings; 

19 Ordinance 2020-027 



second, to pay Administration Expenses; third, to pay the Negotiated FILOT in accordance with 
Section 6.01 hereof, and, fourth, to other amounts due and payable hereunder. 

Section 9.05. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the performance 
of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law or in equity as 
may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement, including without 
limitation a suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

ARTICLE X 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.0 1. Rights and Remedies Cumulative; Third Party Beneficiary. Each right, 
power, and remedy of the County or of the Company provided for in this Agreement shall be 
cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power, or remedy provided 
for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any jurisdiction where 
such rights, powers, and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise by the County or by 
the Company of any one or more of the rights, powers, or remedies provided for in this Agreement 
or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the 
simultaneous or later exercise by the County or by the Company of any or all such other rights, 
powers, or remedies. 

Section 1 0.02. Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto , any Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliates designated pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof and their respective successors and assigns 
as permitted hereunder. 

Section 10.03. Notices; Demands; Requests. All notices, demands, and requests to be 
given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, or 
reputable courier service, to the following persons and addresses or to such other persons and 
places as may be designated in writing by such party. 

(a) As to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn.: County Administrator 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

(b) with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 

Leon Harmon, Esq. 
Anderson County Attorney 
Post Office Box 8002 

20 Ordinance 2020-027 



Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

(c) As to the Company: 

Michelin North America, Inc. 
Attn: Brock Christ 
1 ParkwayS. 
Greenville, South Carolina 29615 

(d) with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 

Burnet R. Maybank III, Esq. 
Andrew W. Saleeby, Esq . 
N ex sen Pruet, LLC 
1230 Main Street, Suite 700 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

Section 1 0.04. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina. To the extent of any conflict between 
the provisions of this Agreement and the Act, the Act controls. 

Section 1 0.05 . Substantive Tenns. It is the intent of the parties hereto that the 
substantive terms of this Agreement set forth herein to be identical to the tenns of the Lease as 
attached hereto by reference as Exhibit B. If there are any inconsistencies set forth herein (except 
for the statutory different authorities of the Original FILOT Act and the Simplified FILOT Act), 
the substantive terms of the Lease shall prevail. 

Section 1 0.06. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire 
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto 
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is not 
expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the execution 
and delivery hereof. 

Section 10.07. Severability. In the event that any clause or provts10ns of this 
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such 
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

Section 1 0.08. Headings and Table of Contents; References. The headings of the 
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof. All 
references in this Agreement to particular articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement are 
references to the designated articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement. 

21 Ordinance 2020-027 



Section 10.09. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Section 10.1 0. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 12-44-
40(K)(2) of the Simplified FILOT Act, this Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest 
of the parties hereunder surrendered, only by a writing signed by both parties. 

Section 1 0.11. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any 
term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 1 0.12. Further Proceedings. This Agreement in final form shall be approved 
by ordinance of the County Council. The parties intend that any action to be taken hereinafter by 
the County pursuant to the express provisions of the final fonn of this Agreement may be 
undertaken by the Chairman of the Council without necessity of further proceedings. To the extent 
additional proceedings are required by law, however, the County agrees to undertake all such steps 
as may be reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the intent of this Agreement. 

[Execution Pages to Follow] 

22 Ordinance 2020-027 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed 
this Conversion and Fee in Lieu ofTax Agreement to be effective as of the date first written above. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

By: ________________________________ ___ 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

By: ____________________________________ _ 
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

By: ____________________________ ___ 
Name: ------------------------------
Title: -------------------------------

23 Ordinance 2020-027 



EXHffiiTA 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

A-1 Ordinance 2020-027 



EXHffiiTB 

LEASE AGREEMENTS 

B-2 Ordinance 2020-027 



BILL OF SALE 

THIS BILL OF SALE (this "Bill of Sale") is given by ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the 
"County"), to Michelin North America, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of New York and qualified to do business in South Carolina (the "Company"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the County, as lessor, and the Company, as lessee, are parties to that certain Lease 
Agreement dated as of December 1, 1996 (the "Lease") pertaining to certain personal property owned by 
the County described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has determined to exercise its option to purchase the Property pursuant 
to Section 5.2 of the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has satisfied all of the requirements set forth in the Lease for the 
purchase of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires and intends hereby to convey to the Company any and all interest 
in the Property heretofore titled in the County pursuant to the terms of the Lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the County, for and in 
consideration of the sum of One and No/1 00 Dollar ($1 .00), lawful money of the United States, and no 
other valuable consideration, to it well and truly paid by the Company, at or before the ensealing and 
delivery hereof, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, 
sell , assign, transfer and convey to the Company all of the County' s right, title and interest, if any, in and 
to all of the Property, including, without limitation, all machinery, equipment, fixtures and other personal 
property located on or about the real property more particularly described on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the Company, its successors and assigns, absolutely. 

This Bill of Sale is made, executed, and delivered pursuant to the Lease. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED] 



WITNESS the County's hand and seal effective as of the ___ day of ______ , 2020. 

ATTEST: 

____________ (SEAL) 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

2 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

_____________ (, SEAL) 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-027 



EXHIBIT A 

All machinery, equipment, fixtures and personal property of every kind and only to the extent 
Anderson County holds title thereto, located at and installed upon or used on or about those certain 
manufacturing and distribution facilities constructed on the property more particularly described on 
Exhibit A-1 attached to this Bill of Sale. 

Exhibit A Ordinance 2020-027 



EXHIBIT A-1 

Exhibit A-1 Ordinance 2020-027 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) CANCELLATION OF BONDS 
) 

Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County') , acting by and through its County 
Council (the "County Council") , is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 197 6, as amended (the "Code') , and particular! y 
Title 4, Chapter 29 (the "Original FILOT Act"), Title 4, Chapter 12 (the "Streamlined FILOT 
Act'), and Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "Simplified FILOT Act') of the Code (i) to enter into 
agreements whereby business enterprises will construct, operate, maintain, and improve industrial 
and commercial facilities through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina 
(the "State") will be promoted; and (ii) to covenant with such business enterprises to accept certain 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax ("FILOT") payments, including, but not limited to, negotiated FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Original FILOT Act, the Streamlined FILOT Act, or the Simplified 
FILOT Act, as the case may be, with respect to such facilities. 

Pursuant to the Original FILOT Act and Anderson County Ordinance 96-024, which was 
duly enacted by the County Council on December 3, 1996, Michelin North America, Inc. , a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York (the "Company') and 
the County previous! y entered into that certain Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 1996 (as 
amended and restated by those certain Amendments to Lease Agreement by and between the 
County and the Company dated as of December 1, 1999, December 31 , 2003, and January 3, 2006, 
the "Lease") , whereby the Company established certain facilities located in the County which 
facilities have been used by the Company primarily to manufacture tires and related products and to 
conduct research, development, distribution, office and other legal activities and function with respect 
thereto (the "Project") and pursuant to which the Company previously made certain negotiated 
FILOT payments to the County with respect to the Project, all in accordance with the Original 
FILOT Act. 

In order to finance the costs of the acqmsttlon, construction, installation, expansion, 
improvement, design and engineering of certain real properties and improvements thereto and the 
machinery, equipment, fixtures, office production, distribution, research development facilities 
and furnishings to be installed in the Project, the County issued its $300,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount Anderson County, South Carolina Industrial Revenue Bonds (Michelin North 
America, Inc. Project) (the "Bonds') pursuant to Anderson County Ordinance 96-024 and that 
certain Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 1996, among the County, First Union National 
Bank of South Carolina, National Association, and the Company, as purchaser of the Bonds (the 
"Indenture') and the Original FILOT Act. 

Pursuant to Section 12-44-170 of the Simplified FILOT Act, the County and the Company 
have converted and re-documented the negotiated FILOT and other incentive arrangements 
specified in the Lease pursuant to that certain Conversion and Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement dated 
as of _, 2020 (the "Fee Agreement') between the County and the Company and 
further agreed in the Fee Agreement that the Bonds were thereby cancelled and the Lease was 
thereby terminated. In conjunction with such conversion and re-documentation, and in accordance 
with Section 12-44-170(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act and with the provisions of the Lease, the 

NPCOLI :6 1231 77. 1-DOC-(TVC) 029827-00008 
Ordinance 2020-027 



County further agreed in the Fee Agreement to convey, and has conveyed, to the Company its 
right, title and interest in and to the Project. 

In order to effect cancellation of the Bonds, the Company agrees to simultaneously 
herewith pay to the order of First Union National Bank of South Carolina, National Association, 
or its successor or successors in interest with regard to the Indenture (the "Trustee"), the principal 
of the Bonds issued and secured thereunder, the interest due or to become due thereon, and all 
sums of money due or to become due to the Trustee in accordance with the terms and provisions 
of the Indenture. 

In consideration of the County's conveyance of the Project to the Company, the Company 
and the County hereby agree, affirm, and ratify that the Bonds have been cancelled and agree that 
the County shall have no further obligation to the Company thereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand effective as of the _ day of 
____ , 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

By: ----------------------------------
Name: -------------------------------
Title: ---------------------------------

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

NPCOLI :6 1231 77. 1-DOC-(TVC) 029827-00008 
Ordinance 2020-027 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
(OF ALL RIGHT, TITLE, 

AND INTEREST) 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED (OF ALL RIGHT, TITLE, AND INTEREST) is given by 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (hereinafter referred to as "Grantor"), to MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, 
INC., a Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and qualified to do 
business in South Carolina, with a mailing address of One Parkway South, Post Office Box 19001, 
Greenville, South Carolina 29602-9001 (hereinafter referred to as "Grantee"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Grantor, as lessor, and Grantee, as lessee, are parties to that certain Lease 
Agreement dated as of December 1, 1996 (the "Lease") and recorded in the office of the Anderson 
County Register of Deeds (the "Recording Office") at Book 2548, Page 82 pertaining to certain property 
owned by Grantor (as hereinafter described in more detail, the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, Grantee has determined to exercise its option to purchase the Property pursuant to 
Section 5.2 of the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, Grantee has satisfied all of the requirements set forth in the Lease for the purchase 
of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Grantor desires and intends hereby to release, renuse, and forever quitclaim to 
Grantee any and all interest in the Property heretofore titled in Grantor. 

GRANT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Grantor, for and in 
consideration of the sum of One and Noll 00 Dollar ($1 .00), lawful money of the United States, and no 
other valuable consideration, to it well and truly paid by Grantee, at and before the sealing and delivery 
hereof, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, has hereby released, remised, and 
quitclaimed, and by these presents does hereby release, remise, and forever quitclaim unto the said 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever, all of Grantor' s right, title, and interest in and to the 
following described property, including any and all fixtures and improvements thereon (the "Property"): 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

GRANTEE'S MAILING ADDRESS: One Parkway South, Post Office Box 19001 , Greenville, 
South Carolina 29602-9001 

TOGETHER with all and singular, the rights , members, buildings, improvements, and fixtures 
situated on the Property and all hereditaments and appurtenances to the Property belonging or in anywise 
incident or appertaining and all of the estate and rights of the Grantor in and to the Property. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the said premises and interest quitclaimed above 
unto Grantee and the successors and assigns of Grantee, forever, so that neither Grantor, nor the 
successors or assigns of Grantor nor any other person or persons claiming under Grantor, or any of them, 



shall at any time hereafter, by any way or means, have, claim or demand any right or title to the Property 
or appurtenances or any part or parcel thereof, forever. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED] 

- 2 - Ordinance 2020-027 



WITNESS Grantor's hand and seal effective as of the __ day of ________ , 2020. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED 

IN THE PRESENCE OF: 

Witness Number 1 

Witness Number 2 

- 3 -

GRANTOR: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

By: ____________ (SEAL) 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

ATTEST: 

By: (SEAL) 
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Ordinance 2020-027 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I, a notary public for the State of South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, by Tommy Dunn, its Chairman of County Council, 
and attested to by Lacey Croegaert, its Clerk to County Council, personally appeared before me this day 
and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and seal (where an official seal is required by law) official seal, this __ day 
of , 2020. 

_______________________ (SEAL) 
Signature ofNotary Public 
My Commission Expires: _______ _ 

- 4- Ordinance 2020-027 



EXHIDIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY CONVEYED: 

Ordinance 2020-027 



THIS INSTRUMENT WAS PREPARED BY AND UPON COMPLETION OF 
RECORDATION PROCESS, PLEASE RETURN TO: 

BURNET R. MA YBANK III, ESQUIRE 
ANDREW W. SALEEBY, ESQUIRE 
NEXSEN PRUET, LLC 
POST OFFICE BOX 2426 
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29202 

Ordinance 2020-027 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) AFFIDAVIT 

PERSONALLY appeared before me the undersigned, who being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

1. I have read the information on this affidavit and I understand such information. 

2 . The property being transferred is located in the County of Anderson, bearing Anderson County 
Tax Map Number and was transferred by 
Anderson County, South Carolina to Michelin North America, Inc. on the date shown on the 
foregoing deed. 

3. Check one of the following: The deed is 

(a) __ _ 

(b) __ 

(c) -=-X,___ 

subject to the deed recording fee as a transfer for consideration paid or to be paid 
in money or money's worth. 

subject to the deed recording fee as a transfer between a corporation, a 
partnership, or other entity and a stockholder, partner, or owner of the entity, or is 
a transfer to a trust or as a distribution to a trust beneficiary. 

exempt from the deed recording fee because (See Information Section of 
Affidavit) : # 1 (If exempt, please skip items 4 - 7, and go to item 8 of this 
affidavit.) . Exemption (1) ($1.00). 

4 . Check one of the following if either item 3(a) or item 3(b) above has been checked (See 
Information section of this affidavit) : 

(a) __ _ 

(b) __ 

(c) __ 

The fee is computed on the consideration paid or to be paid in money or money ' s 
worth in the amount of$ -------

The fee is computed on the fair market value of the realty which is __ 

The fee is computed on the fair market value of the realty as established for 
property tax purposes which is _. 

5. Check Yes __ or No __ to the following: A lien or encumbrance on the land, tenement, or 
realty before the transfer and remained on the land, tenement, or realty after the transfer. If 
"Yes," the amount of the outstanding balance of this lien or encumbrance is _ _ _ _ _ 

6. The deed recording fee is computed as follows : 

(a) 

(b) -

(c)-

Place the amount listed in item 4 above here: 

Place the amount listed in item 5 above here: 

(If no amount is listed, place zero here.) 

Subtract Line 6(b) from Line 6(a) and place result here: 

$ __ _ 

$ _ _ _ 

$ __ _ 

7. The deed recording fee due is based on the amount listed on Line 6( c) above and the deed 
recording fee due is $ _______ _ 

8. As required by Code Section 12-24-70, I state that I am a responsible person who was connected 
with the transaction as: Grantor 

-=~~~--------

9. I understand that a person required to furnish this affidavit who willfully furnishes a false or 
fraudulent affidavit is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, must be fined not more than 
one thousand dollars or imprisoned not more than one year, or both. 

Ordinance 2020-027 



Sworn to before me this 
________ (SEAL) 
day of , 2020 
Notary Public for ________ _ 
My Commission Expires: _____ _ 

INFORMATION 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman, County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

Except as provided in this paragraph, the term "value" means "the consideration paid or to be paid in money or 
money's worth for the realty." Consideration paid or to be paid in money's worth includes, but is not limited to, 
other realty, personal property, stocks, bonds, partnership 

interest and other intangible property, the forgiveness or cancellation of a debt, the assumption of a debt, and the 
surrendering of any right. The fair market value of the consideration must be used in calculating the consideration 
paid in money' s worth. Taxpayers may elect to use the fair market value of the realty being transferred in 
determining fair market value of the consideration. In the case of realty transferred between a corporation, a 
partnership, or other entity and a stockholder, partner, or owner of the entity, and in the case of realty transferred to a 
trust or as a distribution to a trust beneficiary, "value" means the realty's fair market value. A deduction from value 
is allowed for the amount of any lien or encumbrance existing on the land, tenement, or realty before the transfer 
and remaining on the land, tenement, or realty after the transfer. Taxpayers may elect to use the fair market value 
for property tax purposes in determining fair market value under the provisions of the law. 

Exempted from the fee are deeds: 

(1) transferring realty in which the value of the realty, as defined in Code Section 12-24-30, is equal to or less 
than one hundred dollars; 

(2) transferring realty to the federal government or to a state, its agencies and departments, and its political 
subdivisions, including school districts; 

(3) that are otherwise exempted under the laws and Constitution of this State or of the United States; 

( 4) transferring realty in which no gain or loss is recognized by reason of Section I 041 of the Internal Revenue 
Code as defined in Section 12-6-40(A); 

(5) transferring realty in order to partition realty as long as no consideration is paid for the transfer other than 
the interests in the realty that are being exchanged in order to partition the realty; 

(6) transferring an individual grave space at a cemetery owned by a cemetery company licensed under Chapter 
55 of Title 39; 

(7) that constitute a contract for the sale of timber to be cut; 

(8) transferring realty to a corporation, a partnership, or a trust in order to become, or as, a stockholder, partner, 
or trust beneficiary of the entity provided no consideration is paid for the transfer other than stock in the corporation, 
interest in the partnership, beneficiary interest in the trust, or the increase in value in such stock or interest held by 

2 Ordinance 2020-027 



the grantor. However, the transfer of realty from a corporation, a partnership, or a trust to a stockholder, partner, or 
trust beneficiary of the entity is subject to the fee even if the realty is transferred to another corporation, a 
partnership , or trust; 

(9) transferring realty from a family partnership to a partner or from a family trust to a beneficiary, provided no 
consideration is paid for the transfer other than a reduction in the grantee's interest in the partnership or trust. A 
"family partnership" is a partnership whose partners are all members of the same family. A "family trust" is a trust, 
in which the beneficiaries are all members of the same family. The beneficiaries of a family trust may also include 
charitable entities. "Family" means the grantor and the grantor's spouse, parents, grandparents, sisters, brothers, 
children, stepchildren, grandchildren, and the spouses and lineal descendants of any of the above. A "charitable 
entity" means an entity which may receive deductible contributions under Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code 
as defined in Section 12-6-40(A); 

( 1 0) transferring realty in a statutory merger or consolidation from a constituent corporation to the continuing or 
new corporation; 

(11) transferring realty in a merger or consolidation from a constituent partnership to the continuing or new 
partnership; and, 

( 12) that constitute a corrective deed or a quitclaim used to confirm title vested in the grantee, provided that no 
consideration of any kind is paid or is to be paid under the corrective or quitclaim deed. 

3 Ordinance 2020-027 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-028 

AN ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE (SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE) CREDIT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE "COUNTY") AND 
MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. (FKA MICHELIN TIRE CORPORATION) (THE 
"COMPANY") TO PROVIDE FOR INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS WITH RESPECT TO 
CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE COUNTY; (2) THE BENEFITS OF A 
MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS PARK DESIGNATION TO BE MADE 
AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND SUCH PROPERTY; AND (3) OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

Be it ordained by the Council of Anderson County, South Carolina: 

Section 1. Findings. 

The Anderson County Council finds that: 

(a) Anderson County (the "County") is authorized and empowered to establish, in conjunction with 
one or more other counties, a joint county industrial or business park (each a "Park") pursuant to Article 
VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South Carolina, and Sections 4-1 -1 70, 4-1-172, and 4-1-175 of 
the Code, as amended (the "Act") to further the investment of capital and/or the creation of jobs in the 
County, and to facilitate the grant of infrastructure credits; 

(b) the County is authorized by Sections 4-1-175 and 4-29-68 of the Code, as amended, to provide 
infrastructure credits for the purpose of defraying the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, 
operating or expanding the infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate 
and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing 
facility or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County ("Special 
Source Improvements"); 

(c) Michelin North America, Inc. is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of New York (the "Company") and is operating through itself and/or one or more existing or to be formed 
affiliated entities, certain real and personal property, one or more existing buildings, and other existing real 
property improvements located in the City and the County, including, but not limited to, land, real estate 
improvements and personal property more fully described in EXHffiiT A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof (the "Original Project"); and 

(d) in accordance with Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution and the Act, real 
and personal property having a situs in a Park, is exempt from all ad valorem taxation, but, the owners or 
lessees of such real and personal property are obligated to make, or cause to be made, payments in lieu of 
taxes to the county in which such property is located in the total amount equivalent to the ad valorem 
property taxes or other fee in lieu of tax payments that would have been due and payable with respect to 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
PCO LI :7955044.1 



such real and personal property but for the location of such real and personal property within such Park and 
such exemption (each, a "Anderson Fee Payment"); 

(e) pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, the 
County and the Michelin Tire Corporation entered into that certain Lease Agreement dated as of December 
I , 1988, and recorded January 5, 1989 in the Office of the Clerk of Court for the County in Book 00777, at 
page 00001 (as amended, modified of supplemented through the date hereof, the " 1988 Lease"), wherein 
the Company agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, certain fee in lieu of tax ("PILOT") 
payments with respect to certain manufacturing facilities located within the County (the "Original Project", 
with such Original Project and related PILOT payments being the "Original Project PILOT"); 

(f) Michelin Tire Corporation changed its name to Michelin North America, Inc. on February 3, 1995; 

(g) the 1988 Lease specified that Michelin Original Project Property placed in service from 1988 
through 1993 under the 1988 Lease was eligible for inclusion in the Original Project PILOT and that such 
property was included therein for a period of twenty (20) years; 

(h) the South Carolina General Assembly passed 1993 Act No. 123 to provide, with regard to Title 4, 
Chapter 29, that " investors having a lease agreement which was entered into before the effective date of 
this act meeting the eighty-five million dollar minimum level of investment required under Section 4-29-
67(C) within five years from the date the lease agreement was signed shall have seven years from the date 
the lease agreement was signed to complete the investment, unless a longer period is otherwise stipulated 
in the lease agreement"; 

(i) the Company met the eighty-five million dollar minimum level of investment required under 
section 4-29-67(C) within five years from the date the lease agreement was signed, thereby extending the 
end of the investment period from December 31 , 1993 to December 31 , 1995 (the initial five-year period 
ending December 31 , 1993, and the two-year extension under 1993 Act No. 123 referred to in the aggregate 
as the "Original Project Investment Period", which for clarification includes the periods ending December 
31 , 1988 through December 31 , 1995); 

U) the parties amended the 1988 Lease on December 28 , 2007 providing that the initial PILOT period 
of twenty (20) years would be extended for an additional ten (1 0) years after the initial twenty (20) year 
period, for a total PILOT period of thirty (30) years; 

(k) in accordance with the 1988 Lease, the annual increment of investment in Michelin Original Project 
Property placed in service in 1988 during the Original Project Investment Period becomes ineligible for the 
Original Project PILOT beginning after 201 8 for tax year 2019, and each subsequent annual increment of 
investment in Michelin Original Project Property placed in service during the Original Project Investment 
Period thereafter becomes ineligible for the Original Project PILOT on an annual rolling basis, with the 
final such annual increment of investment (i. e., such investment placed in service in 1995) to become 
ineligible for the Original Project PILOT beginning after 2025 for tax year 2026 (collectively, the "Non
PILOT Michelin Original Project Property"); 

(1) pursuant to the Original Project PILOT, and in conjunction with the 1988 Lease, the Company 
conveyed title in the Michelin Original Project Property to the County; 

(m) pursuant to Section 5.2 of the 1988 Lease, the Company has exercised or plans to exercise its option 
to repurchase portions of the Original Project as they become ineligible for the Original Project PILOT, as 
the case may be; 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



(n) pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 13(0) of the South Carolina Constitution and the 
Act, the County and Greenville County, South Carolina ("Greenville County") have jointly developed a 
Park (the "Anderson-Greenville Park") by entering into that certain Agreement for Development of Joint 
County Industrial and Business Park dated as of October 6, 1998, as may be amended, modified, or 
supplemented from time to time (the "Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement"); 

(o) it is beneficial to the County, and the County (1) has provided for inclusion of all Non-PILOT 
Michelin Original Project Property within the boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park, if such property 
is not already so included, (2) will subsequently undertake all such steps as may be reasonably required to 
include Michelin Original Project Property within the boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park as such 
property becomes ineligible for the Original Project PILOT, and (3) has determined to maintain the Non
PILOT Michelin Original Project Property within the boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park, or a 
replacement or successor Park, for a period of time, and on terms, sufficient to facilitate the provision to, 
and receipt by, the Company of infrastructure (special source revenue) credits set forth in greater detail 
herein; 

(p) the County, as further inducement for acquisition, and continued operation in the County, and in 
accordance with the Act, as set forth herein, has determined that the County shall provide, and the Company 
shall be entitled to receive, infrastructure (special source revenue) credits against each Anderson Fee 
Payment due from the Company with respect to Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property (the 
"Infrastructure Credits"), all as set forth in greater detail herein and in an infrastructure credit agreement by 
and between the County and the Company with respect to the Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project 
Property (the "Infrastructure Credit Agreement"), the form of which Infrastructure Credit Agreement is 
presented to this meeting, and which is to be dated as of , 2020 or such other date 
as the parties may agree, and in which the County and the Company have agreed to the specific terms and 
conditions of such arrangement; and 

(q) it appears that the Infrastructure Credit Agreement which is attached to this ordinance as EXHffiiT 
_!!, is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for 
the purposes intended; 

Section 2. Statutory Findings. 

Council makes the following additional findings : 

(a) The County' s actions herein will subserve the purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions 
and requirements of the Act. 

(b) The continued operation of the Original Project and future investment by the Company, and the 
payments in lieu of taxes set forth herein are beneficial to the County. 

(c) The Original Project benefits the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, tax revenue, and other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally. 

(d) The Infrastructure (special source) Credits gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any 
incorporated municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either. 

(e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Company, i .e., economic development and addition to the 
tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes. 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



(f) The inducement of the continued operation of the Original Project within the County and State is 
of paramount importance. 

(g) The benefits of the continued operation of the Original Project to the public will be greater than the 
costs to the public. 

Section 3. Approval and Execution of Amendment to Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement 
and Infrastructure Credit Agreement 

(a) In order to induce acquisition, location and continued operation of the Original Project in the 
County and to defray or reimburse the costs of Special Source Improvements, the County shall provide, 
and the Company shall be entitled to receive for a period of ten (1 0) consecutive tax years for each annual 
increment of investment in Michelin Original Project Property placed in service during the Original Project 
Investment Period as the same becomes ineligible for the Original Project PILOT on an annual rolling basis, 
commencing with the initial tax year for which an Anderson Fee Payment is due with respect to real and 
personal property located at the Original Project, infrastructure credits against each Anderson Fee Payment 
due in such an amount as is required so that the resulting Anderson Fee Payment due equals the amount of 
such payment if calculated using an assessment ratio of 6% and a fixed millage rate equal to 320.5 mills. 
The fee calculation must be made so that the property, if taxable, is allowed all applicable property tax 
exemptions except the exemption allowed under Section 3(g), Article X of the Constitution of this State 
and the exemptions allowed pursuant to Section 12-37-220(B)(32) and (34) of the Code, all as set forth in 
greater detail in the Infrastructure Credit Agreement. 

(b) In accordance with the Code, the Infrastructure Credits authorized herein shall not exceed the 
aggregate costs of the Special Source Improvements funded in connection with the Original Project by the 
Company. 

(c) The form, terms, provisions and conditions of the Infrastructure Credit Agreement presented to this 
meeting and filed with the Clerk to Council, attached hereto as EXHIBIT B, are hereby approved, and all 
of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the 
Infrastructure Credit Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of Council is 
hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute the Infrastructure Credit Agreement in the name 
and on behalf of the County; the Clerk to Council is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to attest 
the same; and the Chainnan of Council is further authorized, empowered, and directed to deliver the 
Infrastructure Credit Agreement to the Company. The Infrastructure Credit Agreement is to be in 
substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall 
not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the official 
or officials of the County executing the same, upon the advice of legal counsel, their execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form 
of the Infrastructure Credit Agreement now before this meeting. 

(d) In order to allow the provision of the Infrastructure (Special Source) Credits authorized herein, the 
County shall amend the Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement to include the land set forth in EXHffiiT A, 
and all real property improvements and personal property located therein in the Anderson-Greenville Park 
(the "Amendment"). 

(e) The form, terms, provisions and conditions of the Amendment presented to this meeting and filed 
with the Clerk to Council, attached hereto as EXHffiiT C, are hereby approved, and all of the terms, 
provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Amendment were 
set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of Council is hereby authorized, empowered, and 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



directed to execute the Amendment in the name and on behalf of the County; and the Clerk to Council is 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to attest the same. The Amendment is to be in substantially 
the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not materially 
adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the official or officials of 
the County executing the same, upon the advice of legal counsel, their execution thereof to constitute 
conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of the 
Amendment now before this meeting. 

Section 4. Authority to Act. 

The Council Chair, Council Secretary, Clerk to Council, County Administrator, County Attorney and all 
other appropriate officials of the County are authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary to 
effect the execution and delivery of the Amendment and Infrastructure Credit Agreement, and the 
performance of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to the Amendment and Infrastructure 
Credit Agreement. 

Section 5. Severability. 

If any section, subsection or clause of this ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, the 
validity of the remaining sections, subsections and clauses shall not be affected. 

Section 6. Controlling Provisions. 

To the extent this ordinance contains provisions that conflict with provisions contained elsewhere in the 
Anderson County Code or other County ordinances, resolutions or orders, the provisions contained in this 
ordinance supersede all other provisions and this ordinance is controlling. 

Section 7. Effective Date. 

This ordinance is effective upon third reading. 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



AND IT IS SO ORDAINED 

Dated this 15th day of December, 2020. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
December 15, 2020 
December 15, 2020 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 2020-028 

Property Description 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 2020-028 

Infrastructure Credit Agreement 

See attached. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 2020-028 

Amendment to Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044. 1 



INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

by and between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, 

AND 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. (FKA MICHELIN TIRE CORPORATION) 

Dated as of December 15, 2020 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page I of 12 

INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

This INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as of December 15, 2020 (as the same 
may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
"Agreement"), is by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and 
corporate, and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the "County"), and MICHELIN 
NORTH AMERICA, INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York 
(the "Company", and together with the County, the "Parties"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the "County Council") is 
authorized by the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code") and, particularly, 
Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-175 , and 4-29-68 of the Code (collectively, the "Act"), and Article VIII, Section 
13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution (i) to provide infrastructure credits (special source revenue 
credits) to investors for the purpose of defraying certain costs, including, without limitation, the cost of 
designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the County or a 
project and for improved and unimproved real estate and personal property, including, but not limited to, 
machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or commercial enterprise, all 
to enhance the economic development of the County; and (ii) to create, in conjunction with one or more 
other counties, a joint county industrial or business park ("Park") in order to facilitate the grant of such 
infrastructure credits (special source revenue credits) to such investors; and 

WHEREAS, the County and Michelin Tire Corporation, pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 29 of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, entered into that certain Lease Agreement dated as of 
December 1, 1988, and recorded January 5, 1989 in the Office of the Clerk of Court for the County in 
Book 00777, at page 00001 (as amended, modified of supplemented through the date hereof, the " 1988 
Lease"), wherein Michelin agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, certain fee in lieu of tax 
("PILOT") payments with respect to certain manufacturing facilities located within the County (the 
"Original Project", with such Original Project and related PILOT payments being the "Original Project 
PILOT"); and 

WHEREAS, the 1988 Lease specified that Michelin Original Project Property placed in service 
from 1988 through 1995 under the 1988 Lease (the "Original Project Investment Period") is eligible for 
inclusion in the Original Project PILOT and that each annual increment of investment in Michelin 
Original Project Property made during the Original Project Investment Period is eligible for twenty (20) 
years of Original Project PILOT benefits; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Amendment to Lease Agreement made and entered into by and 
between the County and Michelin on December 28, 2007, the Parties amended the 1988 Lease to provide 
that each annual increment of investment in Michelin Original Project Property made during the Original 
Project Investment Period is eligible for an additional ten (1 0) years of Original Project PILOT benefits 
after the twenty (20) year period described above, for a total of thirty (30) years of Original Project 
PILOT benefits for each annual increment of investment in Michelin Original Project Property made 
during the Original Project Investment Period; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the 1988 Lease, the annual increment of investment in Michelin 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 2 of I2 

Original Project Property placed in service in 1988 during the Original Project Investment Period shall 
become ineligible for the Original Project FILOT beginning after 2018 for tax year 2019 and each 
subsequent annual increment of investment in Michelin Original Project Property placed in service during 
the Original Project Investment Period shall thereafter become ineligible for the Original Project FILOT 
on an annual rolling basis, with the final such annual increment of investment (i.e., such investment 
placed in service in 1995) to become ineligible for the Original Project FILOT beginning after 2025 for 
tax year 2026 (collectively, the "Non-FILOT Michelin Original Project Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Michelin Original Project Property includes, and is presently located on, land 
more fully described on the attached Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the "Michelin 
Original Project Land"); and 

WHEREAS, Michelin Tire Corporation changed its name to Michelin North America, Inc. on 
February 3, 1995. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution 
and the Act, the County and Greenville County, South Carolina ("Greenville County") have jointly 
developed a Park ("Anderson-Greenville Park") by entering into that certain Agreement for Development 
of Joint Industrial and Business Park dated as of October 6, 1998 (as amended, modified, or supplemented 
through the date hereof, and as may be amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time, the 
"Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution and the Act, 
real property having a situs in a Park in the County, including, but not limited to, the Anderson-Greenville 
Park, is exempt from all ad valorem taxation, but, the owners or lessees of such real property are 
obligated to make, or cause to be made, payments in lieu of taxes to the County in the total amount 
equivalent to the ad valorem taxes or other fee in lieu of tax payments that would have been due and 
payable with respect to such real property but for the location of such real property within such Park and 
such exemption (each, an "Anderson Fee Payment"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined to provide for inclusion of all Non-FILOT Michelin 
Original Project Property within the boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park by amending the 
Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement, if such property is not already so included, and to maintain the 
Non-FILOT Michelin Original Project Property within the boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park, 
or a replacement or successor Park, in order to facilitate the provision to, and receipt by, Michelin of the 
infrastructure credits (special source revenue credits) set forth in greater detail herein; and 

WHEREAS, the County, as further inducement for location and continued operation by the 
Company of the Project in the County, and in accordance with the Park Act, has agreed to provide 
infrastructure credits (special source revenue credits) against each Anderson Fee Payment (or portion 
thereof) made by Michelin attributable to each annual increment of investment comprising the Non
PILOT Michelin Original Project Property, for a rolling credit period of ten ( 1 0) tax years, amounting to 
an aggregate credit period of sixteen ( 16) tax years, commencing with such payment due with respect to 
Non-FILOT Michelin Original Project Property placed in service during the period beginning with the 
1988 tax year and ending with the 1989 tax year for tax year 2020, and terminating after such payment 
due with respect to Non-FILOT Michelin Original Project Property placed in service in 1995 for tax year 
2035, all as set forth in greater detail herein; and 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 3 of 12 

WHEREAS, the County Council has authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement by 
Ordinance No. 2020-028 enacted by the County Council on December 15, 2020 (the "Ordinance"); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained, the above recitals which are incorporated herein by reference, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
hereto agree as follows : 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

The defined terms in this Agreement shall for all purposes of this Agreement have the meanings 
specified in the recitals above and in this Article I, unless the context clearly otherwise requires. Except 
where the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular number shall include the plural 
number and vice versa . 

"Affiliate" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other Person or 
entity which now or hereafter owns all or part of Michelin, or which now or hereafter is owned in whole 
or in part by Michelin, or by any partner, shareholder or owner of Michelin, as well as any corporation, 
limited liability company, partnership or other Person, which now or hereafter bears a relationship to 
Michelin as described in Section 267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

"Anderson Fee Payment " shall have the meaning ascribed thereto m the recitals of this 
Agreement. 

"Anderson Park" shall mean the Anderson-Greenville Park established pursuant to the terms of 
the Park Agreement, and any Park which hereafter includes the Michelin Original Project Land, the 
Michelin Original Project Property, the Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property, and the real and 
personal property located on the Michelin Original Project Land, and which is designated by the County 
as such pursuant to any Park Agreement which replaces or succeeds the Anderson-Greenville Park 
Agreement. 

"Company" shall mean Michelin North America, Inc., a corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of New York and its successors and assigns. 

"Costs of Irifrastructure Improvements " means all of the costs of designing, acqumng, 
constructing, improving, equipping or expanding the Infrastructure Improvements, whether incurred prior 
to or after the date of this Agreement, and shall be deemed to include, but not be limited to: (1) such costs 
with regard to the Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property; (2) obligations incurred for labor, 
materials, and other expenses to builders and materialmen in connection with the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of the Infrastructure Improvements; (3) the cost of construction bonds and 
of insurance of all kinds that may be required or necessary during the course of construction and 
installation of the Infrastructure Improvements, which is not paid by the contractor or contractors or 
otherwise provided for; ( 4) the expenses for test borings, surveys, test and pilot operations, estimates, 
plans and specifications and preliminary investigations therefore, and for supervising construction, as well 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 4 of 12 

as for the performance of all other duties required by or reasonably necessary in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, and installation of the Infrastructure Improvements; and (5) all other costs 
which shall be required under the terms of any contract for, or incurred in connection with, the designing, 
acquisition, construction, equipping and installation of the Infrastructure Improvements. 

"County " shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and its successors and assigns. 

"Michelin " shall mean Michelin North America, Inc. , a corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the State ofNew York and its successors and assigns. 

"Park Agreement " shall mean the Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement, as approved by the 
County by Ordinance #98-019, duly adopted on October 6, 1998, as amended, modified or supplemented 
through the date hereof. 

"Person " means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, a limited liability company, an 
association, a joint stock company, a joint venture, a trust, any unincorporated organization, or a 
government or an agency or a political subdivision thereof. 

"Property Tax Year " shall mean the annual period ending on December 31 of each year. 

"Infrastructure Credits " shall mean "special source revenue credits" or "special source revenue 
bonds" as those terms are used in Title 4, Chapters 1, 12, and 29, and Title 12, Chapter 44 of the South 
Carolina Code, and the Infrastructure Credits hereby granted by the County, and described in Section 
3.01 hereof. 

"Infrastructure Improvements " means, whether prior to or after the date of this Agreement, any 
infrastructure serving the economic development of the County, any improved and unimproved real 
property, buildings, structural components of buildings, fixtures or other real property improvements and 
any personal property, including, without limitation, machinery and equipment used in the operation of a 
manufacturing or commercial enterprise, all in order to enhance the economic development of the County, 
including, without limitation, the existing Michelin Original Project Property, and the Non-PILOT 
Michelin Original Project Property, all to the extent permitted by the Park Act. 

The words "hereof ', "herein", "hereunder" , and other words of similar import refer to this 
Agreement as a whole. 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

SECTION 2.01. Representations by the County. The County makes the following representations: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of 
South Carolina. By proper action of the County Council, the County has duly authorized the execution 
and delivery of this Agreement and any and all actions reasonably necessary and appropriate to 
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 5 of 12 

(b) The County is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into, 
execute, deliver, and carry out its obligations under, this Agreement. 

(c) The County has duly approved this Agreement, including, without limitation, the 
Infrastructure Credits, by adoption of the Ordinance in accordance with the procedural requirements of 
the Act and any other applicable state and local law. 

(d) The County enters into this Agreement for the purpose of promoting the economic 
development of the County. 

(e) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations are pending or, to the best of 
the County' s knowledge, threatened against or affecting the County in any court or before any 
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, any of which could materially adversely affect 
this Agreement or which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this 
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. 

SECTION 2.02. Representations by Michelin. Michelin makes the following representations: 

(a) Michelin is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing, under 
the laws of the State of New York and authorized to transact business in the State of South Carolina, has 
power to enter into this Agreement, and by proper corporate action has authorized the Michelin official or 
officials signing this Agreement to execute and deliver this Agreement. Michelin ' s fiscal year end is 
December 31 and Michelin will notify the County of any changes in its fiscal year. 

(b) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations are pending or, to the best 
knowledge of Michelin, threatened against or affecting Michelin in any court or before any governmental 
authority or arbitration board or tribunal, any of which could materially adversely affect this Agreement 
or which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

(c) The Infrastructure Credits provided by the County in the manner set forth in this 
Agreement have been instrumental in inducing the continued operation of the Original Project, and 
additional investments in real and personal property in the County. 

SECTION 2.03 . Covenants by the County. The County will use its best efforts to include, and 
thereafter maintain the Michelin Original Project Land, the Michelin Original Project Property, the Non
PILOT Michelin Original Project Property, and all other real and personal property located on the 
Michelin Original Project Land within the boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park or another 
Anderson Park in order to facilitate the Infrastructure Credits . 

ARTICLE III 

INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS 

SECTION 3.01. Infrastructure Credits . 

Ordinance 2020-028 



In frastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 6 of 12 

(a) To defray or reimburse the Costs of Infrastructure (special source) Improvements, the 
County agrees to provide Infrastructure Credits against each Anderson Fee Payment (or portion thereof) 
made by Michelin attributable to each annual increment of investment comprising the Non-PILOT 
Michelin Original Project Property, for a rolling credit period of ten (1 0) tax years, amounting to an 
aggregate credit period of sixteen ( 16) tax years, commencing with such payment due with respect to 
Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property placed in service during the period beginning with the 
1988 tax year and ending with the 1989 tax year for tax year 2020 (i.e., the payment typically due to be 
paid without penalty on or before January 15, 2021) and terminating immediately following such payment 
due with respect to Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property placed in service in 1995 for tax year 
2035 (i. e. , the payment typically due to be paid without penalty on or before January 15, 2036), in an 
amount sufficient so that the resulting net Anderson Fee Payment (or portion thereof) equals the amount 
of such payment if calculated using (i) an assessment ratio of 6%; (ii) a millage rate equal to 320.5 mills. 

(b) The Infrastructure Credits to which Michelin shall receive with respect to each tax year 
set forth above in Section 3.01(a) hereof shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other authorized 
County official or representative on each bill for fee-in-lieu of tax payment sent to Michelin by the 
County for each such tax year, by reducing the fee-in-lieu of tax payment otherwise due from each 
Company for such tax year by the amount of Infrastructure Credits to be provided to such Company for 
such tax year. 

(c) If subsection 3.01(a), or the granting of the Infrastructure Credits under this Agreement, 
is found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court or other entity of competent jurisdiction, the 
County agrees to provide Michelin with an incentive that is valid pursuant to such court or other entity 
ruling and commensurate to the nature and value of the benefits provided under this Agreement. The 
responsibility for the preparation of documents or modification of this Agreement in connection with such 
incentive and the applicable and reasonable costs thereof (including any applicable and reasonable legal 
fees incurred by the County) shall be borne solely by Michelin. 

(d) THIS AGREEMENT AND THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS GRANTED 
HEREUNDER ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY TO BE CLAIMED BY MICHELIN 
SOLELY FROM THE ANDERSON FEE PAYMENTS RECEIVED BY THE COUNTY FROM 
MICHELIN, AND DO NOT AND SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE 
COUNTY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION 
AND DO NOT AND SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE OR GIVE RISE TO A PECUNIARY LIABILITY 
OF THE COUNTY OR A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING POWER OF 
THE COUNTY. THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT, AND TAXING POWER OF THE COUNTY ARE NOT 
PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRANTING OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS 
HEREUNDER. 

(e) No breach by the County of this Agreement shall result in the imposition of any 
pecuniary liability upon the County other than against the Anderson Fee Payments made by Michelin 
with respect to Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property or any charge upon its general credit or 
against its taxing power. The liability of the County under this Agreement or for any breach or default by 
the County of any of the foregoing shall be limited solely and exclusively to the Anderson Fee Payments 
received from Michelin. The County shall not be required to provide the Infrastructure Credits except 
with respect to the Anderson Fee Payments received from Michelin. 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 7 of 12 

(f) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Michelin shall be entitled to receive, in 
addition to the Infrastructure Credits, all other credits, exemptions, or reductions against ad valorem taxes 
or against payments in lieu of taxes due pursuant to the Act allowed by law. 

(g) In accordance with the Act, the Infrastructure Credits authorized herein shall not, in the 
aggregate, exceed the aggregate Costs of Infrastructure Improvements as defined in Article I. 

ARTICLE IV 

TRANSFERS OF PROJECT PROPERTY; ASSIGNMENT 

SECTION 4.01. Transfers of Project Property; Assignment of Interest in this Agreement. The 
County hereby acknowledges that Michelin may from time to time and in accordance with applicable law 
and the terms of the 1988 Lease, if applicable, sell, transfer, lease, convey, or grant the right to occupy 
and use the Michelin Original Project Property including, without limitation, the Non-PILOT Michelin 
Original Project Property, or its respective interest in all or any portion of the Michelin Original Project 
Property including, without limitation, the Non-PILOT Michelin Original Project Property, in whole or in 
part, or assign its interests in this Agreement, in whole or in part, to other Persons without the consent of 
the County; provided, however, that any transfer or assignment by Michelin of all or any of its interest in 
this Agreement to any Person other than an Affiliate shall require the prior written consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County, which consent or ratification shall not be unreasonably withheld and provided, 
further, that Michelin shall provide written notice to the County of any such transfer or assignment by 
Michelin to an Affiliate. No such sale, lease, conveyance, grant or assignment shall relieve the County 
from the County's obligation to provide Infrastructure Credits to Michelin, or any assignee of the same, 
under this Agreement as long as such assignee is qualified to receive the Infrastructure Credits under the 
Act. 

ARTICLE V 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

SECTION 5.01. Events of Default. If any party shall fail duly and punctually to perform any 
material covenant, condition, agreement or provision contained in this Agreement on the part of such 
party to be performed, which, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, failure shall continue for a 
period of sixty (60) days after written notice by another party specifying the failure and requesting that it 
be remedied is given to the defaulting party by first-class mail, then such party shall be in default under 
this Agreement (an "Event of Default"); provided, however, that if any such failure is not, with due 
diligence, susceptible of cure within such 60-day period, then such defaulting party shall have an 
additional period of time not to exceed thirty (30) days from the date of such written notice by the other 
party to remedy such failure , unless such parties agree in a writing signed by all parties to an extension of 
such time prior to its expiration. 

SECTION 5.02. Legal Proceedings . Upon the happening of any Event of Default by a party, then 
and in every such case each other party in its respective discretion may: 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 8 of 12 

(1) by mandamus, or other suit, action, or proceeding at law or in equity, enforce all of its 
rights and require the defaulting party to carry out any agreements with or for its benefit and to perform 
its duties under the Act and this Agreement; 

(2) bring suit upon this Agreement; 

(3) exercise any or all rights and remedies provided by the applicable laws of the State; or 

( 4) by action or suit in equity enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in violation 
of its rights. 

SECTION 5.03 . Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy in this Agreement conferred upon or 
reserved to Michelin or the County is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each 
and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under 
this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

SECTION 5.04. Nonwaiver. No delay or omission of Michelin or the County to exercise any 
right or power accruing upon any default or Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall 
be construed to be a waiver of any such default or Event of Default, or an acquiescence therein; and every 
power and remedy given by this Article V to Michelin or the County may be exercised from time to time 
and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

ARTICLE VI 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 6.0 1. Termination This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the date upon 
which all Infrastructure Credits provided for in Section 3.01 hereof have been provided to, and received 
by Michelin. Additionally the County and Michelin may jointly agree to terminate this Agreement at any 
time, and Michelin may unilaterally terminate this Agreement at any time with respect to all, or any 
portion of, its respective portion of the Project. 

SECTION 6.02. Binding Effect; Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding, in 
accordance with its terms, and to the extent permitted by law, upon and inure to the benefit of Michelin, 
the County, and their respective successors and assigns. All covenants, stipulations, promises, and 
agreements contained in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of, the County, shall bind or 
inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any officer, board, commission, 
agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County shall be transferred. 

SECTION 6.03 . Provisions of Agreement for Sole Benefit of Michelin and the County. Except as 
otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any Person other than the Parties any right, remedy, or 
claim under or by reason of this Agreement, this Agreement being intended to be, except as otherwise 
specifically provided in this Agreement, for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Parties. 

SECTION 6.04. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall, 
for any reason, be held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the illegality, invalidity or unenforceability 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 9 of 12 

shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced as if the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provisions had not been contained herein so as to most 
closely effectuate the legal, valid and enforceable intent hereof and so as to afford Michelin with the 
maximum benefits to be derived herefrom. 

SECTION 6.05 . No Liability for Personnel of the County or Michelin. No covenant or agreement 
contained in this Agreement is deemed to be a covenant or agreement of any elected official, member, 
agent, or employee of the County or their respective governing body, or Michelin or any of its respective 
officers, elected officials, employees, or agents in an individual capacity, and neither the members of the 
governing body of the County, nor any official of the County or Michelin executing this Agreement is 
liable personally on the Infrastructure Credits or this Agreement, or subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. 

SECTION 6.06. Notices. All notices, certificates, requests , or other communications under this 
Agreement are sufficiently given and are deemed given, unless otherwise required by this Agreement, 
when (i) delivered or (ii) sent by United States first-class registered mail, postage prepaid, addressed as 
follows : 

(a) As to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn.: County Administrator 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice for purposes of this Agreement) : 

Leon Harmon, Esq. 
Anderson County Attorney 
Post Office Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

(b) As to Michelin: 

Michelin North America, Inc. 
Attn: Brock Christ 
1 ParkwayS. 
Greenville, South Carolina 29615 

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice for purposes of this Agreement) to: 

Burnet R. Maybank, III, Esq. 
Andrew W. Saleeby, Esq. 
Nexsen Pruet, LLC 
P.O. Drawer 2426 
Columbia, South Carolina 29202 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 10 of 12 

The County and Michelin may each designate, by notice given under this Section 6.06, any 
further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications 
shall be sent. 

SECTION 6.07. Administrative Fees. Michelin shall reimburse, or cause reimbursement of, the 
County for reasonable expenses, including, reasonable attorneys' fees , related to review and approval of 
this Agreement, and any other documents related to this Agreement in an amount not to exceed Five 
Thousand Dollars and No/100s ($5,000.00) . 

SECTION 6.08. Merger. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties to it 
with respect to the matters contemplated in it, and it is understood and agreed that all undertakings, 
negotiations, representations, promises, inducements and agreements heretofore had among these parties 
are merged herein. 

SECTION 6.09. Agreement to Sign Other Documents and to Take Further Action. The County 
agrees that it will from time to time execute and deliver such further instruments, in form and substance 
reasonably acceptable to the County, and take such further action as may be reasonable and as may be 
requested by Michelin or as may be required to carry out the purpose of this Agreement. Michelin shall 
reimburse, or cause reimbursement of, the County for reasonable attorneys' fees , related to review and 
negotiation of such further instruments. Such instruments or actions shall never create or constitute an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any state constitutional provision (other than the 
provisions of Article X, Section 14(1 0) of the South Carolina Constitution) or statutory limitation and 
shall never constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County, other than against the Anderson 
Fee Payments made by Michelin with respect to Non-FILOT Michelin Original Project Property, or a 
charge against its general credit or taxing power or pledge the credit or taxing power of the State of South 
Carolina, or any other political subdivision of the State of South Carolina. 

SECTION 6.10. Construction of Agreement. The parties agree that each party and its counsel 
have reviewed and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities 
are to be resolved against the drafting party does not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any 
amendments or exhibits to this Agreement. 

SECTION 6.11. Applicable Law. The laws of the State of South Carolina govern the construction 
of this Agreement. 

SECTION 6.12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original; but such counterparts shall together 
constitute but one and the same instrument. 

SECTION 6.13. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement of 
the parties hereto. 

SECTION 6.14. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or 
condition of this Agreement but the waiver is valid only if it is in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

SECTION 6.15. Further Proceedings. It is intended by the parties that any action to be taken 
hereinafter by the County pursuant to the express provisions of this Agreement may be undertaken by the 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 11 of 12 

County without necessity of further proceedings. To the extent that additional proceedings are required 
by law, however, the County agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to undertake all such steps as may be 
reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the intent of this Agreement. 

SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

Ordinance 2020-028 



Infrastructure Credit Agreement 
Anderson County, Michelin North America, Inc. 

Page 12 of 12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Anderson County, South Carolina has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its appropriate officials, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and attested and 
Michelin North America, Inc. has caused this Agreement to be executed by its authorized officer, 
effective the day and year first above written. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

By: ________________________________ __ 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman, 
Anderson County Council 

By: ____________________________________ _ 
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

By: __________________________________ _ 
Name: ____________________________________ __ 
Its: _________ ___ ______ _ 

Ordinance 2020-028 



EXHffiiT A 
to the Infrastructure Credit Agreement 

Michelin Original Project Land 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 

) 
) 
) 
) 

SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT OF 
AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT 
FOR JOINT INDUSTRIAL PARK 

THIS AGREEMENT for the sixteenth amendment (the "Sixteenth Amended Agreement") 
of an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial/business park located both within 
Greenville County, South Carolina and Anderson County, South Carolina, dated October 6, 1998, by and 
between the County of Greenville and the County of Anderson, both political subdivisions of the State of 
South Carolina (the "Agreement"), amended on November 16, 1999 by and between the parties hereto (the 
"First Amended Agreement") and amended on February 6, 2001 by and between the parties hereto (the 
"Second Amended Agreement") and amended on November 20, 2001 by and between the parties hereto 
(the "Third Amended Agreement") and amended on December 3, 2002 by and between the parties hereto 
(the "Fourth Amended Agreement") and amended on July 15, 2003 by and between the parties hereto (the 
"Fifth Amended Agreement") and amended on November 18, 2003 by and between the parties hereto (the 
"Sixth Amended Agreement") and amended on April 6, 2004 by and between the parties hereto (the 
"Seventh Amended Agreement") and amended on November 16, 2004 by and between the parties hereto 
(the "Eighth Amended Agreement") and amended on November 15 , 2005 by and between the parties hereto 
(the "Ninth Amended Agreement") and amended on January 3, 2006 (the "Tenth Amended Agreement") 
and amended on November 21 , 2006 (the "Eleventh Amended Agreement") and amended on March 20, 
2007 by and between the parties hereto (the "Twelfth Amended Agreement") and amended on June 3, 2008 
by and between the parties hereto (the "Thirteenth Amended Agreement") and amended on November 18, 
2008 by and between the parties hereto (the "Fourteenth Amended Agreement") and amended on May 14, 
2010 by and between the parties hereto (the "Fifteenth Amended Agreement") is made and entered into as 
of this day of , 2020 by and between the parties hereto. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, Greenville County, South Carolina ("Greenville 
County"), and Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson County") in order to promote economic 
development and thus provide additional employment opportunities within both of said counties, there has 
been established in Greenville County and Anderson County a Joint County Industrial and Business Park 
(the "Park"); and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment ofthe Park, property therein is exempt 
from ad valorem taxation, but the owners or lessees of such property are required to pay annual fees in an 
amount equal to that amount for which such owner or lessee would be liable except for such exemption; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, Greenville County and Anderson County have 
agreed to accept responsibility for the costs of infrastructure, maintenance, management, promotional costs, 
and other appropriate costs associated with the establishment and operation of the Park; and 

WHEREAS, Greenville County and Anderson County desire to amend the Agreement and 
the First Amended Agreement, the Second Amended Agreement, the Third Amended Agreement, the 
Fourth Amended Agreement, the Fifth Amended Agreement, the Sixth Amended Agreement, the Seventh 
Amended Agreement, the Eighth Amended Agreement, the Ninth Amended Agreement, the Tenth 
Amended Agreement, the Eleventh Amended Agreement, the Twelfth Amended Agreement, the Thirteenth 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Amended Agreement, the Fourteenth Amended Agreement, the Fifteenth Amended Agreement (the "Prior 
Amendments") and by this Sixteenth Amended Agreement as more specifically provided below; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and 
benefits contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Binding Agreement. This Sixteenth Amended Agreement serves as a written 
instrument amending the entire Agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Greenville County 
and Anderson County, their successors and assigns. 

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(d), of the Constitution of South 
Carolina (the "Constitution") provides that counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with 
other counties within the geographical boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that 
certain conditions specified therein are met and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of 
South Carolina provides by law a means by which the value of property in such park will be considered for 
purposes of bonded indebtedness of political subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of 
computing the index of taxpaying ability for school districts. Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended ("Section 4-1-170"), satisfies the conditions imposed by Article VIII, Section 
13( d), of the Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a joint county industrial park may be 
created. 

3. Sixteenth Amendment to the Agreement. As of the date of this Sixteenth 
Amended Agreement, the Agreement as amended by Prior Amendments is hereby further amended, in 
accordance with Section 3(B) of the Agreement, so as to expand the Park premises in Anderson County by 
the addition of property further described in Exhibit B-1 , which shall amend the Exhibit B to the Agreement 
which was in effect prior to execution of this Sixteenth Amended Agreement. 

4. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any 
provision or any part of a provision of this Sixteenth Amended Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable the remainder of that provision or any other provision or part of a provision of this Sixteenth 
Amended Agreement. 

5. Termination. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement as amended by 
the Prior Amendments shall remain in full force and effect. 

[Execution Pages to Follow] 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



WITNESS our hands and seals as of this 15th day ofDecember, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

ATTEST: 

Joseph Kemell, County Administrator 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

Regina McCaskill, Clerk to Council 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

GREENVILLE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Butch Kirven, Chairman, County Council 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Exhibit A 
Land Description 
Greenville County 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Exhibit B-1 
Land Description 
Anderson County 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

Ordinance No. 2020-028 
NPCOLI :7955044.1 



Ordinance #2020-031 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 70, ARTICLE 5 OF THE 
ANDERSON COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCE, TO INCLUDE NEW 
ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATIONS AND ALSO TO AMEND SECTION 
5:2 RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURE DISTRICT SETBACKS. 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to amend residential agriculture zoned district; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Planning & Public Works Committee has held a duly 
advertised Public Meeting on October 1, 2020, after which it reviewed the proposed 
amendment as described in Exhibit A, and recommended the proposed amendments to County 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council wishes to amend Chapter 70, Article 5 of the 
Anderson County Code of Ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated herein as. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 

1. Chapter 70, Artic.le 5 of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the language attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 
not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or otherwise 
unenforceable by any court or competent jurisdiction 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 



Ordinance #2020-031 
Text Amendment Chapter 70 

Page 2 of5 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 151
h day of December, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert, 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: October 6, 2020 

2nd Reading: November 12,2020 

3rd Reading: December 15, 2020 

Public Hearing: December 15, 2020 

ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

2 



Exhibit A 

Section 5:2.- R-A, Residential agricultural district. 

Ordinance #2020-03 1 
Text Amendment Chapter 70 

Page 3 of5 

Side yard. The minimum width of a residential side yard shall be 50 feet , except that any side 
yard abutting on a street or highway shall not be less than 20 feet in width. 
Rear yard. The minimum depth of the rear yard shall be 50 feet. 
Bufferyard requirements . Where a non-residential or subdivision abuts a residential property, 
an undisturbed bufferyard of 100 feet shall be required and maintained. 

Section 5:2.1 - R-A2, Residential agricultural two-acre district. 
The purpose of this district is to provide for a full range of agricultural activities in a rural 
setting. This district also provides for spacious residential development for those who choose 
this environment and prevents untimely scattering of more dense urban uses that should be 
confined to areas planned for efficient extension of public services. 
Lot area. The minimum lot area shall be two acres. 
Front yard. The minimum depth of the front yard measured from the street right-of-way line 
shall be 30 feet on a residential service street, 40 feet on a collector street, and 50 feet on an 
arterial street except when a right-of-way has not been established or is not known; then the 
setback shall be measured from the centerline of the existing road and each required setback 
shall be increased by a minimum of 25 feet. In the event an existing right-of-way exceeds 25 
feet from the center of the road, the setback shall be measured from the right-of-way. 
Side yard. The minimum width of a residential side yard shall be 50 feet, except that any side 
yard abutting on a street or highway shall not be less than 20 feet in width. 
Rear yard. The minimum depth of the rear yard shall be 50 feet. 
Bufferyard requirements. Where a non-residential or subdivision abuts a residential property, 
an undisturbed bufferyard of 100 feet shall be required and maintained. 

Section 5:30. - RRD, Rural Residential District 
The purpose of this district is to provide areas wanting to protect the rural nature of their 
community but allow for limited residential growth. The intent of this district is to allow for 
residential development in rural areas that wish to minimize the impact of dense residential 
development. 
Lot area. The minimum lot area shall be three acres. 
Front yard. The minimum depth of the front yard measured from the street right-of-way line 
shall be 30 feet on a residential service street, 40 feet on a collector street, and 50 feet on an 
arterial street except when a right-of-way has not been established or is not known; then the 
setback shall be measured from the centerline of the existing road and each required setback 
shall be increased by a minimum of 25 feet. In the event an existing right-of-way exceeds 25 
feet from the center of the road, the setback shall be measured from the right-of-way. 
Side yard. The minimum width of a residential side yard shall be 50 feet, except that any side 
yard abutting on a street or highway shall not be less than 20 feet in width. 
Rear yard. The minimum depth of the rear yard shall be 50 feet. 
Bufferyard requirements. Where a non-residential or subdivision abuts a residential property, 
an undisturbed bufferyard of 1 00 feet shall be required and maintained. 

3 



Section 5:31. - R-C, Residential Conservation District 

Ordinance #2020-03 1 
Text Amendment Chapter 70 

Page 4 of5 

The purpose of this district is to help preserve and enhance the character established residential 
neighborhoods. The district promotes compatible new construction within the district ' s built 
environment in order to strengthen and build upon those desirable physical features already 
existing. 
Lot area. The minimum lot area shall be 33,000 square feet. 
Front yard. The minimum depth of the front yard measured from the street right-of-way line 
shall be 20 feet on a residential service street, 40 feet on a collector street, and 50 feet on an 
arterial street except when a right-of-way has not been established or is not known; then the 
setback shall be measured from the centerline of the existing road and each required setback 
shall be increased by a minimum of 25 feet. In the event an existing right-of-way exceeds 25 
feet from the center of the road, the setback shall be measured from the right-of-way. 
Side yard. The minimum width of a residential side yard shall be 10 feet , except that any side 
yard abutting on a street or highway shall not be less than 20 feet in width. 
Rear yard. The minimum depth of the rear yard shall be 1 0 feet. 
Bufferyard requirements. Where a non-residential or subdivision abuts a residential property, an 
undisturbed bufferyard of 100 feet shall be required and maintained. 
Section 5:31.2 Conservation Subdivision. Conservation subdivision with cluster design to have 
minimum lot sizes of 6000 sqft and side setbacks of minimum 6ft or 10% of lot width whichever 
is greater. Subdivision is required to preserve at least 20% of open green space. Green spaces 
can include natural features such as wetlands and streams, recreational areas such as playgrounds 
and ball fields, greenways, and landscaped areas. Percentage of open space cannot include 
required bufferyard. Developers are recommended to walk the property to determine which 
aspects of the property to preserve. 

Section 5:32.- FA, Forest Agriculture District 
The purpose of the district is to accommodate most agriculture uses and small-scale development 
in areas with limited or unavailable public infrastructure. 
Lot area. The minimum lot area shall be five acres . 
Front yard. The minimum depth of the front yard measured from the street right-of-way line 
shall be 30 feet on a residential service street, 40 feet on a collector street, and 50 feet on an 
arterial street except when a right-of-way has not been established or is not known; then the 
setback shall be measured from the centerline of the existing road and each required setback 
shall be increased by a minimum of 25 feet. In the event an existing right-of-way exceeds 25 
feet from the center of the road, the setback shall be measured from the right-of-way. 
Side yard. The minimum width of a residential side yard shall be 50 feet , except that any side 
yard abutting on a street or highway shall not be less than 20 feet in width. 
Rear yard. The minimum depth of the rear yard shall be 50 feet. 
Bufferyard requirements. Where a non-residential or subdivision abuts a residential property, an 
undisturbed bufferyard of 100 feet shall be required and maintained. 

Section 5:33 . - AG-C, Agriculture Conservation District 
The purpose of this district is to protect and preserve areas under cultivation and prime 
agricultural soils for continued agricultural and agriculturally oriented uses and to protect the 
business of agriculture. 

4 



Lot area. The minimum lot area shall be five acres . 

Ordinance #2020-031 
Text Amendment Chapter 70 

Page 5 of5 

Front yard. The minimum depth of the front yard measured from the street right-of-way line 
shall be 30 feet on a residential service street, 40 feet on a collector street, and 50 feet on an 
arterial street except when a right-of-way has not been established or is not known; then the 
setback shall be measured from the centerline of the existing road and each required setback 
shall be increased by a minimum of25 feet. In the event an existing right-of-way exceeds 25 
feet from the center of the road, the setback shall be measured from the right-of-way. 
Side yard. The minimum width of a residential side yard shall be 50 feet , except that any side 
yard abutting on a street or highway shall not be less than 20 feet in width. 
Rear yard. The minimum depth of the rear yard shall be 50 feet. 
Bufferyard requirements. Where a non-residential or subdivision abuts a residential property, 
an undisturbed bufferyard of 1 00 feet shall be required and maintained. 

5 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-034 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 38-118 (f) OF THE ANDERSON COUNTY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, SO AS TO CLARIFY TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY 
REQUIREMENTS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the requirements and minimum development threshholds pertaining to traffic 
impact studies are established in Chapter 38, Section 118(f) of the Anderson County Code of 
Ordinances; 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council passed Ordinance No. 2017-036 which 
amended Section 3 8-118 (f) of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to further amend Section 38-118 (f) of 
the Anderson County Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Section 38-118(£) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina is 
hereby amended to read as follows : 

Sec. 118(f). Traffic Impact Studies. 

Section 118 - Traffic impact studies. 

A traffic impact study shall be required for access approval through the state and 
county encroachment permit process when a development will generate 100 or 
more trips during the peak hour of the traffic generator or the peak hour of the 
adjacent street. The traffic impact study and subsequent access locations, turning 
lane and signalization requirements shall follow the South Carolina Department of 
Transportation Access and Roadside Management Standards, latest edition. For 
studies of county roads, the county engineer will hire and work with a traffic 
engineer to coordinate the study area needed in order to perform the traffic impact 
study. Coordination between the county and SCDOT will also be handled by the 
county engineer to ensure that all required county roads, state roads and pertinent 
intersections are accounted for in the traffic impact study area. Upon completion 
of the traffic impact study, it will be delivered to the developer. The developer shall 
be responsible for all costs of the required study, roadway improvements identified 
in the study, and right-of-way acquisition. The traffic impact study shall be included 
with the preliminary plat. Any changes to the traffic study or preliminary plat must 
be resubmitted to the Planning Commission. 

T bl I a e: nstltute o fT rt t E ranspo a 10n ngmeers T . G np t M enera 10n anua IE xamp1es 
Land Use 100 Peak Hour Trips 
Single Family Home 90 units 



Apartments 150 units 
Condos/ Townhomes 190 units 
Mobile Home Park 170 units 
Shopping Center -Gross Leasable Area (GLA) 16,000 s.f. 
Fast Food Restaurant w/Drive In- Gross Floor Area. 2,000 s.f 
Gas Station w/Convenience Store 7 fueling positions 
Banks w/Drive-In (GFA) 4,000 s .f 0 

General Office 67,000 s.f. 
Medical/Dental Office 29,000 s .f 0 

Research & Development 71 ,000 s.f. 
Light Industrial/Warehousing 185,000 s.f. 
Manufacturing Plant (GF A) 144,000 s. f. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 
not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

2 Ordinance 2020-034 



ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 151h day of December, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: November 12, 2020 

2nd Reading: November 20, 2020 

3rd Reading: December 15, 2020 

Public Hearing: December 15, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chainnan 
Anderson County Council 

3 Ordinance 2020-034 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-037 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A SUBLEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND LAKE HARTWELL DEVELOPMENT GROUP, 
LLC FOR THE ASBURY PARK SITE ON LAKE HARTWELL LOCATED AT THE END 
OF ASBURY PARK ROAD; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County has entered into a lease agreement (Lease No. DACW 
21-1-20-0063) with the Secretary of the Army for the Asbury Recreation Area ('Asbury Park") or 
(the "Property") on Lake Hartwell in Anderson County, South Carolina. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County entered into the lease with the Secretary of the Army in 
anticipation of entering into a Sublease with Lake Hartwell Development Group, LLC ("LHDG") 
for redevelopment of Asbury Park; 

WHEREAS, the Sublease with LHDG must be approved by Ordinance by the County 
Council and must be approved by the Department of the Army; and 

WHEREAS, the sublease will be substantially the form as Exhibit A attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. The Chairman of the Anderson County Council and the County Administrator are 
hereby authorized to execute any and all documents to obtain a Sublease with LHDG for the 
Asbury Park Site on Lake Hartwell in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 
not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 15th day of December, 2020. 



ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: November 12, 2020 

2nd Reading: November 20, 2020 

3rd Reading: December 15, 2020 

Public Hearing: December 15, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

2 Ordinance 2020-037 



SUBLEASE AGREEMENT 
between 

XXXXX County and XXXXXX 
LEASE NO. DACW21-1-XXXXX 
HARTWELL LAKE PROJECT 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

This SUBLEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between 
Anderson County, (hereinafter referred to as "SUB-LESSOR") and XXXX Inc. , 
(hereinafter referred to as "SUB-LESSEE"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in this 
SUBLEASE and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, SUB-LESSOR does hereby sublease to SUB-LESSEE and SUB
LESSEE does hereby sublease from SUB-LESSOR the premises generally described as 
follows: 

Approximately acres of land and water area under the primary jurisdiction 
of the Department of the Army in the Hartwell Project Area, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises as shown on attached Exhibit "A", for public park and recreational purposes 
from the Department of the Army of the United States; on Hartwell Lake, Anderson 
County, South Carolina (hereafter referred to as the "PREMISES"). 

1. TERM 

The term of this SUBLEASE is twenty-five years (25) years, beginning on 
_ ____ , and ending on , __ , unless sooner terminated as provided 
for in this SUBLEASE and in no case shall the SUBLEASE exceed the term of the Prime 
Lease DACW21-1-XXXXX(hereinafter referred to as "LEASE"). 

2. RENT 

SUB-LESSEE agrees to pay to the SUB-LESSOR rental payments in the amount 
of one dollar per year. SUB-LESSEE agrees to assume and pay to SUB-LESSOR any 
other fees or costs assessed by the Government. 

3. FEES 

Fees may be charged by the SUB-LESSEE for use of the premises or any 
facilities, however, no user fees may be charged by the SUB-LESSEE or its sub-lessees 
for use of facilities developed in whole or part with federal funds if a user charge by the 
Corps of Engineers for the facility would be prohibited under law. 

4. SUBLEASE 

SUB-LESSEE accepts this SUBLEASE subject to all of the terms and conditions 
of a certain Lease Agreement, Supplemental Agreement, Extension or Modification of 
the Lease for the property described in the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Lease No. 
DACW21-1-XXXXX, under which the SUB-LESSOR holds the premises as Lessee. 
SUB-LESSEE is hereby charged at all times with full knowledge of all the limitations 



and requirements of above said lease, and the necessity for correction of deficiencies, and 
with compliance with requests by the Government. Sublease is subject to the prime 
Lease, and all activities must be approved by the District Engineer. In the event of a 
conflict between the prime lease and the sublease, the prime lease shall be the controlling 
document. SUB-LESSEE covenants that it will do no act or thing which would 
constitute a violation of said Lease or any renewal, modification, or subsequent Lease the 
SUB-LESSOR may have with the Government. 

5. USE OF PREMISES 

SUB-LESSEE shall use the Leased Premises for recreational purposes. SUB
LESSEE shall not commit any waste nor create any nuisance on the Leased Premises and 
shall comply with all rules and regulations as established by the SUB-LESSOR. SUB
LESSEE shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations of governmental agencies 
and health department concerning the SUB-LESSEES use of the PREMISES. Hours of 
operation will be 8:00a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Monday-Sunday -(i.e. Saturdays, Sundays, 
and Holidays plus any special events and other times) as agreed upon in writing by the 
General Manager or the authorized representative of XXXXXX. 

6. MAINTENANCE 

SUB-LESSEE shall at its sole expense maintain and keep the premises, structures 
and surrounding area in good condition and state of repair and shall leave the Leased 
Premises in essentially the same condition as it was when delivered to the SUB-LESSEE 
by the SUB-LESSOR. SUB-LESSEE shall pay all utility charges for electric, water, 
heat, gas, and telephone service used on the Leased Premises directly to the appropriate 
utility company/corporation. SUB-LESSEE shall pay the pro-rate share of the cost of 
trash removal services from the Leased Premises relating to its operation. 

7. INSURANCE 

SUB-LESSEE shall maintain and pay all property and liability insurance and any 
other insurance necessary and prudent for normal operation of the facilities on the 
premises, including but not limited to workers' compensation insurance. SUB-LESSEE 
shall furnish the SUB-LESSOR with a copy of a Certificate oflnsurance with SUB
LESSOR furnishing a copy to U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Real Estate Division 
(ATTN: RE-RM), 100 West Oglethorpe Ave, Savannah, Georgia 31401, naming the 
SUB-LESSOR and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers as additional named insureds and 
having a policy limit of $1,000,000.00 per claim and aggregate of $1 ,000,000.00. 

8. INDEMNITY OF SUB-LESSOR AND GOVERNMENT 

SUB-LESSOR AND GOVERNMENT shall not be liable to SUB-LESSEE or to 
SUB-LESSEE'S employees, agents, officers, directors, invitees, customers and/or 
visitors for any injury to persons or damage to property on or about the Premises caused 
by the negligence or misconduct of the SUB-LESSEE or its employees, customers, 
invitees, or any other person arising out of the use of the Premises by the SUB-LESSEE 
and SUB-LESSEE agrees to indemnify and hold the SUB-LESSOR AND 
GOVERNMENT harmless from any claims or damages arising from such injury or 
damage. 



9. DEFAULT 

If SUB-LESSEE shall allow any payment obligation under this SUBLEASE to be 
in arrears or be in default under any of the other terms or conditions set forth in this 
SUBLEASE for a period of more than fifteen (15) days after written notice of such 
delinquency, SUB-LESSOR may without further notice to the SUB-LESSEE terminate 
this SUBLEASE and re-enter and take possession of the Premises without being deemed 
guilty of trespass . 

10. TRANSFERS, ASSIGNMENTS, AND SUBLEASES 

SUB-LESSEE may not assign, sublet, transfer, or in any manner encumber this 
SUBLEASE without the prior written approval of the SUB-LESSOR and written consent 
by the Government. 

11. NOTICES 

All notices required hereunder must be given by certified or registered mail 
addressed to the proper party at the following address: 

SUB-LESSOR: 
ATTN: ______ _ 

SUB-LESSEE: 
ATTN: ----------------

12. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

a. The SUB-LESSEE shall not discriminate against any person or persons or 
exclude them from participation in the SUB-LESSEE's operations, programs or activities 
conducted on the premises, because of race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap, or 
national origin. The SUB-LESSEE will comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and attendant Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG) 
published by the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board. 

b. The SUB-LESSEE, by acceptance of this lease, is receiving a type of Federal 
assistance and, therefore, hereby gives assurance that it will comply with the provisions 
ofTitle VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S .C. § 6102); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 U.S .C. § 794); and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Directive 
of the Department ofDefense (32 CFR Part 300) issued as Department of Defense 
Directive 5500.11 and 1020.1 and Army Regulation 600-7. This assurance shall be 
binding on the SUB-LESSEE, its agents, successors, transferees, sub-lessees and 
assignees. 



13. PROHIBITED USES 

The SUB-LESSEE will not sponsor or participate in timeshare ownership of any 
structures, facilities , accommodations, or personal property on the premises. The SUB
LESSEE will not subdivide nor develop the premises into private residential development 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This SUBLEASE and Lease No. DACW21-1-14-2011 , and any amendments 
thereto now or in the future, represents the entire agreement of the parties and no 
modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms of this agreement shall be binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by all the parties. 

This SUBLEASE AGREEMENT is hereby executed this _____ day of 
_______________ , 20 __ _ 

SUB-LESSEE: 

By: 

Title: ------------

SUB-LESSOR: 

By:. ___________ _ 
Title: ------------

Consent to this SUBLEASE AGREEMENT: 
(Reviewed as to content, but not a party hereto) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

By: ______________________ _ 
Title: -----------------------



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-042 

AN ORDINANCE TO DEVELOP A JOINTLY OWNED AND OPERATED INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS 
PARK IN CONJUNCTION WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY, SUCH INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK 
TO BE GEOGRAPHICALLY LOCATED IN GREENVILLE COUNTY AND ESTABLISHED 
PURSUANT TO SEC. 4-1-170 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS 
AMENDED; TO PROVIDE FOR A WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY TO 
PROVIDE FOR THE EXPENSES OF THE PARK, THE PERCENT AGE OF REVENUE 
APPLICATION, AND THE DISTRIBUTION OF FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXATION; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA: 

SECTION I: Anderson County is hereby authorized to jointly develop an industrial and business 
park with Greenville County (the "Park'l The Park shall be located initially on lands located in Greenville 
County only as authorized by Sec. 4-1-170 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 1976, as amended. 

SECTION 2: Anderson County will enter into a written agreement to develop the Park jointly 
with Greenville County in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference (the "Park Agreement'l The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute the Park 
Agreement on behalf of Anderson County, with such changes thereto as the County Administrator shall deem, 
upon advice of counsel, necessary and do not materially change the import of the matters contained in the form 
of agreement set forth in Exhibit A. 

SECTION 3: The businesses or industries located in the Park will pay a fee in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes as provided for by law or as set forth in the Park Agreement. With respect to properties located in the 
Anderson County portion of the Park, the fee paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to the Treasurer of 
Anderson County. That portion of such fee allocated pursuant to the Park Agreement to Greenville County 
shall be thereafter paid by the Treasurer of Anderson County to the Treasurer of Greenville County within ten 
(10) business days following the end of the calendar quarter of receipt for distribution in accordance with the 
terms of the agreement. With respect to properties located in the Greenville County portion of the Park, the fee 
paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to the Treasurer of Greenville County. That portion of such fee 
allocated pursuant to the Park Agreement to Anderson County shall thereafter be paid by the Treasurer of 
Greenville County to the Treasurer of Anderson County within ten (1 0) business days following the end of the 
calendar quarter of receipt for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Park Agreement. 

SECTION 4: Revenues generated from industries or businesses located in the Anderson County 
portion of the Park and to be retained by Anderson County pursuant to the Park Agreement shall be distributed 
within Anderson County in the following manner: 

First, unless Anderson County elects to pay or credit the same from only those revenues which 
Anderson County would otherwise be entitled to receive as provided under "Third" below, to 
pay annual debt service or other annual payments on any bonds or obligations issued by or on 
behalf of Anderson County pursuant to, or to be utilized as a credit in the manner provided in 
the second paragraph of, Section 4-1-175 , Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, 
or any successor statutes or provisions, or pursuant to any other authorization for the issuance 
of bonds or incurrence of obligations, payable in whole or in part by or from revenues 
generated from any properties in the Park; and 



Second, at the option of Anderson County, to reimburse Anderson County for any expenses 
incurred by it in the development, operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park or the 
businesses located therein or for the economic development of Anderson County; 

Third, to those taxing districts which overlap the applicable properties within Anderson 
County's portion of the Park, in a pro-rata fashion based on comparative millage rates for the 
year in question of such taxing districts; 

provided, that (i) all taxing districts which overlap the applicable properties within the Park shall receive some 
portion of the revenues generated from such properties; and (ii) all revenues receivable by a taxing entity in a 
fiscal year shall be allocated to operations and maintenance and to debt service as determined by the governing 
body of such taxing entity; and (iii) Anderson County may, by ordinance, from time to time, amend the 
distribution of the fee in lieu of tax payments to all taxing entities . 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall supersede and amend in its entirety any other ordinances or 
resolutions of Anderson County Council pertaining to the Park. 

SECTION 6: Should any section of this Ordinance be, for any reason, held void or invalid, it 
shall not affect the validity of any other section hereof which is not itself void or invalid. 

SECTION 7: The Land, as hereinafter described on Exhibit B , is presently located in the West 
End Tax Increment Financing District ("West End TIF') within the City of Greenville. The Anderson County 
Council agrees that upon the earlier of (i) the Land's release from the West End TIF or (ii) the expiration of 
the West End TIF on September 8, 2021, the Land shall be placed into the Park. 

SECTION 8: This Ordinance shall be effective after third and final reading thereof. 

Enacted in meeting duly assembled this 15th day of December, 2020. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: _ 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

November 12,2020 
November 20, 2020 
December 15, 2020 
December 15, 2020 

2 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-042 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and received 
majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of November 12, 2020, November 20, 2020 and 
December 15, 2020, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an 
original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: , 2020 ----

3 Ordinance 2020-042 



EXHffiiT A 

AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK 

(GREENVILLE LIGHTHOUSE LLC) 

[see attached] 



EXHIDITB 

LAND 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel 1: All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land I ing and being in the it of reen i lie. 
Greenville County. outh Carolina and being more particularly described as follows: Beginning 
at a nail (P I) forming the corner of the inter ection of the ortherly margin of the right-of-
way of Rhett treet (50 to t public ri ght-of- ay) and the easterly margin of the right-of-way of 
Wardlaw Street CO foot public right-of-way) and ha ing Grid coordinates of 
1.098.595.144 1.5 77,768. 789; thence along the Easterly margin of the right-of-way of 
Wardlaw Street 17-35-26 Wadi tance of275.93 feet to an iron pin, thence along the common 
line of BC&C of Greenville. LLC N 7 1-54-29 E a di tance of 150.54 feet to an iron pin, thence 
along the common line of E Allen nterpri es. LLC and PED Leasing. General Partner hip 
18-16-37 E a di tance of275.94 feet to a nail in an ir n pipe. thence along the Northerly margin 
of the right-of-wa of Rhett treet 71-54-54 W a di stance of 153.84 feet to the point of 
beginning and containing 41.994 For 0.964 acre . more or less. 

Tax Map: 0071.00-01-009.00 

Parcell: All certain piece, parcel or tract of land lying and being in the ity of Greenville, 
Green ille ount . outh Carolina and being more particularly described a follow : Beginning 
at an iron pin (P B 2) on the astcrly margin of the right- f-way of Wardlaw treet (50 toot 
public right-of-way) and ha ing Grid coordinate ofN 1,098.858 .172 E 1,577.685.400: 
thence along aid right-of-way N 17-35-26 Wadi tance of 48.87 feet to a railroad pike. thence 
along the common line of Akua Boyenne Trust 72-08-22 E a di tance of 151.44 feet to an iron 
pin. thence along the common line of E Allen · nterprises, LLC S 16-3 1-00 a di tance of 
48 .27 feet to an iron pin, thence s 71-54-29 w a distance of 150.54 feet to the point or beginning 
and containing 7. 2 For 0.168 acres. more or le s. 

Ta Map: 0071.00-01-008.0 1 

hi being the same propert con eyed t Grantor by deed of BC&C of Green ille. LL dated 
February 8, 20 18 and recorded February 14. 2018 in the R D Office for Green ille Count . 

outh Carolina in Deed Bo k 2531 at Page 4653 . 

5 Ordinance 2020-042 



All that piece, parcel or lot of land in Greenville Township, Greenville County, State of 
South Carolina, facing Wardlaw Street, having a frontage of 100 feet and depth of 150 feet. 
Beginning at the Northwest comer of the aforesaid lot, and running back with it North 72 
degrees East 150 feet to the Old Ferguson and Park Division line, thence with that line 
North 18 degrees West 100 feet to a stake; thence South 72 degrees West parallel with the 
first call thereof 150 feet to Wardlaw Street; thence with said Street South 18 degrees East 
100 feet to the beginning. 

This is the same property conveyed to The Alma Charitable Remainder Trust, Marc 
Robertson, Trustee by Quit-Claim Deed of Akua Boyenne dated August <., 2018, 
recorded August <3 , 2018 in Deed Book .~.541..\ at Page 470'J in the ROD 
Office for Greenville County, South Carolina. 

Tax Map: 0071.00-ot-ooB.oo - 108 Wardlaw Street, Greenville, SC 

All that piece, parcel and lot of land located on Wardlaw Street, in the County of Greenville, 
tate of outh Carolina, being shown as 15,281 square feet, 0.350 acres, more or less, on plat of 

survey prepared for Akua Boyenne Trust, 110 Wardlaw Street, City of Greenville, Greenville 
County, South Carolina, by Survey Matters, LLC, PL 27454, dated May 29, 2018, recorded in 
Plat Book l '3 I) at Page Z> I in the ROD Office for Greenville County, South Carolina. 
Said plat is incorporated herein for a more full and complete description as to the metes and 
bounds of said property. 

This is the same property conveyed to Akua Boyenne by Quit-Claim Deed of Akua Boyenne Trust, 
Allen Cardoza, Trustee, dated August 3 . 2018. recorded August % , 2018 in Deed Book 
l~Y4 at Page Lfl 0). in the ROD Office for Greenville County, South Carolina. 

Tax Map: 0071 .00-01-008.04 - 110 Wardlaw Street, Greenville, SC 

6 Ordinance 2020-042 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 
) 

AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK 

(LIGHTHOUSE GREENVILLE LLC) 

This AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT COUNTY 
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK (LIGHTHOUSE GREENVILLE LLC) (this "Agreement') to be 
located within Greenville County and Anderson County is made and entered into as of this 15th day of 
December, 2020, by and between Greenville County, South Carolina ("Greenville County') and 
Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson County" and collectively, the "Counties') . 

WIT N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Greenville County and Anderson County are contiguous counties, which pursuant 
to Ordinance No. enacted by Greenville County Council on , 2020, and 
Ordinance No. 2020-042 enacted by Anderson County Council on December 15, 2020 (collectively, the 
"Enabling Ordinances') , have each determined that, in order to promote economic development and 
thus provide additional employment opportunities within both Counties, there should be established, 
initially in Greenville County, a Joint County Industrial/Business Park (Lighthouse Greenville LLC) (the 
"Park'), to be located upon property described in Exhibit A hereto; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the Park 
and all property having a situs therein shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended (the "State 
Constitution') , but the owners or lessees of such property shall pay annual fees in an amount equal to that 
amount for which such owner or lessee would be liable except for such exemption; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and benefits 
contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Binding Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth the 
entire agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Greenville County and Anderson County, 
and their successors and assigns. 

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution provides that 
counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties within the geographical 
boundaries of one or more of the partner counties, provided that certain conditions specified therein are 
met and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina provides by law a 
manner in which the value of property in such park will be considered for purposes of bonded 
indebtedness of political subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of computing the index of 
taxpaying ability pursuant to any provision of law which measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school 
district to support its schools based on the assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as 
compared to the assessed valuation of taxable property in all school districts in South Carolina. Section 
4-1-170, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "SC Code') satisfied the conditions 
imposed by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle 
whereby a joint county industrial or business park may be created. 



3. Location of the Park. 

(A) Upon execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Parties hereto and without further 
action by either County, effective immediately upon the earlier of the following: the release of the 
Greenville County Property, hereinafter defined, from the West End Tax Increment District ("West End 
TIP"); or (ii) the expiration of the West End TIP, which is scheduled to expire on September 8, 2021, the 
Park shall consist solely of property located in Greenville County only, as further identified in Exhibit A 
("Greenville County Property"). It is specifically recognized that the Park may, from time to time, consist 
of non-contiguous properties within each County. The boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or 
diminished from time to time as authorized by ordinances or resolutions of the County Councils of both 
Greenville County and Anderson County. Since the Park encompasses a portion of the City of Greenville, 
South Carolina, the Counties have obtained the consent of the City of Greenville prior to creation of the 
Park. If the Park subsequently encompasses all or a portion of a municipality, the Counties must obtain 
the consent of the municipality prior to expanding the Park. 

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this 
Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached to the ordinance an Exhibit A 
(Greenville County Property) which shall contain a legal description of the property to be added and/or 
diminished. 

(C) Prior to the enactment by Greenville County Council and by Anderson County Council of 
ordinances authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, separate public hearings shall first be 
held by Greenville County Council and by Anderson County Council. Notice of such public hearings 
shall be published in newspapers of general circulation in Greenville County and Anderson County, 
respectively, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior to such hearing. Notice of such public 
hearings shall also be served in the manner of service of process at least fifteen (15) days prior to such 
public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable, the lessee of any real property which would be excluded 
from the Park by virtue of the diminution. 

(D) The owner, or, if applicable, lessee of any property located within the Park, may remove 
personal property from the Park at any time, unless specifically prohibited otherwise. 

4. Fee in Lieu of Taxes. Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution, 
property located in the Park shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation. The owners or lessees of the 
Greenville County Property situated in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an amount 
(referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem property taxes) equivalent to the ad valorem property taxes that 
would have been due and payable but for the location of such property within the Park, provided that this 
paragraph shall not prohibit Greenville County or Anderson County from entering into a negotiated fee
in-lieu of tax incentive agreement applicable to any property located within the Park. Payments of fees in 
lieu of taxes will be made on or before the due date for taxes for a particular year. Penalties for late 
payment will be at the same rate as late tax payment. Any late payment beyond said date will accrue 
interest at the rate of statutory judgment interest. The Counties, acting by and through the Treasurers of 
Greenville County and Anderson County, shall maintain all liens and rights to foreclose upon liens 
provided for counties in the collection of ad valorem taxes. 

5. Allocation of Expenses. Greenville County and Anderson County shall bear expenses, 
including, but not limited to, development, operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park and the cost 
of providing public services, in the following proportions: 

2 44205228 v i 

HSB 64258 12 v.S 
Ordinance 2020-042 



If property is in the Greenville County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 100% 

B. Anderson County 0% 

If property is in the Anderson County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 0% 

B. Anderson County 100% 

6. Allocation of Revenues. Greenville County and Anderson County shall receive an 
allocation of all revenue generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem property 
taxes or from any other source (net of any special source revenue credits provided by either County) in 
the following proportions: 

If property is in the Greenville County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 99% 

B. Anderson County 1% 

If property is in the Anderson County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 1% 

B. Anderson County 99% 

7. Revenue Allocation Within Each County. 

(A) Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes shall be distributed to Greenville County and to Anderson County, as the case may be, 
according to the proportions established by Paragraph 6 herein. With respect to revenues allocable to 
Greenville County or Anderson County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within its own County 
(the "Host County'') , such revenue shall be distributed within the Host County in the manner provided by 
the county council of the Host County; provided, that (i) all taxing districts which overlap the applicable 
revenue-generating portion of the Park shall receive at least some portion of the revenues generated from 
such portion, and (ii) with respect to amounts receivable in any fiscal year by a taxing entity, the 
governing body of such taxing entity shall allocate the revenues received to operations and/or debt service 
of such entity. Each Host County is hereby specifically authorized to use a portion of revenue for 
economic development purposes as permitted by law and as established by ordinance of the County 
Council of the Host County. 

(B) Revenues allocable to Greenville County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within 
Anderson County shall be distributed solely to Greenville County. Revenues allocated to Anderson 
County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within Greenville County shall be distributed solely to 
Anderson County. 

3 44205228 v l 

HSB 642581 2 v.5 
Ordinance 2020-042 



8. Fees In Lieu of Taxes Pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the SC Code. It is hereby agreed 
that the entry by Greenville County into any one or more fee in lieu of tax agreements pursuant to Title 4 
or Title 12 of the SC Code with respect to Greenville County Property located within the Greenville 
County portion of the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be at the sole discretion of Greenville 
County. Likewise, entry by Anderson County into any one or more fee in lieu of tax agreements pursuant 
to Title 4 or Title 12 of the SC Code with respect to Greenville County Property located within the 
Anderson County portion of the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be at the sole discretion of 
Anderson County. 

9. Regulation and Jurisdiction. Except with respect to Park property located within the 
corporate limits of a municipality wherein such municipality's applicable ordinances shall apply, any 
ordinances of Greenville County and Anderson County concerning zoning, health and safety regulations, 
and building code requirements will apply for the respective portions of the Park in Greenville County 
and Anderson County. The Sheriffs Departments of Greenville County and Anderson County will have 
jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority and power within the boundaries of the respective 
portions of the Park in Greenville County and Anderson County. Municipal police shall have concurrent 
law enforcement jurisdiction for any portion of the Park located within the corporate limits of such 
municipality. Emergency services and all other municipal services will be provided in the Park by 
whatever providers provide such services in the respective Greenville County and Anderson County 
portions of the Park. 

10. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness limitation 
and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section 59-20-20(3) of the SC 
Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Greenville County and Anderson 
County and to each of the taxing entities within the participating Counties shall be identical to the 
allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the Counties and by each of the taxing entities 
within the participating Counties, pursuant to Paragraph 6 and 7 herein. 

11. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision or 
any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of that 
provision or any other provision or part of a provision of this Agreement. 

12. Termination. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, 
Greenville County and Anderson County agree that this Agreement will automatically terminate upon the 
expiration or earlier termination of the Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement by and between Greenville County, 
South Carolina and Lighthouse Greenville LLC dated as of , 2020. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

4 44205 228 v i 

HSB 6425812 v.S 
Ordinance 2020-042 



WITNESS our hands and seals as of the date first above written. 

ATIEST: 

By: ______________ _ 
Clerk to County Council 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

GREENVILLE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: ______________ _ 
Chairman of County Council 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

By: ______________ _ 

County Administrator 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

[Signature Page I - Agreement for Development of Joint County Industrial/Business Park 
(Lighthouse Greenville LLC)] 

5 44205228 v i 

HSB 6425812 v.5 
Ordinance 2020-042 



ATTEST: 

By: ______________ _ 
Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:, _______________ _ 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

By: _______________ _ 
Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

[Signature Page 2 - Agreement for Development of Joint County Industrial/Business Park 
(Lighthouse Greenville LLC)J 

6 44205228 v i 

HSB 6425812 v.5 
Ordinance 2020-042 



EXHffiiT A 

GREENVILLE COUNTY PROPERTIES 

3 22 Rhett Street. 

108 Wardlaw Street 

All that pi ce. parcel or lot of land in Greenvill own bip Greenvill County. tate of 
outh rolina, facing W rdlaw Stre t, h ving frontage ofl o (i and depth oflso f, 

B ginnin.g tthe orthw tcorn r ofth a_0£1 aid lot, _n_d.run~ing back wit~ it North_72 
degrees East 150 f, to th Old Fe.rgu ·on and P rk DwtSlon hn , th n wtth th~t hn 

orth 18 d W t too feet to a take; th nee South 72 d -g W t parall I wtth the 
fi t call th reof 150 fe t to Wardl w tre ; th nee with said Street uth 18 degrees Ea t 
oo feet to th beginning. 

110 Wardlaw Street 

A- 1 
44205228 v i 

HSB 64258 12 v.S 
Ordinance 2020-042 



EXHIDITB 

ANDERSON COUNTY PROPERTIES 

None. 

B-1 44205228 v i 

HSB 64258 12 v.S 
Ordinance 2020-042 



RESOLUTION NO. R2020-041 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH A COMPANY KNOWN TO THE COUNTY AT TIDS TIME 
AS PROJECT SWITCH, WHEREBY, UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS, 
ANDERSON COUNTY WILL EXECUTE A FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 
WITH PROJECT SWITCH WITH RESPECT TO AN INDUSTRIAL PROJECT IN 
THE COUNTY WHEREBY THE PROJECT WOULD BE SUBJECT TO 
PAYMENT OF CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES, AND AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE AGREEMENT WHEREBY PROJECT SWITCH 
WILL BE PROVIDED CERTAIN CREDITS AGAINST FEE PAYMENTS IN 
REIMBURSEMENT OF INVESTMENT IN RELATED QUALIFIED 
INFRASTRUCTURE; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County"), acting by and 
through its County Council (the "County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "FILOT Act"), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the "Multi-County Park Act"), 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), to enter into agreements with industry, to 
offer certain privileges, benefits, and incentives as inducements for economic development within the 
County; to acquire, or cause to be acquired, properties as may be defmed as "projects" in the Act and to 
enter agreements with the business or industry to facilitate the construction, operation, maintenance and 
improvement of such projects; to enter into or allow fmancing agreements with respect to such projects; and 
to accept any grants for such projects through which powers the industrial and business development of the 
State will be promoted, whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
industrial projects; to provide credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure serving the County or the project, including improved or unimproved 
real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the manufacturing or 
industrial enterprise (collectively, "Infrastructure"); through all such powers the industrial development of 
the State of South Carolina (the "State") will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing 
and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, 
products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and 

WHEREAS, a company known to the County at this time as Project Switch (the "Company"), has 
requested that the County assist in the acquisition, construction and installation of land, buildings, 
improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property 
to expand an existing manufacturing facility in the County (collectively, the "Project"), which will result in 
expected investment by the Company in the Project of at least $13,000,000 in non-exempt investment and 
the expected creation of at least 200 new, full-time, jobs (with benefits) in connection therewith, by 
December 31 of the fifth year after the first year which any portion of the Project is first placed in service 
(the "Initial Investment Period"); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act, the County has agreed to 
extend the Initial Investment Period an additional five (5) years, provided that the Company has invested at 
least $13,000,000 in non-exempt investment in the Project by the end of the Initial Investment Period; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement 
and an infrastructure finance agreement with the Company, thereby providing for certain fee in lieu of tax 



and infrastructure credit incentives with respect to the Project, all as more fully set forth in the Inducement 
Agreement attached hereto and made part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a "project" and "economic development property" as such terms are 
defined in the PILOT Act and that the Project would serve the purposes of the PILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
Vlli, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the "Multi-County Park Authority"), the 
County intends to place the site on which the Project will be located in a multi-county industrial and 
business park (the "Park") established by the County pursuant to qualifying agreement with an adjoining 
South Carolina county (the "Park Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined and found, on the basis of representations of the 
Company, that the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; that the Project 
will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge against the 
general credit or taxing power of either; that the purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic 
development, creation of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and 
public purposes; that the inducement of the location of the Project within the County and State is of 
paramount importance; and that the benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs; and the County has 
agreed to effect the delivery of an Inducement Agreement on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows : 

Section 1. (a) Pursuant to the authority given to County Council by the South Carolina 
Constitution, the Code, the PILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, and subject to the enactment of 
required legislative authorizations by the County Council, and for the purpose of providing development 
incentives for the Project through the payment by the Company of fees in lieu of taxes with respect to the 
Project pursuant to Section 12-44-40 of the Act, there is hereby authorized to be executed an Inducement 
Agreement between the County and the Company pertaining to the Project (the "Inducement Agreement") 
so as to establish, among other things, that the County and the Company will be parties to a fee in lieu of tax 
agreement (the "PILOT Agreement"). 

(b) The site on which the Project will be located has been or will be included within the Park 
established pursuant to the Park Agreement. The County Council will use its best efforts to take all 
reasonable acts to ensure that the Project will continuously be included within the boundaries of the Park 
or another qualified multi-county industrial or business park in order that the tax benefits contemplated 
hereunder and afforded by the laws of the State for projects located within multi-county industrial or 
business parks will be available to the Company for at least the term of the PILOT Agreement. 

(c) Pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, and for the purpose of 
authorizing an agreement providing for the provision of infrastructure credits against payments in lieu of 
taxes made by the Company pursuant to the Park Agreement, there is hereby authorized to be executed an 
infrastructure finance agreement between the County and the Company (the "Infrastructure Agreement"), in 
order to allow reimbursement to the Company of certain of its investment in qualified Infrastructure, within 
the meaning and purposes of Section 4-29-68 of the Code, all as provided in the Inducement Agreement. 

Section 2. The provisions, terms and conditions of the PILOT Agreement and the 
Infrastructure Agreement shall be prescribed and authorized by subsequent ordinance(s) of the County 

2 Resolution R2020-041 



Council, which, to the extent not prohibited by law, shall be consistent with the terms of this Resolution and 
the Inducement Agreement. 

Section 3. In connection with the above, the Chairman of County Council is hereby 
authorized to execute the Inducement Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto, in the name of 
and on behalf of the County; and the Clerk of County Council is hereby authorized to attest the same; and 
such officers are hereby further authorized to deliver said executed Inducement Agreement to the Company. 

Section 4. All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 
such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
by the County Council. 

Section 5. The authorization of the execution and delivery of the documents related to the 
FILOT Agreement and the Infrastructure Agreement and all other documents or obligations of the County 
required by the Inducement Agreement is subject to the compliance by the County Council with the 
provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the procedural requirements for adopting ordinances and 
resolutions. 

Section 6. It is the intention of the County Council that this resolution shall constitute an 
inducement resolution with respect to the Project, within the meaning of the Act. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this 15th day ofDecember, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

3 Resolution R2020-04l 



INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") made and entered into as of 
____ , 2020 by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the "County"), and PROJECT 
SWITCH, a South Carolina corporation (the "Company"). 

WITNESSETH: 

ARTICLE I 
RECITATION OF FACTS 

Section 1.1. As a means of setting forth the matters of mutual inducement which have 
resulted in the making and entering into of this Agreement, the following statements of fact are herewith 
recited: 

(a) The County, by and through its County Council, is authorized and empowered by the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "PILOT Act"), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the "Multi-County Park Act"), 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), to allow for the payment of certain fees 
in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to industrial properties; to issue special source revenue bonds, or 
in the alternative, to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in 
respect of investment in certain infrastructure serving the County or the project, including improved or 
unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the 
manufacturing or industrial enterprise (collectively, "Infrastructure"); through all such powers the industrial 
development of the State of South Carolina (the "State") will be promoted and trade developed by 
inducing new industries to locate in the State and by encouraging industries now located in the State to 
expand their investments and thus utilize and employ manpower and other resources of the State and 
benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other 
public benefits not otherwise provided locally. 

(b) The Company has requested that the County assist in the acquisition, construction and 
installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures , machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real 
and/or tangible personal property to expand an existing manufacturing facility in the County (collectively, 
the "Project"), which will result in an expected investment by the Company in the Project of at least 
$13,000,000 in non-exempt investment and the expected creation by the Company of at least 200 new, full
time, jobs (with benefits) in connection therewith, by December 31 of the fifth year after the first year in 
which any portion of the Project is first placed in service (the "Initial Investment Period"). 

(c) In accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the PILOT Act, the County has agreed to 
extend the Initial Investment Period an additional five (5) years, provided that the Company has invested at 
least $13,000,000 in non-exempt investment in the Project by the end of the Initial Investment Period (the 
"Extended Investment Period"). 

(d) Pursuant to the authority of Section 4-l-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the "Multi-County Park Authority"), the County 
intends to place the site on which the Project will be located in a multi-county industrial and business park 
(the "Park") established by the County pursuant to qualifying agreement with an adjoining South Carolina 
County (the "Park Agreement"). 

(e) The County has determined after due investigation that the Project would be aided by the 
availability of the assistance which the County might render through applicable provisions of the PILOT 



Act and the Multi-County Park Act as economic development incentives, and the inducements offered, 
will, to a great degree, result in the Project locating in the County. Pursuant to this determination, the 
Company and the County have agreed to negotiate an agreement for payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes 
as authorized by the FILOT Act, and the Company and the County have agreed to negotiate an 
infrastructure fmance agreement whereby, pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, the 
Company would be afforded certain credits as described herein against its payments in lieu of taxes in 
respect of the Company' s investment in qualified Infrastructure within the meaning and purposes of 
Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

(f) The County has given due consideration to the economic development impact of the 
Project, and as a preliminary matter, based on representations by the Company, hereby finds and 
determines that (i) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by 
providing service, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally, (ii) the 
Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge 
against the general credit or taxing power of either, (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project, 
i.e., economic development, retention of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper 
governmental and public purposes, (iv) the inducement of the location of the Project within the County 
and State is of paramount importance and (v) the benefits ofthe Project will be greater than the costs. The 
County, therefore, has agreed to effect the issuance and delivery of this Agreement, pursuant to the 
FILOT Act, the Multi-County Park Act and a Resolution of the County Council dated _____ _ 
20 _, and on the terms and conditions set forth . 

ARTICLE II 
UNDERT~GS ONTHEPART OFTHECOUNTY 

The County agrees as follows : 

Section 2.1. The County, subject to the limits set forth herein, agrees to enter into a Fee in 
Lieu of Tax Agreement with the Company with respect to the Project (the "FILOT Agreement") . 

Section 2.2. The FILOT Agreement will be executed at such time and upon such mutually 
acceptable terms as the Company shall request, subject to the provisions of Sections 2.8 and 4.2 herein. 

Section 2.3. The terms and provisions of the FILOT Agreement shall be substantially in the 
form generally utilized in connection with the FILOT Act, as to be agreed upon by the County and the 
Company. The FILOT Agreement shall contain, in substance, the following provisions: 

(a) The term of the FILOT Agreement will coincide with the maximum term of the 
negotiated fee pursuant to the FILOT Act. 

(b) The FILOT Agreement shall provide that, in the performance of the agreements 
contained therein on the part of the County, such agreement will not give rise to any pecuniary liability of 
the County and shall not create a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the County, the 
State or any incorporated municipality. 

(c) The FILOT Agreement shall contain a provlSlon requmng the Company to make 
payments in lieu of taxes to the County for a period of thirty (30) years after each year of the capital 
investment made under the FILOT Agreement during the Initial Investment Period. The amounts of such 
payments shall be determined by using (i) an assessment ratio of 6%; (ii) a fixed millage rate 326.3 mills 
(that is, the cumulative millage rate in effect at the site of the Project for all taxing entities as of June 30, 

2 Resolution R2020-041 



20 19); and (iii) the fair market value of the Project property as determined by the South Carolina 
Department of Revenue in accordance with the FILOT Act. For purposes of computing the amount of 
such fee, in accordance with the terms of Section 12-44-50(2) of the FILOT Act, the property shall be 
allowed all applicable property tax exemptions except the exemption allowed under Section 3(g) of 
Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina and the exemptions allowed pursuant to 
Sections 12-3 7 -220(B)(32) and (34) of the Code. 

(d) The Company may dispose of and replace property subject to fee in lieu of tax payments, 
as set forth in Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act; the fee with respect to such replacement property shall 
be calculated in accordance with the provisions of said Section 12-44-60. 

Section 2.4. The County hereby permits the planning, design, acquisition, construction and 
carrying out of the Project to commence prior to the execution and delivery of the FILOT Agreement. 
Contracts for construction and for purchase of machinery, equipment and personal property deemed 
necessary under the FILOT Agreement or that are otherwise permitted under the FILOT Act may be let 
by the Company, in its sole discretion. 

Section 2.5 . Pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, the County, subject to 
the limits set forth herein, including Sections 2.8 and 4.2 hereof, pursuant to an Infrastructure Finance 
Agreement with the Company (the "Infrastructure Agreement"), will provide an infrastructure credit 
against payments in lieu of taxes by the Company with respect to the Project pursuant to the Park 
Agreement or the FILOT Agreement, as the case may be, to reimburse the Company in respect of its 
investment in Infrastructure pertaining to the Project. In these respects, the Company shall be entitled to 
claim an annual infrastructure credit equal to 75% for the first ten (10) years and 50% for the next ten (10) 
years of the FILOT Agreement of each year's payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project 
pursuant to the Park Agreement, to be calculated and applied after payment of the one percent (1 %) 
payment due by the County to the adjoining South Carolina county pursuant to the Park Agreement (the 
"Project Credit"). 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company be 
entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of investment in the Project 
for which an infrastructure credit is taken. 

Section 2.6. Subject to the matters contained herein, the Infrastructure Agreement will be 
executed at such time and upon such mutually acceptable terms as the parties shall agree. 

Section 2.7. Should the Company fail to either (a) make at least $13,000,000 of non-exempt 
investment in the Project or (b) create at least two hundred (200) new, full-time, jobs (with benefits) with 
respect thereto by the end of the Initial Investment Period, then the Project Credit shall be reduced, 
prospectively beginning with the sixth year ofFILOT payments, to 50% annually and shall terminate after 
the first ten (1 0) years of receiving any Project Credit. If the $13,000,000 of non-exempt investment in the 
Project and at least two hundred (200) new, full-time, jobs (with benefits) with respect to the Project are 
in place by the end of the seventh (T") calendar year after the Project is first placed in service then the 
Project Credits may return to their original amounts, no lost incentive maybe claimed. 

Section 2.8. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the authorization by 
the County of the FILOT Agreement and the Infrastructure Agreement is subject to compliance by the 
County with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the enactment of ordinances and shall not 
constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of the County nor a pledge of the full faith and credit or 
the taxing power of the County. Further, the County will perform such other acts and adopt such other 
proceedings, consistent with this Agreement, as may be required to faithfully implement this Agreement 

3 Resolution R2020-041 



and will assist, in good faith and with all reasonable diligence, with such usual and customary 
governmental functions as will assist the successful completion of the Project by the Company. The 
County has made no independent legal or factual investigation regarding the particulars of this Agreement 
or the transactions contemplated hereunder and, further, executes this Agreement in reliance upon the 
representations by the Company that the Agreement and related documents comply with all laws and 
regulations, particularly those pertinent to industrial development projects in the State. 

Section 2.9. To the extent permitted by law, the County will assist with the identification, 
coordination, and timely assistance of all State, County and local construction, zoning, environmental, 
stormwater and other permits, approvals and consents that may be necessary or reasonably desirable in 
connection with construction of the Project and the operation thereof by the Company. To the extent 
permitted by law, the County will give expedited treatment to all such permitting within its control. 

ARTICLE III 
UNDERTAKINGSONTHEPARTOFTHECOMPANY 

Section 3.1. Except with respect to the FILOT Agreement and the Infrastructure Agreement, 
the County will have no obligation to assist the Company in finding any source of financing for all or any 
portion of the property constituting the Project and the Company may endeavor to fmance the Project to 
the extent required to finance the cost of the acquisition and installation of the Project. 

Section 3.2. If the Project proceeds as contemplated: 

(a) The Company agrees to enter into the FILOT Agreement, under the terms of which it will 
obligate itself to make the payments required by the FILOT Act including, but not limited to, payments in 
lieu of taxes at rates calculated in accordance with Section 2.3(c) hereof; 

(b) The Company agrees to enter into the Infrastructure Agreement; 

(c) With respect to the Project, the Company agrees to reimburse the County for all out-of-
pocket costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees of the County actually incurred, and other out-of-pocket 
expenditures to third parties to which to which the County might be reasonably put with regard to 
executing and entering into this Agreement, the FILOT Agreement and the Infrastructure Agreement; 

(d) The Company agrees to hold the County harmless from all pecuniary liability including, 
without limitation, environmental liability, and to reimburse the County for all expenses to which the 
County might be put in the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and in the negotiation and 
implementation of its terms and provisions, including reasonable legal expenses and fees ; 

(e) The Company agrees to apply for, and use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, all 
permits, licenses, authorizations and approvals required by all governmental authorities in connection 
with the construction and implementation of the Project; 

(f) The Company agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the County and the individual 
members, officers, agents and employees thereof harmless against any claim or loss or damage to property 
or any injury or death of any person or persons occurring in connection with the planning, design, 
acquisition, construction, leasing, carrying out or operation of the Project, including without limitation any 
environmental liability. The defense obligation shall be supplied with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to 
the County. The Company agrees also agrees to reimburse or otherwise pay, on behalf of the County, any 

4 Resolution R2020-041 



and all expenses not hereinbefore mentioned incurred by the County in connection with the Project, 
including the review and execution of the Resolution and this Agreement; and 

(g) The Company agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to invest at least 
$13,000,000 in the Project and to create at least 200 new, full -time, jobs (with benefits) during the 
Investment Period. 

ARTICLE IV 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 4.1 . All commitments of the County under Article II hereof are subject to all of the 
provisions of the PILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, including, without limitation, the condition 
that nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County 
or any incorporated municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of either. 

THIS AGREEMENT AND THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS PROVIDED FOR 
HEREUNDER ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY 
SOLELY FROM THE NET FEE PAYMENTS RECEIVED AND RETAINED BY THE COUNTY, 
AND DO NOT AND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COUNTY 
WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION (OTHER THAN THE 
PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE X, SECTION 14(10) OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION) 
OR STATUTORY LIMITATION, AND DO NOT AND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE OR GIVE 
RISE TO A PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY OR A CHARGE AGAINST ITS GENERAL 
CREDIT OR TAXING POWER. THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT, AND TAXING POWER OF THE 
COUNTY ARE NOT PLEDGED FOR THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS. 

Section 4.2. All commitments of the County and the Company hereunder are subject to the 
condition that the County and the Company agree on mutually acceptable terms and conditions of all 
documents, the execution and delivery of which are contemplated by the provisions hereof, and the 
adoption by the County Council of an ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of such 
documents and approving the terms thereof. If the parties enter into the PILOT Agreement and the 
Infrastructure Agreement, each party shall perform such further acts and adopt such further proceedings 
as may be required to faithfully implement its undertakings pursuant to such agreements. 

Section 4.3. If for any reason this Agreement (as opposed to the Fee in Lieu of Tax 
Agreement and the Infrastructure Agreement, which are contemplated to be negotiated, signed and 
delivered subsequent to the execution and delivery of this Agreement) is not executed and delivered by 
the Company on or before , 20 _ , the provisions of this Agreement may be cancelled by 
the County by delivery of written notice of cancellation signed by the County Administrator and delivered 
to the Company; thereafter neither party shall have any further rights against the other and no third parties 
shall have any rights against either party except that the Company shall pay the out-of-pocket expenses to 
third parties of officers, agents and employees of the County and counsel for the County incurred in 
connection with the authorization and approval of the PILOT Agreement and Infrastructure Agreement. 

Section 4.4. The parties understand that the Company may choose not to proceed with the 
Project, in which event this Agreement shall be cancelled and, subject to parties ' obligations described in 
Section 4.3 hereof, neither party shall have any further rights against the other, and no third party shall 
have any rights against either party. 

5 Resolution R2020-041 



Section 4.5. To the maximum extent allowable under the FlLOT Act and the Multi-County 
Park Act, the Company may, with the prior consent of the County (which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld), assign (including, without limitation, absolute, collateral, and other assigrunents) all or part of 
its rights and/or obligations under this Agreement to one or more other entities, in connection with the 
FILOT Agreement or the Infrastructure Agreement, without adversely affecting the benefits to the 
Company or its assignees pursuant hereto or pursuant to the FlLOT Act or the Multi-County Park Act; 
provided, however, that the Company may make any such assigrunent to an affiliate of the Company 
without obtaining the consent of the County, to the extent permitted by law. 

Section 4.6. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by 
or on behalf of all parties by their duly authorized officers and approved by appropriate legal process. No 
amendment, modification, or termination of this Agreement, and no waiver of any provisions or consent 
required hereunder shall be valid unless consented to in writing by all parties. 

Section 4.7. Nothing in this Agreement or any attachments hereto is intended to create, and no 
provision hereof should be so construed or interpreted as to create any third party beneficiary rights in any 
form whatsoever nor any form of partnership or other legal entity relationship between the County and the 
Companies. 

Section 4.8. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding 
the matters set forth herein. This Agreement shall be interpreted by the laws of the State. 

[Signature pages to follow] 

6 Resolution R2020-041 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed this 
Inducement Agreement on the respective dates indicated below, as of the date first above written. 

ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

[SIGNATURE PAGE 1 OF INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT] 

7 Resolution R2020-041 



[SIGNATURE PAGE 2 OF INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT] 

PROJECT SWITCH 

By: ________________ _ 
Name: -------------------------
Title: --------------------------

8 Resolution R2020-041 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

I, the undersigned Clerk of the County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and verbatim copy of resolution duly adopted at a meeting of said 
County Council held on December 15, 2020, at which meeting a quorum was at all times present. 

WITNESS MY HAND this __ day of ___ , 20_. 

Lacey A. Croegaert, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

RESOLUTION NO. R2020-042 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING THE TRANSFER AND 
ASSIGNMENT OF A FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT AND RIGHTS RELATED 
THERETO BY SMF, INC. TO EDECO LLC, D/B/A/ SMF; THE CONTINUATION IN 

FORCE OF SUCH AGREEMENT FOLLOWING SUCH TRANSFER; THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AGREEMENTS REQUESTING AND APPROVING 

THE TRANSFERS BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE TRANSFEREE; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, during the month of February of 2013 Anderson County (the "County") 
began negotiations with SMF-SC, LLC (the "Subsidiary Company"), a South Carolina single
member LLC, duly authorized to conduct business in the state, and which was organized and 
wholly owned by an Illinois corporation, SMF, Inc. (the "Parent Company"); and 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2013 the Anderson County Council (the "County Council") 
enacted Ordinance Number 2013-017 to authorize, among other things, a fee-in-lieu-of-tax 
agreement dated as of April 16, 2013 (the "Fee Agreement"), and an infrastructure financing 
agreement (the "Infrastructure Financing Agreement") (which granted a thirty-five percent (35%) 
credit, for the first five (5) years, against the fee-in-lieu-of-tax due under the Fee Agreement as 
well as a forty percent (40%) credit with respect to the taxable investment in the project which is 
not eligible for inclusion in the Fee Agreement, so that when the latter credit is applied, the fee 
payments with respect to such taxable investment will be reduced to the amount they would have 
been if the taxable property were eligible for inclusion in the Fee Agreement, for the first thirty 
(30) years that such payments are made) (collectively, the "Credits"), all with the Subsidiary 
Company. All incentives referenced above are hereinafter referred to as the "Economic 
Development Incentives"; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the April 16, 2013 County Council meeting, the County, acting 
through its Chairman and the County Administrator, and the Subsidiary Company executed the 
Fee Agreement and the Infrastructure Financing Agreement. Shortly after the execution of the Fee 
Agreement and the Infrastructure Financing Agreement by the County and the Subsidiary 
Company, the shareholders of the Parent Company began negotiations with a potential investor, a 
large publicly-traded company, which will be investing in only the operating assets of the 
Subsidiary Company (as well as those of the Parent Company), but not in its real property (the 
"Reorganization"); and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the Reorganization, the Subsidiary Company merged into the 
Parent Company, under an Illinois simplified LLC-corporate merger statute, with the Parent 
Company receiving all assets (both real and personal property) subject to the Fee Agreement and 
the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, and assuming all liabilities of the Subsidiary Company 
including, but not limited to, those arising under the Fee Agreement and the Infrastructure 
Financing Agreement; and 



WHEREAS, also as a result of the Reorganization, the shareholders of the Parent 
Company fonned a new Illinois LLC, BTP Tripartite Investors, LLC (hereinafter "BTP"), to which 
the Parent Company transferred or distributed all of its South Carolina real estate assets (both land 
and building), and from which the Parent Company is leasing back this same property for its 
operating use; and 

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2013 the County Council enacted its Ordinance 2013-039 
(the "Ordinance"), through which it authorized the transfer of FILOT rights under the Fee 
Agreement to the Parent Company, and the addition of BTP as a sponsor affiliate (the "Sponsor 
Affiliate") under the Fee Agreement, the transfer of rights under the Infrastructure Financing 
Agreement to the Parent Company and BTP, and an amendment to the Fee Agreement and the 
Infrastructure Financing Agreement (the "Amendment Agreement") memorializing the foregoing; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County, the Subsidiary Company, the Parent Company, and BTP (the 
"Parties") then, each, executed the Amendment Agreement, dated as of October 15, 2013 , to 
amend the Fee Agreement and the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, pursuant to the transfer 
provisions (the "Transfer Provisions") contained therein, to: (1) substitute the Parent Company 
for the Subsidiary Company in any and all locations and references in the Fee Agreement and the 
Infrastructure Financing Agreement, and concurrently release the Subsidiary Company from any 
and all obligations under said documents ; (2) add BTP as a Sponsor Affiliate; (3) add the definition 
of Sponsor Affiliate to Article I, entitled Definitions, of the Fee Agreement; (4) adjust the 
minimum investment required under the Fee Agreement and the Infrastructure Financing 
Agreement from the stated Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000) in order to 
require that the Parent Company and BTP invest Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($2,500,000) each (for a total of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000)); and (5) provide for the Parent 
Company and BTP to each claim the Credits, but only to the extent of their respective eligible 
expenditures pursuant to the Infrastructure Financing Agreement (the Fee Agreement and the 
Infrastructure Financing Agreement, as amended by the Amendment Agreement being collectively 
herein the "Economic Development Incentive Documents"); and 

WHEREAS, the Parent Company and BTP, and EDECO LLC, D/B/A SMF, Inc. (the 
"Assignee") have each and all requested that County Council officially consent to the transfer and 
assignment of the Economic Development Incentive Documents and all related rights, benefits, 
and obligations (the "Assigned Interests") from the Parent Company and BTP to Transferee and 
confirm the County's consent to the described transfer by formal action, including, without 
limitation, this Resolution and an appropriate assignment and assumption agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Assignee has agreed to assume and be bound by the obligations of the 
Parent Company and BTP under the Assigned Interests; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to encourage the Assignee to continue the Project-related 
operations in the County by providing the requested formal action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 

2 44520 146 v3 

Resolution R2020-042 



1. The County hereby consents to the transfer and assignment from the Parent Company and 
BTP (the Transferors) to the Assignee of all of the Parent Company's and BTP's rights, 
title and interest in the Assigned Interests, including without limitation, the Economic 
Development Incentive Documents and of all of the Transferors ' s rights and obligations 
thereunder and in all Assigned Interests . The Chairman of County Council and the County 
Administrator are hereby authorized to execute and deliver, and to receive, on behalf of the 
County, the Transfer, Assignment and Assumption Agreement attached hereto, 
accomplishing and containing all of the foregoing, as well as the request(s) of the 
Transferors as to the respective transfers and the agreement of the Assignee, assuming and 
agreeing to be bound by all of the obligations of the Transferors as to the Assigned 
Interests, as well as any related documentation. The Transfer, Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement is to be in substantially the form attached hereto, or with such minor variations 
as shall not be materially adverse to the County and as shall be approved by the County 
official executing the same, upon the advice of counsel to the County, his execution thereof 
signifying his consent to such revisions. 

2. Should any part or provision of this Resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect 
the rest and remainder of this Resolution, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

3. All ordinances, orders, resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council inconsistent 
herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 

4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after reading and 
enactment by Anderson County Council. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY] 

3 445201 46 v3 

Resolution R2020-042 



Done in meeting duly assembled this 15th day of December, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

4 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

44520 146 v3 

Resolution R2020-042 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

TRANSFER, ASSIGNMENT 
AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, Anderson County (the "County"), a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the "State"), acting by and through the Anderson 
County Council (the "County Council") and (i) in accordance with Chapter 44 of Title 12 (the 
"Act") of the South Carolina Code of Laws (the "Code"), entered into a negotiated fee in lieu of 
tax ("FILOT") Fee Agreement dated as of April 16, 2013 (the "Fee Agreement") with SMF-SC, 
LLC concerning certain investments by the Company in the County and (ii) in accordance with 
Chapter 29 of Article 4 of the Code, entered into that certain Infrastructure Financing Agreement 
dated as of April 16, 2013 (the "Infrastructure Financing Agreement") with SMF-SC, LLC 
concerning certain property acquired by SMF-SC, LLC that was ineligible for inclusion in the Fee 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, as a part of a corporate reorganization, SMF -SC, LLC merged into SMF, Inc. 
and as part of the said corporate reorganization, certain real estate assets were transferred by SMF
SC, LLC to BTP Tripartite Investors, LLC (hereinafter, "BTP", and together with SMF, Inc. the 
"Company"); 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the aforedescribed reorganization, the County and the 
Company entered into an Amendment Agreement dated as of October 15, 2013 (the "Amendment 
Agreement") (the Fee Agreement and the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, as amended by the 
Amendment Agreement, are collectively referred to herein as the "Economic Development 
Incentive Documents," and all rights and interests related thereto, are respectively and collectively, 
referred to herein as the "Assigned Interests"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company and EDECO LLC (the "Assignee", a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of Etnyre International, Ltd., and d/b/a/ SMF, Inc.) have requested that the County Council 
authorize and approve the transfer and assignment of the Assigned Interests by the Company to 
the Assignee; and 

WHEREAS, Section 9.01 of the Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-120 of the Act all 
provide for the transfer and assignment of the Company's Assigned Interests under the Fee 
Agreement to the Assignee and the continuation of the benefits under the said Assigned Interests 
after such transfer; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4.02 of the Infrastructure Financing Agreement provides for the 
transfer and assignment of the Company' s Assigned Interests under the Infrastructure Financing 
Agreement to the Assignee and the continuation of the benefits under the said Assigned Interests 
after such transfer; and 

WHEREAS, the Company and the Assignee have requested that County Council officially 
confirm the County' s consent to the described transfer and assignment by formal action, including, 
without limitation, a resolution and execution of a consent to this agreement; and 



WHEREAS, the Assignee has agreed to assume and be bound by the obligations of the 
Company under the Assigned Interests; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to encourage the Assignee to continue the Project-related 
operations in the County by providing the requested formal action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Company hereby requests that County approve the transfer and assignment of all 
of Company's rights, title and interests in and to the Assigned Interests to Assignee. 

2. The Company hereby transfers and assigns to Assignee all rights, duties and 
obligations of Company under the Assigned Interests and Assignee hereby agrees to assume and 
undertake all rights, duties and obligations of Company under the Assigned Interests, in accord 
with the terms, respectively, thereof. 

3. County hereby approves and consents to the transfer and assignment from the 
Company to the Assignee of all of the Company's rights, title and interests in the Assigned 
Interests, and to execution by appropriate officials of the County of appropriate documentation of 
the same, including, without limitation, through execution and delivery of this Agreement and 
other documentation. 

4. This agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will 
be considered an original, and all of which, taken together, shall constitute but one and the same 
original document. 

Dated as of , 2020. -----------------

44525708 v2 

Resolution R2020-042 



WITNESSES: 

SMF, Inc. 

Name: __________ ___ _ 
Its : -----------------
Dated: --------------

44525708 v2 

Resolution R2020-042 



WITNESSES: 

BTP Tripartite, LLC 

Name: 
Its: =---------==Dat~edi:==-------===~ 

44525708 v2 

Resolution R2020-042 



EDECO, LLC 

WITNESSES 

Name: 
Its: ---

Dat~edd::~=====--------============ 

R 44525708 v2 
esolution R2020-042 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CONSENT 
OF ANDERSON COUNTY 

Anderson County, South Carolina hereby acknowledges and consents to the assignment by 
SMF, Inc. and BTP Tripartite Investors, LLC of all of their interests in the Economic Development 
Incentive Documents to EDECO LLC and the assumption by EDECO LLC of all of the interests 
of SMF, Inc. and BTP Tripartite Investors, LLC in the Economic Development Incentive 
Documents. 

ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

44525708 v2 
Resolution R2020-042 



Anderson -county -purchasing Department -aid Tabulation 

BID# 21-020 PRESTRESSED CONCRETE CORED SLAB UNITS 

}'endor , . I BONDS BID w "' 
·c. • 

FLORENCE CONCRETE PRODUCTS $109,736.00 

2 Til NO RESPONSE 

3 CORES LAB NO RESPONSE 

4 CONTECHES NO RESPONSE 

5 TEKNA PRECAST NO RESPONSE 

6 STANDARD CONCRETE NO RESPONSE 

7 VMC NO RESPONSE 

8 ROSS PRESTRESS NO RESPONSE 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 AWARD TO: F I o re,vtc...~ ~nt_ ('J~ PrD J . 



SOLICITATION OFFER AND A WARD FORM 

ANDERSON COUNTY PURCHASING, ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29624 
REQUEST FOR SOLICITATIONS, OFFER AND A WARD 
*****************************"***************Solicitation Information**************************************"'"' 
I. SOLICITATION: # 21-020 Brief Descril!tion: 

2. ISSUE DATE: November 12, 2020 PRESTRESSED CONCRETE CORED SLAB UNITS 

3. FOR INFORMATION CONTACT: FOR SHACKLEBURG ROAD BRIDC.E PROJECT 

Name: Robert E. Carroll v-fstl/ 
(SEE SPECmCA TIONS) 

rcarroll @andcrsoncountvsc.orcr 
5. SUBMIT BID TO: 
Anderson County Purchasing Department 
101 South Main Street, Room 115 
Anderson, S.C. 29624 
Attn: Bid #21-020 
6. Submission Deadline: Wednesday, November 25, 2020 Time: 11:00 A.M. 

8. Firm Offer Period: Bids submitted shall remain firm for a period of Forty-Five (45) calendar davs from date specified in block G. 

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>Offer (To be completed by Bidder)<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<< 
9. BUSINESS tJ Woman Business Enterprise 

CLASSIFICATION (Check Appropriate Box) tJ Minority Business Enterprise 
tJ Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

10. Additional Information: In compJiance with above, the undersigned agrees, if this proposal is accepted within the period 
specified in Block 8 above, to furnish any or all other further information requested bv Anderson Countv. 
II . Bidder's name and address (Type or print): 12. Name & Title of Person Authorized to sign the Bid . 

t="lcr er.te_ CoV\Cf de.. p( ~ J:3 \ ::IJ) c ~ 
(Type or Print) : 

P. 0. ~c""'f... 5So lo Shf'J(C-1 M .~..s 
13. Bidder's Signature!& Date 

~ \ 1:) '("e..("\ t '{_. 
I 

5C..., C) q'Sa"L 

e-mail : -:) C'l'~~t.s.~p@ G\.0 \. t~ IJL,~adkb )J }~a b.uW Telephone # ~ 3 ~lob 2 , ~ ~ '-f 0, Fax # 8'/~~b" l --07;;)'l 
FederaJ Identification #: 
>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>A WARD (To be completed b~ Anderson-Counn )<<.:!<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<< 
14. TotaJ amount of award : 15. Successful Bidder: 
16. Contracting Officer or Authorized 17. Signature: 18. Award date: 
Representative: 
Robert E. Carroll 



SECTION II 

BID FORM FOR PRESTRESSED CONCRETE CORED SLAB UNITS 
FOR SHACKLEBURG ROAD BRIDGE PROJECT 

Name of Party submitting the ~id: fl..og01CE LoueikJE ~O()UC..TS 
1
1JtC. 

To: Purchasing Manager for Anderson County 

1. Pursuant to the Notice Calling for Bids and the other Bid documents contained in the Bid 
package, the undersigned party submitting the Bid, having conducted a thorough inspection 
and evaluation of the Scope of Work, Specifications and other supporting documents 
contained therein, hereby submit the following pricing set forth herein: 

Est. 
Item Unit Qty Unit Cost* Ext. Cost 

Engineering LS I 5,ooo.oo 5,ooo.oo 
3 '-0" X 2' -0" 
Prestressed Concrete LF 718.50 \t-1.oo 8,, oq4.oo 
Cored Slabs 
SCDOT Pre-Cast Barrier 

LF 120.0 I 01-.oo 11,~60 .00 Wall** 
Bearing Pads (for Cored EA 24 lO&.oo 1 15<t1.oo Slabs) 

Tie Rod Assemblies EA 2 16S.oo S1o.oo 

* Unit prices must include all freight, fuel surcharge, sales tax, permits and fees. 
** Unit price include all hardware, including bearing pads as listed on Sheet S-11 of 
Addendum C. 

Total Contract Price for Project: $ I oct, '131- .oo 

Pricing above should take into account all costs of manufacturing and delivery as no separate 
payments will be made for said services. 



RECREATION FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATION FORM 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM 
DISTRICT: District 5- Mr. Dunn 

Mail/Email/Fax to: 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0 . Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

lacroegaert@andersoncountysc.org 

1. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation: 
County Administrator's Office for Wellington Park 

2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district, annotate 
amount from each district): 

$2,500 (to be used as match for $10,000 PARD grant) 

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested: 
Asphalt and hardscaping for new basketball court. 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina 
Secretary of State? If so, please attach evidence of that good standing. 

Yes. 

5. Contact Person: 
Email Address: 

Steve Newton 
snewton@andersoncountysc.org 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: 
Anderson County's funding will be used to leverage a $10,000 PARD grant. 

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am 
authorized to make this application on behalf of the above named entity. 

Steve Newton Steve Newton 12/8/2020 
Signature Print Name Date 



RECREATION FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATION FORM 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM 
DISTRICT: District 6- Mr. Davis 

Mail/Email/Fax to : 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0 . Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

lacroegaert@andersoncountysc.org 

1. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation: 
County Administrator's Office for Hurricane Springs Park 

2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district, annotate 
amount from each district) : 

$5,000 (to be used as match for $20,000 PARD grant) 

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested: 
General park improvements consisting of combination of paving; scoreboard, stand 
cover, andjor tower improvements; specific activities TBD by Parks Department 
through stakeholder engagement 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina 
Secretary of State? If so, please attach evidence of that good standing. 

Yes. 

5. Contact Person : 
Email Address: 

Steve Newton 
snewton@andersoncountysc.org 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: 
Anderson County's funding will be used to leverage a $20,000 PARD grant. 

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am 
authorized to make this application on behalf of the above named entity. 

Steve Newton Steve Newton 12/8/2020 
Signature Print Name Date 



RECREATION FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATION FORM 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM: 
DISTRICT: A L L 

Mail/Email/Fax to : 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0 . Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

lacroegaert@ andersoncountysc.org 
Fax: 864-260-4356 

1. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation: 

A'\~ot""C" () J_~ 1~: .S 0-r~~c:: IV\.'V\i.S-./rf 

2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district, annotate amount from each 
district) : 7 0 0 , o 0 

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested: 
Fo~ C[SSISI--c,V\('e J..o (>rou,'dc.. c~; ... s.J.ov,s '\1\ti!c; l.s fo ILe_ ~Dfk""l-il-1:-ly 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina Secretary of State? If so, 
please attach evidence of that good standing. 

5. ContactPerson: tv\'4.·tJL-t0 t')l)cr" : ,.,_,<!'<)-#I...,.Q_ 
MailingAddress: /b 'l-<( ~m~~'f &.cf 0~./-+o......_ 

PhoneNumber: ~"'LI- s>~~77t~ 
Email : A I k~ m:n~s./ "'111 to e> <! n~v,·, L co (r-_ -l\1\~<.rr: w<c;l hctL4 .Vg-m1: l~eo•" 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: 

vno 

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am authorized to 
make this application on behalf of the above named entity. 

(j(4~!C~~#'~ 
Signature Print Name Date 



~-'" :,!jl"~l t••tiH UIHI! ihftll oll t uo ' "'/"' t;tt(ttt '/Ifill ,t,/l!t 0101111 lllltlt Hlfllt II toll lilttlt l'tlt!o ojl,lli tlfllll ltllfo IIIItH ftlhll tfl t tll "1/'11 tttftll 11'1"1 111 1111 ti11H I UHI!I illfllt '.'!I'll ttj/1_1 Hll •ll 1111111 n.(u, :' 
~;h~~ Jl~~~ J:NmA ~ .1}.'.t.'l L','N//l WUNA.J1:111:J. t4tm 1 ' " ' '"'' lllf11l!Jll1111L~!E1}~'1J._WN.'.'J 4\','/Nj f!ull.'LlllJL'l,t UM.'.l fN!.',',fJ ~.'N.'.'J L'.'UN,\ 11

t111 111111 u· 11 
tH u m,u -~'i:l. ..-I' 

t The State of South Carolina ~ 

Office of Secretary of State Mark Hammond 

Certificate of Existence 

I, Mark Hammond, Secretary of State of South Carolina Hereby Certify that: 

Anchored in his grace ministry, a nonprofit corporation duly organized under the laws 
of the State of South Carolina on April 21st, 2020, has as of the date hereof filed as a 
nonprofit corporation for religious, educational, social, fraternal, charitable, or other 
eleemosynary purpose, and has paid all fees, taxes and penalties owed to the State, 
that the Secretary of State has not mailed notice to the company that it is subject to 
being dissolved by administrative action pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §33-31-1421, 
and that the nonprofit corporation has not filed articles of dissolution as of the date 
hereof. 

Given under my Hand and the Great Seal 
of the State of South Carolina this 22nd 
day of April, 2020. 



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date: JUN 0 5 2020 

ANCHORED IN HIS GRACE MINISTRY 
1624 AMITY RD 
BELTON, SC 29627 -0000 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
85 -0779607 

DLN: 
26053522003360 

Contact Person: 
CUSTOMER SERVICE ID# 31954 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 31 

Form 990-PF Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
April 21, 2020 

Addendum Applies: 
No 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax 
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)(3). Donors can deduct 
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified 
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under 
Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your 
exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c)(3) are further classified as 
either public charities or private foundations. We determined you ' re a private 
foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a). 

You ' re required to file Form 990-PF, Return of Private Foundation or Section 
4947(a)(1) Trust Treated as Private Foundation, annually, whether or not you 
have inco•e or activity during the year. If you don't ·file a required return 
or notice for three consecutive years, your exempt status- will be automatically 
revoked. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the 
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt 
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PF" in the search bar 
to vie~ Publication 4221-PF, Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Private 
Foundations, which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure 
requirements. 

Letter 1076 



South Carolina Secretary of State 

Business Entities Online 
File, Search, and Retrieve Documents Electronically 

Anchored in his grace ministry 

Corporate Information 

Entity Type: Nonprofit 

Status: Good Standing 

Domestic/Foreign: Domestic 

Incorporated South Carolina 

State: 

Registered Agent 

Agent: Stephanie Latrice merriweather 

Address: 1624 amity rd 

Belton, South Carolina 29627 

Official Documents On File 

Filing Type 

Articles of Incorporation 

For filing questions please contact us at 803-734-2158 

Important Dates 

Effective Date 04/21 /2020 

Expiration N/A 

Date: 

Term EndN/A 

Date: 

Dissolved N/A 

Date: 

Filing Date 

04/21 /2020 

Copyright © 2020 State of South Carolina 



RECREATION flJi\D APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATIO~ FORM 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM: 
DISTRICT: frLL 

Mail/Email/Fax to: 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0 . Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

lacroegaert@ andersoncountysc.org 
Fax: 864-260-4356 

I. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation: 

\', lL\"t\ ca ~ Cxowl\~ 
2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district , annotate amount from each 

district): ~ \ ooo · oo 
J 

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested: 

~()~ (ou+~p;~ ~\ltl)ia~ Crots) I/J,(ltyjUj:JI€ntj 8_~jf-(~1!y) 
4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina Secretary of State? If so, 

please attach evidence of that good standing. yeS lSee cLt\c.cic.hecl dl.X:.u..\:fle('(t" Of\ \, k) 

5. Contact Person: nOStxuutG Fu.tkf 
Mailing Address: ld.l1- futt Dnv'"c.,) An:,\€1'_::011 [:;:., 3'1!03.( 
Phone Number: ~ _ d~ _ ~<iC(o 

Email: 4--\~·focro\; OS ' \XC.'Jtc\en+ <: 3m<.ul · (OI'l\ 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: No 

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am authorized to 

make this application on behalf of the above named entity. 

1 ?/tJ.lt So;;o 
I 

Date 



South Carolina Secretary of State 

Business Entities Online 
File, Search, and Retrieve Documents Electronically 

TIARAS TO CROWNS 

Corporat~ Information 

Entity Type: Nonprofit 

Status: Good Standing 

Domestic/Foreign: Domestic 

Incorporated South Carolina 

State: 

Registered Agent 

Agent: Roshanda Fuller 

Address: 610 Fairmont Road 

Anderson, South Carolina 29621 

Official Documents On File 

Filing Type 
Notice of Change of Registered Office or Registered Agent 
or Both of a Nonprofit Corporation 

Incorporation 

For filing questions please contact us at 803-734-2158 

Important Dates 

Effective Date 02/08/2016 

Expiration N/ A 

Date: 

Term End N/A 

Date: 

Dissolved N/A 

Date: 

Filing Date 

05/08/2017 

02/08/2016 

Copyright © 2020 State of South Carol ina 



Anderson County Building & Codes 
Monthly Activity Report 

Nov-20 

Total Number Permit Transactions: 798 

New Single Family: 70 
New Multi-Family: 4 
Residential Additions/Upgrades: 15 
Garages/Barns/Storage: 27 
New Manufactured Homes: 16 
New Commercial: 2 
Commercial Upfits/Upgrades: 1 
Courtesy Permits/Fees Waived: __ __;_1 ___ (~<AIIachcd) 

Inspection Activity: 

Citizens Inquiries: 
(New & Follow Up; Includes Sub-Standard Housing /Mobile Homes) 
Tall Grass Complaints (New and Follow Ups): 
Number of Scheduled Building Inspections Performed {If of Site Visits): 
Courtesy, Site and Miscellaneous Inspections: 
Manufactured Home Inspections: 

Total Number of Inspections (Site Visits) for Department: 

r; ' Reviews/Misc. Activity: 

~ (lncklcloo Up&tJnt S•t.-Standatd Ca..,) 

931 -:;-
----ag-

1068 -
Plans Reviewed: 
Mech/Eiec/Piumb Reviews: 
New Derelict Manufactured Home Cases: 

__ ....;7~5~ __ (1nclucles preliminary consultations, resubmlttals and soL1r) 

---'4'-=:B:....._ __ (Inclucles residential solu) 

0 
Hearings: 
Court Cases: 

Revenue Collected: 

Reins ection Fees Collected: 
Plan Review Revenue: 

Total Revenue For The Month: 

1 
0 

$525.00 
$9,094.60 

$145,992.00 



Anderson County Building & Codes 
Permits Issued for 2020 

Month Building Electrical Plumbing HVAC MH Wrecking Moving Misc. Total 

January 253 258 151 154 79 22 10 41 968 
February 269 311 158 168 69 16 10 75 1076 

March 239 264 129 130 65 4 9 46 886 
April 208 235 132 129 53 4 8 44 813 
May 230 282 122 129 52 15 6 54 890 
June 315 373 165 175 62 30 11 71 1202 
July 326 366 206 218 119 26 10 49 1320 

August 309 324 190 196 73 12 7 66 1177 
September 277 310 160 167 120 18 17 63 1132 

October 231 315 142 147 93 14 14 42 998 
November 198 230 98 122 85 3 10 52 798 
December 0 

Total 2855 3268 1653 1735 870 164 112 603 11260 

Permits Issued 

1500 ~----------------------------------------------------------- • January 
1400 +--------------------------------------------------- u February 

1300 & March 

1200 IIApril 

1100 • May 

1000 
liii June 

• July 
900 ------- August 
800 

700 

600 

500 

--- Iii September 

--- II October 
______ • November 

wOecember --- -



January 
February 
March 
April 
May 
June 
July 
August 
September 
October 
November 
December 

Total 

Building 

$101,087.80 
$92,614.00 

$115,192.40 
$103,169.80 
$70,420.00 

$105,841 .60 
$125,399.20 
$121,801.60 
$99,384.60 

$104,804.60 
$96,911.40 

$1,136,627.00 

$250,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$150,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$50,000.00 

Electrical 

$19,179.00 
$24.488.00 
$22,078.00 
$27,177.00 
$20 915.00 
$26,290.00 
$29,863.50 
$23,914.00 
$24,086.00 
$24.462.00 
$18,355.00 

$260,807.50 

Anderson County Building & Codes 
Permit Revenue for 2020 

Plumbing 

$10,775.00 $11,990.00 $2,940.00 
$11,286.00 $12,515.00 $2.423.00 
$8,596.00 $9.476.00 $3,309.00 
$9,272.00 $11,586.50 $3,421.00 
$8,922.00 $9,245.00 $2,758.00 
$12,716.00 $13,762.00 $3,304.00 
$15,834.00 $16 436.00 $6,527.00 
$13,819.00 $13,867.00 $2 449.00 
$12,368.00 $12,813.00 $4,558.00 
$10,980.00 $11,907.00 $4,322.00 
$7,835.00 $9,285.00 $3,451.00 

$122,403.00 $132 882.50 $39,462.00 

Permit Revenue 

Wrecking Moving 

$810.00 $450.00 
$540.00 $500.00 
$180.00 $450.00 
$180.00 $400.00 
$615.00 $300.00 
$630.00 $550.00 
$990.00 $500.00 
$450.00 $350.00 
$720.00 $850.00 
$540.00 $700.00 
$135.00 $400.00 

$5,790.00 $5 450.00 

$0.00 J!:..:.:!~~~===~~=~~=~~~~~~~J 

$8.470.00 
$12,997.90 
$3,464.80 
$2,759.70 
$9,239.20 

$10,451.10 
$8,249.60 

$11,885.30 
$30,765.50 
$16,726.40 
$9,619.60 

$124,629.10 

•January 
February 

oMarch 
CApri! 
•May 
DJune 
•July 
oAugust 
•september 
• October 
ONovember 
• December 

$155,701.80 
$157,363.90 
$162,746.20 
$157,966.00 
$122,414.20 
$173 544.70 
$203,799.30 
$188 535.90 
$185,545.10 
$174,442.00 
$145,992.00 

$0.00 

$1,828,051.10 



F.\\. DODGE Bt:ILI>ING STATISTICS 
Tul1-Fr~~ !'hum:: H77--tS1J-.$U?::! Fa': HUII-HIJ::!-7-t7ll 

For the month of: Nov-20 

Item 

(o) (h) lei 

101 70 70 

102 

Unhs 

lh) 

hem 

Nu. 

U11i1s 

I •. ":1. JJ .of. 1. '\ 

Sn·tiun3 
hem ,\NO RAZING 

Nn U11 lkiinis tlnvstnv 

Uniu 

Ct•mltu4.1inn 

Dwllf ctnu 

~~· 

CurutNCiinn 

Onurunu 

Omll CIHII$ 

I~ I 

Cc~rUIIti4.'Ciun 

0lf'tltUrtlJ 

1~1 

$1,985,,6 

$401,(180 

l ·uru1r.ctivn 

Onritetnfl 

REPORT OF BUILDING OR 

ZONING PERMITS ISSUED AND 
LOCAL PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION 

ch:~~~ged, m.:u~ (X) in the 

l• f m 

CJmttC"t'fiU 

Cun.uructinn 

(< ) m 

lei 

R1iklin"• Hc ~:.•nll Ctw1ru"1tnn 

Uniu Omitrrnt• 

lei 10 



**PLEASE REMEMBER TO FILL IN THE YELLOW AREAS** 

Please return to: buiJding.statistics@construction.com or Fax: 800-892-7470 or Fax: 866-663-6373 

ID#: 14360 

For the Month of: 1-Nov 

Area covered by permits: Anderson County, SC 

NAme of person to 
contAct regarding 
tbjs n:nort; Tammy E. Dowdy 

Phone Number: (864)260·4158 

70 $17,561,716 

$557,122 

Email Address: tdowdy@andersoncountysc.orq 

THANK YOU! 

D lt No Permltalor lhase 
calegorles. please enler ·x· In 
Chis box 

QUESTION/COMMENTS 
Conlact Us TOLL·FREE by 

Phana: Bn·489·4092 Fax: 1!00 
892·7470 or Fax: 866-663-

6373 

12f7/2020 



BCR021 
REQUESTED BY: TEDOWDY 

PERMIT II 
ISSUE 
DATE COST 

MOD 702 COURTESY PERMIT/NO CHARGE 

202003881 11/16/2020 45,001.00 

TOTALS: 1 45,001.00 

ANDERSON COUNTY BUILDING CODES 
CENSUS REPORT FOR 11/01/2020 TO 11/30/2020 

COURTESY PERMITS 

OWNER NAME MOD DESCRIPTION 

8:59:49 12/01/20 

HOMELAND PARK VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPT INC REPLACE 201906232/HP FIRE STAT 

PAGE 1 



Council 

Meeting of: 

812512020 

812512020 

101612020 

11112/2020 

1111212020 

1111212020 

1111212020 

1111212020 

1112012020 

Check 

Dated: 

91212020 

9/212020 

1011412020 

1111812020 

1111812020 

11/1812020 

1111812020 

1111812020 

121212020 

Check 

Number 

88827 

88946 

90366 

91089 

91093 

91103 

91278 

91088 

91591 

DISTRICT 1 ·SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-001 -241 

Budget 2020 • 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

Return of Appropriation from SC Upstate Equine that was not used · FY 16117 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Proverbs Mentoring Organization 

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies) 

Anderson Cavaliers 

Anderson County Library 

Anderson Five Education Foundation 

Widows Watchmen 

YMCA of Anderson 

Tackling the Streets 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

2,759.43 

1,000.00 

(5,000.00) 

(1,000.00) 

(250.00) 

(500.00) 

( 1 0,000.00) 

(4,000.00) 

(500.00) 

(3,000.00) 

(500.00) 

9,009.43 

9,009.43 

10- /to/;L;J-o 
• 

December 08, 20 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

11/12/2020 

11/12/2020 

Check 

Dated : 

8/26/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/1412020 

10/1412020 

10/14/2020 

10/21/2020 

11/18/2020 

11/18/2020 

Check 

Number 

88807 

90239 

90275 

90360 

90360 

90526 

91135 

91174 

DISTRICT 2- SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-002-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Zone Services, The 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

Calvary Homes for Children 

Generation 4 (Community Food Bank) 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Food Bank) 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Potter's House Restoration 

City of Anderson Recreation 

Haven of Rest 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

14,657.50 

(820.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(250.00) 

(2,500.00) 

(1 ,500.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

32,587.50 

32,587.50 

DATE: p-lto !»alJ 
DATE: December 08, 20 



Council 

Meeting of: 

7/7/2020 

717/2020 

10/6/2020 

11/1212020 

Check 

Dated: 

7/15/2020 

7/15/2020 

10/14/2020 

11/18/2020 

Check 

Number 

87579 

87740 

90360 

91146 

DISTRICT 3 -SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-003-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

American Legion Post #44 

Town of Starr for PRO Grant 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Crescent Elite Shooters 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

578.89 

(2,000.00) 

(960.00) 

(250.00) 

(1,000.00) 

26,368.89 

26,368.89 

r 
December 08, 20 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/25/2020 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

11/12/2020 

11/20/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

9/2/2020 

9/2/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

11/18/2020 

12/2/2020 

Check 

Number 

88828 

88875 

90360 

90366 

91165 

91591 

DISTRICT 4 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-004-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

Retum of Appropriation from SC Upstate Equine that was not used - FY 16/17 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Distinguished Young Women 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies) 

Goats 4 Goodness 

Tackling the Streets 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

18,706.99 

5,000.00 

(500.00) 

(300.00) 

(250.00) 

(250.00) 

(1 ,500.00) 

(500.00) 

50,406.99 

50,406.99 

December 08, 20 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/25/2020 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

11/1212020 

11/20/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

9/212020 

9/212020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

11/18/2020 

121212020 

Check 

Number 

88829 

88874 

90360 

90366 

91089 

91591 

DISTRICT 5- SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-005-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Distinguished Young Women 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies) 

Anderson Cavaliers 

Tackling the Streets 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

8,390.05 

(500.00) 

(300.00) 

(250.00) 

(250.00) 

(500.00) 

(500.00) 

36,090.05 

36,090.05 

December 08, 20 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/26/2020 

8/25/2020 

8/26/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

9/2/2020 

9/2/2020 

9/2/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

Check 

Number 

88856 

88873 

88942 

90360 

90389 

DISTRICT 6 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-006-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

CESA Tri County 

Distinguished Young Women 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

PLAY (Powdersville League of Athletic Youth) 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

YMCA of Powdersville (mentor Program) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

9,194.45 

(6,000.00) 

(300.00) 

(5,000.00) 

(250.00) 

(2,500.00) 

25,144.45 

25,144.45 

December 08, 20 



Council 

Meeting of: 

11/1212020 

11/20/2020 

11/20/2020 

11/20/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

11/18/2020 

121212020 

121212020 

1212/2020 

Check 

Number 

91130 

91533 

91548 

91594 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

DISTRICT 7- SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-007-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Cheddar Youth Center 

Honea Path Free Clinic 

Mill Town Players 

Town of Pelzer 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 

SUB-TOTAL 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

December 8, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

50.00 

(3,500.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

(1 ,300.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

23,250.00 

23,250.00 

December 08, 20 



All Project Report - November, 2020 

Total $2,270,842.04 Prepared by: Amy Merritt 
FY 18-19 Bud et 1 ,500,000.00 Date: 12-4-2020 

Transfer In 770,842.04 

Committed $2,270,840.041 

AVAILABLE $2.001 

Profecls/Towns- CIHes/ Oiher 

Approved Date Project Scope Appropriated Amount Total Spent to Date Completion Date 

08/07/18 Townville Fire Department Pave Parkina Lot $10,000.00 $1.600.00 04/30/19 

08/07/18 Town of Honea Path Paving $48,000.00 $17,188.22 

08/07/18 Town of Pelzer Pavina $17,000.00 $4.746.77 

08/07/18 Town of West Pelzer Pavina $25,000.00 $11.675.98 

08/07/18 Town of Williamston Pavinq $52,000.00 $16,689.41 

08/21/18 School District Road in 06 Pavina $20,000.00 $0.00 

10/02/18 Mental Health Parking Lot Pave Parking Lot $60,000.00 $23,158.55 

10/04/18 C-Fund Matchinq Funds Pavinq $315,000.00 $315,000.00 Transfer complete 

ll/07/18 Road Improvement Plan See Below $1.723,840.04 $2,224.750.68 

Totals: $2,270,840.04 $2.614,809.61 

Road Name District Scope of Work EsHmale Total Spent to' Dale CompleHon Date 

Hobson Road I CS/Pave $83,571 $81.449.14 01/00/00 
Oakridae Court I CS/Pave $18,908 $19,346.79 01/00/00 
Harbison Drive 7 FOP/Pave $46,633 $0.00 01/00/00 
Plantation Road 4 CIPR $51.000 $52,205.60 01/00/00 
Branch Road 4 CIPR $86,288 $81,550.68 01/00/00 
Valley Drive 4 CIPR $43,144 $43,967.21 01/00/00 
Meadow Road 4 CIPR $51,584 $25,396.28 01/00/00 
Governor's Boulevard I FOR/Pave $171.024 $164,979.09 01/00/00 
Hopewell Ridqe 7 CIPR/Pave $152,636 $137,189.01 01/00/00 
Winding Creek Rood 7 CIPR/Pave $73,901 $69,591.91 01/00/00 
Creekside Court 7 CIPR/Pave $14.425 $20,651.79 01/00/00 
Crossridae Lane 7 CIPR/Pave $17,224 $23,667.65 0 1/00/00 

Old Oak Trail 7 CIPR/Pave $21.092 $29,644.68 0 1/00/00 
Grove Road 2/3 Pave $142,944 $142.805.44 01!00/00 

Shirley Drive 2 Pave $175.467 $138.488.64 0 1/00/00 

Airline Road 3/5 FDP/ST/FS $243,293 $237,157.95 01/00/00 
Firetower Road 6/4 FDP/ST/FS $142.982 $188,392.08 01/00/00 

Old Webb Road 5 FOP/Pave $184,905 $175.614.78 01/00/00 

Holden Lane 5 Mill/Binder/Pave $10.515 $1 2,895.20 01/00/00 
Cely Lane 6 FOP/Pave $244.679 $365.7 58.33 01/00/00 

$1 ,976,215 $2,010.752.25 

FOP = Full-Depth PatchinQ: FOR = Full-Depth Reclamation, ST = SinQie-Treatment; FS = FoQ Seal; Pave = Resurface with Asphalt. CS =Crack Seal 



District 1 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

FY18- 19 Budg_et includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget $65,290.00 

Committed $65,290.00 

AVAILABLE $0.00 

FDP = Full Depth Patching· FDR = Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Trear FS = Fog Seal · Pave = Resurface with Ashphak CS = Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

City of Anderson 

11 /2/2016 Civic Center 

1/ 16/2018 Oak Hill Drive Traffic Control 

- ' 

Approval Date Project 

All monies now in account 000 

We certify that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of November 30, 2020 

Projectsffowns-Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Ammmt 

$0.00 

Upgrade roads, 
landscaping $119,000.00 

Radar sign & 
reflectors $6,500.00 

Totals: - $125 ,500.00 

District I Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Ammmt 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

$56,306.16 

$3,903 .03 

$60,209.19 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads & Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

incomplete 

incomplete 

Completion Date 

Amy Merrill 

December 4, 2020 



FY 18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 2 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

FOP = Full Depth Patching; FOR = Full Depth Reclamation, ST =Single Treat; FS =Fog Seal; Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt; CS = Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

City of Anderson 

: 

Approval Date . Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certi fy that the above info rmation, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as ofNovember 30th, 2020 

Projects/Cities& Towns/Other 

Scope . Appropriated Amount 

Grading/Drainage 

Totals: $0.00 

District 2 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified by: Neil Carney 

Toatal Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads & Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

December 4, 2020 



FYI8-1 9 Budget includes Carryforward from FYI7-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 3 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

$42,690.00 

$22,690.00 

$20,000.00 

FOP = Full Depth Patching· FDR =Full Depth Reclamation ST =Single Treat FS =Fog Seal · Pave= Resurface with Ashphalt· CS = Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

8/8/2013 Town oflva (6/4/19 rei $20K) 

7/7/2015 Town oflva 

7/7/2015 Town of Starr 

City of Belton 

6/4/2019 

. 
Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

6/4/2019 Ebenezer Fire Dept 

6/4/2019 Starr Fire Dept 

We certifY that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of November 30th, 2020 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/Drainage $45,000.00 

Grading/Drainage $16,250.00 

Grad ing/Drainage $8,000.00 

Grading/Drainage 

Totals: $69,250.00 

District 3 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Paving $11 ,300.00 

Paving $8,700.00 

Totals: $20,000.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$26,352.74 

$0.00 

$6,013.56 

$0.00 

$32,366.30 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$11 ,300.00 

$11 ,300.00 

Completion Date 

Incomplete 

Incomplete 

Incomplete 

Completion Date 

12/4/2019 

Amy Merritt 

December 4, 2020 



FY18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY17-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 4 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

$12,455 .00 

$12,455.00 

$0.00 

FDP =Full Depth Patching· FDR =Full Depth Reclamation ST =Single Treat FS =Fog Seal · Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt· CS =Crack Seal , , , , 

Approval Date Project 

717/2015 Town of Pendleton 

' 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certify that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of November 30th, 2020 

Projects!fowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/drainage $39,500.00 

Totals: $39,500.00 

District 4 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$27,042.90 

$27,042.90 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads & Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

incomplete 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

December 4, 2020 



FY18- 19 Bud_get includes Carryforward from FY I7-1 8 Budget 

Committed 

AVA ILA BLE 

District 5 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

FDP = Full Depth Patching· FDR =Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Treat" FS =Fog Seal· Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt· CS = Crack Seal , 

Approval Date Project 

Approval Date Project 

Al l monies moved to account 000 

-

. 

We certi fy that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, · 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of November 30th, 2020 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

District 5 Paving Pla n 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Proj ect Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Nei l Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

December 4, 2020 

]\I Q w C:-=:t; 
\'t,OJ -1otO 



FY 18- 19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17- 18 Budget 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 6 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

FDP = Full Depth Patching FDR = Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Treat · FS = Fog Seal · Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt· CS =Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certifY that the above infonnation, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate infonnation as of November 30th, 2020 

Totals: 

Totals 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

$0.00 

District 6 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

$0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Amy Merrill 

December -1, 2020 



FY 18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 7 Paving Report 
Through November 30th, 2020 

$47,665 .07 

$47,665 .07 

$0.00 

FOP = Full Depth Patching; FDR = Full Depth Reclamation, ST = Single Treat; FS = Fog Seat· Pave = Resurface with Ashphatt· CS = Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

7/7/2015 Town of Honea Path 

10/ 19/2016 Town of Honea Path 

11 / 18/2014 Town of Pelzer 

7/7/2015 Town of Pelzer 

10/19/2016 Town of Pelzer 

Town of West Pelzer 

10/19/2016 Town of Williamston 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certify that the above information,· to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of November 30th, 2020 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/drainage $48,000.00 

Grading/drainage $48,000.00 

Grading/drainage $5,000.00 

Grading/drainage $2,500.00 

Grading/drainage $17,000.00 

Grading/drainage $0.00 

.Grading/drainage $52,000.00 

Totals: $172,500.00 

District 7 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$48,000.00 

$25,627.46 

$2,812.55 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$24,579.51 

$101 ,019.52 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

3/21/2017 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

December 4, 2020 



ANDERSON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
November 2020 

Uniform Patrol Animal Control 

Average Daily Calls for Service 438 Average Daily Ca lls for Service 

Total Calls for Services 13,156 Total Calls for Service 

Tota l Number of Incident Reports 1215 Total Number of An imals Co llected/Transported 

Total Number of Arrests 301 Tota l Number of State Tickets/Arrest Warrants 

Total Number of County Ordinance 

Total Number of "Domestic" Incidents 53 Tickets/Warnings Issued 
Total Number of "Unlawful Conduct Towards a 

Chi ld" Reports 3 Traffic Stops/Report s Written 

Large Animal Calls 

Detention Center 

Average Daily Popu lat ion 318 Forensics 

Average Daily Population Capacity Percentage 127.2% Total Individual Analys is Completed 

Tota l Number of Meals Served 28,147 Total Number of Evidence Pieces Collected 

Lit ter Crew : Total Miles Cleaned/Cleared 3 Total Number of Evidence Pieces Processed 

Litter Crew: Total Number of Trash Bags Processe 454 Total Number of CSI Ca lls 

Litter Crew: Total Number of Tires Removed 61 Tota l Number of Photos Taken 

Total Number of Finger Prints Collected 

Communications Center 

Average Daily Calls for Service 968 Civil Process & Warrants 

Tota l Calls for Ass istance 29,045 Total Number of Civil Papers Received 

Total Number of Civil Papers Completed 

Records Total Number of Evict ions Scheduled 

Total DSS Histories & Reports 269 Total Number of Evictions Completed 

Total Non Ferrous Meta l Permits 119 Hours Spent on Evict ions 

Tota l Number of Tickets 145 Total Number of Pick Up Orders 

Total Number of Case Jackets to Court 81 Hours Spent on Pick Up Orders 

Tota l Warrants Received 

Courthouse Tota l Warrants Served/Cleared 

Number of People Screened 19,779 Tota l Judgments Received/ Satisfied/Nu lla Bona 

Courthouse, Annex, Summary Crt & Library Total Judgments Satisfied 

Number of Juveniles Transported 0 Tota l Judgments Nulla Bona 

Number of Walk-Up Bench Warrants 0 

Number of Family Court Cases 212 

Number of Inmates Th rough Courthouse 15 

Number of Bank Transports Conducted 88 

Number of Preliminary Hearings 0 

Number of Keep Checks on County Parks 150 

Number of Civil Papers Served 0 

Compiled from manually entered data 

18 

536 

92 

8 

24/125 

13/16 

26 

1,461 

759 

631 

183 

4,699 

208 

682 

696 

47 

31 

31 hrs. 

3 

3 hrs. 

239 

237 

22 

0 

19 


	Anderson County Council Agenda December 15, 2020
	3. Approval of Minutes November 12, 2020
	5a. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-023 Amend MCIP to add Project Unity Gateway
	5b. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-026 authorize conversion and transfer of lease agreement 1988 Michelin
	5c. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-027 authorize conversion and transfer of lease agreement 1996 Michelin
	5d. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-028 authorize infrastructure Credit agreement and MCIP Michelin  
	5e. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-031 amend Chapter 70, Article 5 of Code to include new Zoning District Classifications
	5f. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-034 amend 38-118 (f) of code to clarify traffic impact study requirements
	5g. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-037 approve sublease agrement w/ Lake Hartwell Development Group Asbury Park Site
	5h. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-042 develop join MCIP with Greenville County Project Lighthouse
	9a. Resolution R2020-041 authorize inducement agreement Project Switch
	9b. Resolution R2020-042 authorize and ratify transfer of FILOT Agreement SMF, Inc to EDECO LLC. 
	10a. Bid Approval # 21-020 Prestessed concrete cored slab units
	12. Requests by Council
	13a. Admin Report  Building and Codes Report
	13b. Admin Report Special Projects
	13c. Admin Report Paving 
	13d. Admin Report Sheriff's Office Report



